.

Apna Ghar. Apni Pehchan.

13 May, 2024

To,

BSE Limited

Corporate Relationship Department

25th Floor, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers

Dalal Street, Mumbai-400001 (Company Code —10828)

Dear Sir/Madam,
Subject: Intimation of 20*" Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Reference: Regulation 50(2) and 53(2) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing
Regulations’)

We wish to inform you that 20" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of the Company is
scheduled to be held at a shorter notice on Tuesday, 14 May, 2024 at 5:00 p.m. through Video
Conferencing (VC) or other audio-visual means (OAVM) to consider and transact the businesses as
mentioned in the Notice of AGM.

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 50 and 53 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, we are enclosing
herewith Notice of 20t AGM of the Company along with a copy of Annual Report for the Financial Year
2023-24.

Kindly note that the Notice of the 20™ AGM along with the Annual Report, as attached herewith, are
also available on the website of the Company at: https://grihumhousing.com/.

We hereby request you to take the above information on your record.

Yours sincerely,
For Grihum Housing Finance Limited
(Formerly, Poonawalla Housing Finance Limited)

VAISHNAV|  Digitally signed by

VAISHNAVI BHUPENDRA

BHUPENDRA  suratwaLa

Date: 2024.05.1319:25:10

SURATWALA o530

Vaishnavi Suratwala
Company Secretary
Mem. No. A41827

Enclosed: as above

Grihum Housing Finance Limited

(Formerly, Poonawalla Housing Finance Limited)

CIN: U65922PN2004PLC208751 | § 020-67808091 | ¥=« info@grihumhousing.com
Registered Office: 602, 6" Floor, Zero One IT Park, Survey No. 79/1, Ghorpadi, Mundhwa Road, Pune - 411036

@ www.grihumhousing.com
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Notice

Notice is hereby given that the 20" Annual General Meeting
(AGM) of the Shareholders of Grihum Housing Finance Limited
(Formerly, Poonawalla Housing Finance Limited) (hereinafter
referred to as ‘Company'/ ‘the Company’) will be held at a shorter
notice on Tuesday, 14 May, 2024 at 5:00 P.M. through Video
Conferencing (VC)/ other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM), to transact
the following Ordinary Businesses:

The AGM being held through VC/OAVM, the requirement of physical
attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly,
the proceedings of the AGM shall be deemed to be conducted at
the Registered Office of the Company at 602, 6 Floor, Zero One
IT Park, Survey No. 79/1, Ghorpadi, Mundhawa Road, Pune- 411036,
which shall be the deemed venue of the AGM.

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the financial year ended
31 March, 2024 including the Balance Sheet as at 31 March,
2024 and Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended on
that date and the Reports of the Board of Directors and
Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Puneet Bhatia (DIN:
00143973), who retires by rotation at this Annual General
Meeting,and beingeligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. To appoint M/s. Sharp & Tannan Associates, Chartered
Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the Company and
in this regard to consider and, if thought Fit, to pass, with
or without modification(s) the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules framed thereunder and pursuant to the
Guidelines for Appointment of Statutory Central Auditors
(SCAs)/Statutory Auditors (SAs) of Commercial Banks
(excluding RRBs), UCBs and NBFCs (including HFCs) dated

27 April, 2021 issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI Guidelines)
and applicable provisions of other law(s), including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the
time beingin force,M/s.Sharp & Tannan Associates, Chartered
Accountants, having Firm Registration Number 109983Ww,
be and is hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditor of the
Company for a continuous period of 3 (three) years, to hold
office from the conclusion of this 20" Annual General Meeting
(AGM) until the conclusion of the 23 AGM of the Company, at
such remuneration, taxes and out of pocket expenses as may
be approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director, Chief Financial
Officer, Chief Compliance Officer or the Company Secretary
of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized to
take all such actions as may be deemed necessary to give
effect to the above resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Grihum Housing Finance Limited
(Formerly, Poonawalla Housing Finance Limited)

Sd/-

Vaishnavi Suratwala
Company Secretary
Membership No. A41827

Registered OFffice:

602, 6" Floor, Zero One IT Park,

Survey No. 79/1, Ghorpadi, Mundhwa Road,
Pune - 411036

Date: 8" May, 2024



Grihum Housing Finance Limited

NOTES:

1

Shorter Notice consent has been received from not less
than ninety-five per cent of the Members entitled to
vote at the AGM.

In view of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") has vide its circulars dated 08
April, 2020 read with circulars dated 13 April 2020, 15 June,
2020, 28 September, 2020, 31 December, 2020, 23 June, 2021,
08 December, 2021, 05 May, 2022, 28 December, 2022 and 25
September, 2023 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”)
permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting
("“AGM") through VC / OAVM, without the physical presence
of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with
the provisions of the Act and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the
Company is being held through VC / OAVM. Further, for the
purpose of technical compliance of the provisions of section
96(2) of the Act we are assuming the place of meeting as
the place where the Company is domiciled i.e, the registered
office of the Company.

The Statement pursuant to Section 102 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder is annexed hereto and forms part of the
Notice. As required under Secretarial Standard - 2 issued
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI),
the information pertaining to the director seeking re-
appointment is provided in Annexure 1 to this Notice.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, 3 member entitled to
attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be
a member of the Company. Since the AGM is being conducted
through VC/OAVM pursuant to MCA Circulars, physical
attendance of Members hasbeendispensed with.Accordingly,
the Facility For appointment of proxies by the Members will
not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and
Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

In compliance with the MCA circulars, Notice of the AGM shall
be given only through emails registered with the Company or
with the depository participant / depository. Members may
note that the Notice will also be available on the Company's
website at https://grihumhousing.com/.

Corporate Members are requested to send a duly
certified copy of the Board Resolution/Power of Attorney
authorizing their representative(s) pursuant to Section
113 of the Companies Act, 2013 to attend and vote on their

behalf at the AGM.

10.

.

12.

13.

14.

The Members can attend the meeting through VC from their
laptop/mobile. Members are requested to follow the steps
mentioned in the file named ‘INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS
FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC' which is enclosed
with the Notice of the AGM and shall also be attached
separately on the e-mail, with the Notice of the AGM.

The Company shall provide VC facility via ZOOM VIDEO
COMMUNICATIONS (“Zoom”) in order to make it convenient
for the Members to attend the Meeting. Members are
required to use the following link or details to join the
meeting through VC facility of Zoom:

Zoom https://zoom.us/j/92936773062?pwd=TOpYS
Meeting Link 0gOLO9mMMIMOT1VuSitzQk4zZz09
Meeting ID 929 3677 3062

Password 819835

The members desirous to inspect the relevant documents
referred to in the accompanying notice and other
statutory registers are required to send requests on the
Company Secretary's email address: vaishnavi.suratwala@
grihumhousing.com. An extract of such documents would
be sent to the members on their registered email address.
The same will also be made available for inspection by the

members at the Meeting in electronic mode.

Members seeking any information with regard to the matters
to be placed at the AGM, are requested to write to the
Company Secretary at vaishnavi.suratwala@grihumhousing.com.
The same shall be taken up in AGM and replied by the
Company suitably.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through
VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the
quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The documents, if any, referred in the Explanatory Statement
will be made available for inspection by the members at the
Meeting in electronic mode.

Members seeking any information with regard to any matter
to be placed at AGM are requested to submit their questions
in advance, on or before AGM to the Company Secretary's
email address i.e. vaishnavi.suratwala@grihumhousing.com
The same will be replied by the Company suitably.

Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the Route Map
is not annexed to the notice.
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Instructions For participating in the 20" (Twentieth) Annual General Meeting of the Members of Grihum Housing
Finance Limited (Formerly, Poonawalla Housing Finance Limited), to be held at a shorter notice on 14 May, 2024
at 5:00 P.M. through Video Conference, by using Zoom Meeting Application.

Instructions for participating the aforesaid AGM through
Video Conference:

Step1

Download the Zoom Meeting Application in your Mobile or Laptop.
You may use this link to download the application [https://zoom.us/].

Step 2

Click on"Sign up”

Step 3

For verification, please enter your “Date of Birth”
Step 4

Please enter "Your email’,"First Name" and “Last Name" and click on
“l agree to the Terms of Service”

Step 5

Now go to your registered email provided, check Inbox for the
registration email and click on the "Activate Account”

Step 6

Go to your Zoom Application, click on the “Join" and enter the
Meeting Id and password and now click on the "Join Meeting” Tab
and ensure that you have proper internet facility through Mobile
phone or Wifi connected to your device.

Other instructions:

1 Please note that, if you have already downloaded /using
Zoom Application, then you need not to do the aforesaid
activities and you have to just enter the Zoom Meeting Id and
Password, as provided in this Notice.

2. You can sign-in/join the meeting 15 minutes before the
scheduled time of the meeting for timely participation in the
AGM through video conference. Further, any member may
join the meeting within 15 minutes from the commencement
of the meeting.

3. Please listen and participate in the discussion carefully.

4.  The members attending the AGM through VC may send their
assent or dissent through their registered email-id to the
email-id of the Company Secretary at vaishnavi.suratwala@
grihumhousing.com.Please click on the“Mute"tab,when there
is any disturbance or noise around you or you are not talking.

5. Please ensure that no other person is sitting with you/
participating/ having access to the proceedings of the
Meeting through Video Conference.

6.  Pleaseclickon"Unmute”tab when you want to say something.

7. In case of any assistance before or during the
video conference as aforesaid, you can contact the
Company Secretary, Ms. Suratwala, at
vaishnavi.suratwala@grihumhousing.com. or
at 020-67808091.

Vaishnavi
Contact

Explanatory Statement Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standard - 2 on

General Meetings

Item No. 3 - Appointment of Statutory Auditors

The Members are being informed that pursuant to the provisions
of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with the
Guidelines for Appointment of Statutory Central Auditors (SCAs)/
Statutory Auditors (SAs) of Commercial Banks (excluding RRBs),
UCBs and NBFCs (including HFCs) dated 27 April, 2021 issued by RBI
(RBI Guidelines), the Company is required to appoint the Statutory
Auditor For a continuous period of 3 (three) years, subject to the
audit Firm satisfying the eligibility norms as specified in the RBI
Guidelines and the Act.

In view of the above, the Members of the Company had, at the
17" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company held on
18 August, 2021, appointed M/s. G.D. Apte & Co, as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company for a period of three years i.e. from the
conclusion of 17®" AGM till the conclusion of this 20" AGM of the
Company. Accordingly, since the term of M/s. G.D. Apte & Co, as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company will expire upon conclusion
of this 20" AGM, the Board of Directors of the Company at its
meeting held on 3 May, 2024, upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee, considered, approved and recommended for approval
of the Members of the Company, the appointment of M/s. Sharp
& Tannan Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration
No. 109983W), as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a
continuous period of 3 years from the conclusion of this 20" AGM
till the conclusion of the 23 AGM of the Company. M/s. Sharp &

Tannan Associates shall be entitled to such remuneration, taxes
and out of pocket expenses as may be approved by the Board
of Directors of the Company on the recommendation of the
Audit Committee.

M/s. Sharp & Tannan Associates, Chartered Accountants was
established in 1932, and has 22 partners and 500 staff expanded
over 10 branches. The firm possess extensive expertise in
effectively managing well-known non-banking financial company
(NBFC) entities and is ranked in Top-10 assurance firms in India as
per Prime Academy 2018 report. The firm provides professional
services like auditing, internal audits and taxation services to
clients in India.

M/s. Sharp & Tannan Associates have consented to their
appointment as Statutory Auditors of the Company vide their
letter dated 22 April, 2024 and confirmed that their appointment,
if made, would be within the limits specified under the Act and
the RBI Guidelines and that they are not disqualified from being
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company.

The Board of Directors recommends the resolution set out in Item
No. 3 of the Notice to the Members for their consideration and
approval, by way of an Ordinary Resolution.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
and their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested,

financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.
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Grihum Housing Finance Limited

Annexure 1

INFORMATION PERTAINING TO THE RE-APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENT OF
THE SECRETARIAL STANDARD 2 ISSUED BY THE INSTITUTE OF COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA IS GIVEN BELOW:

Brief ProFile of Mr. Puneet Bhatia:

:.:;. Particulars Mr. Puneet Bhatia
1 Date of birth 16 December, 1966
2 Age 57 years
3 DIN 00143973
4 Qualifications Masters in business administration from Indian Institute of Management Calcutta and an
undergraduate degree in Commerce from Shri Ram College of Commerce, Delhi.
5 Experience 30+ Years of Experience
6 Terms and condition of appointment  Mr. Puneet Bhatia is a Non-Executive Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation
and/or reappointment along with as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and other applicable laws, if
details of remuneration sought to be  any. He retires by rotation at this 20" Annual General Meeting, and being eligible, seeks
paid re-appointment. Presently, Non-Executive Directors of the Company are not entitled
to receive sitting fees / remuneration, however he shall be entitled to sitting fees /
remuneration if approved by the Board of Directors / Shareholders of the Company in
accordance with the provisions of the Act or rules framed thereunder.
7 Remuneration last drawn (As per Nil
audited balance sheet dated March
31,2024)
8 Date of First appointment on the 8 September, 2023
Board
9 Shareholding in the Company Nil
10 Relationship with other Directors, None

Managers and/or Key Managerial
personnel of the Company

n Numbers of Board Meeting attended  Attended all 4 (Four) Board Meetings held during the FY 2023-24 after his appointment on
during the Year the Board

12 Other Directorships 1. Manipal Health Enterprises Private Limited

Sai Life Sciences Limited

UPL Sustainable Agri Solutions Limited
Flare Estate Private Limited

Pinewood Estates Private Limited
Havells India Limited

TPG Capital India Private Limited

Jana Capital Limited

0 N O U WN

SCCA Propertymart Private Limited

-
©

Fractal Analytics Private Limited

13 Membership/Chairmanship of Membership:
Committees of other Boards . . . - . - .
1. TPG Capital India Private Limited- Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

2. Sai Life Sciences Limited- Corporate Social Responsibility and Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

3. Manipal Health Enterprises Private Limited -

Compensation & Remuneration Committee and Executive Committee
4. Fractal Analytics Private Limited - Audit & Risk Committee
5. Havells India Limited - Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Chairmanship:

1. Fractal Analytics Private Limited - Nomination & Remuneration Committee and
Corporate Social Responsibility & Environmental, Social, and Governance Committee
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Manish Jaiswal
Managing Director & Chief
Executive Officer

Mr. Puneet Bhatia
Non-Executive Non-Independent Director
(w.e.f. 8 September, 2023)

Mr. Sanjeev Mehra
Non-Executive Non-Independent Director
(w.e.f. 8 September,2023)

Mr. Prem Manjooran
Non-Executive Independent Director
(w.e.f. 8 September, 2023)

Mr. Nitin Gupta
Non-Executive Independent Director
(w.e.f. 8 September, 2023)

Ms. Richa Arora
Non-Executive Independent Director
(w.e.f. 13 March, 2024)

Mr. Adar Poonawalla
Chairman and Non-Executive
Non-Independent Director
(upto 26 July, 2023)

Mr. Amar Deshpande
Non-Executive Non-Independent Director
(upto 26 July, 2023)

Mr. Prabhakar Dalal
Non-Executive Independent Director
(upto 8 September, 2023)

Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy
Non-Executive Independent Director
(upto 8 September, 2023)

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Pankaj Rathi

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Vaishnavi Suratwala
(w.e.f. 20 May, 2023)

Ms. Priti Saraogi
(upto 5 April, 2023)

REGISTERED & CORPORATE OFFICE

602, 6th Floor, Zero One IT Park,
Survey No. 79/1, Ghorpadi,

Mundhwa Road,

Pune- 411036

Website: https://grihumhousing.com/

BANKS & FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
» National Housing Bank
» State Bank of India

» Bankof Baroda

» Punjab National Bank
» CanaraBank

» Union Bank of India

» Bankof India

» Indian Bank

» Bankof Maharashtra
» UCOBank

» HDFCBank

» ICICIBank

» AxisBank

» Kotak Mahindra Bank
» YesBank

» HSBCBank

» IDFCFirst Bank

» South Indian Bank

»  Karur Vysya Bank

» Karnataka Bank

» AU Small Finance Bank

» DBSBank

» DCBBank

» Equitas Small Finance Bank

» Shinhan Bank

STATUTORY AUDITORS

G. D. Apte & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.100515W
GDA House, Plot No. 85, Right
Bhusari Colony, Paud Road, Kothrud
Pune - 411038

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

M Siroya and Company

Company Secretaries

A-103, Samved Building (Madhukunij),
Near Ekta Bhoomi Gardens,
Rajendra Nagar, Borivali (E),
Mumbai- 400 066

REGISTRAR AND SHARE
TRANSFER AGENT

Link Intime India Private Limited

C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli
(West), Mumbai-400083

Niche Technologies Private Limited
7th Floor, Room No.7A & 7B,

3A, Auckland Place, Kolkata - 700 017
(Upto 31July, 2023)
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Grihum Housing Finance Limited

Board’'s Report

Dear Shareholders,

Annual Report 2023-24

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 20" (Twentieth) Annual Report along with the Audited Financial Statements of Grihum

Housing Finance Limited (Formerly, Poonawalla Housing Finance Limited) (The Company’) for the financial year ended 31 March, 2024. The

summarised financial results are given below.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The highlights of the financial performance of the Company are given below:

R In Crore)
Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
Total Income 1,045.65 716.05
Finance Cost 443.86 279.77
Operating Expenses 399.31 27312
Depreciation 19.23 8.97
Total Expenses 862.40 561.86
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 183.25 154.19
Provision for Taxation 33.27 31.34
Deferred Tax 10.02 763
Profit/(Loss) after Tax 139.96 115.22
Balance of profits for earlier years 344.38 252.04
Profits available for appropriation 484.34 367.26
Other Comprehensive income/(loss) (0.59) 017
Balance Available for Appropriation 483.75 367.43
Transfer to Statutory Reserve 27.99 23.05
Balance carried forward 455.76 344.38

OVERVIEW OF COMPANY’'S PERFORMANCE

The Company is a housing finance company registered with the
Reserve Bank of India (RBI). The Company specialises in providing
accessible financial solutions within India's semi-urban and peri-
urban areas through its national scale presence in 18 States and
Union Territories with 210 branches. The Company's commitment
is to serve the affordable housing customer - typically a micro-
entrepreneur with a monthly household income of ¥ 30,000 to
¥60,000,who seeksaloan ofT10-12 lakhs fora 600-800 sq.ft.home -
with our fundamental values of humility, trust and togetherness. The
affordable housing finance franchise has been consistently built with
a relentless focus on imparting “dignity of living” to the customers
with focus on SMI - SC (Self-made Individuals - Self Construction).
The name Grihum signifies the enterprise's commitment to assisting
customers in finding their dream accommodations. It operates on
the philosophy of 'Go Home Loan- Go Direct, which emphasises
prioritising transparency and simplicity while directly delivering the
solutions to its customers. The tagline “Apna Ghar. Apni Pehchan.”
captures the Company's resonance with the customers to build a
seamless journey towards homeownership.

The Company strives to accomplish the objective of financial
inclusion by serving first time customers with limited / no access
to formal credit. The Company is committed to contribute to
government's objective of ‘Housing for All

The Company has had a remarkable Ffinancial year with all-
round performance across Business growth, Credit quality and
Profitability. During the year under review, the Company has
witnessed highest ever disbursement of ¥ 2,914 Crore, delivering
32% Asset Under Management (AUM) growth over last year, closing
the year with an AUM of ¥ 8,277 Crore.

On resource profile, the Company Further widened its lenders
base during the year under review, with the addition of private
and foreign banks, and enhanced its existing relationships with
National Housing Bank (NHB) and Public Sector Undertaking (PSU)
banks. It derived a growing proportion of funds from the NHB
and entered capital markets as well. The Company continues to
raise fresh borrowings at the most competitive terms and pricing
thereby achieving the best-in-class average 81% during the
year under review.

With the fresh equity infusion of ¥ 1,038 Crore by Perseus SG Pte.
Ltd, (Perseus) the Promoter of the Company an entity affiliated
with TPG, a leading global alterative asset management firm during
the year under review. The net worth of the Company stands
bolstered to ¥ 2,390 Crore. Consequently, the Company reported
a significantly lower leverage ratio of 2.4 times as at the year end,
providing significant headroom for its future growth. The Company
carries robust liquidity and a well-matched ALM in line with its
assets profile. The Company reported Capital Adequacy Ratio
of 47.31% as on 31 March, 2024 which is well above the minimum
regulatory threshold limit.

The strong focus on portfolio management, risk management and
collections has enabled the Company to maintain best in class asset
quality. The Company has reported the Gross NPA (GNPA) of 0.95%
as at the end of financial year under review. The Company carries
robust Provision Coverage Ratio at 41.2% and has overall provision
coverage at 0.9% of loan book as on 31 March, 2024.

The Company has witnessed the highest ever Profit Before Tax (PBT)
0f3183.25 Crore in FY 2023-24 against ¥154.19 Crore in FY 2022-23.



During the year under review, upon application made by the
Company, the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of
India (IRDAI) granted a certificate of registration to the Company
to act as ‘Corporate Agent (Composite) w.ef. 1 January, 2024 and
the Company is authorised to solicit customers and serve the
businesses of both life and general insurance. In view of the same,
the Company has entered into corporate agency agreements with
few insurance companies.

CHANGE IN CONTROL

The Board of Directors of Poonawalla Fincorp Limited (PFL), the
erstwhile Holding Company of the Company at its meeting held on
14 December, 2022 accorded its consent for the sale of controlling
stake in the Company to Perseus SG Pte. Ltd. (Perseus) an entity
affiliated with TPG. In view of the same, the Board of Directors of
the Company at its meeting held on 14 December, 2022 took note
of the said transaction and a Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) was
executed amongst PFL, Perseus and the Company on 14 December,
2022, for the proposed sale of controlling stake in the Company
i.e. 99.02% shareholding by PFL, subject to regulatory approvals
and satisfaction of other customary conditions. Subsequently,
the Company filed an application with Reserve Bank of India (RBI)
seeking prior requisite approval for the transfer of shareholding
of the Company, together with the acquisition of control of the
Company and change of management (i.e. change in non-executive
non-independent directors) pursuant to Chapter VIII - Acquisition/
Transfer of Control of the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial
Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2021 (RBI HFC Master Directions). The RBI granted its approval
for change in shareholding vide its letter dated 30 May, 2023 and
for change in management vide its letter dated 31 August, 2023.
Consequently, the divestment of entire stake i.e. 24,98,21,117 equity
shares held by PFL and its nominees in the Company, in favour
of Perseus, was consummated on 26 July, 2023, post receipt of
approval of relevant regulatory authorities and fulfilment of other
terms and conditions specified in the SPA.

As a result of the aforesaid divestment, the Company ceased to be
a subsidiary of PFL and Perseus holds a controlling equity stake in
the Company as the Promoter of the Company.

During the year under review, upon change of control of the
Company, Mr. Adar Poonawalla, the erstwhile Chairman and Non-
Executive Non-Independent Director (DIN: 00044815) and Mr. Amar
Deshpande (DIN: 07425556),
Director of the Company resigned from the Board of Directors

Non-Executive Non-Independent

of the Company with effect from 26 July, 2023. Thereafter,
Mr. Prabhakar Dalal (DIN: 00544948) and Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy
(DIN: 02196839), Non-Executive Independent Directors of the
Company, resigned from the Board of Directors of the Company
with effect from the close of business hours on 8 September, 2023.

Further, the Company with effect from 8 September, 2023,
appointed Mr. Puneet Bhatia (DIN: 00143973) and Mr. Sanjeev Mehra
(DIN: 07491208), as Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors
and Mr. Prem Manjooran (DIN: 10310018) and Mr. Nitin Gupta
(DIN: 02404862), as Non-Executive Independent Directors on the
Board of the Company. Subsequently, with effect from 13 March,
2024, the Company appointed Ms. Richa Arora (DIN: 07144694) as
Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company.
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CHANGE OF NAME

During the year under review, consequent to the change in control
of the Company, the name of the Company was changed from
"Poonawalla Housing Finance Limited” to "Grihum Housing Finance
Limited” w.e.f.177 November, 2023 post necessary approvals from the
RBI, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and other authorities.

SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised Share Capital

During the year under review, the authorised share capital of
the Company was increased from ¥ 2,75,00,00,000 (Rupees Two
Hundred Seventy Five Crore only) comprising of 27,50,00,000
(Twenty Seven Crore Fifty Lakhs only) equity shares of 10 (Rupees
Ten) each to ¥ 7,00,00,00,000 (Rupees Seven Hundred Crore only)
comprising of (a) 50,00,00,000 (Fifty Crore only) equity shares of
%10 (Rupees Ten only) each aggregating to ¥ 5,00,00,00,000 (Rupees
Five Hundred Crore only) and (b) 20,00,00,000 (Twenty Crore only)
preference shares of ¥ 10 (Rupees Ten only) each aggregating to
¥2,00,00,00,000 (Rupees Two Hundred Crore only), pursuant to the
approval of the shareholders of the Company.

Issued and Paid-Up Share Capital

During the year under review, the Company allotted 3,74,84,321
equity shares of ¥ 10 each to Perseus on 7 August, 2023 for a
total consideration of ¥ 53770 Crore on a private placement
basis. The Company also allotted 10,92,134 equity shares to the
eligible employees under Employee/Restricted Stock Option Plans
of the Company.

The Company on 28 March, 2024 allotted 3,39,62,286 equity shares
of ¥ 10 each on Rights Basis to the existing shareholders of the
Company in the ratio of 1:8.46. Thereafter, the Company, on 28
March, 2024 allotted 16,24,13,259 fully paid-up 0.001% Compulsory
Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of ¥ 10 each, as bonus shares
intheratioof 1:2 to the existing equity shareholders of the Company.

In view of the above issuance and allotment of the shares, the
issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company as at
31 March, 2024, stood at ¥ 4,87,23,97,830 comprising of 32,48,26,524
equity shares of ¥ 10 each and 16,24,13,259, 0.001% CCPS of ¥ 10
each as compared to ¥ 2,52,28,77,830 comprising of 25,22,87,783
equity shares of ¥ 10 each as on 31 March, 2023. All the shares of
the Company are fully-paid up and are in dematerialised form as on
31 March, 2024. During the year under review, the Company has not
issued any shares with differential rights or sweat equity shares.

DIVIDEND

In view of the planned business growth of the Company, your
Directors felt it prudent to retain the earnings for the Financial Year
under review to be ploughed back in business, which shall result in
further augmentation of the Company’s growth and Shareholders’
wealth. Accordingly, no dividend has been recommended for the
financial year ended 31 March, 2024 on the Compulsorily Convertible

Preference Shares (CCPS) and the equity shares.
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HOLDING COMPANY

Perseus SG Pte. Ltd. (Perseus) an entity affiliated with TPG is the
holding company of the Company as per the details provided in this
Report hereinabove.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/ASSOCIATES/JOINT-VENTURE
COMPANY

The Company has no Subsidiary/Associates/Joint-Venture Company
as on 31 March, 2024.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

During the year under review, there was no change in the nature of
the business of the Company.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY

The Company's Capital Adequacy Ratio as at 31 March, 2024, stood at
47.31% compared to 34.83% as on 31 March, 2023, which is well above
the minimum required level of 15% as per the provisions of the RBI
HFC Master Directions showing strong position of the Company.

SPECIAL RESERVE (UNDER SECTION 29C OF THE
NATIONAL HOUSING BANK ACT, 1987)

The Company has transferred % 27.99 Crore i.e. 20% of net profits to
Statutory Reserves during the year under review as required under
the provisions of Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act,
1987 read with Section 36 (1) (viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME

The Company has formulated and implemented Employee Stock
Option Plan 2018 (ESOP 2018) and Restricted Stock Option Plan
2018 (RSO 2018) through ESOP Trust and Employee Stock Option
Plan 2021 (ESOP 2021) in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act). The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC) of the Board of Directors of the Company, inter
alia, administers all the three plans in accordance with the Act and
other applicable laws.

During the year under review, the Company had made issuance
and allotment of fully paid-up CCPS as stated in the foregoing
paragraphs. In view of the same, the Company granted additional
options aggregating to 25,54,975 options to the option holders
holding vested and unvested options under ESOP 2018 and ESOP
2021in the ratio of 1:2 (CCPS Options). Upon exercise of each equity
Option, the Option Holders shall be entitled to receive 1 (One) CCPS
on bonus issue basis and each such CCPS shall be convertible to one
equity share of the Company as per the terms of issue of the CCPS.

The details of Options granted and outstanding as on 31 March,
2024 along with other particulars as required under Section 62 of
the Act read with Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and
Debentures) Rules, 2014 are set out in Annexure 1 to this Report.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

Being a non-deposit taking Company, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public as per the RBI HFC Master
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Directions read with Paragraph 3 (xiii) of NBFC Acceptance of
Public Deposits (RBI) Directions, 2016 and relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

RESOURCE MOBILISATION

The Company takes every effort to tap the appropriate sources
of funding to minimise the weighted average cost of Borrowings.
During the year under review, the Company has mobilised resources
through the following sources:

a) Refinance from National Housing Bank (NHB)

During the year under review, the Company received a fresh
sanction of refinance assistance of ¥ 1,000 Crore from NHB.
The Company availed entire funds of 31,000 Crore during the
year under review under various refinance schemes such as
for affordable housing fund and regular refinance scheme
including loans for Aspirational Districts and Hilly Areas.
The aggregating outstanding towards the refinance facility
granted by the NHB was 31,381 Crore as on 31 March, 2024.

b) Term Loans

The Company has borrowed fresh Secured long-term loans
of ¥ 965 Crore from various banks and financial institutions
during the Financial Year 2023-24. The aggregate of term
loans outstanding at the end of the financial year under
review stood at ¥ 3,260 Crore as against ¥ 3,257 Crore as at the
end of the previous year.

c) Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs)

During the year under review, the Company issued 6 (Six)
Series of Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable, NCDs on Private
Placement basis aggregating to ¥ 900 Crore. The Company
has an aggregate outstanding balance of ¥ 890 Crore
through issue of Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable, NCDs
on Private Placement basis as on 31 March, 2024. The NCDs
of the Company continue to remain listed on BSE Limited
(BSE) and the Company has paid the listing fees to BSE for the
financial year 2024-25.

d) Wworking Capital

During the year under review, the Company availed working
capital facilities from various banks in the form of Cash
Credit and Working Capital Demand Loan (WCDL) and the
outstanding amount as on 31 March, 2024, was ¥ 30 Crore.

e) AnyOther Borrowing

The Company has an aggregate contractual outstanding
through Securitisation Liability at ¥ 62 Crore as on
31 March, 2024.

DISCLOSURE UNDER CHAPTER Xl GUIDELINES
ON PRIVATE PLACEMENT OF NON-CONVERTIBLE
DEBENTURES (NCDs) OF RBI MASTER DIRECTIONS:

There hasbeennoinstance wherea Non-Convertible Debenture has
not been claimed by the Investors or not paid by the Company after
the date on which such debentures became due for redemption.



DETAILS OF DEBENTURE TRUSTEE

Pursuant to Regulation 53 of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligationsand Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (SEBI Listing Regulations), the name and contact details of the
Debenture Trustees for the privately placed NCDs are given below:

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited (Formerly GDA
Trusteeship Ltd.)

Phone No./Fax
Office Address

+9122 4922 0555

GDA House,

Plot No. 85, Bhusari Colony (Right), Paud
Road, Pune - 411038

E-mail ComplianceCTL-Mumbai@ctltrustee.com
Investor Grievance grievance@ctltrustee.com

Email
Website
Contact person

www.catalysttrustee.com
Ms. Deesha Trivedi -Vice President
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CREDIT RATING

During the year under review, the annual review of the Credit
Ratings was carried out by CRISIL Limited (CRISIL), and CARE
Ratings Limited (CARE Ratings').

CRISIL withdrew the long-term ratings on bank Ffacilities and
secured NCDs of ‘CRISIL AA+(RWN)' at the request of the Company
in July, 2023. Subsequently, CRISIL assigned fresh long-term ratings
for bank facilities and secured NCDs as ‘CRISIL AA- (Stable) in
December, 2023. The ratings for short term debt programme was
reaffirmed as'CRISIL A1+

CARE Ratings revised long-term ratings on bank Ffacilities and
secured NCDs to ‘CARE AA- (Stable)' and reaffirmed short term
ratings to'CARE A1+ Further, ICRA assigned fresh ratings of ICRA A1+’
for Company's short term debt programme. India Ratings assigned
fresh ratings of 'Ind A1+ for Company's short term debt programme.

The summary of various credit ratings assigned to Company for its different debt programme is as under:

Rating Agency Instrument/Facility Rating
CARE Fund Based and Non-Fund Based Bank Facilities AA- (Stable)
Secured Redeemable Long-Term Bonds (NCDs) AA- (Stable)
Short Term Debt (Commercial Paper) Al+
CRISIL Fund Based and Non Fund Based Bank facilities AA- (Stable)
Secured Redeemable Long Term Bonds (NCDs) AA- (Stable)
Short Term Debt (Commercial Paper) Al+
ICRA Short Term Debt (Commercial Paper) Al+
India Ratings Short Term Debt (Commercial Paper) Al+

A brief note on various credit ratings assigned by rating agencies during the financial year is provided in note no. 58 to the financial

statements of the Company.

BRANCH EXPANSION

As on 31 March, 2024, the Company operated from 210 branches.
The Company has planned to further expand its footprint through
offline as well as online mode by further strengtheningits frontline
sales team, with more local branch events and other brand building
measures which will generate overall more awareness about the
Company, its brand and its products.

CENTRAL REGISTRY OF SECURITISATION ASSET
RECONSTRUCTION AND SECURITY INTEREST OF INDIA
(CERSAI)

The CERSALI is set up under Section 20 of the Securitisation and
Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security
Interest Act, 2002 (SARFAESI Act). The Company, being a registered
member of CERSAI has ensured that the Security Interest has been
created against all mortgage loans with-in the stipulated timeline.

SARFAESI ACT, 2002

The SARFAESI Act has proved to be very useful recovery tool and
the Company has been able to successfully initiate recovery action
under the SARFAESI Act in case of defaulting borrowers. During
the year under review, the Company initiated action against 1,656
defaulting borrowers under the SARFAESI Act and recovered
¥ 56.20 Crore from borrowers of non-performing accounts.

NON-PERFORMING ASSETS AND PROVISIONS FOR
CONTINGENCY

The Company recognises impairment allowances using the
Expected Credit Loss (ECL) method on all the financial assets.

ECL are probability weighted estimate of credit losses. They are
measured as follows:

Financial assets that are not credit impaired — as the present
value of all cash shortfalls that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

Financial assets with significant increase in credit risk but not
credit impaired - as the present value of all cash shortfalls
that result from all possible default events over the expected
life of the financial asset.

Financial assets that are credit impaired - as the difference
between the gross carrying amount and the present value of
estimated cash flows.

Undrawn loan commitments - as the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due to
the Company if the commitment is drawn down and the cash
Flows that the Company expects to receive.

The Company carries out a provision of ¥ 66.31 Crore (Previous
Year ¥ 59.28 Crore) towards impairment allowance under Expected

Credit Loss model.
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The amount of Gross Non-Performing Assets (GNPA as per IRACP
norms) as on 31 March, 2024 is T 68.02 Crore (Previous year I 44.55
Crore), which is equivalent to 0.95% and (Previous year 0.81%) of the
gross loan portfolio of the Company. The total cumulative provision
towards GNPA as per IRACP norms as on 31 March, 2024 is ¥ 28.00
Crore (Previous year was X 22.67 Crore).

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company is in
accordance with Section 149 of the Act, Regulation 17 of SEBI Listing
Regulations, RBI HFC Master Directions and other applicable laws
with an optimum combination of Executive, Non-Executive and
Independent Directors.

The Board of Directors of your Company holds a pivotal role in
overseeing how the management caters to the short and long-
term interests of stakeholders. Your Company actively strives to
maintain a Board that is effective, well-informed, and independent
which oversees overall functioning, provides a strategic direction,
guidance, leadership and owns the fiduciary responsibility to ensure
that your Company's actions and objectives are aligned in creating
long term value for its stakeholders. The profile of Directors can
be found on the Company's website at https://grihumhousing.com/
about-us-board-of-directors.php.

Your Company has six Directors as on date, consisting of three
Non-Executive Independent Directors including one woman
director, two Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors and one
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer of the Company as
Executive Director.

During the year under review, Mr. Adar Poonawalla (DIN: 00044815),
the erstwhile Chairman and Non-Executive Non-Independent
Director and Mr. Amar Deshpande (DIN: 07425556), Non-Executive
Non-Independent Director of the Company resigned from the
Board of Directors of the Company with effect from 26 July, 2023.
Thereafter, Mr. Prabhakar Dalal (DIN: 00544948) and Ms. Bhama
Krishnamurthy (DIN: 02196839),
Directors of the Company, resigned from the Board of Directors

Non-Executive Independent
of the Company with effect from the close of business hours on
8 September, 2023 due to personal commitments. The Board
of Directors placed on record appreciation for the significant
contribution and guidance given from time to time by Mr. Adar
Poonawalla, Mr. Amar Deshpande, Mr. Prabhakar Dalal and
Ms.Bhama Krishnamurthy as Directors of the Company towards the
growth and success of the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on
8 September, 2023, on the recommendation of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee (NRC) and subject to approval of
the Members of the Company, appointed (1) Mr. Puneet Bhatia
(DIN: 00143973) and Mr. Sanjeev Mehra (DIN: 07491208) as Non-
Executive Non-Independent Directors of the Company with effect
from 8 September, 2023, liable to retire by rotation; and (2) Mr. Prem
Manjooran (DIN: 10310018) and Mr. Nitin Gupta (DIN: 02404862) as
Non-Executive Independent Directors of the Company for a period
of 3 years with effect from 8 September, 2023 to 7 September, 2026
of the Company. The Members of the Company approved the said
appointments at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting (EGM) held on
3 October, 2023. Thereafter, the Board of Directors of the Company
by a resolution passed on 13 March, 2024, on the recommendation
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of the NRC and subject to approval of the Members of the Company,
appointed Ms. Richa Arora (DIN: 07144694) as Non-Executive
Independent Director of the Company for a period of 3 years with
effect from 13 March, 2024 to 12 March, 2027. The said appointment
was approved by the Members of the Company at the EGM held on
22 March, 2024.

Ms. Priti Saraogi resigned from the position of Company Secretary
and Compliance Officer of the Company with effect from the
close of business hours on 5 April, 2023. The Board has placed on
record its appreciation for the assistance and guidance provided
by Ms. Saraogi during her tenure as Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer of the Company. The Board of Directors, on the
recommendation of NRC, appointed Ms. Vaishnavi Suratwala as the
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company with
effect from 20 May, 2023.

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
Mr.Puneet Bhatia (DIN: 00143973), Non-Executive Non-Independent
Director of the Company being the longest in office among
directors who are liable to retire by rotation, retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment at the ensuing 20"
Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company.

Brief resumeof the Director,proposed to be re-appointed,and other
details as per Secretarial Standard-2 (SS-2) on General Meetings are
provided in the annexure to the Notice of the 20" AGM being sent
to the Members along with the Annual Report.

DECLARATIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has received declarations from independent directors
of the Company that they meet the criteria of independence laid
down under section 149(6) of the Act and the applicable provisions
of the SEBI Listing Regulations and have complied with the Code
for Independent Directors as prescribed in Schedule IV to the Act.

In terms of Section 150 of the Act read with Rule 6 of the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014, Independent Directors of the Company are registered on the
Independent Directors Databank maintained by the Indian Institute
of Corporate Affairs (IICA).

Based on the declarations and confirmations received in terms
of the provisions of section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI
Listing regulations and the NHB/RBI Directions and any other
applicable laws, none of the directors on the Board of your Company
are disqualified from being appointed/ continuing as directors.

The Company has received declarations under section 184(1) of the
Act read with Rule 9(1) of The Companies (Meetings of Board and
its Powers) Rules, 2014 from the Directors stating their interest
or concern in other companies. Your Company has also received
declarations under the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time.

Allthe Directors have confirmed that they satisfy the“fitand proper”
criteria as prescribed in Chapter IX of RBI HFC Master Directions as
amended from time to time and that they are not disqualified from
being appointed as Directors in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

All the directors have confirmed that no Director holds directorship
in more than 20 Indian companies, more than 10 public companies
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or more than 7 listed companies. Further, no Independent Director
of the Company serves as an independent director in more than
7 equity listed companies or as a whole-time director / managing
director in any listed entity. Necessary disclosures regarding
committee positionsin other public companies as on 31 March, 2024,
have been made by the Directors. None of the Directors is a member
of more than 10 committees or acts as chairperson of more than 5
committees (being Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship
Committee), across all the public limited companies in which he/she
is a director. In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors
fFulFill the conditions specified in the SEBI Listing Regulations and
are independent of the Management. None of the Directors are
related to each other.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

During the year under review, the Company has carried out
performance evaluation of the Board, its various committees,
individual directors and respective Committees, details of which
forms part of the Corporate Governance Report forming part of
this Board's Report.

BOARD MEETINGS AND COMMITTEES

Your Company holds at least four Board meetings in a year, one
in each quarter, inter-alia, to review the financial results of the
Company. All the decisions and urgent matters approved by way of
circular resolutions are placed and noted at the subsequent Board
meeting. In case of urgent matters, additional Board meetings are
held in between the quarterly meetings.

During the year under review, eight (8) Board Meetings were held.
The maximum gap between two Board meetings did not exceed 120
days as stipulated by law.

The Board has constituted a few committees, viz. Audit Committee,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee,
Risk Management

Committee, Asset Liability Management

Committee, Information Technology Strategy Committee,
Management Committee and Review Committee and all the
recommendations made by the Committees of the Board were duly

accepted by the Board.

The details of the Board, its composition, board committees, terms
of reference of various Board Committees, number of board and
committee meetings held, attendance of the directors at each
meetingand other details are providedin the Corporate Governance
Report forming part of this Board's Report.

MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

During the year under review, a separate meeting of the
Independent Directors was held on 12 January, 2024, without
the presence of non-independent directors and the members
of the management as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations. All the Independent Directors
of the Company attended the said meeting. At this meeting, the
Independent Directors inter alia:

reviewed the performance of Non-Independent Directors and
the Board of Directors as a whole;
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taking into account the views of Executive and Non-Executive
Directors performance of Mr. Nitin Gupta, Chairman of the
Board Meeting held on 18 October, 2023 was reviewed.

assessed the quality, quantity and timelines of flow of
information between the Company management and the
Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and
reasonably perform its duties.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR
DIRECTORS (IDs)

INDEPENDENT

Pursuant to Regulation 25(7) of SEBI Listing Regulations read with
Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013, the Company familiarise
the Independent Directors of their role, rights and responsibilities
in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company
operates, business model and operations of the Company, updates
on legal and regulatory changes etc.

Through the familiarisation programme, the Company apprises
the independent directors about the business model, corporate
strategy, business plans and operations of the Company. The
directors are alsoinformed about the financial performance, annual
budgets, internal control system, statutory compliances etc. They
are also familiarised with the Company's vision, core values, ethics
and corporate governance practices. At the time of the appointment
of the Independent Director, a formal letter of appointment is
given to them, which explains their role, responsibilities and rights
in the Company.

The Brief details of the familiarisation programme of Independent
Directors are available on the website of the Company at https://
grihumhousing.com/pdf/investor-governance/Familiarisation-
Programme-Ffor-Independent-Directors.pdf

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations and
RBI HFC Master Directions, ‘Management Discussion and Analysis
Report' forms a part of this Board's Report.

A detailed ‘Corporate Governance Report' forms a part of this
Board's Report pursuant to the provisions of SEBI Listing
Regulations which also includes certain disclosures that are
required, as per the Companies Act, 2013.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3)(c) read with
134(5) of the Companies Act 2013, and based on the information
provided by the management, your Directors state that:

that in the preparation of annual accounts for the financial
year ended 31 March, 2024, the applicable accounting
standards have been followed along with proper explanation
relating to the material departures, if any;

that the Directors have selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the
financial year ended 31 March, 2024 and of the profit and loss
of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March, 2024;
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that the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care
for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud or other irregularities, if any;

that the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a
going concern basis;

that the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to
be followed by the Company and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and are operating effectively;

there is a proper system to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems are
adequate and operating effectively.

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls
with reference to the Financial Statements. During the year, such
controls were tested and no reportable material weakness(es) in
the designs or operations were observed.

AUDITORS
a) STATUTORY AUDITOR

M/s. G D Apte & Co. Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration
No.:100515W) are the Statutory Auditors of the Company. They
were appointed, as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for
a period of three years from the conclusion of the 17" Annual
General Meeting (AGM) until the conclusion of the ensuing
20" AGM of the Company in compliance with Companies Act,
2013 and NHB/RBI Guidelines.

The Statutory Auditors Report on the financial statements
for the Ffinancial year 2023-24 does not contain any
qualifications or observations or remarks in their Report. As
per Section 134(3)(F) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board
states that during the year under review, there were no
adverse comments or disqualifications made by the Statutory
Auditors of the Company, during the course of their audit.

Since the term of M/s. G.D. Apte & Co, as the Statutory Auditors
of the Company will expire upon conclusion of the ensuing
20" AGM, the Board of Directors of the Company at its
meeting held on 3 May 2024, upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee and subject to approval of the Members
of the Company, approved the appointment of M/s. Sharp &
Tannan Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration
No. 109983W), as the Statutory Auditors of the Company
for a continuous period of 3 years from the conclusion of
the ensuing 20™ AGM till the conclusion of the 23 AGM
of the Company.

b) SECRETARIAL AUDIT, ANNUAL SECRETARIAL
COMPLIANCE AUDIT REPORT AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the
Company had appointed M/s. M Siroya and Company
(Membership No. of the Partner: FCS5682), Company
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Secretaries to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the
Company for the Financial Year 2023-24. The Secretarial
Audit Report for the Financial Year 2023-24 forms part of this
Report as Annexure 2.

Pursuant to the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations,
M/s. M Siroya and Company, Company Secretaries undertook
the Annual Secretarial Compliance Audit of the Company for
the Financial Year 2023-24.The Annual Secretarial Compliance
Report (ASCR) will be submitted by the Company to BSE
Limited and shall be available on the website of BSE Limited
and on the website of the Company.

The certificate by the Secretarial Auditors of the Company
confirming compliance with the conditions of Corporate
Governance (CG Certificate) as stipulated in SEBI Listing
Regulations forms a part of this Board's report as Annexure 3.

The Secretarial Audit Report, the ASCR and CG Certificate
contain qualification with relation to additional time taken
by the Company for appointment of a3 woman director. This
was on account of elapse of substantial time to identify and
appoint suitable candidate to fill the casual vacancy of woman
director caused by resignation of erstwhile woman director
of the Company during the financial year under review.

c) COSTAUDIT

The requirement for maintenance of cost records and
requirement of cost audit prescribed under section 148(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

FRAUD REPORTING

As per the Master Direction - Monitoring of Frauds in NBFCs
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, which has been made applicable
to HFCs by the RBI, required fraudulent instances are reported
and reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Board. During the
year under review, the statutory auditors have not reported to the
Audit Committee any instances of fraud under Section 143(12) of
Companies Act, 2013. During the year under review, the Company
has reported 9 instances of fraud committed by its borrowers
with total amount involved of ¥1.39 Crore and in all such instances,
the borrowers had colluded with few employees of the Company.
All these detected/ reported frauds have been fully provided For/
written off. Further, the Company has taken appropriate action
against such erring employees.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Company has an adequate system of internal controls in place
commensurate with the nature of its business and size of its
operations. The details of the same are set out in the Management
Discussion and Analysis Report which forms a part of this
Board's Report.

Internal Financial Control

The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be
followed by the Company and that such internal financial controls
are adequate and were operating effectively. Proper processes are
in place for prevention and detection of frauds and errors and for
ensuring adherence to the Company's policies.



The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements, commensurate with the
size, scale and complexity of its operations. Review of the internal
financial controls environment of the Company was undertaken
during the year which covered testing of Entity Level Controls,
Process and IT controls including review of key business processes
for updating Risk Control Matrices, etc. The Risk and Control
Matrices are reviewed on an annual basis and control measures
are tested and documented. Moreover, the Company continuously
upgrades its systems and reviews and updates policies, guidelines,
manuals and authority matrix.

The internal financial control is supplemented by internal audits,
regular reviews by the Management and standard policies and
guidelines to ensure reliability of financial and all other records
to prepare financial statements, its reporting and other data.
The Audit Committee of the Board reviews internal audit reports
given along with management responses. The Audit Committee
also monitors the implemented suggestions. The Company has, in
material respect, adequate internal financial control over financial
reporting and such controls are operating effectively.

The statutory auditors of the Company have also certified the
existence and operating effectiveness of the internal Financial
controls relating to financial reporting as of 31 March, 2024.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to section 92(3) and 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014, annual return for the financial year ended 31 March,
2024, is available on the website of the Company at the weblink:
https://grihumhousing.com/secretarial-disclosures.php.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Board of Directors of the Company do understand that risk
evaluation and risk mitigation are responsibility of the Board of
Directors and they are fully committed to develop a sound system
foridentification and mitigation of applicablerisks viz,, systemic and
non-systemic. In line with the Scale Based Regulations prescribed
by the RBI vide notification dated 22 October, 2021, the Company
has adopted Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP)
Policy. Further, it has implemented an Integrated Risk Management
(IRM) Policy duly approved by the Board. The Company has also
adopted the ICAAP Document in compliance with the SBR read with
RBI Master Circular No.: DBR.N0.BP.BC.1/21.06.201/2015-16 dated 01
July, 2015 w.r.t Master Circular — Basel Il Capital Regulations.

ICAAP Policy covers regulatory standards, ICAAP procedures, roles
andresponsibilities of various functionaries related to development
and implementation of the ICAAP as well as various components
of the ICAAP document. The ICAAP policy lays down an internal
assessment framework on similar lines as ICAAP prescribed by the
RBI for commercial banks under Pillar Il of Master Circular- Basel Il
Capital Regulation.

The objectives of the ICAAP Policy are:

1. To ensure management of internal capital in accordance with
the RBI Directions,and overall Corporate Governance Principles.
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2. To describe the process for identification, assessment,
measurement, and aggregation of the risks inherent in
Grihum's business and operations.

3. To ensure that the available capital is commensurate with
Grihum's risk profile.

4,  To ensure that there is clear assignment of roles and
responsibilities for Facilitating the ICAAP.

Pursuant to the Early Warning Signal Framework in HFCs dated
26 April, 2023 issued by National Housing Bank, the Company
has implemented EWS framework w.e.f. 1 April, 2024. The EWS
framework covers 22 Indicators for retail segment which will be
tracked regularly by the Company.

Integrated Risk Management (IRM) Framework covers all risks
including but not limited to Credit Risk, Operational Risk, Market
& Interest Risk, Compliance Risk and Reputational Risk. The said
framework Ffacilitates identification, measurement, mitigation
and reporting of risks through constant monitoring of Key Risk
Indicators within the organisation. Involvement of the Senior
Management team in implementation of the Integrated Risk
Management framework ensures achievement of organisational
objectives across all business units.

The risk management infrastructure operates on Five key
principles:

1. An overarching Risk Appetite Statement that defines the
shape of the portfolio, delivering predictable returns, through
economic cycles, and optimising enterprise-wide risk-return
and capital deployment.

2. Independent governance and risk management oversight.

3. Establishment of forward-looking Strategic Risk Assessment
with pre-emptive credit and liquidity interventions, to
ensure proactive early action in the event of emerging

market adversity.

4.  Maintenance of well-documented risk policies with

performance guardrails.

5. Extensive use of risk and business analytics,and credit bureau
as an integral part of credit decisioning process.

Credit Risk

The Company adopts an independent approval process guided
by Credit policies, customer selection criteria, credit acceptance
criteriaand other credit underwriting processes for sanctioningand
booking each loan. This allows each customer to be independently
assessed based on both financial and non-financial measures.

All credit and risk management policies are clearly documented
and approved by the Risk Management Committee of the Board.
Credit policies are reviewed periodically based on changes in
macro-economic, industry/segment and credit bureau in addition
to internal portfolio performance.

Credit approval and administration is managed through a judicious
use of Credit Rule Engine, assessment by seasoned credit appraisal
experts and an appropriate delegation of credit authority.
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Portfolio quality improvement is a constant exercise. The Company
uses the statistical benchmark of Early Warning Indicators and
Continuous Portfolio Monitoring Indicators and basis these
indicators carry out hind-sighting exercise to make appropriate
intervention in the Credit Policy to further improve the portfolio
quality and reduce the ultimate losses.

Operational Risk Management

The operational risk framework is designed to cover all

functions and verticals towards identifying the key risks in the
underlying processes.

The framework, at its core, has the following elements:
1. Documented Operational Risk Management Policy
2. Well defined Governance Structure

3. Use of Identification & Monitoring tools such as Loss Data
Capture (LDC), Risk and Control Self-Assessment (RCSA), Key
Risk Indicators (KRIs)

4.  Standardised reporting
structure and frequency

templates, reporting

5. Regular workshops and training for enhancing awareness
and risk culture

The Company has adopted the internationally accepted 3-lines of
defense approach to operational risk management.

First line - Each function/vertical undergoes transaction testing to
evaluate internal compliance and thereby lay down processes for
further improvement. Thus, the approach is “bottom-up’, ensuring
acceptance of findings and faster adoption of corrective actions, if
any, to ensure mitigation of perceived risks.

Second line - Independent risk management vertical supports
the First line in developing risk mitigation strategies and provides
oversight through regular monitoring. All key risks are presented to
the Risk Management Committee on a quarterly basis.

Third line - Internal Audit conducts periodic risk-based audits of all
functions and process to provide an independent assurance to the
Audit Committee.

Fraud Risk Management
Overview

Fraud can undermine the effective functioning and divert scarce
and valuable resources of the organisation. Moreover, fraudulent
and corrupt behaviour can seriously damage reputation and
diminish trust to deliver results in an accountable and transparent
manner. To combat the fraud, the organisation has effective
corporate governance and framework for preventing, identifying,
reporting and effectively dealing with fraud and other forms of
corruption. The Company is consistently putting effort to prevent,
detect and contain frauds. There is an independent Unit (Fraud Risk
Management) to monitor, investigative, detect and prevent frauds.
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Scope

The Company is committed on preventing, identifying and
addressing all acts of fraud against the organisation, whether
committed by the staff members or other personnel or by third
parties. The Company has zero tolerance for fraud. To this effect,
the Company is committed to create awareness on fraud risks,
implementation of controlsaimed to prevent fraud,and establishing
and maintaining procedures applicable to the detection of fraud.

Governance Structure

As a second line of defence, Fraud Risk Management monitors &
checks compliance and report all fraud (internal/External) in the
institution on ongoing basis. The independent function reports
into the Chief Risk Officer (CRO). All frauds as specified by the
regulator are being monitored by the Audit committee and Board of
Directors. Regular online training sessions are conducted for better
fraud prevention and awareness.

Market Risk

Any mismatch in tenures of borrowed and disbursed funds may
result in liquidity crisis and thereby impact the Company’s ability
to service its loans. Thus, it is imperative that there exists nil or
minimal mismatch between the tenure of borrowed funds and
assets funded. The Company has well-defined treasury policies for
managing liquidity, investments, interest rate and borrowings. The
Company endeavors to maintain appropriate asset liability maturity
with regard to its tenure and interest rates.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Company does not have any foreign exchange fluctuation risk,
since its disbursements are in rupee terms and the nature of its
borrowings are also in domestic rupee debt or fully hedged Foreign
Currency Non - Resident Account borrowings.

Liquidity Risk Management

The Company has worked meticulously to diversify its borrowing
profile and has repeatedly enhanced the set of institutions it
borrows from.Such diversified and stable funding sources emanate
from several segments of lenders such as Banks, Insurance
Companies, Mutual Funds, Pension funds, Financial and other
institutions including Corporates and Foreign Portfolio Investors.
In addition to this, the Company has established an excellent track
record in its access to the securitisation/ assignment market. As
a matter of prudence and with a view to manage liquidity risk at
optimum levels, the Company keeps suitable levels of unutilised
bank limits to mitigate all possible contingencies effectively.

The Company has in place Board level Asset Liability Management
Committee (ALCO), which periodically reviews the asset-liability
positions, cost of Funds, and sensitivity of forecasted cash flows
over both, short and long-term time horizons. It accordingly
recommends for corrective measures to bridge the gaps, if any.
The ALCO reviews the changes in the economic environment and
Financial markets and suggests suitable strategies for effective
resource management. This results in proper planning on an on-
going basis with respect to managing various financial risks viz.
asset liability risk, Foreign currency risk and liquidity risk.



The Company has a comfortable liquidity position by committed/
unutilised Bank line and further supported by funds raised through
Term Loans and Securitisation.

People Risk

Human resources are the most valuable assets. The Company
focuses on continuous training and upgrading skills of its staff
across the organisation.The Company's L&D team has taken number
of initiatives during the year by releasing knowledge nuggets and
e-Learning modules which enables employees to self-learn and
upgrade their skills.

The Company provides a conducive work environment to its
employees that enables them to perform well and hone their skills.
The policies are designed to ensure a healthy and safe workplace,
free from discrimination or harassment. Human Resource are most
valuable asset and the Company is committed to attract, engage
and retain talent to create long-term value for our customers
and stakeholders.

People risks that the Company focuses on includes following:

Inadequate availability of skilled manpower:

Limited availability of candidates with appropriate skillset,
experience and culture fitment.

Productivity Risk:

Longer learning curve leads to low output.

Time taken to Filling of required manpower hampers
installed capacity.

Succession planning:

Risktobusinesscontinuityduetolackof leadershipsuccession.

The Company is proactive in identifying and addressing risk
aspects around people and addresses them in a timely and
comprehensive manner.

Further, the Board of Directors are of the opinion that at present
there are no material risks that may threaten the functioning
of the Company.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board has
devised a policy for the selection and appointment of Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and other Senior Management Personnel and
their remuneration. The Committee has formulated the criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence
of a Director, which has been put up on the Company's website
at  https://grihumhousing.com/pdf/investor-governance/Grihum-
Remuneration-Policy.pdf

PARTICULARS
INVESTMENTS

OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR

The Company being Housing Finance Company, the disclosure
regarding particulars of loans given, guarantees given and security
provided in the ordinary course of business is exempted under the
provisions of Section 186(11) of the Companies Act 2013 (the Act).
However, the details of loans, guarantees, and investments made
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as required under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act and the
rules made thereunder are set out in the Notes to the Financial
Statements of the Company.

LOANS TO DIRECTORS, SENIOR OFFICERS, AND
RELATIVES OF DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a ‘Policy for Loan to Directors, Relatives
and Senior Officers' with the approval of its Board of Directors. The
Company did not extend any loans to its directors, senior officers,
relatives of directors, or entities associated with directors and their
relatives as on 31 March, 2024.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

In terms of the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013
and other applicable provisions read with rules made thereunder,
the Company has a CSR Committee and has also adopted CSR
Policy which inter-alia includes the CSR activities to be carried out
by the Company.

The composition of the CSR Committee and its terms of reference
are given in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this
Board's Report. The Annual Report on CSR activities forms part of
this Board's report as Annexure 4.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING
THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

No material changes or commitments affecting the Ffinancial
position of the Company occurred during and at the end of the
financial year to which these financial statements relate on the
date of this report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY
THE REGULATORS/COURTS/TRIBUNALS IMPACTING
THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND THE COMPANY'S
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

During the year under review there were no significant material
orders passed by the Regulators / Courts / Tribunals which
would impact the going concern status and operations of the
Company in future.

REGULATORY DEVELOPMENTS AND THE COMPANY’'S
CONTINUED FOCUS TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH
THE REGULATORY AND SUPERVISORY DIRECTIONS/
GUIDELINES

The Company complies with the applicable statutory provisions
including inter-alia the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made
thereunder, the Income-Tax Act, 1961, SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, SEBI (Issue and Listing
of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021, The Foreign
Exchange Management Act, 1999, Non-Banking Financial Company
- Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021, Master
Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company
- Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 and all other applicable
circulars, notifications, directions and guidelines issued by RBI, NHB,
SEBI,MCA, IRDAI and other authorities from time to time and all other
laws as may be applicable to the Company including but not limited
to those on the Principal Business Criteria, Capital Adequacy, Income
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Recognition, Asset Classification, Provisioning, implementation of
IndAS, Corporate Governance, Fraud Reporting, Outsourcing etc.

The Company has adopted the Fair Practice Code, which sets the
principles for fFair practice standards to be followed by the Company
while dealing with its customers, in accordance with the regulatory
requirements and has also put in a place an efficient customer
grievance redressal mechanism.

There were no orders passed by any regulator/court against the
Company nor any fine/penalty levied on the Company during the
year under review.

The Company also places before the Board of Directors at regular
intervals all relevant circulars and notifications resulting into
changes in the mandatory legal/ compliance requirements, to keep
the Board informed and reports on actions initiated on the same.
The Company has Ffinalised its financial statements for the year
under review as per the Accounting Standards issued by Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

During recent years, significant regulatory developments have
taken place for the Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) and Non-
Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs). The Reserve Bank of India
(RBI) had prescribed a revised regulatory framework for the NBFCs
including HFCs based on a Scale Based Regulation (SBR) approach,
which has been effective from October 2022. Further, RBI vide its
Circular dated 19 October, 2023 notified "Master Direction — Reserve
Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based
Regulation) Directions, 2023" for NBFCs superseding the Master
Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Non-Systemically
Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016, and the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company -
Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit
taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions 2016.

As per the SBR framework, the regulatory structure for NBFCs shall
comprise of Four layers based on their size, activity, and perceived
riskiness. NBFCs in the lowest layer shall be known as NBFC - Base
Layer (NBFC- BL). NBFCs in middle layer and upper layer shall be
known as NBFC- Middle Layer (NBFC-ML) and NBFC - Upper Layer
(NBFC-UL) respectively. The Top Layer is ideally expected to be
empty and will be known as NBFC - Top Layer (NBFC-TL). HFCs,
unless categorised in the higher layer as per the criteria prescribed
by the RBI, shall be placed in the NBFC- Middle Layer at minimum.

In the SBR framework, the Company has been placed in the Middle
Layer based on the prescribed criteria. Being in the Middle Layer,
the Company is required to comply with the regulations on Internal
Capital Adequacy Assessment Process, Regulatory Restrictions on
Loans, Additional Disclosures, requirement of Compliance Policy
and the Chief Compliance Officer, Guidelines on Compensation of
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, Implementation
of ‘Core Financial Services Solution’etc. The Company has complied
with such applicable provisions of the Scale Based Regulation as
per the respective timelines prescribed for each of such provisions.

As regards the supervisory reporting, the Company has ensured
compliance with the ‘Master Circular - Returns to be submitted
by Housing Finance Companies prescribed by the National
Housing Bank (NHB).
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During the year under review, the status of the Company has
changed to a High Value Debt Listed Entity (HVDLE) in terms of
Regulation 15 of the SEBI Listing Regulations whereby all such
entities whose outstanding value of listed non-convertible debt
securities is ¥ 500 Crore and above are referred to as HVDLE
and such entities are required to comply with the provisions of
Regulations 16 to 27 of SEBI Listing Regulations within six months
from the date of becoming HVDLE. In view of the same, the
Company has implemented the necessary compliances of SEBI
Listing Regulations.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT (POSH) OF
WOMEN AT THE WORKPLACE

The Company is committed to uphold and maintain the dignity of all
its employees including women employees and it has a policy which
provides for protection against sexual harassment of women at
workplace and redressal of such complaints through the active Internal
Complaints Committee to redress any complaints received in timely
and systematic manner. During the year under review, one complaint
was received and disposed off under the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.
The Company has complied with the provisions of the said Act while
dealing with the complaint. To raise awareness and understanding of
this issue, an online learning module with the latest update has been
implemented. Additionally, the Company has been conducting virtual
sessions to bring more awareness among the employees.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

As the Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity, the
particulars relating to Conservation of energy and technology
absorption as stipulated in the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable. The Company uses information technology extensively
inits operations.

During the period under review, the Company did not have any
foreign exchange earnings in terms of actual inflow and the foreign
exchange outgo in terms of actual outflow amounted to31.14 Crore.

PARTICULARS OF
DISCLOSURES

EMPLOYEES AND RELATED

The Executive Director (Managing Director & Chief Executive
Officer) is appointed based on terms approved by the Shareholders.
The remuneration paid to Managing Director & Chief Executive
Officer (MD & CEO) is recommended by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (NRC) taking into account various
parameters included in the Remuneration Policy of the Company
and approved by the Board of Directors and Shareholders of the
Company. His remuneration comprises of salary, allowances and
perquisites as indicated in Form MGT 7 which is available at the
website at  https://grihumhousing.com/secretarial-disclosures.
php. During the year under review, the remuneration of MD & CEO
was revised after obtaining necessary approvals. The disclosures
pertaining to Schedule V Part Il Section Il (IV) of the Companies Act,
2013 Forms part of the Corporate Governance Report forming part
of this Board's Report.
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CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED
PARTIES

All contracts/arrangements/ transactions entered into by the
Company during the financial year with related parties were in the
ordinary course of business and on an arm's length basis and the same
were also reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Board. During the
year under review, the Company had not entered into any contract/
arrangement/ transaction with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel or other designated persons which could be considered
material in accordance with Rule 15 of Companies (Meeting of Board
and its Powers) Rules, 2014. The nature of related party transactions
does not require any disclosure in AOC-2. The particulars of contracts/
arrangements/ transactions entered into by the Company with related
parties are mentioned separately in the notes to Financial Statement.
Further, suitable disclosure as required by the Accounting Standards
have been made in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

The Policy on Related Party Transactions is available on the
Company's website at its weblink ie. https://grihumhousing.com/
pdf/investor-governance/Grihum-Related-Party-Transaction-
Policy.pdf. Further, as per the RBI HFC Master Directions, the said
Policy forms a part of this Report as Annexure 5.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Company continuously strives to be the best in all the domains
of its operations and believes that its employees are the core
foundation of this vision. The HR strategy is dedicated to fostering
a motivated workforce and cultivating inspirational leadership to
consistently drive forward this vision.

The details of the same are set out in the Management Discussion
and Analysis Report which forms a part of this Board's Report.

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION
AND PROTECTION FUND

The Company did not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed for
a period of seven years. Therefore, there were no funds which were
required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund.

INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY

During the year, there was no application made or any proceeding
pendingunderthelnsolvencyand Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (310f 2016).

ONE TIME SETTLEMENT WITH BANKS AND FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS

During theyear,the Company did not make any one-time settlement
with Banks or Financial Institutions.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Grihum Housing Finance Limited
(Formerly, Poonawalla Housing Finance Limited)

Manish Jaiswal

Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 07859441

Date: 3 May, 2024

Place: Pune
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WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY AND VIGIL MECHANISM

The Board has, pursuant to the provisions of Section 177(9) of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 framed a ‘Whistle Blower Policy
and Vigil Mechanism:

The Company believes in the conduct of the affairs of its
constituents in a fair and transparent manner by adopting
highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and
ethical behavior's Policy has been framed with a view to provide
a mechanism, inter alia, enabling stakeholders including Directors,
individual employees of the Company and their representative
bodies, to freely communicate their concerns about illegal or
unethical practices and to report genuine concerns or grievances
as also to report to the management concerns about unethical
behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's
Code of Conduct.

The Whistle Blower Policy and Vigil Mechanism is available on the
website of the Company at the link: https://grihumhousing.com/
pdf/investor-governance/Grihum-BOIl-and-Whistle-Blower-Vigil-
Mechanism-Policy.pdFf.

APPRECIATION

The Directors would like to record their appreciation of the hard
work and commitment of the Company's personnel and warmly
acknowledge the unstinting support and cooperation extended by
Bankers and Financial Institutions, Customers, Business Associates
and other Stakeholders. The Directors also take the opportunity to
thank Reserve Bank of India and National Housing Bank for their
continued assistance and support.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Board's Report and Management Discussion
and Analysis Report, describing the Company's objectives, outlook,
opportunities and expectations may constitute “Forward Looking
Statements” within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations.
Actual results may differ from those expressed or implied
expectations or projections, among others. Several factors make
a significant difference to the Company's operations including the
government regulations, taxation and economic scenario affecting
demand and supply, natural calamity and other such Factors over
which the Company does not have any direct control.

Sanjeev Mehra
Non-Executive Director
DIN: 07491208

Date: 3 May, 2024

Place: Mumbai
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Annexure 1to the Board's Report
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Statement as of 31 March, 2024 pursuant to Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12(9) of the
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014

A. Details of ESOPs (Equity Shares)

Sr.

Grihum ESOP 2018'

Grihum RSO 2018

Grihum ESOP 2021

Description
Tranche4 Tranche5 Tranche6 Tranchel Tranche2 Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3
Number of 490,000 2,00000 10,00,000 2960000 4,00000 60,50,000 11,80,000 40,000
options granted
Number of 85,000 50,000 2,35000 2960000 4,00,000 12,73,800 2,87,00 13,200
options vested
Number of 55,000 5,000 24,000 29,60,000  4,00,000 114,800 - -
options exercised
The total number 55,000 5,000 24,000 29,60,000  4,00,000 114,800 - -
of shares arising
asaresult of
exercise of
option
Options lapsed 4,05000 150000 765000 NIL NIL 19,51,250 3,510,000 -
The exercise 736.66 758.39 710 77188
price
Variation of - - - - - Vesting Vesting Vesting
terms of options Criteria Criteria Criteria
revised: revised: revised:
Tranche Tranche Tranche
| -33% of Il -33% of Il - 34% of
the options the options  the options
granted granted granted
will vest will vest on will vest on
on the first the second the third
anniversary anniversary  anniversary
of the Grant  of the Grant  of the Grant
Date. Date. Date.
Money realised 20,16,300 1,83,300 14,01,360 2,96,00000 40,00,000 81,94,320 - -
by exercise of
options
Total number of 30,000 45,000 2,11,000 - - 39,83,950 8,70,000 40,000
optionsin force
Key managerial - - - Managing Managing Managing Chief -
personnel Director Director Director Financial
& Chief & Chief & Chief Officer:
Executive  Executive Executive 3,00,000
Officer: OffFicer: Officer: options
29,60,000 4,00,000 15,00,000
options options  5tions. Chief
Financial
OfFicer:
6,00,000
options. Priti
Saraogi*
50,000
Options
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Sr. Description Grihum ESOP 2018' Grihum RSO 2018 Grihum ESOP 2021
No. Tranche4 Tranche5 Tranche6 Tranchel1 Tranche2 Tranche1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3
(ii)  Anyother
employee who
receives a grant
of optionsin
any one year of o . o .
. . Details in Appendix-I Details in Appendix-I
option amounting
to Five percent or
more of options
granted during
that year
(iii) ldentified - - - Mr. Manish - - - -
employees who Jaiswal,
were granted Managing
option, during any Director
one year, equal & Chief
to or exceeding Executive
one percent Officer

of the issued
capital (excluding
outstanding
warrants and
conversions) of
the Company at
the Time of grant

"Tranche 1,2,3 & 7 of Employee Stock Option Plan, 2018 have lapsed.

2Ms. Priti Saraogi, Company Secretary has resigned w.e.f. 5 April, 2023.

APPENDIX -1

List of employees who received a grant in any one year of option amounting to 5% or more of the options granted during that year,
which are live as on 31 March, 2024.

Description

Grihum ESOP 2018

Grihum RSO 2018

Grihum ESOP 2021

. Tranche4 TrancheS5 Tranche6 Tranchel1 Tranche2 Tranche1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3
1. Sunit Mahajan 30,000 - 70,000 - - - - -
2. Tarwinder Singh 30,000 - 50,000 - - - - -
3. Shailendra Singh - 10,000 - - - - - -
4. Chayan Gulati - 10,000 - - - - - -
5. Prakash Mallick - 10,000 - - - - - -
6. Lalit Gupta - 10,000 - - - - - -
7. Mirza Tauseef Baig - 10,000 - - - - - -
8. Dnyanesh Anil 25,000 - - - - - - -

Nandurkar

9. Manish Jaiswal - - 29,60,000 4,00,000 15,00,000 - -
10. Pankaj Rathi - - - - 6,00,000 3,00,000 -
1. Rahul Mishra - - - - - - 40,000
~ Total 85,000 50,000 1,20,000 29,60,000 4,00,000 21,00,000 3,00,000 40,000
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B. Details of ESOPs - CCPS Options

In order to expand the capital base of the Company by capitalising the reserves and surplus, the Company on 28 March, 2024 allotted
16,24,13,259, 0.001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of ¥ 10 each, as bonus shares in the ratio of 1:2,i.e. 1 (one) CCPS

for every 2 (two) Equity Shares held by the existing equity shareholders in the Company.

With a view to extend the benefit of the said bonus issue of CCPS to the option holders holding vested and unvested options under the
aforesaid ESOP Plans, the Company granted additional options aggregating to 25,54,975 to the said option holders in the ratio of 1:2
(CCPS Options). Upon exercise of each Equity Option, the Option Holders shall be entitled to receive 1 (One) CCPS on bonus issue basis.
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.. Grihum ESOP 2018 Grihum ESOP 2021
Description
No. Tranche4 Tranche5 Tranche6 Tranche1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3
1 Number of options granted 15,000 22,500 1,05,500 19,74,475 417,500 20,000
2. Number of options vested 15,000 22,500 1,05,500 6,31,125 137,775 6,600
3. Number of options exercised - - - - - -
4.  Thetotal number of shares arising as a - - - - - -
result of exercise of option
5. Options lapsed - - - - - -
6. Theexercise price - - - - - -
7. Variation of terms of options - - - - - -
8. Money realised by exercise of options - - - - - -
9. Total number of options in force 15,000 22,500 1,05,500 19,74,475 417,500 20,000
10.
(i) Key managerial personnel - - - Managing Director Chief -
& Chief Executive Financial
Officer:7,50,000 Officer:
CCPS options. Chief 1,50,000
Financial Officer: CCPS
3,00,000 CCPS options
options.
(i)  Anyother employee who receives a Details in - - Details in Appendix-IlI
grant of options in any one year of Appendix-

option amounting to five percent or
more of options granted during
that year

(iii)  Identified employees who were
granted option, during any one
year, equal to or exceeding one
percent of the issued capital
(excluding outstanding warrants and
conversions) of the Company at the
Time of grant
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APPENDIX - 11

List of employees who received a grant in any one year of option amounting to 5% or more of the options granted during that year,
which are live as on 31 March, 2024.

sr. . Grihum ESOP 2018 Grihum ESOP 2021

No. Description Tranche4 Tranche5 Tranche6 Tranche1 Tranche2 Tranche3
1 Tarwinder Singh 15,000 - 25,000 - 25,000 -
27 Dnyanesh Anil Nandurkar - - 8,000 - - -
3. Sunit Mahajan - - 35,000 - - -
4. Shailendra Singh - 2,500 7,500 - - -
5. Chayan Gulati - 5,000 7,500 - - -
6. Prakash Mallick - 5,000 7,500 - - -
7. Lalit Gupta - 5,000 7,500 - - -
8. Nikhil Jamwal - - 7,500 - - -
9. Manish Jaiswal - - - 7,50,000 - -
10.  Pankaj Rathi - - - 300000 1,550,000 -
1. Amit Kumar Khan - - - 1,50,000 - -
12, Trivedi Ashutosh Vishnuprasad - - - - 25,000 -
13.  Mirza Tauseef Baig - 5,000 - - - -
14, Rahul Mishra - - - - - 20,000
~ Total 15000 22,500 1,05500 12,00,000 2,00,000 20,000

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Grihum Housing Finance Limited
(Formerly, Poonawalla Housing Finance Limited)

Manish Jaiswal Sanjeev Mehra
Managing Director and Chief Executive OFficer Non-Executive Director
DIN: 07859441 DIN: 07491208

Date: 3 May, 2024 Date: 3 May, 2024

Place: Pune Place: Mumbai
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Annexure 2 to Board's Report

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Grihum Housing Finance Limited

(Formerly Poonawalla Housing Finance Limited)

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by Grihum Housing Finance Limited (Formerly
Poonawalla Housing Finance Limited) (“Company”). The secretarial
audit was conducted in a3 manner that provided us a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct
of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the
Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on March 31, 2024, complied with the statutory provisions
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024 according to the relevant and
applicable provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013
made thereunder;

(“the Act") and the rules

(i)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA") and
the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws
framed thereunder;

(iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules
and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign
Direct Investment in India, Overseas Direct Investments and
External Commercial Borrowings;

(v)  ThefollowingRegulationsand Guidelines prescribed underthe
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act"):

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and
Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021;

b.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Debenture
Trustees) Regulations, 1993;

c.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (SEBI Listing Regulations);

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories
and Participants) Regulations, 2018;

e.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition
of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015;

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
(Not applicable during the year under review);

g.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;
(Not applicable during the year under review).

h.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars
to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of
Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable during
the year under review); and

o The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of
Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable during the
year under review).

(vi) Based on the representations made by the Company and its
officers and our verification of the relevant records on test
check basis, the Company has adequate system and process
in place for compliance with the following laws applicable
specifically to the Company:

a. Laws, directions, guidelines and instructions issued
by Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI")/National Housing
Bank (“NHB")
relating thereto; and

through notifications and circulars

b. Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002 and the
Prevention of Money Laundering (Amendment) Act,
2012 as applicable.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses
of the following:

1. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company
Secretaries of India; and

2. Listing Agreement/Regulations: The Company is a Debt listed
Company and therefore compliance with listing agreement/
regulations is limited only to that effect.



During the year under review the Company has complied with the
provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.
mentioned above, to the extent applicable, subject to the following
observation that:

(i) Upon resignation of the erstwhile woman director of the
Company effective September 8, 2023, the Company did not
have a woman director on its Board. As per the provisions
of second proviso to Section 149(1) of the Companies Act,
2013 and Rules framed thereunder read with Regulation 17(1)
(3) and 17(1E) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company
was required to Fill the said position of woman director by
or before December 7, 2023. However, the said vacancy was
filled by the Company on March 13, 2024 by appointing Ms.
Richa Arora as an Independent Director (woman) w.e.f. March
13,2024. The provisions of Regulation 17(1)(a) and 17(1E) of the
SEBI Listing Regulations were applicable to the Company
effective from December 15,2023 on ‘comply or explain basis’
until March 31,2024 and on a mandatory basis thereafter upon
the Company becoming the'high value debt listed entity:
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Other statutes, Acts, Laws, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and
Standards etc,, as applicable to the Company are given below:

(i) Labour Laws and other incidental laws related to employees
appointed by the Company either on its payroll or on
contractual basis as related to wages, gratuity, provident fund,
ESIC, compensation etc,;

(i)  Acts as prescribed under Direct Tax and Indirect Tax;

(iii) Stamp Acts and Registration Acts of respective States;

(iv) Labour Welfare Act of respective States; and

(v)  Such other Local laws etc. as may be applicable in respect of
various offices of the Company.

We further report that, subject to our observations herein before,
the Board of Directors of the Company and Committees are
duly constituted as per the Companies Act 2013 and SEBI Listing
Regulations with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors.

The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (‘"KMP") that took place during the year under

review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. The following table depicts the changes in Directors and KMP during

the year under review:

Name of the Director/Key Managerial : A Appointment/ Date of Appointment
Personnel of the Company Designation Resignation /Cessation
Ms. Priti Saraogi Company Secretary & Compliance Officer Resignation 05.04.2023
Ms. Vaishnavi Suratwala Company Secretary & Compliance Officer Appointment 20.05.2023
Mr. Adar Poonawalla (DIN: 00044815)  Non-Executive Director Resignation 26.07.2023
Mr. Amar Deshpande (DIN: 07425556)  Non-Executive Director Resignation 26.07.2023
Mr. Puneet Bhatia (DIN: 00143973) Non-Executive Non-Independent Director Appointment 08.09.2023
Mr. Sanjeev Mehra (DIN: 07491208) Non-Executive Non-Independent Director Appointment 08.09.2023
Mr. Prem Manjooran (DIN: 10310018) Non-Executive Independent Director Appointment 08.09.2023
Mr. Nitin Gupta (DIN: 02404862) Non-Executive Independent Director Appointment 08.09.2023
Mr. Prabhakar Dalal (DIN: 00544948) Non-Executive Independent Director Resignation 08.09.2023
Ms.Bhama Krishnamurthy (DIN: 02196839) Non-Executive Independent Director Resignation 08.09.2023
Ms. Richa Arora (DIN: 07144694) Non-Executive Independent Director Appointment 13.03.2024

We further report that upon the allotment of NCDs during the
June, 2023 quarter, the Company had become a ‘high value debt
listed entity’ w.e.f. June 16, 2023 in accordance with Regulation 15
(1A) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and accordingly the Company
was required to comply with the provisions of Regulations 15 to
Regulation 27 of the SEBI Listing Regulations with effect from
December 15,2023 on‘comply or explain’basis and mandatorily with
effect from April 1,2024.

Adequate notice was given to all Directors to schedule the Board
meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least
seven days in advance and in certain cases where the meetings
were held through shorter notice after due compliance of the
applicable provisions, a system exists for seeking and obtaining
Further information and clarifications on the agenda items before
the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.
Further, General Meetings were held through shorter notice after
due compliance of the applicable provisions.

During the year under review, decisions were carried through
unanimously and no dissenting views were observed, while
reviewing the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes
in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of
the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. The Company is advised
to strengthen and regularly update requisite and applicable
disclosures in the Structured Digital Database software.

We further report that during the year under review, the Company
has undertaken following events/actions having a major bearing
on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws,
rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.:
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During the year, the Company had issued/allotted/redeemed Non-Convertible Debentures (‘NCD") as per table given below:

Issuance
No. of NCD's of INR Issue Size
Series ISIN Number Date of Issue .
1,00,000 each (Amountin?3)
PHFL2024SERIES1 INEO55107131 31.05.2023 20,000 200,00,00,000
PHFL16062023SERIESI INEO55107156 16.06.2023 20,000 200,00,00,000
PHFL16062023SERIESII INEO55107149 16.06.2023 15,000 150,00,00,000
PHFL 8.65% 2025 Series I INEO55107164 26.06.2023 20,000 200,00,00,000
PHFL8.60%2024SERIESIV INEO55107172 06.07.2023 5,000 50,00,00,000
PHFL2028SERIESV INEO55107180 27.09.2023 10,000 100,00,00,000
Allotment

No. of NCD's INR

NCD’s allotted

Series ISIN Number Date of Allotment A
1,00,000 each (Amountin?3)
PHFL2024SERIEST INEO55107131 31.05.2023 20,000 200,00,00,000
PHFL16062023SERIESI INEO55107156 16.06.2023 20,000 200,00,00,000
PHFL16062023SERIESII INEO55107149 16.06.2023 15,000 150,00,00,000
PHFL 8.65% 2025 Series Il INEO55107164 26.06.2023 20,000 200,00,00,000
PHFL8.60%2024SERIESIV INEO55107172 06.07.2023 5,000 50,00,00,000
PHFL2028SERIESV INEO55107180 27.09.2023 10,000 100,00,00,000
Sr.No. ISIN Number Date of Redemption No. of NCD's Amount (in3)
1 INEO55107107 21.04.2023 950 95,00,00,000
2 INEO55107099 26.06.2023 1,250 125,00,00,000
3 INEO55107115 31.07.2023 500 50,00,00,000
4 INEO55107180 2712.2023 Redemption by FV 3 5,00,00,000
5,000 (New FV 95,000)
5 INEO55107180 27.03.2024 Redemption by FV I 5,00,00,000
5,000 (New FV 90,000)
At the Board Meeting held on April 24, 2023 the Board, inter- (vij The Members at their Extra Ordinary General meeting

alia, approved revalidation of authorisation for the issuance
of Non-Convertible Debentures on private placement basis
for an amount not exceeding ¥ 1500 crores during the
financial year 2023-24 for general corporate purposes of
the Company in accordance with RBI Master direction and
Section 42, 71, 179 and 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013
(including any amendment(s), statutory modification(s) and
re-enactment thereof).

The Members at their Annual General meeting held on June
02, 2023, inter-alia, granted their approval to borrow sum
or sums of money which, together with the money already
borrowed by the Company (apart from temporary loans
obtained from the bankers of the Company in the ordinary
course of business) not exceeding ¥ 8,000 crores.

At the Board Meeting held on July 21, 2023, the Board, inter-
alia, noted the approval received from Reserve Bank of India
dated May 30, 2023 for the proposed sale of entire stake held
by Poonawalla Fincorp Limited (including its nominees) being
24,98,21,117 equity shares of face value 10 each aggregating
to 99.02% of equity share capital in the Company to Perseus
SG Pte. Ltd, entity affiliated to TPG Global LLC.

At the Board Meeting held on July 26, 2023 the Board noted
the transfer of controlling stake/ownership of the Company
and that it has become a subsidiary of Perseus SG Pte. Ltd.
effective from July 26,2023.

(vii)

(viii)

held on July 26, 2023, inter-alia, granted their approval
for the following:

(@) Amendment of Capital Clause of Memorandum of
Association (“MoA”) of the Company by increasing
the authorised equity share capital from I 275 crores
to ¥ 500 crores;

(b) Amendment in the Articles of Association

of the Company;

(c) Issuance of 3,74,84,321 equity shares at an issue price
of 143.45/- per Equity Share (Face value of ¥ 10/-)
each and at a premium of ¥ 133.45/- per Equity Share
for a total consideration of ¥ 5,37,71,25,847.45 [- on a
private placement basis to Perseus SG Pte. Ltd. in one
or more tranches.

The Management Committee of the Board of Directors of
the Company has on August 07, 2023 approved the allotment
of 3,74,84,321 equity shares having face value of T 10 each
at a price of approximately ¥ 143.45 per equity share which
includes premium of ¥ 133.45 per equity share for a total
consideration of % 5,37,71,25,847.45 to Perseus SG Pte. Ltd on
private placement basis.

At the Board meeting held on September 08, 2023, the Board
inter-alia approved the authorisation to make investment
in the equity shares of public company limited by shares



(ix)

(xi)

proposed to be incorporated under the Companies Act, 2013
by the National Housing Bank for an aggregating value of up
to ¥ 35,00,00,000.

The Members at their EGM held on October 03, 2023, inter-
alia, granted their approval for Amendment of Object Clause
of Memorandum of Association (“MoA") of the Company.

The Members at their EGM held on November 09, 2023, inter-
alia,granted theirapproval for change of name of the Company
from Poonawalla Housing Finance Limited to Grihum Housing
Finance Limited and consequential alteration of Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company. Subsequently, the
Company has received a certificate of change of name on 17"
November 2023 issued by the Registrar of Companies.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board
has on December 19, 2023 allotted 1,49,300 equity shares of
¥ 10 each under the Grihum Housing Finance Limited
(“Grihum”) Grihum Employee Stock Option Plan, 2018 and
Grihum Employee Stock Option Plan, 2021 for an aggregate
consideration of ¥ 82,94,724.

(xii) The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board

has on January 03, 2024 allotted 9,42,834 equity shares of
Z10 eachunderthe Grihum Housing Finance Limited (“Grihum”)
Grihum Restricted Employee Stock Option Plan, 2018 and
Grihum Employee Stock Option Plan, 2021 for an aggregate
consideration of ¥1,24,91,400.

(xiii) Atthe Board Meeting held onJanuary 19,2024 the Board,inter-

alia approved authorisation for the issuance of commercial
paper aggregating upto ¥ 500 crores to be issued during
financial year 2024-25.

(xiv) At the Board meeting held on March 22,2024, the Board inter-

(xv)

alia approved the issuance of 3,43,71,793 equity shares of
310 each at the issue price of approximately ¥147.27 per share
including share premium of approximately X 137.27 per share
on Right basis.

The Members at their EGM held on March 22, 2024, inter-alia,
granted their approval for the following:
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(xvi)

Date: May 3,2024
Place: Mumbai

a) Increase in Authorised Share Capital of the Company
and the consequent amendment in the Memorandum
of Association;

b) Issuance of fully paid-up Compulsorily Convertible
Preference Shares (CCPS) having face value of ¥ 10 each
by way of bonus issue; and

¢) Amendmentin Grihum Employee Stock Option Plan 2021
(ESOP 2021) of the Company.

The Management Committee of the Board of Directors vide
their circular resolutions dated March 28, 2024 approved
the fFollowing:

a) Allotment of 3,39,62,286 equity shares having face
value of ¥ 10 each at a price of approximately ¥ 147.27
per equity share which includes premium of ¥ 137.27 per
equity share for a total consideration of ¥ 5,00,16,25,863
to the existing shareholders of the Company on a
Rights basis; and

b) Allotment of 16,24,13,259, 0.001%
Convertible Preference Shares of ¥ 10 each on Bonus

Compulsorily
Issue basis to the existing equity shareholders
of the Company.

For M Siroya and Company
Company Secretaries

Mukesh Siroya

Proprietor

FCS No.: 5682

CP No.: 4157

UDIN: FOO5682F000298801
PR.NO:1075/2021

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is
annexed as Annexure A and forms and Integral part of this report
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To,

Annexure A

The Members,
Grihum Housing Finance Limited
(Formerly Poonawalla Housing Finance Limited)

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the
contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management's representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and
happening of events, etc.

5. The compliance of the Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of the Management. Our
examination was limited to the verification of the procedures on test basis.

6.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with
which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For M Siroya and Company

Company Secretaries

Mukesh Siroya

Proprietor

FCS No.: 5682

CP No.: 4157

Date: May 3,2024 UDIN: FOO5682F000298801
Place: Mumbai PR.NO:1075/2021
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Annexure 3 to Board's Report
Certificate on Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance

To,

The Members,

Grihum Housing Finance Limited

(Formerly, Poonawalla Housing Finance Limited)

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance by Grihum Housing Finance Limited, (Formerly,
Poonawalla Housing Finance Limited) (the Company’), as stipulated
in the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended ('SEBI
Listing Regulations’) for the year ended 31 March, 2024. As per
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Fifth Amendment Regulations, 2021, the
regulations 16 to 27 is applicable to high value debt listed entities
on a comply or explain basis until 31 March, 2024 and on mandatory
basis thereafter.

We have been requested by the Management of the Company to
provide a certificate on compliance of corporate governance under
the relevant provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the
responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited
to review procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by
the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of
Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of
opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company
has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated in the above-mentioned SEBI Listing Regulations as
amended from time to time, to the extent applicable, subject to the
following observation that:

()  Upon resignation of the erstwhile woman director of the
Company effective September 8, 2023, the Company did not
have a woman director on its Board. As per the provisions
of second proviso to Section 149(1) of the Companies Act,
2013 and Rules framed thereunder read with Regulation 17(1)
(3) and 17(1E) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company

was required to fill the said position of woman director by
or before December 7, 2023. However, the said vacancy was
filled by the Company on March 13, 2024 by appointing Ms.
Richa Arora as an Independent Director (woman) w.e.f. March
13,2024. The provisions of Regulation 17(1)(a) and 17(1E) of the
SEBI Listing Regulations were applicable to the Company
effective from December 15,2023 on ‘comply or explain basis’
until March 31,2024 and on a mandatory basis thereafter upon
the Company becoming the‘high value debt listed entity:

It is important to note that upon the allotment of NCDs during the
June, 2023 quarter, the Company had become a ‘high value debt
listed entity’ w.e.f. 16 June, 2023 in accordance with Regulation 15
(1A) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and accordingly the Company
was required to comply with the provisions of Regulations 15 to
Regulation 27 of the SEBI Listing Regulations with effect from 15
December, 2023 on ‘comply or explain’ basis and mandatorily with
effect from 1 April, 2024.

We further state that this certificate is neither an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

For M Siroya and Company
Company Secretaries

Mukesh Siroya

Proprietor

FCS No.: 5682

CP No.: 4157

UDIN: FOO5682F000298887
PR.NO:1075/2021

Date: May 3,2024
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure 4 to Board's Report

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) Activities For Financial Year 2023-24

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company were taught skills to manufacture motorcycle helmets
The Company firmly believes that it has a commitment (6 certified design standard), which enhances  their
towards all stakeholders including customers, employees employability. Under this program, during the year under
and the local community. It recognises that sustainable and review, the participants manufactured in aggregate
inclusive growth is essential to fulfill this commitment. The 3,250 motorcycle helmets from the environmentally
Company aims to improve the quality of life through its sustainable material sourced by the Company. The said
positive intervention in the community,. helmets were donated by the Company along with 1,002

high-range torches for road safety. Additionally, the
Embracing a long-term perspective, the Company has Company spearheaded the apprenticeship program,
implemented key CSR initiatives aimed at ensuring during the year under review, offered 204 individuals
sustainability and delivering lasting benefits to the society. the chance to immerse themselves in a professional
These initiatives center around areas such as education, environment, learning and working simultaneously.
health and the environment. During the year under . L
review, the Company has carried CSR activities under the Th.roughHunarSeFfarlchayprogramme,3‘|4beneﬁaarles
Following projects: gained valuable skills during FY 2023-24, which fostered
a sense of self-sufficiency and enabled employability.
(1) Khushiyon Ka Angan is dedicated to promoting the This multifaceted approach aims to create lasting
education of girl children. To ensure that the Company impact, uplift communities, transform lives, achieve
reaches those girl children who were in need of the fFinancial independence and lead a life with dignity.
scholarship the most, an online form for nominations
containing pre-determined criteria was created and (8)  Swayam aims to encourage the Company's employees
shared across different platforms for a wider reach and to contribute their ideas and participate in the CSR
audience. The Company's aim is to provide educational initiatives of the Company with 3 view to give back to
opportunities to underprivileged girl children and society. The Company believes in the power of collective
empower them to achieve their full potential. To achieve action and is committed to making 3 positive impact
this goal, the Company supported 93 girl children on the communities. During the year under review,
during the Financial Year (FY) 2023-24 by bearing this program endeavored to give access to safe and
their school fee. clean drinking water to the police personnel, who work
tirelessly day and night for the protection and well-
(2) Hunar Se Parichay focuses on skill development, being of society, by installing 296 Reverse Osmosis (RO)
empowering marginalised individuals with disabilities, machines at various police stations across India.
underprivileged men and women and unemployed youth. )
Through this initiative, during FY 2023-24, the Company Through varlc.>us e.FForts, the Cc.)mpany was abI‘e to touch more
supported 110 individuals wherein these beneficiaries than 25,000 lives in 250+ locations across India.
2. The Composition of CSR and attendance of each member is as under:

Number of Number of
Sr. ) Member of . ) )
Name of Director . ) Capacity/Category of Directors Meetings Meetings
No. Committee since
Held Attended
1 Ms. Richa Arora’ 22 March, 2024 Chairperson, Non-Executive - -
Independent Director
2 Mr. Manish Jaiswal 31January, 2022 Member, Managing Director and 3 3
Chief Executive Officer
3 Mr. Prem Manjooran? 08 September, 2023 Member, Non-Executive 1 1
Independent Director
4 Mr. Sanjeev Mehra 08 September, 2023 Member, Non-Executive Non- 1 1
Independent Director
5 Mr. Nitin Gupta® 08 September, 2023 Member, Non-Executive 1 -
Independent Director
6 Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy* 10 June, 2021 Member, Non-Executive 2 2

Independent Director
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Number of Number of
. Member of . . .
Name of Director . A Capacity/Category of Directors Meetings Meetings
No. Committee since

Held Attended

7 Mr. Prabhakar Dalal® 10 June, 2021 Member, Non- Executive 2 2

Independent Director
8 Mr. Amar Deshpande® 20 July, 2021 Chairperson, Non-Executive Non- 2 2

Independent Director

Notes:

'Appointed as the Chairperson w.e.f. 22 March, 2024. | 2Appointed as the Chairperson w.e.f. 8 September, 2023 and ceased to be the Chairperson w.ef. 22 March, 2024. 1
3Ceased to be a Member w.ef. 22 March, 2024. | “Ceased to be a Member w.ef. 8 September, 2023. 1 °Appointed as the Chairperson w.e.f. 26 July, 2023 and ceased to be the
Chairperson and Member w.ef. 8 September, 2023. 1 °Ceased to be the Chairperson and Member w.e.f. 26 July, 2023.

3.

Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee,
CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are
disclosed on the website of the Company.

Composition:https://grihumhousing.com/pdFf/investor-
governance/Board-and-Committee-Composition.pdf

CSR Policy: https://grihumhousing.com/pdf/investor-governance/
Grihum-Corporate-Social-Responsibility-Policy.pdf

CSR projects: https://grihumhousing.com/csr.php

Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of
Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance
of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable.

Statutorily, the Company is not required to conduct Impact
assessment study for its CSR projects.

a) Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5):
¥ 8,354.86 lacs

6.

b)  Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per
section 135(5): ¥167.10 lacs

c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or
activities of the previous financial years: Nil

d) Amount required to be set off for the Financial Year, if
any:¥ 2.33 lacs

e) Total CSR obligation for the Financial Year [(b)+(c)-
(d)]:¥164.77 lacs

a)  Amount spent on CSR Projects (both ongoing project
and other than Ongoing Project): ¥167.86 lacs

b)  Amount spentin administrative overheads: N.A.
c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: N.A.

d) Total Amount spent Ffor the Financial VYear

[(3)+(b)+(c)]: ¥ 167.86 lacs

e) CSR amount spent for the Financial Year: ¥ 167.86 lacs

Total Amount Spent for

Amount Unspent (in %)

the Financial Year.
(in ¥ lacs)

Total Amount transferred to Unspent
CSR Account as per section 135(6).

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule
VIl as per second proviso to section 135(5).

Amount.

Date of transfer.

Name of the Fund Amount. Date of transfer.

167.86 Nil

Nil

F) Excess amount for set-off, if any:

sr. Particular Amount (in ¥ lacs)
No.
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per sub-section (5) of section 135 167.10
(a) Less: Excess amount set-off for the Financial Year (From FY 22-23) 2.33
(b) Total CSR Obligation for the Financial year 164.77
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 167.86
(iii) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)(b)] 3.09
(iv)  Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous Financial -
Years, if any
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii)-(iv)] 3.09



https://grihumhousing.com/pdf/investor-governance/Board-and-Committee-Composition.pdf
https://grihumhousing.com/pdf/investor-governance/Board-and-Committee-Composition.pdf
https://grihumhousing.com/pdf/investor-governance/Grihum-Corporate-Social-Responsibility-Policy.pdf
https://grihumhousing.com/pdf/investor-governance/Grihum-Corporate-Social-Responsibility-Policy.pdf
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g) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:
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1 2 3 4 S 6 7 8
S Amount Balance Amount Amount Amount transferred to Amount
Preceding transferredto in Unspent CSR spent in the any Fund specified under remaining to
Financial Unspent CSR  Account under reporting Schedule VIl as per section be spentinthe Deficiency,
vear. Account under sub-section (6) Financial 135(5), if any. succeeding iFany
section135(6) of Section 135 Year Amount Date of financial years.
(in% lacs) (in¥lacs) (in% lacs) (in ¥ lacs) transfer. (in¥lacs)
1 2020-21 NA - 256.54 - - - -
2. 2021-22 NA - 3235 - - - -
3. 2022-23 NA - 85.19 - - - -

7. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through CSR amount spent in the Financial Year: No, the Company has not
created or acquired any capital asset through CSR spent in the Financial Year 2023-2024.

8. Specifythereason(s),if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5): The Company has
effectively utilised the entire CSR Funds as mandated under Section 135(5) during the Financial Year 2023-24.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Richa Arora

Independent Non-Executive Director &
Chairperson of CSR Committee

DIN: 07144694

Date: 3 May, 2024
Place: Mumbai

Manish Jaiswal

Managing Director & Chief Executive OFfficer

DIN: 07859441

Date: 3 May, 2024
Place: Pune
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Annexure 5 to Board's Report

Related Party Policy

The Board of Directors (the “Board") of Grihum Housing Finance
Limited (Formerly, Poonawalla Housing Finance Limited) (the
“Company”) had originally adopted this Policy on Related Party
Transactions (“Policy”) as required under the erstwhile Housing
Finance Companies — Corporate Governance (National Housing
Bank) Directions, 2016 issued by National Housing Bank vide
Notification No. NHB.HFC.CG-DIR1/MD&CEO/2016 dated 9 February,
2017 (Direction’) and Companies Act, 2013 (the Act’). Thereafter,
the policy is updated as and when required to accommodate
amendments introduced in the Applicable Law.

EFFECTIVE DATE

This Policy is effective from the date of its adoption by the Board
or such other date as may be prescribed by the Board. The Board
may prescribe different effective date(s) for different provisions
of this Policy.

SCOPE AND PURPOSE

The Companies Act, 2013 (Act) read with the Rules framed
thereunder, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(‘Listing Regulations’) and the Master Direction - Non-Banking
Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2021 (RBI Directions’) and amendments thereto, contain
detailed provisions on Related Party Transactions.

This Policy has been framed as per the requirements of the Act,
Listing Regulations and RBI Directions and is intended to ensure
proper approval and reporting of the transactions between the
Company and its Related Parties. This Policy also ensures adequate
systems and procedures to address potential conflict of interest
and compliance with the provisions of the Act, Listing Regulations
and RBI Directions.

TheBoardrecognisesthatcertaintransactionspresentaheightened
risk of conflict of interest or the perception thereof. Therefore, any
dealings with a Related Party must be conducted in such a way that
no preferential treatment is given and adequate disclosures and/
or permissions are made/ sought as required under Applicable
Laws and as per the applicable policies of the Company. Therefore,
the Board has adopted this Policy to ensure that all Related Party
Transactions are subject to this Policy and approval or ratification
inaccordance with Applicable Laws. This Policy contains the policies
and procedures governing the review, determination of materiality,
approval and reporting of such Related Party Transactions.

DEFINITIONS

1 “Act” means Companies Act, 2013 including amendments, re-
enactments, modifications, notifications, circulars and orders
from time to time.

2. “Audit Committee or Committee” means Committee of Board
of Directors of the Company formed under section 177 of the
Act and the RBI Directions.

3. “Applicable Laws” means the Act, the rules made thereunder
and amendments thereto, Master Direction - Non-Banking
Financial Company —Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2021 ("RBI Directions") and amendments thereto,
Scale Based Regulations for NBFCs (“SBR"), Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and amendment thereto

applicable

accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered

(‘Listing Regulations”) to the extent applicable,

Accountant of India or any other legislative authority
entrusted with the task of issuing such accounting standards
and includes any other statute, law, standards, regulations
or other governmental instruction relating to Related Party
Transactions, as may be in effect from time to time.

4.  "Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company.
5. “Company"shall mean Grihum Housing Finance Limited.

6. "Company Secretary” meansa Company Secretary as defined
in clause (c) of sub section (1) of Section 2 of the Company
Secretaries Act, 1980 duly appointed by the Company to
perform various acts.

7. “Compliance Officer” means the Company Secretary of the
Company or such Compliance Officer identified by the Board
for the purpose of Listing Regulations.

8.  “Control"meanscontrolasdefinedin Securitiesand Exchange
Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeover)
Regulations, 2011, as amended from time to time.

9. "Holding company" means a holding company as defined in
sub-section (46) of section 2 of the Act.

10. “KeyManagerialPersonnel”inrelationtothe Companymeans:

I the chief executive officer or the managing director
or the manager;

1. the company secretary;
1. whole-time director;
IV.  the chief financial officer;

V. such other officer, not more than one level below the
directors who is in whole-time employment, designated
as key managerial personnel by the Board; and

VI. suchotherpersonasmaybeprescribed fromtimetotime.
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1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

6.

17.

“Listing Regulations” means Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board
of India including amendments thereof and the circulars and
other notifications issued thereunder.

“Material Modification” of related party transaction will
mean and include any modification to an existing related
party transaction having variance in value of contract or
transaction by10% or more of the total value of such contract/
transaction as last approved by the Audit Committee / Board /
Shareholders, as the case may be.

“Material Related Party Transactions” mean such Related
Party Transaction(s) where:

° the transaction to be entered into individually or taken
together with previous Related Party transaction(s)
during a financial year, exceeds rupees one thousand
croreor ten percent of the annual consolidated turnover
of the Company as per the last audited Ffinancial
statements of the Company, whichever is lower.

A transaction involving payments made to a related party
with respect to brand usage or royalty shall be considered
material if the transaction(s) to be entered into individually or
taken together with previous transactions during a financial
year, exceed five percent of the annual consolidated turnover
of the Company as per the last audited financial statements
of the Company.

“RBI Direction” means Master Direction - Non-Banking
Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2021 issued by Reserve Bank of India
vide  Notification No. RBI/2020-21/73  DOR.FIN.HFC.
CC.N0.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated 17 February, 2021 including
any amendment thereof.

“Relative(s)” shall have the same meaning as assigned to it
under Section 2(77) of the Act and the Rules made thereunder
and Regulation 2(1)(zd) of the Listing Regulations.

“Related Party" means any person who is:

a related party under Section 2(76) of the Act;

ii. a related party under Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the
Listing Regulations;
iii. 2 related party under the applicable

accounting standards; or
iv. ~ anyotherpersonorentitycoveredunderApplicableLaws.

“Related Party Transaction(s)” means a transaction involving
a transfer of resources, services or obligations between:

a. the Company or any of its subsidiaries on one hand and
a related party of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
on the other hand; or

b. the Company or any of its subsidiaries on one hand,
and any other person or entity on the other hand, the
purpose and effect of which is to benefit a related party
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;
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Regardless of whether a price is charged and a “transaction”
with a related party shall be construed to include a single
transaction or a group of transactions in a contract.

The transaction shall inter-alia include the following:

i. purchases or sales of goods or materials (Ffinished
or unfinished);

ii. purchases or sales of property of any kind;
iii.  rendering or receiving of services;
iv.  leasing of property of any kind;

V. appointment of any agent for purchase or sale of goods,
materials, services or properties;

vi. appointment of such related party to any office or
place of profit in the Company, or its subsidiary or
associate company;

vii. underwriting the subscription of any securities or
derivatives thereof, of the company:

viii. Such other transactions as per Applicable Law.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following shall not be
deemed to be a Related Party Transactions:

i Any transaction thatinvolves providing of compensation
to a Director or Key Managerial Personnel, in accordance
with the provisions of the Act, in connection with his or
her duties to the Company or any of its holding Company,
subsidiaries or associates, including the reimbursement
of reasonable business and travel expenses incurred in
the ordinary course of business.

ii. Any transaction in which the Related Party's interest
arises solely from ownership of securities issued
by the Company and all holders of such securities
uniformly receive the same benefits in proportion to
their shareholding pro rata as the Related Party, which
are as follows -

a. payment of dividend;
b. subdivision or consolidation of securities;

C. issuance of securities by way of a rights issue or a
bonus issue; and

d. buy-back of securities.

iii.  Any other exception which is in consistency with the
Applicable Laws, including any rules or regulations
made thereunder.

All terms not defined herein shall take their meaning from the

Applicable Laws.

POLICY STATEMENT

A.

Procedure for approval and review of Related Party
Transactions by Audit Committee

Compliance with regard to approval and review of Related
Party Transactions pursuant to this Policy, shall be limited to



the transactions which are entered into with a related party as
defined in this Policy.

All Related Party Transactions and subsequent material
modifications therein must be reported to the Company
Secretary and shall be referred for prior approval by the
Audit Committee, as may be required in accordance with
this Policy including those transactions proposed to be
entered in the ordinary course of its business and on
arm's length basis.

Provided that:

(@) only those members of the Audit Committee, who
are independent directors, shall approve related
party transactions; and

(b) arelated party transaction to which the subsidiary
of the Company is a party but the Company is
not a party, shall require prior approval of the
Audit Committee if the value of such transaction
whether entered into individually or taken

together with previous transactions during a

financial year exceeds ten per cent of the annual

standalone turnover, as per the last audited

financial statements of the subsidiary;

The Company shall provide the following information,
for review of the Audit Committee for approval of
a proposed RPT:

(@) Type, material terms and particulars of the

proposed transaction;

(b) Name of the related party and its relationship with
the Company or its subsidiary, including nature of
its concern or interest (Financial or otherwise);

(c) Tenure of the proposed transaction (particular
tenure shall be specified);

(d) Value of the proposed transaction;

() The percentage of the Company's annual

consolidated turnover, for the immediately
preceding financial year, that is represented by the
value of the proposed transaction (and for a RPT
involving a subsidiary, such percentage calculated
on the basis of the subsidiary’s annual turnover on

a standalone basis shall be additionally provided);

(F) If the transaction relates to any loans, inter-
corporate deposits, advances or investments

made or given by the Company or its subsidiary:

(i) details of the source of funds in connection
with the proposed transaction;

(i)  where any financial indebtedness is incurred

to make or give loans, intercorporate

deposits, advances or investments,

nature of indebtedness;
cost of Funds; and

tenure;
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(iii) applicable
tenure,interest rate and repayment schedule,
whether secured or unsecured; if secured,

terms, including covenants,

the nature of security; and

(iv) the purpose for which the funds will be
utilised by the ultimate beneficiary of such
funds pursuant to the RPT.

(g) Justification as to why the RPT is in the interest
of the Company;

(h) A copy of the valuation or other external party
report, if any such report has been relied upon;

(i) Percentage of the counter-party's annual
consolidated turnover that is represented by the

value of the proposed RPT on a voluntary basis; and

(). Anyotherinformation that may be relevant.

Approval of Related Party Transactions by the Board

1.

Approval

Related Party Transactions that are not in the ordinary
course of business but on arm's length basis cannot be
entered into by the Company unless approved by Audit
Committee. Where such Related Party Transactions fall
under Section188 (1) of the Act,the Audit Committee shall
recommend the transaction for approval of the Board.

Related Party Transactions that are not on arm's length
basis, irrespective of whether those are covered under
Section 188 or not, should be placed by the Audit
Committee, along with its recommendations, to the
Board for appropriate action.

of Related Party Transactions by the

Shareholders

1.

All Material Related Party Transactions and subsequent
Material Modifications shall require prior approval of
the Shareholders by resolution and no related party
shall vote to approve such resolutions whether Grihum
is a related party to the particular transaction or not.

The following Related Party Transactions which are
not in ordinary course of business and/ or arm’s length
basis or both, if exceeding the following threshold limits
current specified under Section 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and as may be amended from time to time,
shall require approval of both Board and Shareholders
of the Company:

(i) sale, purchase or supply of any goods or material,

directly or through appointment of agent,
amounting to ten percent or more of the turnover

of the Company;

(i)  sellingorotherwisedisposingof orbuyingproperty
of any kind, directly or through appointment of
agent, amounting to ten percent or more of net
worth of the Company;

(iii) leasing of property any kind amounting to ten per

cent or more of turnover of the Company;
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(iv) availing or rendering of any services, directly or
through appointment of agent, amounting to ten
percent or more of the turnover of the Company:

Explanation - It is hereby clarified that the limits
specified in sub-clause (i) to (iv) shall apply for
transaction or transactions to be entered into
either individually or taken together with the
previous transactions during a financial year.

(v) appointment to any office or place of profit in
the Company, its subsidiary company or associate
company at a monthly remuneration exceeding
two and a half lakh rupees:

(vi) payment of remuneration for underwriting the
subscription of any securities or derivatives
thereof, of the Company exceeding one percent
of the net worth.

Explanation- (1) The turnover or net worth referred
to above shall be computed on the basis of the
audited financial statement of the preceding
financial year.

(@) Shareholders' approval, as referred above,
would not be required for transactions
entered into between the Company and its
wholly owned subsidiary; or

(b) two wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Company, provided that accounts of such
wholly owned subsidiaries referred in (3) and
(b) above are consolidated with the Company
and placed before the Shareholders at the

general meeting for approval.

Information to be provided to shareholders for
consideration of RPTs

The notice to be sent to the shareholders seeking
approval forany proposed RPTshallincludethe following
information as a part of the explanatory statement:

(@ A summary of the information provided by
the management of the Company to the audit
committee as specified in Para A(2) hereinabove;

(b)  Justification For why the proposed transactionisin
the interest of the Company;

() Where the transaction relates to any loans, inter-
corporate deposits, advances or investments
made or given by the Company or its subsidiary,
the details specified under Para A(2)(F) above;

(d) A statement that the valuation or other external
report, if any, relied upon by the Company in
relation to the proposed transaction will be made
available through the registered email address of
the shareholders;

(e) Percentage of the counter-party's annual
consolidated turnover that is represented by the

value of the proposed RPT, on a voluntary basis;

Annual Report 2023-24

(F)  Any information required to be provided to the
shareholders as per the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013,

(9)  Anyotherinformation that may be relevant.

D. Grant of Omnibus Approval

1

For the ease of carrying out transactions/ contracts/
the Audit
omnibus approvals to certain transactions based on the

arrangements, Committee may grant

following criteria:
a. Frequency of the transactions in the last 2 years;

b. Value of transaction undertaken with an associate,
Holding and subsidiary Companies, for every
financial year shall not exceed ¥ 25 Crores and
with Company other than associate, Holding and
subsidiary Companies shall not exceed ¥ 1 Crore.

C. Extentand manner of disclosures that can be made
to the Audit Committee at the time of seeking
omnibus approval;

i All the transaction placed for omnibus
approval shall be in the ordinary

course of business;
ii. All the transaction shall be at Arms'length basis;

iii.  Projected growth rate in the business with
the Related Party in the Ffinancial year for
which omnibus approval is sought;

iv.  Contractual terms offered by/to third parties
for similar transactions;

Related
Parties, for instance, floor and cap on the

V. Contractual terms with such
pricing, credit terms, escalation in costs,
quality checks etc.

However, the Company may take Omnibus approval
for continuing Related Party Transactions based
on the decision of the Audit Committee or Board,
as the case may be, from time to time.

Audit Committee shall satisfy itself the need for such
omnibus approval and that such approval is in the best
interest of the Company.

Where the Audit Committee is not convinced on the need
for granting omnibus approvals, the Audit Committee
may reject the proposal placed before it with reasonable
explanation for the same.

Notwithstanding the generality of foregoing, Audit
Committee shall not grant omnibus approval for
following transactions:

a. Transactions which are not in ordinary course of
business or not on arm’s length basis;

b.  Transactions in respect of selling or disposing of
the undertaking of the Company;



C. Transactions which are not in the interest

of the Company;

d. Such other transactions specified under Applicable
Law from time to time.

The Omnibus Approval shall specify the following:
i the name/s of the related party;

ii. nature of transaction;

iii. period of transaction;

iv.  maximum amount of transaction in aggregate
and per transaction that can be entered into
with Related Party;

V. the indicative base price/ current contracted price;
vi.  the Formula for deviation in the price, if any;

vii. such other conditions/ information as the Audit
Committee may deem fit;

Where the need for Related Party Transaction cannot
be foreseen and aforesaid details are not available,
Audit Committee may grant omnibus approval for such
transactions subject to their value not exceeding ¥ 1
crore per transaction.

Further any such approvals shall be valid For one
financial year only and shall require fresh approval of
after the expiry of the one financial year.

Transactions between holding company and its wholly
owned subsidiary will be governed by criteria above
unless exempted under the Applicable Laws.

E. Review of the Related Party Transactions

I8

All Related Party Transactions entered into by the
Company pursuant to each of the omnibus approval
made shall be reviewed by the Audit Committee on
quarterly basis.

The Audit
evaluation of all Related Party Transactions. If that

Committee will undertake quarterly
evaluation indicates that the Related Party Transaction
would require the approval of the Board, or if the Board
in any case elects to review any such matter, the Audit
Committee will report the Related Party Transaction,
together with a summary of material facts, to the Board

for its approval.

If a Related Party Transaction is of ongoing nature, the
Board / Audit Committee may establish guidelines for
the Company's management to follow in its ongoing
dealings with the Related Party. The Audit Committee
of the Board, on at least an annual basis, shall review
and assess on-going relationships with such Related
Party to ensure that they are in compliance with the
Applicable Laws and this Policy and that the Related
Party Transaction remains appropriate.
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If the Board is of the view that the Related Party
Transaction needs to be approved at a general meeting
of the shareholders by way of a resolution pursuant to
Applicable Laws, the same shall be put up for approval by
the shareholders of the Company. The Board shall ensure
that in accordance with Applicable Laws, Related Parties
shall not vote in favour of any such resolution put to
vote by the shareholders of the Company, irrespective
of whether the said Related Party is a party to the said
Related Party Transaction which is being put to vote.

F. Ratification of the Related Party Transaction

1.

Where, owing to exigencies, Related Party Transactions
have been entered into without being placed for approval
by the Audit Committee, reasoned explanation for
the same must be provided to the satisfaction of the
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee may ratify such
transactions or may put forth the transactions before the
Board along with its recommendations within 3 months
from the date of entering into such transaction, and the
Board may either ratify such transactions or seek to
avoid the same. The Audit Committee's recommendations
may also include appropriate measures authorising such
transactions without approval of the Audit Committee.

IF the Company has entered into a Related Party
Transaction without the approval of the Board / general
meeting, as may be required, then the said Related Party
Transaction shall be ratified at the Board meeting /
general meeting, within 3 months of entering in the
Related Party Transaction, at the discretion of the
Board/ Shareholders as the case may be.

In case any transaction involving any amount not
exceeding ¥ 1 crore is entered into by a director or
officer of the Company without obtaining the approval
of the Audit Committee and it is not ratified by the Audit
Committee within 3 (three) months from the date of the
transaction, such transaction shall be voidable at the
option of the Audit Committee and if the transaction is
with the related party to any director or is authorised
by any other director, the director concerned shall
indemnify the Company against any loss incurred by it:

Provided that the above provisions shall not apply to
a transaction, other than a transaction referred to in
section 188 of the Act, between a holding company and
its wholly owned subsidiary company.

Where any contract or arrangement is entered into by
a director or any other employee, without obtaining the
consent of the Board or approval by a resolution in the
general meeting,asthecase maybeandifitis notratified
by the Board or, as the case may be, by the shareholders
at a meeting within 3 (three) months from the date on
which such contract or arrangement was entered into,
such contract or arrangement shall be voidable at
the option of the Board or, as the case may be, of the
shareholders and if the contract or arrangement is with
a related party to any director, or is authorised by any
other Director, the Directors concerned shall indemnify

the Company against any loss incurred by it.
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5. In any case where either the Audit Committee/Board/
General Meeting determines not to ratify a Related Party
Transaction that has been commenced without approval,
the Committee or Board or the general meeting, as the
case may be, may direct additional actions including, but
not limited to, immediate discontinuation or rescission
of the transaction, or modification of the transaction to
make it acceptable for ratification.

Standards for Review

A Related Party Transaction reviewed under this Policy will
be considered, approved or ratified if it is authorised by the
Audit Committee / Board, as applicable, in accordance with the
standards set forth in this Policy after Full disclosure of the
Related Party's interests in the transaction.

The Audit Committee / Board will review all relevant
information availabletoitaboutthe Related Party Transaction.
The Audit Committee / Board, as applicable, may approve /
ratify / recommend to the shareholders, the Related Party
Transaction only if the Audit Committee / Board, as applicable,
determines in good faith that, under all of the circumstances,
the transactionis fair as to the Company. The Audit Committee
/ Board, in its sole discretion, may impose such conditions as
it deems appropriate on the Company or the Related Party in
connection with approval of the Related Party Transaction.

Determination of Ordinary Course of Business

Thetransactions whichareincurred by the Companyin carrying
the main object of the Company shall be treated as transaction
in the Ordinary Course of business. For determining “Ordinary
Course of Business', the Company shall consider all acts and
transactions undertaken by the Company, including, but not
limited to sale or purchase of goods, property or services,
leases, transfers, providing of guarantees or collaterals,
which, are done on a routine basis and are not standalone
transaction(s). The Company would take into account the
frequency of such activity and its continuity, in @ normal
organised manner, while determining what is in the ordinary
course of business. Further, the transaction should not be:

A.  any
per applicable accounting standards or financial

exceptional or extra-ordinary activity as

reporting requirements.

B.  any sale or disposal of any undertaking of the Company,
as defined in explanation (i) to clause (a) of sub-section
(1) of section 180 of the Act.

In order to decide whether or not a contract or arrangement
is being entered by the Company in its ordinary course of
business, the Company shall consider whether the contract/
arrangement is germane to attainment of main objects as set
out in the Memorandum of Association.

Determination of Arms’ length nature of the Related
Party Transaction
a. Price Determination

At the time of determining the arms' length nature of

pricecharged forthe Related Party Transaction, the Audit
Committee shall take into consideration the following:
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i. The contracts/ arrangements are entered into
with Related Parties, are at such prices/ discounts/
premiums and on such terms which are offered to
unrelated parties of similar category/ profile.

ii. Permissible methods of arms' length pricing as
per Applicable Laws including such prices where
the benefits of safe harbour is available under
Applicable Laws.

ii. For the said purposes the Audit Committee
shall be entitled to rely on professional opinion
in this regard.

Underwriting and Screening of arms’' length of Related
Party Transaction

ARelated Party with whom the Related Party Transaction
is undertaken must have been selected using the same
screening/selection criteria/underwriting standards
and procedures as may be applicable in case of an

unrelated party.

Further, in order to determine the optimum arm's length
price, the Company may also apply the most appropriate
method from any of the following methods as prescribed
under Section 92C(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 read
with Rule10B of the Income Tax Rules, 1962 -

a. Comparable Uncontrolled Price method

(CUP method)
b.  Resale Price Method
c. Cost Plus Method
d.  Profit Split Method
e.  Transactional Net Margin Method

F. Other Method as prescribed by the Central Board
of Direct Taxes

Such other criteria as may be issued under

Applicable Laws.

J. Identification of Potential Related Party Transactions

a.

C.

The Company Secretary shall:

i Identify and keep on record the Related Parties
of the Company, along with their personal/
company details.

ii. Update the record of Related Parties whenever
necessary and shall be reviewed at least once a
year,as on 1% April every year.

Every Director/ Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company or any of their relatives should not derive any
undue personal benefit or advantage by virtue of their

position or relationship with the Company.

Each Director/Key Managerial Personnel is responsible
for providing written notice to the Company through
the Company Secretary at the time of appointment



and till such period he/she is associated with the
Company of any potential Related Party Transaction
involving him or her or his or her relatives, including
any additional information about the transaction that
the Company Secretary may reasonably request. The
Company Secretary in consultation with other members
of management and with the members of the Audit
Committee, as appropriate, will determine whether the
transaction does, in fact, constitute a Related Party
Transaction requiring compliance with this Policy.

Every Director/Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company whoisinany way, whether directly orindirectly,
concerned or interested in a contract or arrangement or
proposed contract or arrangement entered into or to be
entered into shall disclose the nature of his concern or
interestat the meetingof the Board in which the contract
or arrangement is discussed and shall not participate in

or exercise influence over any such meeting.

Where any Director/Key Managerial Personnel, who is
not so concerned or interested at the time of entering
into such contract or arrangement, he shall, if he
becomes concerned or interested after the contract
or arrangement is entered into, disclose his concern
or interest forthwith when he becomes concerned or
interested or at the First meeting of the Board held after
he becomes so concerned or interested.

A contract or arrangement entered into by the
Company without disclosure or with participation by a
Director/Key Managerial Personnel who is concerned
or interested in any way, directly or indirectly, in the
contract or arrangement, shall be voidable at the option
of the Board or of the shareholders, as the case may be
and if the contract orarrangementis with a related party
to any Director, or is authorised by any other Director,
the Directors concerned shall indemnify the Company

against any loss incurred by it.

In addition, each Director/Key Managerial Personnel is
required to file a disclosure statement in connection
with the disclosures about their Relatives.

K. Disclosures

a.

The Company shall disclose Related Party Transactions
in the Financial Statements and Annual Report of the
Company inaccordance with the Act, Listing Regulations,
accounting standards, the RBI Directions, SBR and other
applicable laws.

The Company shall submit to the stock exchanges on the
date of publication of its financial results for the half
year, disclosures of Related Party Transactions, in the
Format specified by the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (“SEBI") from time to time and publish the same
on its website.

The Company shall disclose to the Stock Exchange along
with the compliance report on corporate governance
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L.

on a quarterly basis, details of all Material Related
Party Transactions.

The Company shall also disclose the Policy on the
website of the Company and in the Annual Report
of the Company.

The Company shall keep one or more registers as
specified under Applicable Laws giving separately
the particulars of all contracts or arrangements with
any Related Party.

Miscellaneous

1.

In determining whether to approve or ratify a Related
Party Transaction, the Committee / Board, as the case
may be, shall take into account among other factors
it deems appropriate, whether the Related Party
Transaction is in the ordinary course of business of
the Company and on arm’s length basis and the Related
Party's interest in the transaction. For this purpose, the
Audit Committee / Board, as the case may be, are entitled
to seek the assistance of any employee of the Company
or one or more independent experts of its choice at the
expense of the Company.

shall
participate in any discussion or approval of a Related

No Director or Key Managerial Personnel
Party Transaction for which he or she is a Related Party,
and the Director/Key Managerial Personnel shall provide
all material information concerning the Related Party

Transaction to the Audit Committee/Board.

Members of the Company who are Related Parties shall
not vote to approve the resolutionin respect of approval
or Material Modification of Material Related Party
Transactions irrespective of whether the Member is a
party to the particular transaction or not.

Audit Committee/Board may review any Related Party
Transactions involving Independent Directors as part of
the annual determination of their independence.

Management team shall formulate a defined procedure
for identification/ monitoring/ approval of Related
Party Transaction.

Nothing in this Policy shall override any provisions of
Applicable Laws made in respect of any matter stated
in this Policy.

Operational Framework

The Company shall follow the operational framework for

related party transactions annexed as Annexure A.

REVIEW & AMENDMENTS

This Policy shall be reviewed and assessed periodically, being

atleast once every three years and updated accordingly.
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OPERATIONAL FRAMEWORK FOR RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS:

The RPT would be identified in the following manner:

U]

(2)

@3)

Identification of Related Parties:

The Company shall identify Related Parties as defined under
this Policy with respect to the given specific transactions. The
list of Related Parties needs to be updated once in a year, on
1t April every year, and during the year, on the basis of the
specific events bringing change to the list of related parties.
The list of Related Parties maintained by the Company should
include Related Parties of its subsidiary companies as received
from the concerned officer of such Subsidiary Company.

The Compliance officer should at all times ensure:

The list of Related Parties should be updated by Secretarial
Department of the Company and respective departments of
its subsidiaries, upon receipt of disclosures from the Directors
and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. The list would
be circulated with accounts and other concerned department.

Prior to entering into any transaction, whatsoever, the
Business/ Functional Heads shall refer to the latest Related
Party list circulated by the Secretarial team to assess whether
the party with whom the transaction is proposed to be
entered is a Related Party.

IF the party is not a Related Party, then they shall be required
to fFollow the normal business protocol for executing such
transactions. However, if the party is identified as a Related
Party, the Business/ Functional Heads would need to ensure
thattheRPTisbeingenteredinaccordancewiththeframework
for RPT and seek a prior approval of the Audit Committee for
undertaking such RPT in accordance with this Policy.

Identification of Transactions:

Every transaction with Related Parties shall be screened
through the transactions mentioned under section 188(1)
of the Act and Regulation 2(zc) of Listing Regulations. If any
transaction qualifies, approval of the Board of Directors shall
be required for transactions other than for those entered in
ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis.

IF the said transaction also qualifies to be a Material Related
Party Transaction as defined under this Policy, prior approval
of the members shall be required before entering into
the transaction.

Parameters of applicability of Ordinary Course of
Business and transaction pricing at Arm’s Length:

3. The Company generally undertakes transactions with
Related Parties in its ordinary course of business and at
arms’ length basis and such transaction do not require
prior approval of the Board of Directors under the
purviewof Section188 of Act. However,suchtransactions
need to be approved by the Audit Committee.

C.
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Annexure A

The parameters for Arm's length nature be gauged
based on any one or more of the following criteria:

The illustrative test Ffor determining pricing

shall be as follows:
i. Price charged by the Company to Unrelated Parties

ii. Obtaining two or three quotes from Unrelated
Parties for similar transactions, subject to the
availability of the same.

ii.  Independent Valuations

iv. ~ Market Price if readily available and if the market
exists for the same

V. Commercially negotiated contract

The terms of contract/arrangement other than pricing
are generally on a basis similar to those as may be
applicable for similar category of goods/services for
similar category of counterparties. Also, the Company
as and when required, shall seek professional advice
for determination of arm's length basis. The rest of the
considerations for determining the arm’s length nature
of any related party transaction will be in accordance
with Clause D of the Policy.

Arm's Length criteria/process to be observed:

i. In order to ensure compliance with the principle of
arms' length nature in terms of section 188 of the
Act, originator of such transactions shall provide
comparative analysis of the similar transaction
with an unrelated party.

ii.  Theresponsibility of ensuringthatthetransactions
with Related Party are undertaken at arm’s length
basis rests with the Head of the respective
Department originating the transaction. Any
transactions with the Related Parties shall
primarily be reviewed by the following:

(1)  Chief Financial Officer
(2) Company Secretary,
(3) Compliance OFfficer (RBI/NHB)

(4) Head of the
(Originator)

respective Department

(5) and such other person as may deem
appropriate in the given situation/
transaction having relevant expertise and

experience to assess the RPT.

The Audit Committee shall consider all relevant facts and
circumstances regarding the RPT and shall evaluate all
options available to the Company, including ratification,
revision or termination of the RPT.



Approval Matrix
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The Reviewers shall review the proposed RPT within the parameters defined herein and accordingly shall advise the course of action for

the proposed RPT:

Sr.
Particulars Details
No.
M Originator's Originators seeking approval of RPT shall provide:
Responsibilities (38) Name/s of the Related Party(ies) and the nature of the relationship
(b) Provide the justification for entering into the RPT (Commercial/ Ordinary Course of Business and
Arm's Length)
(c) Theterms and conditions and other details of the proposed RPT
The information should be received well in advance from the respective parties so as to allow reviewers
adequate time to obtain and review information about the proposed transaction.
(2) RPT Evaluation by the With respect to each transaction sent for approval; Reviewers shall comment and confirm the following:
Reviewers - Whether the proposed transaction is an RPT within the meaning of RPT as per Applicable Law
- Justification for the intended RPT (Commercial/ Ordinary Course of Business and the sufficiency of
the documentation for Arm's Length)
- Whether the transactionis covered under the omnibus approval given by the Audit Committee for the
financial year
Inassessing a Related Party Transaction, the Reviewers shall consider such factors asit deems appropriate
including but not limited to the following:
(i) thebusiness reasons for the Company to enter into the Related party transaction;
(i) the commercial reasonableness of the terms of Related Party Transaction;
(iii) materiality of the Related Party Transaction to the Company;
(iv) whether the terms of Related Party Transaction, including pricing, are fair to the Company and on the
same basis as would apply if the transactions did not involve a Related Party
(v) the extent of Related Party's interest in the Related Party Transaction
(vi) the actual or apparent conflict of interest of related party participating in the related party
transaction and
(vii) regulatory guidelines, if any.
Incase whereitis assessed that the transaction does not meet the criteria of Ordinary Course of Business
or Arms' Length Price, such transaction shall be referred for the approval of the Board of Directors or
Shareholder, as the case may be, in terms of Section 188 of the Act. All RPTs shall require prior approval
of Audit Committee.
(3) Approval of the RPTs Pursuant to the review of the RPT and its documentary substantiation, the Reviewer may take the
following actions:
(@) Recommend the RPT for approval of Audit Committee.
(b) Recommend the RPT for approval of Board of Directors or Shareholders, as may be applicable.In such
case, recommendations of the Audit Committee is also required to be placed before the Board.
In case the transactions specified under Applicable Law are proposed to be entered with the holding
Company, the resolution passed by the holding company shall be sufficient for the purpose of entering
into the RPT between the Holding Company and the Company. The Company will not be required to pass
a resolution separately.
(4)  Arm's Length Report Arm's length Report on transactions with Related Parties on half yearly basis would be obtained from a

Chartered Accountant Firm and placed before the Audit Committee.




Grihum Housing Finance Limited Annual Report 2023-24

Threshold of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013

se. Transactions Threshold Limits

E] Sale, Purchase or Supply of goods/materials directly or through appointment of agent 10% or more of the turnover
b Selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, property of any kind directly or through 10% or more of the networth
_____appointment of agent

¢ Leasing of property of any kind 10%o0r more of the turnover
d Availing or rendering of any services directly or through appointment of agents 10% or more of the turnover

e Relates to appointment to any office or place of profitin the company, its subsidiary company  Monthly remuneration exceeding

or associate Company T 2.5lakhs
f The remuneration for underwriting the subscription of any securities or derivatives thereof of 1% of the Net worth

the company

Note:

The turnover or net worth referred above shall be computed on the basis of the audited financial statement of the preceding financial year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Manish Jaiswal Sanjeev Mehra
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer Non-executive Director
DIN: 07859441 DIN: 07491208

Date: 3 May, 2024 Date: 3 May, 2024

Place: Pune Place: Mumbai
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS
Economic overview
Global economic overview

Despite facing headwinds such as the geopolitical turmoil in
the Middle East and Europe and the consequent fluctuations in
commodity prices worldwide, the global economy has shown
remarkable resilience in the face of adversity.

Global Growth is projected at 3.2% in 2024 and 3.2% in 2025.
Estimates suggest, much of this growth is made up of emerging
markets, while growth in advanced economies remains tepid.
Inflation is falling fFaster than expected in most regions, amid
unwinding supply-side issues and restrictive monetary policy.
Global headline inflation is expected to fall to 5.9% in 2024 and to
4.5% in 2025, with the 2025 forecast revised down.

With the decrease in inflation rates, countries like India, Mexico,
and Vietnam are poised to benefit significantly. Consequently, an
increased demand to rebuild budget capacity to withstand future
shocks will be expected as well. However, currently, economies such
as the US and India are preparing for general elections in 2024,
postponing major policy initiatives for some time.

Source- World Economic Outlook, April 2024 (IMF)
Indian economic overview

India is one of the fastest-growing major economies in the world,
with its GDP expanding by 7.6% in FY 2023-24. The Indian economy
has shown resilience while navigating various headwinds in
the reported financial year. India's robust performance can be
attributed to a combination of various Ffactors, including solid
economic fundamentals, healthier balance sheets across banks
and corporations, fiscal discipline, stable external balances and
substantial foreign exchange reserves.

910%

7.20% 7.60%
---------- °
3.90%
FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24E
-5.80%

India's GDP Growth

High-frequency indicators including GST collections, advance tax
payments, PMI & current account balance continue to show strong
growth momentum.

The interim budget for FY 2024-25 includes different initiatives by
the Indian Government to contribute to the holistic development
of the economy. The expansion of the capital expenditure outlay
by 111% For 2024-25 in the interim budget is expected to greatly
bolster economic growth and boost job creation by powering the
infrastructure sector further.

The growth performance in FY 2023-24 provides a strong base
for the prospects for the next financial year. Assuming a normal
monsoon next year, CPI inflation for 2024-25 is projected at 4.5%.
Consequently, Real GDP growth for 2024-25 is projected at 7.0%.

The Indian economy has maintained steady growth over the
years. A burgeoning population and policies introduced by the
Government of India are further expected to catapult the growth
of the economy. The inclusion of Indian government securities in
the JP Morgan Global Bond Index - Emerging Markets from June
2024, could augur well for the outlook for capital flows to India.
The market expectation is that $24 billion will be invested in G-Secs
over 10 months beginning June 2024.

Bloomberg also has announced the inclusion of Indian bonds in
its Emerging market local currency government index with effect
from 31 January, 2025. This is likely to result in inflows of around
USD 3 billion into domestic debt.

Among industry sectors in India, housing will be outperforming
the sector given its low mortgage penetration and massive need
across geographies and income classes. Given the tremendous
road development taking place in India (more than 37 KMs per day
of road construction with a target to take it to 100 KMs per day),
rural connectivity is rapidly increasing which in turn will enhance
the self-home construction activities and will also be a significant
GDP multiplier.

Source- RBI Bi-Monthly Monetary Policy Statement, RBI Governor's Statement
February 2024, ICRA Report on Indian Economy March 2024, IMF World
Economic Outlook

Indian housing Finance industry

India's housing finance market, valued at around % 30 lakh Crore
in FY 2022-23, is expected to double up soon. With the ongoing
structural economic development and the urbanisation trend in
Indig, a significant portion of the growth is expected to be driven
by the bottom of the pyramid i.e. EWS, LIG & MIG segments. This
growth would present a lucrative opportunity for Housing Finance
Companies(HFCs)especially Affordable Housing Finance Companies
(AHFCs) to expand their operations tap the underpenetrated
mortgage market and aid the Government's initiative of financial
inclusion, by financing customers who are not catered to by the
mainstream lenders.

As per the Finance Minister's narrative, the Indian economy is
expected to reach ~USD 5 trillion by FY 2028. With an expected
resilient mortgage penetration growth, the housing sector will play
a pivotal role in contributing towards Indian economic growth and
in achieving the government's objective of making India the world's
3" largest economy.

A growing middle class and improved GDP per capita, a growing
need for more per capita per square feet space, and an increasing
number of nuclear families are altering the rental-to-EMI ratio,
making homeownership more accessible, and hence the demand
for affordable housing will continue to rise.
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Key enablers of Indian housing Finance
1 Government initiatives

The Indian government plays a pivotal role in strengthening
the housing finance sector. Effective initiatives and schemes
introduced by the Government have bolstered the growth of
the industry effectively.

The Government of India will soon launch the “Middle-
Class Housing Scheme”; under this scheme, Indian residents
belonging to the middle strata of society, residing in
rented houses or slums, can construct their residences.
These solicitous initiatives accentuate the Government's
commitment to improve the quality and availability of housing
accommodations for its citizens.

2. Digital transformation

Application interfaces  (APIs), artificial

intelligence (Al)and machine learning (ML) have revolutionised

programming

the financial landscape. These digital advancements have
enhanced customer experiences, increased convenience,
heightened security and modulated housing
companies' business operations. The Central Bank's focus on
Fintech and Big Tech companies is expected to further foster
positive growth in the finance sector.

finance

3.  Rurbanisation

Rapid urbanisation has propelled the growth of the housing
and real estate industry in India. Factors such as a burgeoning
population and migration to urban areas from the hinterlands
have significantly contributed to the positive development
of the real estate market, further amplifying the demand for
financial assistance.

4. Favourable demographics

India has one of the largest young populations in the world,
with a median age of 28 years estimates suggest that
63% of them will be between 15 and 59 years. Favourable
demographic composition along with the nuclearisation of
families is expected to drive housing demand.

5. Improved affordability

Rising per capita income and improvement in disposable
income are expected to boost housing demand.

The desire to own accommodation in metropolitan and Tier
| cities along with the increase in disposable income have
contributed significantly to the growth of housing finance
companies in India. Further, the expansion in population is
expected to spur the demand for housing provisions, thereby
Facilitating the growth of the industry in FY 2024 notably.
Source - ICRA India Mortgage Finance Market Report January 2024

Overview of the Company

The Company is a housing finance company registered with the
Reserve Bank of India (RBI). The Company specialises in providing
accessible financial solutions within India's semi-urban and peri-
urban areas through its national scale presence in 18 States and
Union Territories with 210 branches. The Company's commitment
is to serve the affordable housing customer - typically a micro-
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entrepreneur with a monthly household income of ¥ 30,000 to
260,000, who seeks a loan of T10-12 lakhs for a 600-800 sq. ft.home
- with our fundamental values of humility, trust and togetherness.
Theaffordable housing finance franchise has been consistently built
with a relentless focus on imparting “dignity of living” to customers
with Focus on SMI - SC (Self-made Individuals — Self Construction).
The name Grihum signifies the enterprise's commitment to assisting
customers in finding their dream accommodations. It operates on
the philosophy of ‘Go Home Loan- Go Direct, which emphasises
prioritising transparency and simplicity while directly delivering the
solutions to its customers. The tagline “Apna Ghar. Apni Pehchan.”
captures the Company's resonance with the customers to build a
seamless journey towards homeownership.

While primarily focusing on housing finance, the Company offers an
extensive portfolio of financing options to cater for the evolving
needs of consumers. The Company's portfolio includes loans for
home purchase, construction, extension, improvement and Loans
against property.

During the year under review, Perseus SG Pte. Ltd. (Perseus),
an entity affiliated with TPG, a leading global alterative asset
management firm. Acquired a 99.02% stake in the Company.
Upon acquisition, Perseus infused additional equity capital of
approximately ¥ 1,038 Crore to bolster the Company's expansion.
Consequently, the Company changed its name to Grihum Housing
Finance Limited, a name that combines ‘Grih’' (Home) and ‘Hum' (We),
marking a new era in its journey. This strategic move enabled the
Company to tap into the unexplored segments of the housing
market, enhancing its capability to serve a broader client base. The
Company is strategically poised to make significant strides in the
growing affordable housing finance sector.

The Company strives to accomplish the objective of financial
inclusion by serving first time customers with limited / no access
to formal credit. The Company is committed to contribute to
government's objective of ‘Housing for All’

Overview of Company's performance during FY 2023-24

The Company had a remarkable financial year with all-round
performance across Business growth, Credit quality and
Profitability. During the year under review, the Company has
witnessed highest ever disbursement of ¥ 2914 Crore as
against ¥ 2,585 Crore in FY 2022-23, delivering 32% Asset Under
Management (AUM) growth over last year, closing the vyear
with an AUM of % 8,277 Crore as compared to ¥ 6,289 Crore in
FY2022-23. The Company is predominantly focused on sourcing
housing loan customers, housing loan consists of 75% of the
loan book of the Company (FY 2022-23: 72%) with balance being
loan against property, with self-employed customer segment
comprising of 68% of the loan portfolio (FY 2022-23: 67%).

During the year under review, the Company expanded its lenders’
base by incorporating additional private and foreign banks and
further strengthened its existing relationship with public sector
banks. Additionally, it increased its funding sources by tapping into
the refinance provided by National Housing Bank (NHB) and tapping
into the capital markets. The Company continues to raise fresh
borrowings at the most competitive terms and pricing thereby
achieving the best-in-class average cost of borrowings of 81%
during financial year under review.



With a fresh equity infusion of % 1,038 Crore by Perseus during the
fiscal year, the Company's net worth reached % 2,390 Crore at the
end of the financial year under review, up from % 1,209 Crore in
the previous fiscal year. As a result, the Company's leverage ratio
decreased significantly, from 3.8 times in FY 2022-23 to 2.4 times
by the end of the financial year under review. This reduction in
leverage provides substantial room for future growth initiatives.
The Company carries robust liquidity of more than ¥ 2,400 Crore
as on 31 March, 2024 with a well-matched ALM in line with its asset
profile. The Company reported a higher Capital Adequacy Ratio of
47.31% as on 31 March, 2024 as compared to 34.83% as on 31 March,
2023, which is well above the minimum regulatory threshold limit.

The strong focus on portfolio management, risk management and
collections has enabled the Company to maintain best in class
asset quality. The Company has reported the Gross NPA (GNPA) of
0.95% as at the end of FY 2023-24 (FY 2022-23: 0.81%). The Company
carries robust Provision Coverage Ratio at 41.2% (FY 2022-23:50.9%)
and has overall provision coverage at 0.9 % (FY 2022-23:1.1%) of loan
book as on 31 March, 2024.

The Total Income of the Company has increased by ~46% to
21,046 Crore in FY 2023-24 (FY 2022-23:% 716 Crore). The Company
has witnessed the highest ever Profit Before Tax (PBT) of ¥ 183.22
Crorein FY 2023-24 against ¥154.19 Crore in FY 2022-23, supported
by a growth in Net Interest Margin (NIM) of 8.3% in FY2023-24 as
compared to 7.8% in FY 2022-23.

77,000+

Customers

210

Branches

18 States & UTs

Geographical Presence

T 8,277 Crore 10 Lakhs

Asset Under Management (AUM) Average Ticket Size (ATS)

100%

Retail&SecuredPortfolioAttributes
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2.4 times

Leverage

T 2,390 Crore

Net Worth

0.95%

GNPA

8.3%

NIM

OPPORTUNITIES, CHALLENGES AND OUTLOOK
Strengths

° Backed by TPG leading global alternative asset management

fFirm, with a controlling stake of 98.9% as on 31 March, 2024.

National Scale Affordable Housing finance company with
higher share of home loans in the overall product mix with
complete reliance on direct sourcing to acquire superior
quality assets.

Strengthened capital positionwith significantlylowerleverage
provides significant headroom for Further growth.

Extensive branch network (210 branches) and geographically
diversified loan book (with presence in 18 States & UTs)
catering to more than 77,000 customers, with no single region
contributing greater than 20% in overall loan book, to mitigate
any local geo-political issues. The Company enjoys a distinct
competitive advantage by reaching to a varied geographic
clientele. This extensive distribution enables Company to
expand its market presence and shares strategically.

Deep understanding of customer segment; Strong knowledge
of local market and regional dynamics

100% mortgage-backed retail loans.No wholesale exposure to
builder / developer. Majority of the collateral is self-occupied
residential properties.

Scalable Model and Independent ‘Unit’ Structure. The unit
model in a usual scenario can operate independently within
the policy framework and is required to approach the
hierarchy only for exceptions. This model is efficiently aided
by technology enablers to make the process seamless from
sourcing to disbursement.

Robust Credit Underwriting & Appraisal. The decentralised and
vertical approach with segregated legal, technical and credit
underwriting team has ensured superior portfolio quality.

Growingatahealthyratei.e.5year CAGRof30%(earningassets)
and the capital infusion should further accelerate the growth.

Best in class asset quality with lowest NPA levels in Affordable
HFC space - GNPA of 095% and NNPA of 0.56% as on

31 March, 2024.
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° Experienced leadership team with demonstrated track record
of scaling of the HFC business.

° Enjoys credit Facilities from 30 leading banks and

financial institutions.

Challenges, Risks and Concerns

° The customers of the Company are a mix of self-employed
and salaried with majority of them in Tier Il to Tier VI cities;
thereby exposing the Company to the relatively economically
vulnerable borrower segment. Since this segment is highly
susceptible to the impact of economic downturn, maintaining
good asset quality while increasing the scale of operations is
a key sensitivity. However, the Company maintains average
LTV ratio in the range of 50%-60% and most of the assets
are self-occupied thus the borrowers are tied up with moral
obligation to pay, thereby mitigating this risk.

° Competition from banks and other large non-bank players in
theindustry will always prove to be a challenge for the housing
finance companies with high risk of balance transfers.

Opportunities

° Favourable growth prospects for affordable housing in India;
India having one of the lowest Mortgage-to-GDP ratios vis-
a-vis advanced economies indicates strong growth potential.

° Government's emphasis on promoting ‘Housing for Al

Threats

° Slower than envisaged economic growth due to global geo-
political issues, can impact credit growth. However, the
Company is better-off placed in comparison to its peers due
to its unique business model and direct sourcing abilities.

° Inflation affects the purchasing power of people which is not
a desirable phase of economic activity. Rising inflation may
affect the savings of people and their repayment obligations
consequently. However, the Company follows a strict policy
on maximum allowable debt burden ratio to mitigate this risk.

Outlook For the Company

In view of the overall sector outlook detailed above, the Company
is well poised towards becoming a most trustworthy brand in the
affordable housing finance space with its pan-India presence and it
is likely to keep growing considering the following:

° The Company has a robust business model with strong direct
sourcing capabilities to acquire superior quality assets.

° Synergiesbetweenthe Companyand TPG'sinvestee companies
in the form of development of digital infrastructure and
process efficiency practices.

° The Company has a well-skilled and experienced management
team with extensive domain knowledge and excellent
execution track record in the lending business.

° The Company has implemented robust risk management and
credit underwriting policies/ procedure.

° The Company has been continuously investing to build robust,
updated technological infrastructure along with paperless
workFlows for better customer experience.
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Company has an adequate system of internal controls in place
commensurate with the nature of its business and size of its
operations. The Company has documented its policies, controls and
procedures, covering all financial and operating activities. Internal
controlsinclude IT general controls, IT application controls, controls
designed to provide a reasonable assurance regarding reliability on
financial reporting, monitoring of operations for their efficiency
and effectiveness, protecting assets from unauthorised use or
losses, compliances with regulations, prevention and detection
of fraudulent activities, etc. The Company continues its efforts to
align all its processes and controls with leading practices.

A well-established, independent Internal Audit function provides
independent assurance on Company's system of internal controls,
risk management and governance processes. The scope and
authority of the Internal Audit division is derived from the Internal
Audit Charter, duly approved by the Audit Committee. To maintain
independence of the function, the Internal Audit team reports
Functionally to the Audit Committee. Internal Audit prepares an
annual audit plan following risk-based audit approach, which is
approved by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee reviews
the annual audit plan, the significant audit findings and the
updated status of implementation of management action plan on
quarterly basis.

The Company has a system of internal control over financial
reporting that adequately addresses the risk that a material
misstatement in the Company's financial statements would be
prevented or detected on a timely basis and that these controls are
operating effectively.

Internal Financial Control

The Company has laid down internal Financial controls to be
followed in the Company and that such internal financial controls
are adequate and were operating effectively. Proper processes are
in place for the prevention and detection of frauds and errors and
for ensuring adherence to the Company's policies.

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements, commensurate with the
size, scale and complexity of its operations. Review of the internal
financial controls environment of the Company was undertaken
during the year which covered testing of Entity Level Controls,
Process and IT controls including review of key business processes
for updating Risk Control Matrices, etc. The Risk and Control
Matrices are reviewed on an annual basis and control measures
are tested and documented. Moreover, the Company continuously
upgrades its systems and reviews and updates policies, guidelines,
manuals and authority matrix.

The internal financial control is supplemented by internal audits,
regular reviews by the Management and standard policies and
guidelines to ensure reliability of financial and all other records
to prepare financial statements, its reporting and other data.
The Audit Committee of the Board reviews internal audit reports
given along with management responses. The Audit Committee
also monitors the implemented suggestions. The Company has,
in material respect, an adequate internal financial control over
financial reporting and such controls are operating effectively.



The statutory auditors of the Company have also certified on the
existence and operating effectiveness of the internal Financial
controls relating to financial reporting as of 31 March, 2024.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Company considers people, processes, product, and technology
as essential elements of the business. The goal of the Company is
to create a conducive environment where these four pillars work
together efficiently for the betterment of the organisation and its
people. The employees of the Company are highly valuable assets
and have a vital role in advancing the progress and achievements of
the Company. Therefore, the Company emphasises human resource
management at every stage of its operations. As at 31 March, 2024,
the Company's total number of employees stood at 3,292.

Learning and Development

The Company remains steadfast in its efforts to transform the
Company into a self-sufficient entity and to this end, the Company
has introduced several learning initiatives for its employees
through e-Learning platforms, web- based instructor-led
programs and instructed lead classroom trainings. In FY 2024-
25, the Company expects to build on its commitment to promote
self-learning methods using online LMS and “on the job" learning
methods. In addition, the Company has enhanced its onboarding
program to offer a comprehensive and secure introduction for all
new employees, covering crucial information such as the Company’s

history, products, policies, and other significant details.

During the year under review, the Company implemented several
key learning initiatives with the aim of enhancing business
outcomes. These included:

° Utilising Virtual Training programs to minimise dependencies
and time constraints.

° Providing tech training to utilise our business education
series to our sales and credit employees.

° Providing functional training on selling scale, credit policy,
credit technical & legal, and collection methodologies to
our branch employees who engage with customers on
aregular basis.

° Experiential learning of certain team(s) on the usage of BI
tools, analytics and advanced MS-Excel which enhanced their
understanding of business numbers and enabled them to
develop more effective strategies.

° Offering Functional learning support through nuggets,

videos and webinars

° Trained employees on important subjects like Know Your
Customer, Anti Money Laundering, Prevention of Sexual
Harassment, Information security Management and Data Loss
Prevention Policy.

The emphasis has been on co-creating innovative learning methods
and integrating them into business processes to achieve optimal
results, demonstrating the close partnership between learning &
development and the wider business outcomes.
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Propelled by technology

The Company places great emphasis on utilising technology to
optimise its HR procedures. The Company's on-site HRMS platform
boastsavariety of internet-accessible modules,includingemployee
life cycle, recruitment, performance management, learning
management system and a leadership dashboard that facilitates
informed decision-making. The Company also prioritises delivering
a seamless digital experience from start to finish through our
online platform, which includes everything from completing initial

formalities to comprehending HR policies.

Key HR Initiatives

The Company has implemented various initiatives aimed at
retaining employees throughout their entire life cycle with our
company. These key strategies include:

their skills &
competency matching to the job requirements and cultural

. Selecting candidates basis experience,

values aligned to the organisational philosophy.

o Promoting the practice of career progression within the
organisation including cross functional movements with
many important roles being Ffilled.

° Continued the implementation of “Prarambh” to enhance the
onboarding experience for new hires.

° Launch of Sankalp Program of 60 days structured training
comprising of classroom, material and on the job learning to
our field sales officers.

° Launch of Digi-Cell 30 Days Digital Relationship manager
training program for sales management trainees.

. An “Inform, Guide, and Nurture” model, which involves regular
town hall meetings, providing employees with the right
information, and promoting positive behaviors throughout
the organisation.

° Offering rewards and recognition to employees at all
levels and departments, including KUDOS Award, Long
Service Award etc.

Retention of Top Performers

To enhance employee retention, the Company has implemented
several strategies, including:

. Providing training and coaching to enhance

managerial capabilities.

. Monitoring Early Warning Signals to identify potential issues
and provide timely counselling.

° Implementing Ringfencing Model to drive career progression.

o Encouraging inclusivity by promoting internal job postings
and succession planning.
Engagement

Encouraging employee engagement and fostering emotional
investment through mental and physical health wellness programs,
engagement events for the progress of any organisation. The
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Company highly values novel concepts that foster employee
engagement for the wellbeing of the employees. Some of the
strategies the Company has found effective in this regard during
the Financial year under review:

° The Company engaged our employees through various
activities such as health talk, wellbeing conversation
with experts, sports activities, celebrating birthdays, and
celebrating various festivals at across offices.

° Employee inclusion and engagement for the launch of new
brand name of the company

° Conducting sessions to listen “Voice of Employees” to seek
ideas, suggestions, local level market pulse, quizzes, and
contests to encourage employee participation.

° Continued engagement and participation of employees in
company's different CSR activities.

° Conducting leadership interaction virtual and in person
sessions (Townhall) with the employees at branches providing
a platform to share their ideas.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

The Company is dedicated to transforming affordable housing
finance and as part of the strategy, the Company is embarking on
an extensive digital transformation journey. Through the seamless
integration of innovative technologies and the implementation of a
low-code development platform, the Company aims to streamline
operations, enhance customer experience, and improve efficiency
across our organisation.

Our digital transformation roadmap includes the deployment
of new digital platforms, online loan application processes, and
mobile app solutions, all designed to create a unified ecosystem
for employees, partners, and customers. By leveraging a low-code
development platform, the Company ensures rapid deployment
of solutions while minimising integration challenges, facilitating
seamless information flow among all users.

Key initiatives encompass the Following:

° Unified Digital Platform

° Online Loan Application Processes

° Customer Mobile Apps

° Super App (Mobile App) for Employees
. Business Rule Engine (BRE)

e Al/ML Capabilities

° Deduplication

The Company'’s vision for digital transformation goes beyond mere
technological upgrades; it represents a commitment to innovation,
collaboration, and customer-centricity. By creating a 360-degree
ecosystem that seamlessly connects employees, partners, and
customers, we empower individuals and communities to achieve
their dreams of affordable homeownership.
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Data Analytics and Business Intelligence:

The Company recognises the power of data analytics and business
intelligence in driving informed decision-making across our
organisation. By harnessing the insights gleaned from customer
behaviour, market trends, and operational performance, we
empower our teams to adaptandinnovate in the dynamic landscape
of affordable housing finance.

Our approach to data analytics and business intelligence revolves
around a robust framework, utilising cutting-edge tools and
technologies to extract, transform, and analyse data from multiple
sources. Microsoft Azure Data Factory (ADF) serves as the backbone
of our data integration process, seamlessly fetching data from
various systems including our LOS (Loan Origination System), LMS
(Loan Management System), and Collection systems. This data is
then transformed and loaded into our centralized data warehouse,
Microsoft Synapse, where it undergoes further processing to
ensure its utility and accuracy.

Cybersecurity and Information Security:

The major focus areas for the Company, considering the criticality
of customer data which is processed for the business purposes. The
Company has covered all the domains of the Information Security
in terms of Tools, Technologies, and Processes.

. Network & Perimeter Security: Network communication
to and from the Company's IT Infrastructure is protected by
the Next Generation Firewalls with additional protection of
“Network Intrusion Prevention System’, “Distributed Denial of
Service Protection”

° Data Security: The Company's IT has deployed Data Loss
Prevention (DLP) Tool to ensure that all the outgoing data from
the organisation is monitored. We have deployed Information
Rights Management Tool to ensure that all the PIl Data and
Customer Confidential Data shared internally and externally
isencrypted and access authorisation protected. We also have
Pll Data Sharing Process in place to ensure that Confidential
and PIl data is fetched from the information systems only
after high level approvals in place.

° Endpoint Security: The Company's Endpoints, which includes
Laptops, Desktops, Servers and Mobile Devices, are protected
by multi-layer security tool which includes Anti Malware &
Ransomware Protection, Data Encryption Solution, Endpoint
Proxy Solution.

. Security Operations Center: The Company's Information
Security posture is empowered with Security Operations
Center (SOC) with 24*7 proactive monitoring to ensure all
the security alerts, events and threats are monitored and
investigated with required prompt action.

° Brand & Dark Web Monitoring: Grihum brand name is
monitored over sources like social media, other Internet
sources along with the Dark Web monitoring.

° Employee Awareness Programs: Employee Awareness
about Information Security is a very important aspect and
3 proactive security measure. There is mandatory security
awareness training for all the employees. Information



Security Awareness fliers are shared with the employees on a
regular basis. Phishing Simulation Activity is regularly done as
a practical awareness measure.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPOSIBLITY (CSR)

The Company's CSR philosophy revolves around uplifting lives and
elevating the dignity of individuals within the affordable housing
sector. The Company remains steadfast in its commitment to
fostering sustainable communities. Our dedication is channelled
towards empowering the ACE (Affordable Construction Ecosystem)
community. Through targeted initiatives, the Company aims to
enhance their skills, provide better livelihood opportunities,
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and education opportunities for their kids, and support them
in upskilling their knowledge for the quality of construction of
affordable homes. The Company's commitment to this cause is not
only transforms physical spaces but also creates a positive ripple
effect, touching lives and nurturing a sense of pride within these
vital communities.

During the year under review, the Company has spent ¥167.86 lacs
as compared to the spent of ¥ 85.19 lacs made in FY 2022-23. The
Company's CSR initiatives revolve around areas such as education,
health, and environmental conservation. The comprehensive
details regarding CSR expenditure and activities undertaken by the

Company are included in the Board's Report.
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Corporate Governance Report

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Our Corporate Governance philosophy reflects our value system
encompassing our legacy, culture, vision, mission, policies, and
relationships with all our stakeholders. The Company believes
that a robust Corporate Governance framework is one of the
key ingredients for long term success of any financial services
entity. The Company ensures good governance through the
implementation of various effective policies and procedures, which
is mandated and reviewed by the Board or the Committees of the
members of the Board at regular intervals.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
COMPOSITION OF BOARD

The Board of Directors of the Company oversees overall
functioning, provides a strategic direction, guidance, leadership and
owns the Fiduciary responsibility to ensure that your Company's
actions and objectives are aligned in creating long term value for its
stakeholders. The Board is committed towards upholding highest
corporate governance standards. The Board endeavours to ensure
the Company's prosperity by collectively directing its affairs, whilst
meeting the appropriate interests of all its stakeholders.

The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company is in
conformity with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the
Act), SEBI Listing Regulations, RBI HFC Master Directions and other
applicable laws.

The Board comprises of total six (6) Directors, out of which one (1)
is Executive Director - designated as Managing Director & Chief
Executive Officer (MD & CEO), two (2) are Non-Executive Non-

Independent Directorsand three(3) are Non-Executive Independent
Directors including one (1) woman director. Five Directors on the
Board have the relevant experience of having worked in an NBFC/
HFC/Bank.None of the Directors are related to each other and none
of the Directors have any pecuniary relationship or transactions
with the Company, except as disclosed in this Annual Report

BOARD MEETINGS

During the financial year 2023-24, the Company held Eight (8)
Board Meetings i.e. on 24 April, 2023, 21 July, 2023, 25 July, 2023,
26 July, 2023, 8 September, 2023, 18 October, 2023, 19 January,
2024 and 22 March, 2024. The gap between any two consecutive
meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. The
necessary quorum was present for all such meetings. All Board
meetings were convened by giving appropriate notice and were
governed by a structured agenda. The agenda items were backed
by comprehensive information and documents to enable the Board

to take informed decisions.

During the year under review, the Board had also decided some of
the matters by way of resolutions passed by circulation considering

the business exigencies or urgency of matters.

The agenda and related notes / documents of the Board/Committee
Meetings are hosted on the Board Meeting portal, a digital
application. The Directors of the Company can access all such
relevant documents in electronic form at a click of a button. The
Board has complete access to all the relevant information available

within the Company.
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SKILLS AND COMPETENCIES

The Board ensures that the expertise, knowledge and experience
needed to effectively steer the Company forward are represented
on the Board. The approach for selection and appointment of
Directors on the Board ensures that their specific skills, knowledge
andexperience fulfillaparticularskill - set requirement of the Board.
It is acknowledged that not all Directors will have all the necessary
skills, but the Board as a whole must have them also the expertise,
knowledge and experience required for the Board will change
overtime as the organisation evolves and grows. While selecting a
candidate for the post of director of the Company, the Nomination
& Remuneration Committee (NRC) and the Board ensure that the
candidate is a person of high integrity and possesses relevant skills,
expertise, knowledge and experience which is required for Board
effectiveness and good governance. The core skills, expertise and
competencies identified by the Board, as required in the context
of the Company's business(es) and sector(s), for it to Function
effectively are mentioned below:

° Industry: Experience and knowledge of the industry in which
the organisation operates.

. Financial Management: Effectively overseeing financial
resources, optimising budgets, and mitigating risks to drive
organisational growth and sustainability.

} Corporate Overview S gA oL Iyl Financial Statements

° Risk Management with relation Affordable Housing
Finance Industry: Risk management within the affordable
housing finance industry involves systematically identifying,
assessing, and mitigating potential financial, operational,
and regulatory risks to ensure the sustainable provision of
accessible housing finance solutions.

° Capital Market Expertise: It
knowledge and adeptness in navigating financial markets,

involves comprehensive

analysing investment opportunities, and optimising capital
allocation strategies to maximise returns and minimise risks
fFor stakeholders.

. Corporate Governance: The essential governance knowledge
and understanding that all Directors should possess or
develop to be effective Board members. It includes some
specific technical competencies as applied at the Board level.

° Strategy and Decision Making: Ability to formulate and
execute effective long-term plans, assess various options,
and make informed decisions to drive organisational success
and adapt to dynamic environments.

° Information Technology and Cyber Security: It involves
proficiently managing digital systems, data migration and
implementing measures to safeguard data, infrastructure,

X . A and networks from unauthorised access, breaches,
° Business Administration: Efficiently coordinates and
and cyber threats.

manages various operational aspects, including personnel,

processes,and resources, to achieve organisational objectives

and foster growth.

All the identified skills, expertise and competencies reflected in the Board as on 31 March, 2024 are as follows:

Mr. Manish Mr. Puneet Mr. Sanjeev Mr. Prem Mr. Nitin Ms. Richa
Parameters . . .
Jaiswal Bhatia Mehra Manjooran Gupta Arora

Industry Experience J J J J J -

Financial Management J J J J J J

Business Administration J J J J J J

Risk Management with relation J - - J - -

Affordable Housing Finance

Industry

Capital Market Expertise J J J N J -

Corporate Governance J J J J J J

Strategy and Decision Making J J J J J J

Information Technology and - - J - J J

Cyber Security

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board Committees constitute an important element of the
governance process of the Company and are an integral arm of the
Board to carry out its wide and diverse functions. The Board has
constituted a few Committees namely Audit Committee, Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, Risk Management Committee, Asset
Liability Management Committee, Stakeholder Relationship Committee,
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Information Technology
Strategy Committee, Management Committee and Review Committee.

The Chairperson of the respective Committees briefs the Board
on significant discussions and decision taken at their respective
meetings. Minutes of the Committee Meetings are circulated and

placed before the Board of Directors in the subsequent Board
Meeting for their noting. All decisions and recommendations of
the various Committees were accepted by the Board during the
Financial Year 2023-24. The Company Secretary acts as a Secretary
to all the Committees of the Board.

Detailed
other information of each of the Committees of the Board is

terms of reference, composition, meetings and

detailed herein below:
A. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted the Audit Committee in terms of
provisions of Section 177 of the Act, Regulation 18 read with
Part C of Schedule Il of SEBI LODR Regulations, RBI HFC Master
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Directions and other applicable provisions and laws. The Audit Committee is chaired by an Independent Director and all members of

the Audit Committee are financially literate and have accounting and related financial management expertise.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2024, Eight (8) Audit Committee Meetings were held on 24 April, 2023, 27 May, 2023, 29 June,
2023, 21 July, 2023, 25 July, 2023, 8 September, 2023, 18 October, 2023 and 19 January, 2024. All the recommendations made by the Audit

Committee during the year were accepted by the Board.

The composition of Audit Committee and attendance thereat of each member is as under:

Sr.
No.

Member of Number of Number of
Name of Director . . Capacity/Category of Director )
Committee since Meetings held Meetings Attended
Mr. Nitin Gupta 8 September, 2023  Chairperson, Non-Executive 2 1
Independent Director
Mr. Prem Manjooran 8 September, 2023 Member, Non-Executive 2 2
Independent Director
Mr. Sanjeev Mehra 8 September, 2023 Member, Non-Executive 2 2
Non-Independent Director
Mr. Manish Jaiswal' 26 July, 2023 Member, Managing Director 1 1
and Chief Executive Officer
Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy? 11 June, 2021 Chairperson, Non-Executive 6 6
Independent Director
Mr. Prabhakar Dalal® 11 June, 2021 Member, Non-Executive 6 6
Independent Director
Mr. Amar Deshpande* 20 July, 2021 Member, Non-Executive 5 5

Non-Independent Director

Notes:

'Ceased to be a Member w.e.f. 8 September, 2023.12Ceased to be the Chairperson and a Member w.e.f. 8 September, 2023. | *Ceased to be a Member w.e.f. 8 September,
2023.1“Ceased to be a Member w.e.f. 26 July, 2023.

Terms of Reference:

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in line

with

2013,

the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act,
Regulation 18 of SEBI Listing Regulations, the RBI HFC

Master Directions, and other applicable provisions and laws

and was duly approved by the Board of Directors. These

broadly include:

1

RecommendtotheBoardforappointment,remuneration
and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company;

Toapproverenderingof services by the statutory auditor
other than those expressly barred under section 144 of
the Companies Act 2013 and remuneration for the same.

Oversight of the listed entity's financial reporting
process and the disclosure of its financial information
to ensure that the Ffinancial statement is correct,
sufficient and credible.

Examination of the financial statements and the
auditors'report thereon before submission to the Board
with particular reference to:

a) Matters required to be included in the director’s
responsibility statement to be included in the
board's report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section
(3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

b)  Changes,if any,inaccounting policies and practices
and reasons for the same;

c)  Majoraccountingentriesinvolvingestimates based
on the exercise of judgment by management;

d) Significant adjustments made in the Financial
statements arising out of audit findings;

e) Compliance with listing and other legal
requirements relating to financial statements;

F) Disclosure of any related party transactions;
g)  Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;

Reviewing with the management the quarterly financial
statements before submission to the Board for Approval.

Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses
| application of funds raised through an issue (public
issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement
of funds utilised for purposes other than those stated in
the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report
submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the
utilisation of proceeds of a [public issue or rights issue
or preferential issue or qualified institutions placement],
and making appropriate recommendations to the board
to take up steps in this matter;



10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

Recommend on any matter relating to

financial management
Comply with the going concern assumptions.
Compliance with accounting standards.

To oversee the functioning of the whistle blower/ vigil
mechanism, if any.

Review and monitor the independence and performance
of statutory and internal auditors, and effectiveness
of audit process and adequacy of the internal control
systems, any concerns in this regard may be flagged
by the Audit Committee to the Board of Directors of
the and concerned Senior Supervisory Manager (SSM)/
Regional Office (RO) of RBI

Scrutinise inter-corporate loans and investments;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company,
wherever it is necessary;

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function,
if any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official
heading the department, reporting structure coverage
and frequency of internal audit.

Evaluation of internal Ffinancial controls and risk

management systems;

Approve and recommend to the Board the transactions
of the Company with Related Parties or any subsequent
modification thereof.

Monitor the end use of funds raised through public
offers and making appropriate recommendations to the
Board to take up steps in this matter.

Discuss with the Auditors periodically about the
adequacy of Internal Control System, the scope of Audit
including the observations of the Auditors and review
of financial statement before their submission to the
Board and also ensure compliance of Internal control
systems and may also discuss any related issues with
theinternal and statutory auditors and the management
of the company.

Investigate into any matter in relation to the items
within the purview of the Terms of Reference/Charter of
the Audit Committee of the Board or referred to it by the
Board or auditor of the Company and for this purpose,
shall have full access to information contained in the
books, records, facilities, personnel of the Company
and the External professional consultants and their
advice, if necessary

To appoint registered valuers

To formulate the scope, functioning, periodicity and
methodology for conducting the internal audit.
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22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31

To discuss with internal auditors and the management
of any significant findings, status of previous audit
recommendations and follow up there on.

Grant omnibus approval for entering into related party
transactions in accordance with applicable laws and as
per the policy adopted by the Board

Review the statement indicating the utilisation of issue
proceeds of non-convertible securities

Review of statement of deviation(s) or variation

Review of the compliance under SEBI (Prohibition
of Insider Trading) Regulations 2015 including any
amendments thereto and verify the adequacy of
internal control systems under the said Regulations on
an annual basis.

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations
by the internal auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal
control systems of a material nature and reporting the
matter to the board.

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in
the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared
dividends) and creditors.

Approval of appointment of chief Financial officer after
assessing the qualifications,experience and background,
etc. of the candidate.

Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits
and impact of schemes involving merger, demerger,
amalgamation the listed and

etc, on entity

its shareholders.

The audit committee shall mandatorily review the
following information:

a) Management discussion and analysis of financial
condition and results of operations.

b)  Management letters / letters of internal control
weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors.

c) Internal audit reports relating to internal control
weaknesses; and

d) The terms of

remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be

appointment, removal and

subject to review by the audit committee.
e)  Statement of deviations:

i Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including
report of monitoring agency, if applicable,
submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of
Regulation 32(1) of listing regulation.
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ii. Annual statement of Ffunds utilised Ffor
purposes other than those stated in the offer
document/prospectus/notice in terms of

Regulation 32(7) of listing regulation.

32. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit
commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well
as post-auditdiscussionto ascertainanyarea of concern.

33. To ensure information system audit of the internal
systems and processes are conducted at least once in
two years to assess operational risk faced by the HFCs.

34. Ageing analysis of entries pending reconciliation

with  outsourced vendors shall be placed
before the Committee.
35. Monitor system of internal audit of all

outsourced activities.

36. Any adjustments to the Expected Credit Loss model
output (i.e. 3 management overlay) should be approved
by the Audit Committee of the Board (ACB) and its
rationale and basis should be clearly documented

37.  Monitoring and review of all the frauds involving an
amount of ¥ 25 lakhs and above.

38. Anyother matter as delegated by the Board of Directors
of the Company from time to time
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39. Ensuring compliance of Know your Customer and Anti
Money Laundering Policy

40. Administration of Floating Reference Rate (FRR)
from time to time.

41.  To monitor implementation of the Fair Practices Code
and Complaint Redressal Policy.

42. To
initiatives & processes.

review effectiveness of customer service

43. To review status of grievance redressal mechanism on
periodical basis.

44. The Committee shall annually review and reassess the
adequacy of this Charter and recommend any proposed
changes to the Board for its approval.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) is
constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section
178 of the Companies Act, 2013, Regulation 19 of SEBI LODR
Regulations, RBI HFC Master Directions and other applicable
provisions and laws.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2024, Seven (7) NRC
Meetings were held on 20 April, 2023, 27 May, 2023, 25 July,
2023, 8 September, 2023,17 October,2023,18 January, 2024 and
22 March 2024.

The composition of NRC and attendance thereat of each member is as under:

Sr. . Member of Capacity/ Category Number of Number of
Name of Director . . . . .

No. Committee since of Director Meetings held Meetings Attended

1 Mr. Prem Manjooran 8 September, 2023  Chairperson, Non-Executive 3 3
Independent Director

2 MrNitin Gupta 8 September, 2023 Member, Non-Executive 3 2
Independent Director

3 Mr Sanjeev Mehra 8 September, 2023 Member, Non-Executive 3 3

Non-Independent Director

4 Mr.Prabhakar Dalal’ 11 June, 2021 Chairperson, Non-Executive 4 4
Independent Director

5  Ms.Bhama Krishnamurthy? 11 June, 2021 Member, Non-Executive 4 4
Independent Director

6  Mr.Amar Deshpande® 20 July, 2021 Member, Non-Executive 3 3

Non-Independent Director

Notes:

'Ceased to be the Chairperson and a Member w.e.f. 8 September, 2023.12Ceased to be a Member w.e.f. 8 September, 2023.13Ceased to be a Member w.e.f. 26 July, 2023.

Terms of Reference:
The terms of reference of the NRC are in line with the

applicable laws and these broadly include:

1 Formulate criteria and carry out evaluation of

performance of all the directors of the Company.

2. Review overall compensation philosophy and framework
of the Company.

3. Review outcome of the annual performance appraisal of
the employees of the Company.

4, Conduct annual review of the Committee's performance
and effectiveness at the Board level.

5. Examine and ensure ‘fit and proper’ status of the
proposed/existing directors of the Company



10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

The Committee shall ensure that there is no conflict
of interest in appointment of directors and their
independence is not subject to potential threats.

To ensure that compensation levels are supported by
the need to retain earnings of the Company and the
need to maintain adequate capital based on Internal
Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP).

To Formulate criteria for:

a. determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director;

b. evaluation of independent directors and the Board

Based on the Policy as mentioned in Clause No. I1.C(5),
determine remuneration packages for the following:

a. Approve remuneration packages and service
contract terms of KMP and SMP including the
structure, design and target setting for short and

long term incentives / bonus.

b.  Approve framework and broad policy in respect of
all Employees for increments.

Stock Options: Approve grant and allotment of shares
to the eligible employees of the Company under the
Stock Option Schemes as and when floated by the
Company and duly approved by the shareholders of the
Company and authorise any official of the Company to
offer Stock Options to the new joinees in the Company
in accordance with the authority matrix approved by the
Committee from time to time;

Review and approve succession plan.

Approval of the annual compensation revision cycle of
the employees of the Company.

For every appointment of an independent director,
evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience
ontheBoardand onthe basis of such evaluation, prepare
a description of the role and capabilities required of
an independent director. The person recommended to
the Board for appointment as an independent director
shall have the capabilities identified in such description.
For the purpose of identifying suitable candidates,
the Committee may:

a) Usetheservicesof anexternalagencies,if required;

b) Consider candidates from a wide range of

backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and
c)  Consider the time commitments of the candidates.

Recommend to the board all remuneration, in whatever
form, payable to senior management.

Devising a Policy on Diversity of Board of Directors.

whether to extend or continue the term of appointment
of theindependent director, on the basis of the report of
performance evaluation of independent directors.
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17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31

32.

Recommendingthesizeandan optimum mix of promoter
directors, executive, independent and non-independent
directors keeping in mind the needs of the Company.

Identifying, evaluating and recommending to the Board:

Persons who are qualified Ffor appointment as
Independent and Non-Executive Directors/Executive
Directors/ Whole time Directors/Managing Directors in

accordance with the criteria laid down;

Appointment of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and
Senior Management Personnel (SMP) in accordance with
the criteria laid down;

Removal of Directors, KMP, SMP.

the skill,
knowledge, experience, effectiveness and performance

Determining processes for evaluating

of individual directors as well as the Board as a whole.

To devise a policy on remuneration including any
compensation related payments of the directors, KMP,
SMP and other employees and recommend the same to
the Board of Directors of the Company.

Based on the Policy as determine

remuneration packages for the following:

aforesaid,

Recommend remuneration package of the Directors of
the Company, including Commission, Sitting Fees and
other expenses payable to Non-Executive Directors
of the Company.

Recommend changes in compensation levels
and one time compensation related payments in
respect of Managing Director/Whole-time Director/

Executive Director.

Evolve a policy for authorising expenses of the Chairman
and Managing Director of the Company.

In performance of its responsibilities and obligations
described in Section Ill the powers of the Committee
shall include the following:

Contracting Professional help to advise the Committee
on matters relating to the charter of the Committee
requiring independent input from outside experts.

The right to ask a member of the management team to
be present when the Committee reviews report relating
to an area commented upon on reports presented to the
Committee, for which such member is responsible.

Investigate any matter in relation to its roles and
responsibilities, to items specified in the regulation or
any other provision of the Companies Act 2013 (the Act)
or referred to it by the Board.

Seek information from any employee of the Company
and have full access to information contained in the
records of the Company and obtain outside legal or
other professional advice if necessary.
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Remuneration Policy:

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination
& Remuneration Committee adopted the Remuneration
Policy as prescribed under Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013, RBI HFC Master Direction, Scale Based Regulation
(SBR): A Revised Regulatory Framework for NBFCs, Guidelines
on Compensation of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and
Senior Management in NBFCs dated 29 April, 2022 issued by
the Reserve Bank of India and other applicable provisions
and laws, which inter-alia includes policy for selection and
appointment of Directors,Managing Director & CEO (MD&CEO),
Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management Personnel and
their remuneration. Familiarisation Program forms part of the
Remuneration Policy. The Remuneration Policy was amended
by the Board of Directors on 18 October, 2023. The said policy
adopted by the Company is available on the website of the
Company at the web-link: https://grihumhousing.com/pdf/
investor-governance/Grihum-Remuneration-Policy.pdF.
The salient Features of the Policy are:

1 Criteria of selection of directors, senior management
personnel and key managerial personnel:

1.1 Selection of Executive Director/s shall be in
line with the selection criteria laid down for
independent directors,inso farasthosecriteriaare
not inconsistent with the nature of appointment
and in accordance with the provisions of Articles
of Association; Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC) is responsible for identification,
shortlisting and recommending candidature of
person for the position of Managing Director to
the Board of Directors of the Company;

1.2 Nominee Directors shall be taken on board, as
and when nominated by the investor/s to protect
such investor/s interests and such appointments
shall usually be governed by the investment/
subscription agreement/s the Company has/will
have with such investor/s;

1.3 Independent Directors will be selected on the
basis of identification of industry/ subject leaders
with strong experience. The advisory area and
therefore the role, may be defined for each
independent director;

14 In your Company's context: ‘Senior Management
Personnel' would cover members of management
at the Senior - VP level and above reporting to
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer, and
shall specifically include the functional heads, by
whatever name called and the Company Secretary
and the Chief Financial Officer;

1.5 For any Senior Management Personnel
recruitment, it is critical to identify the necessity
for that role. In order to validate the requirement -

i. Job Description (JD) along with profile
fitment characteristics from a personality,
experience and qualification point of view
shall be created;
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ii. The recruitment process shall generally
involve  meetings  with  Head-Human
Resources, MD&CEO and/or identified
members of the NRC, basis which the
candidature will be finalised;

iii. The total remuneration to be offered to
the new candidate as above, shall be placed
before the NRC for their concurrence and
recommendation tothe Board.Thereafter,the
offer shall be rolled out to the new candidate;

Determination of qualification, positive attributes and
independence test For the Independent Directors to
be appointed:

21

2.2

23

24

25

26

For each Independent Director, the appointment
shall be based on the need identified by the Board;

The role and duties of the Independent Director
shall be clearly specified by highlighting the
committees they are expected to serve on, as well
as the expectations of the Board from them;

At the time of selection, Board shall review the
candidature on skill, experience and knowledge
to ensure an overall balance in the Board so as to
enable the Board to discharge its functions and
duties effectively;

Any appointment of the Independent Director shall
be approved at the meeting of the shareholders, in
accordance with extant laws;

Director's Independence test shall be conducted as
per the conditions specified in the Companies Act,
2013 and the rules thereunder;

MD & CEO along with the Company Secretary
shall be involved in the Familiarisation/ induction
process for the independent director/s.

Remuneration policy for the Directors (including

Independent Directors), key managerial personnel and

senior management personnel:

31

3.2

33

34

The remuneration of the Directors shall be
established on the reasonability and sufficiency
of level in order to attract, retain and motivate
the Directors; and

The Non-executive Directors including
Independent Directors would be paid sitting fees
subject to the limits prescribed under the Act, or
any amendments thereto, as may be determined
by the NRC from time to time, for attending each
meeting(s) of the Board and Committees thereof.

Directors shall be reimbursed any travel or other
expenses, incurred by them, for attending the
board and committee meetings;

The remuneration paid to MD & CEO shall be
considered by the NRC taking into account various
parameters included in this policy document and


https://grihumhousing.com/pdf/investor-governance/Grihum-Remuneration-Policy.pdf
https://grihumhousing.com/pdf/investor-governance/Grihum-Remuneration-Policy.pdf

recommended to the Board for approval. This shall
be further subject to the approval of the Members
at the next General Meeting of the Company in
consonance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder;

3.5 For KMP and Senior Management Personnel,
shall be
responsibility areasidentified and the achievement

remuneration based on the key
thereof. The increments shall usually be linked
to their performance as well performance of the
company. Total compensation shall comprise of

fixed and variable components.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI
Listing Regulations, the evaluation process for performance of
the Board, its various committees, individual directors and the
Chairman of the Board and respective Committees was carried out
during the year. Each director was provided with a questionnaire
to be Ffilled up providing feedback on the overall functioning
of the Board, its committees and the contribution of individual
directors. The questionnaire covered various parameters such
as structure of the Board/Committees, board meeting practices,
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overall board effectiveness, attendance/ participation of directors
in the meetings, etc. The directors were also asked to provide their
suggestions for areas of improvement to ensure a higher degree of
engagement with the management. All the Directors were satisfied
with the effectiveness of the evaluation carried out during the
year. The Independent Directors during the year completed
evaluation of Non-independent/Non-promoter Directors and the
entire Board including the Chairman. The Independent Directors
expressed satisfaction with the overall functioning of the Board,
and various committees as well as all the directors of the Company.
The Board also discussed the report of performance evaluation
and its outcome.

Outcome of the evaluation

Based on inputs received from the Committee Members / Directors,
it emerged that the overall performance evaluation of the Board,
composition and quality, understanding the business including
risks, process and procedures, oversight of financial reporting
process including internal controls and audit functions, ethics
and compliances and monitoring activities, has been found to be
satisfactory. Similarly, the effectiveness of Board Committees has
been rated excellent and the performance of the Chairman of the
Company has been found to be excellent. Overall, the Board was
functioning very well in a cohesive and interactive manner.

Details of remuneration including commission and other payments to the Directors

Executive Director- Mr. Manish Jaiswal, Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer (MD & CEO)

Mr. Manish Jaiswal was re-appointed as the MD & CEO of the Company for a period of five years w.ef. 26 June, 2022 by the Members of

the Company at the 18th Annual General Meeting held on 21 June, 2022. The Members of the Company approved the revision in terms of

appointment and remuneration of Mr. Manish Jaiswal vide the resolution passed at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 3 October,

2023.The revised terms and conditions of his appointment and remuneration for the Financial Year 2023-24 are as follows:

. Disclosures
Particulars
No. Category Amount
1 All elements of remuneration package such as Basic Salary ¥ 1,30,00,000 (Rupees One Crore Thirty Lacs only)

salary, benefits, bonuses, stock options, pension,

perannum

etc, of all the directors

Perquisites / Benefits:

House Rent Allowance

¥65,00,000 (Rupees Sixty Five Lacs only) per annum

Special Allowance

¥1,08,14,700 (Rupees One Crore Eight Lacs Fourteen
Thousand and Seven Hundred only) per annum

Provident Fund

T 15,60,000 (Rupees Fifteen Lacs Sixty Thousand
only) per annum

Gratuity

¥ 6,25,300 (Rupees Six Lacs Twenty- Five Thousand
Three Hundred only) per annum

Medical Coverage, Health Insurance and Personal Accident coverage, Enashment of

un-availed leave and other perquisites as per the policies / rules of the Company.

Annual Performance Bonus

%1,08,33,333/ (Rupees One Crore Eight Lacs Thirty-
Three Thousand Three Hundred Thirty-Three only)

Stock Options

33,60,000 Restricted Stock Options under the
Grihum Housing Restricted Stock Option Plan 2018
at an exercise price of ¥ 10 per share. 15,00,000
options under Employee Stock Option Plan 2021.
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A Disclosures
Particulars

Category Amount

Yearly Revision Yearly revision shall be decided by the Board
of Directors based on the recommendation of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee at its
absolute discretion.

Minimum Remuneration In the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in
any financial year during the term of office of Mr.
Jaiswal as MD & CEO, the Company will pay to Mr.
Jaiswal in respect of such financial years in which
such inadequacy or loss arises or 3 period of three
years, whichever is lower, the remuneration as set
herein by way of consolidated salary, perquisites
and allowances as minimum remuneration, in
accordance with the provisions of Section 197 and/
or Schedule V of the Act or such higher limit as may
be approved by the Central Government or other
appropriate authority, if any, required in this regard.

2. Details of fixed component and performance As mentioned in Point 1above
linked incentives along with the
performance criteria

3 Service contracts, notice period, severance fees Appointed for a term of 5 years w.e.f. 26 June, 2022 upto 25 June, 2027. Three
months of notice period.

4 Stock option details, if any, and whether the As mentioned in Point 1above
same has been issued at a discount as well as
the period over which accrued and over
which exercisable

The Company had allotted to Mr. Jaiswal 19,73,333; 4,93,333 and 8,93,334 equity shares of face value of T 10/- each on 29 November, 2021,13
July, 2022 and 3 January, 2024, respectively under Grihum Housing Restricted Stock Option Plan 2018 (RSO 2018)).

During the year under review, the Company has performed exceptionally well, however, it is imperative to note that if the payout to
managerial personnel exceeds the limits outlined in section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act'), such remuneration is considered
to be drawn from the provisions of Schedule V of the Act. In this regard, managerial remuneration paid to Mr. Jaiswal, during FY 2023-24
encompasses the perquisite value of the ESOPs exercised by him under the RSO, 2018, of the Company. As a result of this exercise, the total
payout exceeds the prescribed limits, although it remains well within the limits of managerial remuneration approved by the shareholders
at their meeting held on 3 October, 2023.

Further, the future outlook of the Company forms part of the Management Discussion and Analysis Report which forms a part of this Board's
Report. The aforesaid explanation be considered as the requisite information as per Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.
Non-Executive and Independent Directors

Non-Executive Directors of the Company are not paid any remuneration or sitting fees. The Independent Directors of the Company are paid

sitting fees and other expenses on actual basis (travelling, boarding and lodging) incurred for attending the Board/Committee meetings.

No sitting Fees is paid to Independent Directors for attending the separate meeting of the Independent Directors. The details of sitting fees
paid to the Directors for attending meetings held during the financial year 2023-24 are provided hereinabove.

C. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee (RMC) has been constituted with its defined terms of reference in accordance with Regulation 21
of SEBI Listing Regulations, RBI HFC Master Directions and other applicable provisions and laws. Mr. Rishi Kant Dubey is the Chief Risk
Officer of the Company.

During the financial year ended 31 March, 2024, Five (5) Risk Management Committee Meetings were held on 22 April, 2023, 29
June, 2023, 19 July, 2023, 17 October, 2023 and 18 January, 2024. All the recommendations made by the RMC during the year were
accepted by the Board.



The composition of RMC and attendance of each member is as under:
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. Member of Capacity/Category Number of Number of
Name of Director . . N . .

No. Committee since of Directors Meetings Held Meetings Attended

1 Mr. Nitin Gupta 8 September, 2023  Chairperson, Non-Executive 2 1
Independent Director

27 Mr. Prem Manjooran 22 March, 2024 Member, Non-Executive - -
Independent Director

37 Mr. Sanjeev Mehra 8 September,2023 Member, Non-Executive Non- 2 1
Independent Director

47 Mr. Manish Jaiswal 27 June, 2017 Member, Managing Director 5 5

and Chief Executive Officer

5  Ms.Bhama Krishnamurthy' 11 June, 2021 Chairperson, Non-Executive 3 3
Independent Director

6  Mr.Prabhakar Dalal? 11 June, 2021 Member, Non-Executive 3 3
Independent Director

7 Mr.Amar Deshpande® 20 July, 2021 Member, Non-Executive Non- 3 3

Independent Director

Notes:

'Ceased to be the Chairperson and a Member w.e.f. 8 September, 2023. | 2Ceased to be a Member w.e.f. 8 September, 2023. | *Ceased to be 3 Member w.e.f. 26 July, 2023.

Terms of Reference:

The terms of reference of the RMC are in line with the
applicable laws and these broadly include:

1. Review and recommend to the Board on a regular
basis the risk management policies recommended by
Credit Risk Management Committee, Asset Liability
Management Committee, Operational Risk Management
Committee and other policies concerning Operational
Risk, Credit risk, Market risk etc.

2. Final
and framework.

approval of risk management processes

3. Approval of risk management governance

structure at Company.

4.  Defining the risk appetite and risk tolerance limits of
Company for approval of the Board.

5. Approval of revision in existing systems, policies and
procedures to address risk management requirements
and good practices.

6. Considering the overall risk management framework and
reviewing its effectiveness in meeting sound corporate
governance principals and identifying, managing and
monitoring the key risks.

7. To oversee and monitor Company's compliance with
regulatory capital requirements.

8. Obtain on a regular basis reasonable assurance that
Company's risk management policies for significant
risks are being adhered to.

9. Evaluate, on a regular basis, the effectiveness and
prudence of senior management in managing the risks
to which Company is exposed to.

10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21

Approve delegation of risk limits to management

and approve any transactions exceeding those

delegated authorities.

Review risk reporting on significant risks, including
the amount, nature, characteristics, concentration and
quality of the credit portfolio, as well as all significant
exposures to credit risk through reports on significant
credit exposure presented to the Committee.

Review risk mitigation plans on significant risks which
affects policy or procedure level changes for effective
implementation.

Reviewing the results of and progress inimplementation
of the decisions made in the previous meetings;

Review the economic situation & its impact on industry;

Review of the RCU report during customer acquisition
and review of the exceptional items;

Review of the early warning report and necessary
action thereof;

Commission the risk assessment process to identify
significant business, operational, financial, compliance,
reporting and other risks;

Review of risk assessment results and ensure
that these are appropriately and adequately
mitigated and monitored;

Monitor the progress in implementation of risk
mitigation strategies including the status of risk
assessment program;

Review of the top ten delinquent customers PAN India;

Approve exceptions/deviations from Risk Management Policy.
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22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31

Administering the material outsourcing and adherence
thereof with the Outsourcing policy and seek reports on
the implementation or exceptions to the same;

Laying down appropriate approval authorities and limits
for outsourcing depending on risks and materiality1;

Review of outsourcing strategies and arrangements for
their continued relevance, and safety and soundness and
identify new material outsourcing risks as they arise;

To review and update the central record of all material
outsourcing on half yearly basis;

Consider any reporting done by Chief Risk Officer;

The Board shall have the right to ratify any deviations
from the Outsourcing Policy.

To formulate a detailed risk management policy which
shall include:

A framework for identification of internal and external
risks specifically Faced by the listed entity, in particular
including financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability
(particularly, ESG related risks), information, cyber
security risks or any other risk as may be determined by
the Committee.

Measures for risk mitigation including systems and
processes for internal control of identified risks.

Business continuity plan.
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32. To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes
and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate risks
associated with the business of the Company.

33. To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk
management policy, including evaluating the adequacy
of risk management systems.

34. To periodically review the risk management policy, at
least once in two years, including by considering the
changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity.

35. To keep the board of directors informed about the
nature and content of its discussions, recommendations,
and actions to be taken.

36. Theappointment, removal and terms of remuneration of
the Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall be subject to review
by the Risk Management Committee.

ASSET LIABILITY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) is
constituted as per provisions of the RBI HFC Master Directions,
the ‘Guidelines on Liquidity Risk Management Framework’
prescribed by the RBI and other applicable provisions and
laws including circulars, directions, guidelines etc. issued by

regulatory authorities.

During the financial year ended 31 March, 2024, Five (5) Asset
Liability Management Committee Meetings were held on 20
April, 2023,19 July, 2023, 08 September, 2023,17 October, 2023
and 18 January, 2024.

The composition of ALCO and attendance of each member is as under:

Sr.
No.

1

. Member of Capacity/Category Number of Number of
Name of Director . . N ) .
Committee since of Directors Meetings Held Meetings Attended
Mr. Manish Jaiswal 27 June, 2017 Chairperson, Managing 5 5
Director and Chief
Executive Officer
Mr. Nitin Gupta 22 March, 2024 Member, Non-Executive - -
Independent Director
Mr. Prem Manjooran 8 September, 2023 Member, Non-Executive 2 2
Independent Director
Mr. Sanjeev Mehra 8 September, 2023 Member, Non-Executive 2 2
Non-Independent Director
Mr. Pankaj Rathi 20 July, 2021 Member, Chief 5 5
Financial Officer
Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy' 18 December, 2021 Member, Non-Executive 3 3
Independent Director
Mr. Prabhakar Dalal’ 11 June, 2021 Member, Non-Executive 3 3
Independent Director
Mr. Amar Deshpande? 20 July, 2021 Member, Non-Executive 2 2

Non-Independent Director

Notes:

'Ceased to be a Member w.ef. 8 September, 2023.12Ceased to be a Member w.ef. 26 July, 2023.
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Terms of Reference:

The terms of reference of ALCO are in line with the applicable laws and these broadly include:

1. Liquidity risk management through Asset Liability Mismatches across various time buckets and strategise action to mitigate the
risk associated.

2. Management of interest rate risks through articulation on current interest rate view & its future direction.
3. Funding and capital planning - source & mix of liabilities.

4, Forecasting and analysing 'What if scenario' and preparation of contingency plans through review of treasury strategy at
regular interval.

5. Regulatory updates.

6. Review of statutory compliances

7. Product Pricing for both advances and borrowing.
8. Review of Internal Capital Adequacy assessment.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholder Relationship Committee (SRC) was constituted during the financial year 2023-24 in accordance with the provisions of
Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and other applicable provisions and laws. During the financial year ended 31 March, 2024,
One (1) SRC Meeting was held on 18 January, 2024.

Ms. Vaishnavi Suratwala is the Company Secretary and the Compliance officer of the Company.

The composition of SRC and attendance of each member is as under:

Sr. . Member of Capacity/Category Number of Number of
Name of Director . . N ) .
No. Committee since of Directors Meetings Held Meetings Attended
1 Ms. Richa Arora 22 March, 2024 Chairperson, Non-Executive - -
Independent Director
2 Mr. Manish Jaiswal 18 October, 2023 Member, Managing Director 1 1
and Chief Executive Officer
3 Mr. Nitin Gupta 18 October, 2023 Member, Non-Executive 1 -
Independent Director
4 Mr. Sanjeev Mehra' 8 September, 2023  Chairperson, Non-Executive 1 1
Non-Independent Director
Notes:

'Ceased to be the Chairperson and a Member w.e.f. 22 March, 2024.

Terms of Reference: Details of Investor Complaints:

The terms of reference of the SRC are in line with the
applicable laws and these broadly include:

All the shares and debentures of the Company are in
dematerialised form. Niche Technologies Private Limited was

1. Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the the Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) with respect to non-

listed entity including complaints related to transfer/
transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report,
non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/

convertible debt securities that were outstanding as on 31
March, 2023 and subsequently redeemed in full during the
Financial Year 2023-24. Further, the records with respect to

duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.

2. Review of measures taken for effective exercise of
voting rights by shareholders.

3. Review of adherence to the service standards adopted
by the listed entity in respect of various services being
rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

4. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by
the listed entity for reducing the quantum of unclaimed
dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend
warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the
shareholders of the company.

non-convertible debt securities issued by the Company during
the Financial Year 2023-24 are maintained by Link Intime
India Private Limited which is the current RTA for all the non-
convertible debt securities as outstanding as on 31 March,
2024. The said RTAs have appropriate systems to ensure that
requisite service is provided to investors of the Company in
accordance with the applicable corporate and securities laws
and within the adopted service standards.

The Company did not receive any complaints from

any shareholders or debenture holders

financial year 2023-24.

during the
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F. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

Annual Report 2023-24

The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee is constituted in line with the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act,

2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 (CSR Rules).

The said Committee has been entrusted with the responsibility of fFormulating and recommending to the Board, a CSR Policy indicating

the activities to be undertaken by the Company, monitoring the implementation of the framework of the CSR Policy and recommending

the amount to be spent on CSR activities. The CSR Policy is available on the Company's website at weblink: https://grihumhousing.com/

pdf/investor-governance/Grihum-Corporate-Social-Responsibility-Policy.pdf

During the financial year ended 31 March, 2024, three (3) CSR Meetings were held on 20 April, 2023, 19 July, 2023 and 18 January, 2024.

The composition of CSR and attendance of each member is as under:

Sr.

A Member of Capacity/Category Number of Number of
Name of Director . . . . .
Committee since of Directors Meetings Held Meetings Attended

Ms. Richa Arora’ 22 March, 2024 Chairperson, Non-Executive - -
Independent Director

Mr. Manish Jaiswal 31January, 2022 Member, Managing Director 3 3

and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Prem Manjooran? 08 September, 2023 Member, Non-Executive 1 1
Independent Director

Mr. Sanjeev Mehra 08 September, 2023 Member, Non-Executive Non- 1 1
Independent Director

Mr. Nitin Gupta® 08 September, 2023 Member, Non-Executive 1 -
Independent Director

Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy* 10 June, 2021 Member, Non-Executive 2 2
Independent Director

Mr. Prabhakar Dalal® 10 June, 2021 Member, Non- Executive 2 2
Independent Director

Mr. Amar Deshpande® 20 July, 2021 Chairperson, Non-Executive 2 2

Non- Independent Director

Notes:

'Appointed as the Chairperson w.e.f. 22 March, 2024. | 2Appointed as the Chairperson w.ef. 8 September, 2023 and ceased to be the Chairperson w.ef. 22 March, 2024. |
3Ceased to be a Member w.e.f. 22 March, 2024. 1 “Ceased to be a Member w.e.f. 8 September, 2023. | *Appointed as the Chairperson w.e.f. 26 July, 2023 and ceased to be the
Chairperson and Member w.ef. 8 September, 2023. | °Ceased to be the Chairperson and Member w.ef. 26 July, 2023.

Terms of Reference:

The terms of reference of the CSR Committee are in line with
the applicable laws and these broadly include:

1.

Frame the CSR (Corporate Social Responsibility) Policy
(including any modifications thereto from time to time)
which shall provide approach and guiding principles
for selection, implementation and monitoring of CSR
activities to be undertaken by the Company as well as
formulation of the annual action plan;

Approve and recommend annual action plan, and any
modifications thereof, to the Board comprising of
following information:

i the list of CSR Programmes that are approved to
be undertaken in areas or subjects specified in
Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”);

ii. the manner of execution of such

projects or programmes;

utilisation of  Funds
schedules  for the

ii. the modalities of
and  implementation
projects or programmes;

iv.  monitoring and reporting mechanism for the
projects or programmes; and

V. details of need and impact assessment, if any, for
the projects undertaken by the Company;

Approve specific projects, either new or ongoing, in
pursuance of the focus areas outlined in this Policy,
either for undertaking such projects by the Company
itself, directly or through its holding, for inclusion in the
annual action plan;

Recommend the amount of CSR Expenditure in the
activities to be undertaken to the Board for approval of
the annual CSR Budget and the amount to be transferred
in case of ongoing projects and unspent amounts;

Monitor the CSR Policy and closely monitor the spending
on a'project basis' regularly;

Review and recommend to the Board, the Annual Report
on CSR activities to be included in Board's Report and
certificate submitted by the Chief Financial Officer;

Review and recommend to the Board, the impact
assessment report obtained by the Company from time
to time, wherever applicable;

Undertake such activities and carry out such
functions as may be provided under section 135 of the
Act and the Rules.


https://grihumhousing.com/pdf/investor-governance/Grihum-Corporate-Social-Responsibility-Policy.pdf
https://grihumhousing.com/pdf/investor-governance/Grihum-Corporate-Social-Responsibility-Policy.pdf
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INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY STRATEGY COMMITTEE (I1TSC)

The ITSC has been constituted in compliance with RBI HFC Master Directions read with the Information Technology Framework for the

NBFC Sector prescribed by the RBI and other applicable provisions and laws including circulars, directions, guidelines etc. issued by

regulatory authorities.

During the financial year ended 31 March, 2024, Five (5) ITSC Meetings were held on 15 April, 2023, 19 July, 2023, 8 September, 2024, 17

October, 2023 and 18 January, 2024.

The composition of ITSC and attendance of each member is as under:

. Member of Capacity/ Category Number of Number of
Name of Director . A ! A .

No. Committee since of Directors Meetings held Meetings Attended

1 Mr. Nitin Gupta 8 September, 2023 Chairperson, Non-Executive 2 1
Independent Director

2 Mr.Manish Jaiswal 8 May, 2019 Member, Managing Director 5 5

and Chief Executive Officer

37 Mr. Sanjeev Mehra 19 January, 2024 Member, Non-Executive Non- - -
Independent Director

4  Ms.Richa Arora 22 March, 2024 Member, Non-Executive - -
Independent Director

5 Head-Operations 8 September, 2023 Member 2 2

6  Chief Information OFfFficer 8 September, 2023 Member 2 2

7 Chief Business Officer 8 September, 2023 Member 2 1

87 Mr. Prabhakar Dalal’ 12 June, 2021 Chairperson, Non-Executive 2 2
Independent Director

9 Ms.Bhama Krishnamurthy? 11 May, 2022 Member, Non-Executive 2 2
Independent Director

F Mr. Amar Deshpande® 20 July, 2021 Member, Non-Executive 2 2

Non- Independent Director
n M Pankaj Rathi* 20 July, 2021 Member, Chief 2 2
Financial Officer
Notes:

'Ceased to be the Chairperson and a Member w.e.f. 8 September, 2023. | 2Ceased to be 3 Member w.e.f. 8 September, 2023. | *Ceased to be 3 Member w.ef. 26 July, 2023. |

“Ceased to be a Member w.e.f. 8 September, 2023.

Terms of Reference:

The terms of reference of the ITSC are in line with the

applicable laws and these broadly include:

A.
1.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Committee:

Approving

IT strategy and policy documents and °

5. Ensuring the IT Risk Assessment

following activities.

exercise is
executed Fully. Specific responsibilities include the

° Review & Approve the IT Risk Register annually.

ensuring that the management has put an effective

strategic planning process in place.

Ascertaining that

processes and practices that ensure that the IT delivers

value to the business.

management has

Guide management on how to prioritise IT Risks.

o Review & Approve the Risk mitigation plans

provided by IT

implemented

and Cybersecurity risks are in place.

o Ensure processes for assessing and managing IT

Ensuring IT investments represent a balance of risks
and benefits and that budgets are acceptable and that
the budgetary allocations for the IT Functions including
IT Governance, Strategic Planning, IT Security and
Cyber Security are commensurate with the Company's
IT maturity, digital depth, threat environment and
industry standards.

Monitoring the method that management uses to
determine the IT resources needed to achieve strategic
goals and provide high-level direction for sourcing and
use of IT resources.

Ensuring proper balance of ITinvestments for sustaining
Company's growth and becoming aware about exposure
towards IT risks and controls.

Periodically reviewing the process for development,
approval and modification of the Company’s IT strategy
and strategic plan in line with the corporate strategies,
Board Policy reviews, cyber security arrangements
and review matters related to IT Governance including
accountability, effectiveness and efficiency of the IT
Governance and Information Security Governance

structure and ensure adequate skilled resources, well
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10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

defined objectives and unambiguous responsibilities
for each level in the Company are in place and any other
matter related to IT Governance.

Reviewthekeyissues,optionsandexternaldevelopments

impacting the Company's IT strategy including
acquisition and development of Information Systems

(New Application Software) and Change Management.

Monitor enterprise risks assigned to the Committee
by the Board under the Company's Enterprise Risk
Management program and report thereon to the Audit
Committee of the Board.

Review the Information System (IS) audit report and
further present to the Board or the Audit Committee, as
may be decided, the IS Audit report with their comments
thereon. The periodicity of IS audit should be at least
once in a year. IS Audit should be undertaken preferably
prior to the statutory audit so that IS audit reports
are available to the statutory auditors well in time for
examination and for incorporating comments, if any, in
the audit reports.

Ongoing review of third party / outsourcing
arrangements including onboarding, commercial/key

terms and conditions and risk associated therewith.
Review the IT Policies of the Company.

Approving Information Security strategy, Information
Security budget and Information Security resources.

The Committee may delegate, as it deems appropriate,
its responsibilities and duties to subcommittees or
individual members of the Committee.

Any other matter as delegated by the Board of Directors
of the Company from time to time.

Review the proceedings of the meetings of IT Steering
Committee and its recommendations.

Annually review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Business Continuity Planning and Disaster Recovery
Management of the Company.

Review and assess the Company's IT capacity

requirements and planning.

The Committee shall annually review and reassess the
adequacy of this Charter and recommend any proposed
changes to the Board for its approval.

10.

1.

Annual Report 2023-24

Roles and Responsibilities of the Committee related to
outsourced operations:

Instituting an appropriate governance mechanism for
outsourced processes, comprising of risk based policies
and procedures, to effectively identify, measure, monitor
and control risks associated with outsourcing in an end
to end manner;

Definingapproval authorities for outsourcing depending
on nature of risks and materiality of outsourcing;

Developing sound and responsive outsourcing risk
management policies and procedures commensurate
with  the
outsourcing arrangements;

nature, scope, and complexity of

Undertaking a periodic review of outsourcing strategies
and all existing materiall outsourcing arrangements;

Overview compliance with the Outsourcing policy,
wherever applicable;

Evaluating the risks and materiality of all
prospective outsourcing based on the framework

developed by the Board;

Periodically reviewing the effectiveness of policies
and procedures;

Communicating significant risks in outsourcing to the
Company's Audit Committee of the Board or the Board
on 3 periodic basis;

Ensuring anindependent review and audit in accordance
with approved policies and procedures;

Ensuring that contingency plans have been developed
and tested adequately;

Ensuring that the business continuity preparedness is
not adversely compromised on account of outsourcing.
Ensuring sound business continuity management
practices as issued by RBI and seeking proactive
that
maintains readiness and preparedness for business

assurance the outsourced service provider

continuity on an ongoing basis.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

During the financial year ended 31 March, 2024, Nine (9)
Management Committee Meetings were held on 23 May,
2023, 27 May, 2023, 9 June, 2023, 16 June, 2023, 23 June, 2023,
29 June, 2023, 18 September, 2023, 25 September, 2023 and 23
December, 2023.
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. Member of Capacity/Category Number of Number of
Name of Director . . N ) .
No. Committee since of Directors Meetings Held Meetings Attended
1 Mr. Manish Jaiswal 22 October, 2021 Chairperson, Managing 9 9
Director and Chief
Executive Officer
2 MrNitin Gupta 8 September, 2023 Member, Non-Executive 3 2
Director
3 M Sanjeev Mehra 8 September, 2023  Member, Non-Executive Non- 3 3
- Independent Director
5 Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy' 11 May, 2022 Member, Non-Executive 6 6
- Independent Director
4 Mr. Amar Deshpande? 20 July, 2021 Member, Non-Executive 6 6
Non- Independent Director
Notes:

'Ceased to be 3 Member w.e.f. 8 September, 2023. | 2Ceased to be a Member w.e.f. 26 July, 2023.

Terms of Reference:

1

To do all such acts, deeds and things and decide on all
such matters relating to signing and filing of application
| execution / registration of Lease Agreement/ Leave &
License Agreement/ Electricity/ telephone connection/ State
Electricity Board / obtaining Trade License and Certificate
under Shops and Establishment Act / telephone etc. and
transferring old as well as new connection for the purpose
of the business of the Company and for this purpose issue
various Power of Attorneys in favour of the Officials of the
Company for legal and administrative purposes as per the
business requirement from time to time.

To authorise officials of the Company in relation to
Provident Fund, Labour Welfare Fund, Employee State
Insurance matters, Professional Tax, National Pension
System and also to comply with statutory matters in
relation to Goods and Services Tax or other applicable
taxes and other statutory authorities.

To decide on matters relating to Filing, application /
execution / registration of VAT/Sales Tax / Income Tax,
Service Tax and such other tax and / or defending of
cases in various Courts of law in India with reference
to the abovementioned matter and for this purpose
issue Power of Attorneys in favour of the Officials/
Authorised Representative of the Company for legal and
administrative purposes from time to time.

To do all such acts, deeds and things and decide on all
such matters relating to Opening and Closing of Current/
Cash Credit/Demat/ Fixed Deposit/ CSGL Account and
Inclusion and Deletion of the Authorised Signatories
to the said Current/Cash Credit/Demat/ Fixed Deposit/
CSGL Account opened in the name of the Company
for the purpose of the business requirement of the
Company and for availing various services viz. viewing
right Facility, cash management services etc. in respect
of the Accounts as mentioned above.

To enter into Non-Disclosure Agreements and various
other type of Agreements with various entities from
time to time relating to the business of the Company

including- Rental / Lease Agreements for obtaining
premises for maintaining the operations of the Company
across the country, entering into Memorandum of
understandings / tie-ups with various builders/agencies,
in the context of Company's business etc, and to
authorise officials of the Company from time to time to
sign and execute such Agreements and documents on
behalf of the Company.

To issue authorisation and/or Power of Attorney(s) in
favour of such persons as it may be deemed to be fit
and expedient to act as true and lawful Attorney of the
Companyto,interalia, represent,the Company beforethe
courts of law - civil or criminal, tribunals (including but
not limited to arbitration tribunals), quasi-judicial, Lok
Adalat and other statutory authorities and such other
forums (the YJudicial Authorities’), to verify all plaints,
written statements, writs petition and other pleadings,
applications, petitions or documents to be submitted to
such Judicial Authorities; to receive and acknowledge
notice(s) and to consent or submit to or appeal against,
any judgment, order or award in any such suit, criminal
case including complaints, action or proceedings before
such Judicial Authorities; to compromise or discontinue
any such suit, criminal cases including complaints,
action or proceedings; to deposit, withdraw and receive
documents and any money or monies to and from the
court or any such suit, or any such authorities either in
execution of decree or otherwise and sign and deliver
proper receipts thereof and to engage and appoint
any solicitor, advocate or counsel to act and plead
and otherwise conduct the cases / legal proceedings
instituted by or against the Company, for all the offices
of the Company from time to time as may be required.

To issue authorisation and/or Power of Attorney(s)
in Favour of such persons as may be deemed Ffit and
expedient, to act as true and lawful Attorney of the
Company to, inter alia, sign and execute Mortgage
Deeds, Memorandum of Entry, Release Deeds etc.
as may be required from time to time with respect
to loan Facilities granted by the Company; to get the
Memorandum of Entry, Mortgage Deeds, etc. as may be
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10.

1.

required, registered with the Registrar/Sub-Registrar
of Assurance in the respective states; to cancel the
said Mortgage Deeds, Memorandum of Entry etc.,, after
repayment of loan/dues by the customer; to issue
satisfaction letters to customers upon receipt of loan/
dues from the customer and to do every other necessary
and lawful act as deemed necessary in the matters as
mentioned aforesaid.

To discuss, negotiate, accept and/or convey the
acceptance of such Terms and Conditions in connection
with the Term Loans, Credit Facilities of any type, inter
corporate deposits, Issuance of Commercial Papers,
other borrowings etc.on such terms and conditions to be
containedin the Agreements and/or any other document
to be issued/made by any Banks, Foreign Banks, Financial
Institutions, Finance Companies, Foreign Institutional
Investors (FIl) and/or any other Lenders / Investor,
Body Corporates, Firms and Individuals and to sign and
execute the, Loan Agreements, Deed of Hypothecation
and / or any other related documents, Agreement as
may be required by Banks, Foreign Banks, Financial
Institutions, Finance Companies, Foreign Institutional
Investors (FIl) and /or any other Lenders / Investor,
Body Corporates, Firms and Individuals in connection
with the Term Loans, Credit facilities of any type, inter
corporate deposits, other borrowings, to appoint Issuing
and Paying Agent and also to modify the same as may be
required, upto the overall borrowing limits as approved
by the Shareholders’ of the Company under Section
180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 from time to time.

To consider and transact the matter of issue and
allotment of Non Convertible Redeemable Debentures
to the proposed allottees on private placement basis
upto the overall limits as approved by the Shareholders'
of the Company.

Authorisation to Management Committee of the
Board of Directors of the Company to deal with the
matter relating to any amendment, modification or
change in the terms of issue of the instruments (i.e.
issue of Debentures, Bonds, Commercial Papers etc.)
including, if necessary, the agreements already entered
by the Company.

To deal with the matters relating to the Investments
of the Company in Debentures including investment
of surplus funds in short term liquid schemes of
mutual funds, Term fixed deposits with banks including
scheduled banks, small finance banks etc. as envisaged
in detail in the Investment Policy of the Company and to
do all such acts, deeds, and things and decide on all such
matters as may be necessary to deal with in this regard
on behalf of the Company.

14.

15.

16.

20.

Annual Report 2023-24

Delegation authority to Signing of No Objection
Certificate, System generated statements, Letters for
release of charge on mortgaged property to the builder/
Society, Letters to the customers in response to their
queries and Rate Drop Letters to the customer for the
cases in which rate drop is considered appropriate by
senior management team of the Company in accordance
with established decision grid from time to time.

To do all such acts, deeds and things and decide on all such
matters relating to securitisation and Direct Assignment
deal with various Banks, NBFCs and HFCs from time to time.

Toapproveanyschemeofarrangementoramalgamation,
which is in the interest of the Company, between the
entities to whom the Company has extended various
loan facilities, authorise any person of the Company
to sign and issue No Objection Certificate (NOC) as
required under various laws for the amalgamation or
arrangement of one entity with the other entity, to
appear before the competent authority on behalf of the
Company as and when required and to do any other acts,
deeds and matters incidental thereto.

Consider and approve for and on behalf of the Company
such borrowings (Inter Corporate Loans for an amount
as approved by the Board at such rate of interest as may
be mutually decided between Lender and the Company
from time to time) including fixing the other terms
and conditions.

To issue authorisation in fFavour of officials for matters
pertaining to SARFAESI for the purpose of the business
of the Company.

To issue authorisation in favour of officials For matters
pertaining to Trademark/Copyright for the purpose
of the business of the Company and availing various
services including but not limited to obtaining external
consultancy/support.

To issue authorisation in fFavour of officials for matters
pertaining to Depositories for the purpose of the
business of the Company and availing various services.

To consider, evaluate and Ffinalise write-off of assets/
portfolio (excluding fraud cases) basis approved
Policy on Provisioning for NPAs and Write-off wherein
write-off is required due to reasons other than delays
in the portfolio

Exercise such powers which may be delegated by the
Board from time to time subject to provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder as
amended from time to time, Memorandum and Articles
of Association of the Company.
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REVIEW COMMITTEE

During the financial year ended 31 March, 2024, no meeting of Review Committee was held. The composition of the Review Committee
constituted pursuant to RBI HFC Master Directions and other applicable provisions and laws is as under:

'S‘:;. Name of Director Member of Committee since Capacity/Category of Directors

1 Mr. Manish Jaiswal 27 June, 2017 Chairperson, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
2 Mr.Prem Manjooran 8 September, 2023 Member, Non-Executive Independent Director

3 Ms.RichaArora 22 March, 2024 Member, Non-Executive Independent Director

4 MrNitin Gupta' 8 September, 2023 Member, Non-Executive Independent Director

57 Mr. Prabhakar Dalal? 31January, 2022 Member, Non-Executive Independent Director

67 Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy? 11 June, 2021 Member, Non-Executive Independent Director

7 Mr.Amar Deshpande® 20 July, 2021 Member, Non-Executive Non- Independent Director
Notes:

'Ceased to be a Member w.e.f. 22 March, 2024. | *Ceased to be a Member w.e.f. 8 September, 2023. | *Ceased to be a Member w.e.f. 26 July, 2023.

Terms of Reference:

The terms of reference of the Review Committee are in line with the applicable laws and these broadly include:

. Review the order passed by the Identification Committee (IC) w.r.t. classification of wilful defaulters;
. Seek necessary information from the IC;
. Give the borrower, opportunity of being heard, where it deems Fit;

. Pass the final order, as to whether to classify a borrower as wilful defaulter or not, after due consideration of all the facts of
the case. The order so passed shall be treated binding on the borrower and the Chairman will report to the Board after each
Committee meeting and circulate the minutes of the Committee;

Senior Management

During the year under review, Mr. Siddharth Berry was appointed as Head Operations w.e.f. 30 June, 2023; Mr. Gaurav Khurana, Chief
Information Officer(CIO) ceased to be CIO w.e.f. 4 May, 2023 and thereafter, Mr. Varun Guliani was appointed as CIO w.e.f.1June,2023; Mr.
Ramdas Acharya, Chief Credit Officer (CCO) ceased to be CCO w.e.f. 29 April, 2023 and thereafter, Mr. Pankaj Maduskar was appointed
as CCO w.ef.1June2023 and Mr. Sachin Saxena, was appointed as Head Collections w.e.f. 21 April, 2023 and ceased to be the Head
Collections w.e.f. 19 January, 2024. The said appointments were as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company and in compliance
with the revised RBI guidelines issued for KMPs and SMPs prescribed under the Scale Based Regulations read with RBI Circular No.
RBI/2022-23/36 DOR.GOV.REC. N0.29/18.10.002/2022-23 dated 29 April, 2022.

Further, the appointments of Senior Management Personnels (SMPs) are approved by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of
NRC and any changes thereto are placed in quarterly NRC and Board Meetings respectively.

Directors and Officers Insurance (‘D&0’)

In terms of Regulation 25 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, the Company has taken a D&O Insurance Policy with the adequate
quantum and coverage.

Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior Management

The Company has adopted and made applicable Code of Conduct for the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of the
Company (“the Code"). The Senior Management Personnel of the Company have made disclosures to the Board confirming that there
are no material financial and/or commercial transactions between them and the Company that could have potential conflict of interest
with the Company. All the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code during the
financial year under review.
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GENERAL MEETING

Annual General Meeting
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The details of date, time and location of the Annual General Meetings (AGM) held in the last 3 years are as under:

AGM Dateand Time Venue/Deemed Venue Special resolutions passed
19t 2 June, 2023 Registered office of the 1. Increase in borrowing limit under section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act,
at 05:00 p.m. Company through Video 2013 upto ¥ 8,000 Crores.
Conferencing / Other Audio-
Visual Means
18t 21June, 2022 Registered office of the 1. Reappointment of Mr. Manish Jaiswal as Managing Director and Chief
at11:30 a.m. Company through Video Executive Officer of the Company.
Conferencing / Other Audio-
Visual Means
170 18 August, 2021 Registered office of the 1. Alteration of Articles of Association of the Company.
at10:00 am. Company through  Video >  shifting of Registered Office of the Company from the state of West Bengal to
Conferencing / Other Audio state of Maharashtra, under the jurisdiction of Registrar of Companies, Pune and
Visual Means consequent amendments to the Memorandum of Association of the Company.
Approval of Employee Stock Option Plan 2021.
4. Grant of employee stock options equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company to identified employees of the Company.
5. Extension of the Employee Stock Option Plan - 2021 to the employees of the
holding & subsidiary company(ies) of the Company.
6. Grant of employee stock options equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued

share capital of the Company to identified employees the holding &
subsidiary company(ies).

Extraordinary General Meeting

The details of date, time and location of the Extra ordinary General Meetings (EGM) held during the year under review are as follows:

EGM DateandTime Venue/Deemed Venue Resolutions passed
37t 22" March, Registered office of the 1. Toappoint Ms.Richa Arora (DIN: 07144694) as a Non-Executive Independent
2024 Company through  Video Director of the Company
at 01:45 p.m. Conferencing / Other Audio 5 15considerandapproveincreasein Authorised Share Capital of the Company
Visual Means and the consequent amendment in the Memorandum of Association
3. To consider and approve Issue of Compulsorily Convertible Preference
Shares (CCPS) by way of Bonus Issue
4. To consider and approve amendment in Grihum Housing Employee Stock
Option Plan 2021 of the Company
36 9" November, Registered officeoftheCompany 1. Approval for change of name of the Company from Poonawalla Housing
2023 through Video Conferencing / Finance Limited to Grihum Housing Finance Limited and consequential
at 2:00 p.m. Other Audio Visual Means alteration of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
35t 3" October, Registered office of the 1. To appoint Mr. Puneet Bhatia (DIN: 00143973) as a Non-Executive Non-
2023 Company  through  Video Independent Director of the Company
at 5:30 pm. Conferencing / Other Audio 5 14 appoint Mr. Sanjeev Mehra (DIN: 07491208) as a Non-Executive Non-
Visual Means Independent Director of the Company
3. To appoint Mr. Prem Manjooran (DIN: 10310018) as a Non-Executive
Independent Director of the Company
4. To appoint of Mr. Nitin Gupta (DIN: 02404862) as a Non-Executive
Independent Director of the Company
5. To approve amendment in the object clause of the Memorandum of
Association of the Company.
6. Revision in remuneration of Mr. Manish Jaiswal (DIN: 07859441), Managing
Director & Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
34th 26" July, 2023 Registered officeof theCompany 1. Approval for Increase in Authorised Share Capital of the Company and the
at 6:00 p.m. through Video Conferencing / consequent amendment of Memorandum of Association of the Company
Other Audio Visual Means pursuant to Section 13 of the Companies Act, 2013.
2. Amendment in the Articles of Association of the Company.
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POSTAL BALLOT c) Dividend payment date: Not Applicable
During the year, no transaction was approved by postal ballot by the d)  The Company's non-convertible debentures are listed on the
Members of the Company. BSE Limited having registered office address as PJ Towers,
.. Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001 and the Company's
Means of Communication ) ) )
Security code is 10828. The Company has duly paid the annual
a) Financial Results: The quarterly and annual results of the listing Fees to BSE Limited.
Company are duly submitted to the Stock Exchange after they
are approved by the Board. e) None of the listed securities of the Company are
suspended from trading.
b) News Releases: In terms of Regulation 52 of SEBI Listing
Regulations, the quarterly and annual results of the Company F) The Company'sequity sharesarenotlisted onstock exchanges.
are published in the prescribed format within 48 hours of Hence, the details of market price data and comparison to
the conclusion of the meeting of the Board in which they are broad-based indices is not applicable to the Company.
considered and approved, in English newspaper circulating )
in the whole or substantially the whole of India (usually 9} Registrarand Share Transfer Agent:
Business Standard).
} Non-Convertible
Equity & CCPS
c)  Website: The Company's website https://grihumhousing.com/ has Debentures (NCDs)
a separate dedicated section‘Investors'where latest information Link Intime India Niche Technologies
required under Regulation 62 and other applicable provisions of Private Limited Private Limited
the SEBI Listing Regulations is available. Other than the quarterly Address: C-101,247 Park,  Address: 7th Floor, Room No.7A &
and annual results, information about the Company, its business L.B.S Marg, Vikhroli 7B, 3A, Auckland Place,
and operations etc. are hosted on the website. (West), Mumbai-400083.  Kolkata — 700 017
) ) ) ) Link Intime India Private
d) During the Ffinancial year 2023-24, no presentations were ..
) Limited
made to analysts or investors.
Address: C-101, 247 Park,
e) BSE Listing Centre (Listing Centre): Listing Centre is a L.B.S Marg, Vikhroli (West),
web-based application designed by BSE for corporates. All Mumbai-400083.
periodical and other compliance filings are filed electronically
on the Listing Centre. h)  Dematerialisation of shares: All the securities issued by the
Company are in dematerialised mode and are not listed on
F)  News and Media releases: Official news and media releases stock exchanges.
are disseminated to stock exchanges and displayed on the
Company's website. i) No physical share transfer requests were received by the
Company during the year under review.
General Shareholder Information
. o i) Share Transfer System: The Company obtains from a Company
3a) Annual General Meeting: Annual General Meeting is held . . . . X
o . . . . Secretary in Practice, a yearly certificate of compliance with
withinthestipulatedtimeperiodunderthe CompaniesAct,2013 . .
the transfer formalities of Non-Convertible Debentures as
b) Financial year: The Company follows the financial year required under Regulation 40(9) read with Regulation 61(4)
starting from April 01 to March 31, every year. The reporting of SEBI Listing Regulations and files a copy of the certificate
period for the FY 2023-24 was from 1 April, 2023 to with the BSE Limited.
31 March, 2024
k) Distribution of Shareholding:
sr. Category Equity Shares Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)
) Numberof % ToTotal Numberof % ToTotal Numberof %ToTotal Numberof % To Total
No. (No. of Shares) . )
Holders Holders Shares Equity Holders Holders Shares Equity
1 1-5,000 6 43% 6 0.00% - - - -
2 5,001-10,000 - - - - 2 25% 14,025 0.01%
3 10,001 - 20,000 2 14% 28,050 0.01% 2 25% 20,925 0.01%
4 20,001 - 30,000 2 14% 41,850 0.01% 1 13% 27,675 0.02%
5 30,001 - 40,000 - - - - - - - -
6 40,001-50,000 - - - - 13% 42,295 0.03%
7 50,001 -1,00,000 2 14% 1,39,940 0.04% - - -
8 1,00,001 & above 2 14% 32,46,16,678 99.94% 2 25% 16,23,08,339 99.94%
Total 14 100% 32,48,26,524 100.00% 8 100% 16,24,13,259 100.00%
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m)

n)

0)

Outstanding GDRs / ADRs or Warrants or any Convertible
Instrument, conversion dates and likely impact on equity: NIL

Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging
activities: Company does not have exposure to foreign
exchange risk and Commodity price risk. Hence no hedging
activities were performed during the financial year 2023-24

Address for correspondence: Registered Office - 602, 6th
Floor, Zero One IT Park, Survey No. 79/1, Ghorpadi, Mundhwa
Road, Pune 411036, Maharashtra

The Credit Rating obtained by the Company forms part of the
Board's Report.

Other Disclosures

a)

b)

)

d)

e)

During the year, the Company had no materially significant
related party transactions which were considered to have
potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.

The Company has complied with the requirements of the
stock exchanges, SEBI, RBI and other statutory authorities
or regulators on all matters related to capital markets during
the last three years and accordingly no penalties or strictures
were imposed on the Company by the stock exchanges, SEBI,
RBI or any other statutory or regulatory authority.

The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted a Vigil
Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy For the Directors and
employees. The employees are encouraged to report to the
Whistle-blower Administrator, if they observe any fraudulent
financial or other information or conduct that results in the
instances of unethical behavior, actual or suspected violation
of the Company's Code of Conduct and the Ethics Policy. This
policy and practices provide adequate safeguards against
victimisation of employees who report to the Whistle-blower
Administrator. No Personnel have been denied access for
making disclosure or report under the Policy to the Vigilance
Officer and/or Audit Committee.

Adoption/non-adoption of nonmandatory requirements
of Regulation 27 read with part E of Schedule Il of the SEBI
Listing Regulations

° The Company does not send Half-yearly Ffinancial
performance to each of the shareholders, as it is
displayed on Company's website.

° The Audit qualifications, if any, are displayed in the
financial reports of the Company. There are no audit
qualifications for the year under review.

° The internal auditor of the Company presents his report and
observations to the Audit Committee on a regular basis.

The Company does not have any subsidiary and hence, the
policy For determining material subsidiaries is not applicable
to the Company.

F)

9)

h)

k)

m)

o)

p)

q)
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Policy on dealing with related party transaction has been
disclosed on the Company's website at https://grihumhousing.
com/pdf/investor-governance/Grihum-Related-Party-
Transaction-Policy.pdf

Policy on dealing with Policy on Diversity of Board has been
disclosed on the Company's website at https://grihumhousing.
com/pdFf/investor-governance/Grihum-Policy-on-
Diversity-of-Board.pdf

The Company has
Act,
secretarial standards.

complied with
2023

the provisions of

the Companies including accounting and

There has been no instance of breach of covenant of loan
availed or debt securities issued by the Company.

Certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice that none
of the directors on the board of the company have been
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing
as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate
AFffairs or any such statutory authority is forming the part of
this Corporate Governance Report.

During the year under review, all the recommendations of the
Committees of the Board were considered and approved by
the Board of Directors of the Company.

The Company has in place a Policy on Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at the Workplace (POSH)
in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013. During the year under review, one complaint was
received and disposed off under the said Act and there are no
complaints pending during the year under review.

During the year under review , the Company has not granted
any Loans and advances in the nature of loans to Firms/
companies in which directors are interested.

During the financial year 2023-24, all the recommendations of
the Committees of the Board were considered and approved
by the Board of Directors of the Company.

TheCompanyisincompliancewiththerequirementsstipulated
under Regulation 17 to 27 of SEBI Listing Regulations.

The Company also complies with the provisions of the
SecretarialStandardsonBoard Meetingsand General Meetings
as issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

There were no proceedings for Corporate Insolvency

Resolution Process initiated under

Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

Insolvency and

There was no failure to implement any Corporate Action.


https://grihumhousing.com/pdf/investor-governance/Grihum-Related-Party-Transaction-Policy.pdf
https://grihumhousing.com/pdf/investor-governance/Grihum-Related-Party-Transaction-Policy.pdf
https://grihumhousing.com/pdf/investor-governance/Grihum-Related-Party-Transaction-Policy.pdf
https://grihumhousing.com/pdf/investor-governance/Grihum-Policy-on-Diversity-of-Board.pdf
https://grihumhousing.com/pdf/investor-governance/Grihum-Policy-on-Diversity-of-Board.pdf
https://grihumhousing.com/pdf/investor-governance/Grihum-Policy-on-Diversity-of-Board.pdf
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Affirming Compliance with Code of Conduct

As provided under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, | hereby
declare that all the Members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed Compliance with the Code of
Conduct for Board and Senior Management Personnel of the Company during the financial year ended 31 March, 2024.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Manish Jaiswal
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 07859441

Date: 3 May, 2024
Place: Pune
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

pursuant to Regulation 53 and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

To,

The Members of

Grihum Housing Finance Limited

602, 6™ Floor Zero One IT Park,

Survey No79/1, Ghorpadi, Mundhwa Road,
Pune Maharashtra,

India-411036.

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Grihum Housing Finance
Limited (Formerly, Poonawalla Housing Finance Limited) bearing CIN U65922PN2004PLC208751 and having registered office at 602, 6
Floor, Zero One IT Park, Survey No79/1, Ghorpadi, Mundhwa Road, Pune, Maharashtra, India-411036 (hereinafter referred to as‘the Company’),
produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 53 read with Schedule V
Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and
Notice No.20220107-16 dated 7 January, 2022 issued by BSE Limited.

In our opinion and to the best of ourinformation and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at
the portal of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs at www.mca.gov.in as considered necessary and explanations Furnished to us by the Company
& its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ended on
31 March, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. . Date of appointment
Name of Directors DIN A
in Company

1 Puneet Bhatia 00143973 08/09/2023
2 Nitin Gupta 02404862 08/09/2023
3 Sanjeev Mehra 07491208 08/09/2023
4 Prem Manjooran 10310018 08/09/2023
5 Manish Jaiswal 07859441 26/06/2017
6  RichaArora 07144694 13/03/2024
7  Adar Poonawalla* 00044815 08/07/2021
8  Amar Deshpande* 07425556 20/07/2021
9  Prabhakar Dalal* 00544948 18/08/2021
10 Bhama Krishnamurthy™ 02196839 18/08/2021

*Resigned w.e.f. 26/07/2023

** Resigned w.e.f. 08/09/2023

Ensuring the eligibility For the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For M Siroya and Company
Company Secretaries

Mukesh Siroya

Proprietor

FCS No. 5682

CP No.: 4157

Date: 3 May, 2024 UDIN: FO0O5682F000298920
Place: Mumbai PR No.:1075/2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements

The Members of Grihum Housing Finance Limited
(Formerly known as Poonawalla Housing Finance Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Grihum
Housing Finance Limited (Formerly known as Poonawalla Housing
Finance Limited) (the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes
to the financial statements including a summary of the material
accounting policies and other explanatory information. (Herein
after referred to as ‘financial statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS')
specified under section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its profit including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance
with the Standards on Auditing ('SA's) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by The
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI') together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that in our professional
judgment were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements for the Financial year ended March 31, 2024. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter

Audit Procedures

Impairment losses on loans assets:
Refer Note No. 2 (h) (v) of material accounting policies

and Note No. 40 A for credit risk disclosures.

As at March 31, 2024, the Company has reported gross
loan assets of ¥ 7,155.74 Crore against which expected
credit loss of ¥ 66.31 Crore has been recorded.

Theaccounting policies in respect of impairment losses
on loans is given vide Note No. 2 (h) (v) to the financial o
statements.

Determination of fair and adequate impairment losses
is @ complex process and is based on application of
significant management judgement and the use of
different modelling techniques and assumptions which
could have a material impact on reported profits.

Significant audit procedures included the following:

Our audit approach was a combination of test of internal controls and
substantive procedures.

Obtained an understanding of the ECL modelling techniques
adopted by the Company including the key inputs and assumptions.
Ensured completeness and the appropriateness of data on which the
calculation is based.

The Probability of Default and the Loss given Default ratios are
computed based on the recoveries of the loan accounts using its own
historical data. Further, changes in macro-economic environment /
CPI Factors are also applied to PDs. We reviewed and ensured that
there is no management intervention and bias in computing these
fundamental parameters for provisioning.

Carried out audit procedures for ensuring the correctness of DPD
days and categorisation of Stages of ECL. Tested the existence and
effectiveness of controls over completeness and accuracy of the key
inputs and reviewed the completeness of ECL by comparing the loan
dumps with the books of account and the financial statements and
also with the ECL schedules in order to ensure that the entire loan
portfolio is subjected to application of ECL provision. We also carried
out analytical procedures to satisfy that no unusual trends exist.
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Key audit matter

Audit Procedures

Considering the significance of the above matter
to the overall financial statements, and extent of
management'’s estimates and judgements involved, we
have identified this as a key audit matter for the audit
of current year.

Tested the assumptions underlying the impairment identification
and quantification including the forecast of future cash flows with
reference to the agreed repayment schedules of the borrowers which
included the impact of restructuring in the applicable cases.

We have examined, on a test basis, data inputs to the discounted cash
flow models, including the latest collateral valuations supporting the
estimation of future cash flows and present value. We also carried out
review of collection efficiency of the company.

Compared the provision for ECL vis-a-vis provision as per the Reserve
Bank of India (RBI) IRAC norms and confirmed that there is no shortfall
of ECL when compared to the IRAC norms to ensure compliance with
the mandated provisions prescribed by the RBI.

Evaluated the appropriateness of the Company's impairment
methodologies as required under Ind AS 109, “Financial Instruments”
and reasonableness of assumptions used, including post model
adjustments ensuring that the adjustment to ECL Model was in

conformity with the approved policy of the Company.

Information Technology system for the Ffinancial

reporting process: N

The Company is highly dependent on its Information
Technology (“IT") systems for carrying on its operations
which require large volume of transactions to be
processed in numerous locations.

The Company's accounting and Ffinancial reporting
processes are dependent on automated controls
enabled by IT systems which impacts key financial
accounting and reporting including loans, interest
income and impairment.

The controls implemented by the Company in its
IT environment determine the integrity, accuracy,
completeness and validity of data that is processed by the
applications and is ultimately used for financial reporting.

Accordingly, we have determined key IT systems and
controls as a key audit matter for current year audit.

Significant audit procedures included the following:

We involved ourinternal IT expert to carry out the testing of IT general
controls and other controls relevant for financial reporting.

Obtained an understanding of the Company's IT related control
environment, IT applications and databases relevant for the purpose
of our audit of the financial statements.

Also, obtained an understanding of the changes that were made to the
IT applications during the audit period.

Tested the design and operating effectiveness of the Company's IT
controls over the IT applications and databases. Tested IT general
controls particularly, logical access, segregation of duties, change
management and other aspects of IT operational controls.

Tested that request for access to systems were appropriately
reviewed and authorised; tested controls around Company's periodic
review of access rights; inspected requests of changes to systems for
appropriate approval and authorisation.

Information other than the Financial Statements and
Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report including Annexures to the Annual
Report and Management Discussion and Analysis report but does
not include the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us
after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above
when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the Ffinancial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report Including Annexures to the
Annual Report and Management Discussion and Analysis report,
if we conclude that there is a3 material misstatement therein, we
are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance as required under SA720'The Auditor's responsibilities
Relating to Other Information:

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged
with Governance for the Financial Statements

Theaccompanying financial statements have been approved by the
Company's Board of Directors. The Company's Board of Directors is
responsible For the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS') specified under section 133 of the

Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,



2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible
for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the
Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities For the Audit of the
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing
(SAs) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs),
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
Forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control;

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
auditin order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to Financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls;

Corporate Overview
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. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management;

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern;

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the Ffinancial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the Financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves

fair presentation;

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
andsignificant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
ininternal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
thatwe have complied withrelevantethical requirementsregarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the for the
financial year ended March 31,2024 and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
Law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020
(the Order’) issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure
A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and
4 of the Order.

2. Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by
section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the
extent applicable, that:

a.  We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of

the accompanying financial statements;
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In our opinion, proper books of account as required by
Law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss
including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows
dealt with by this report are in agreement with the
books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply
with Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received
from the directors and taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in
terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to these financial statements
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in“Annexure B"to this report.

As required by section 197 (16) of the Act, based on
our examination of the books of the accounts and
other records of the company and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the company has paid / provided for the
managerial remuneration after obtaining approval of
the members in the extra-ordinary general meeting
held on 3rd October 2023 for remuneration in excess of
limits provisions laid down under section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies(Auditand Auditors)Rules,2014 (asamended),
in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigation on its financial position in
its Financial statements vide note No. 46 to the
financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at
March 31,2024;

iii. There were no amounts which were required
to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year
ended March 31,2024,

iv. ~ Themanagement has represented that to the best
of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
material either individually or in aggregate) have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of Funds) by the company to or in
any other person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign
entities (intermediaries) with the understanding,

Vi.

Vii.

viii.
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whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The management has represented that to the best of
its knowledge or belief, no funds (which are material
either individually or in aggregate) have been
received by the company from any other person(s)
or entity(ies) including foreign entities (Funding
parties) with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether
directly orindirectly lend orinvest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Based on the audit procedures considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances
carried out by us, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the
representation under sub-clause (i) & (ii) of Rule
11 (e) as provided under clause (iv) & (v) above
contain any material misstatements.

The company has not declared or paid any dividend
during the year and as such the compliance of section
123 of the Act has not been commented upon.

Based on our examination which included test
checks, the company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account for
the Financial year ended March 31,2024 which has
a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) Facility
and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further, during the course of our audit
we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting
under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the
statutory requirements for record retention is not
applicable for the financial year ended March 31,2024.

For, G.D. Apte & Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 100 515W
UDIN: 24017532BKESDA6772

C. M. Dixit
Partner
Membership No.: 017532

Pune
Date: May 3,2024
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An n eXU I"e A referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of
our report of even date to the members of the Grihum Housing Finance Limited (Formerly, Poonawalla Housing Finance Limited) for
the year ended March 31, 2024

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and
given by the Company and on the basis of our examination of
the books of accounts and records of the company in the normal
course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief,
we report that:

i. (a)

(b)

(©

(@

(e)

(b)

iii. ()

(b)

(A) The company has maintained proper records
showingFfullparticularsincludingquantitativedetails
and situation of Property, plant and equipment.

(B) The company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars of Intangible assets.

Property,plantandequipmentincludingthelnformation
Technology assets have been physically verified by
the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were observed in such verification.

The company in the process of updating its changed
name “Grihum Housing Finance Limited” on the title
deed in respect of the immovable property.

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets during the year.

According to the information and explanations given
to us and based on the examination of the records of
the company, no proceedings have been initiated or are
pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

The Company is a housing finance company primarily
engaged in the business of lending towards housing
loans and does not hold any inventories. Accordingly,
reporting under Paragraph 3(ii)(a) of the said Order is
not applicable.

During the year, the company has availed working
capital limits from banks in excess of Rs. 5 Crores on
the basis of security of current assets. On the basis of
audit procedures carried out by us we report that the
quarterly statements filed by the company with banks
were in agreement with the books of account of the
company of the respective periods.

The Company is a housing finance company primarily
engaged inthe business of lending.Accordingly reporting
under Paragraph 3(iii) (3) of the Order is not applicable.

During the year the Company has not provided
any advances in the nature of loans, guarantee or
security to any other entity. The company has not
made any investments in companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or any other parties. Further, the
investments made and the terms and conditions of
the grant of loans during the year, are not prima facie
prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

Vi,

(c) According to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of our examination of books of
account and other records of the company, we report
that the schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated in respect of
loans granted by the Company. We further report that
the repayments or receipts in respect of loans are
regular except 3,384 number of loan accounts where
the overdues as at March 31, 2024 were aggregating to
Rs.26.49 Crore.

(d) According to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of our examination of books
of account and other records of the company, we
report that the loans overdue for more than 90 days
aggregated to Rs.19.10 Crore as at March 31, 2024 in
respect of 790 number of loan accounts. In our opinion,
reasonable steps have been taken by the Company for
recovery of principal and interest.

(e) The Company is a housing finance company primarily
engaged in the business of lending towards housing
loans. Accordingly reporting under Paragraph 3(iii) (e) of
the Order is not applicable.

(F)  According to the information and explanations given
to us and based on the audit procedures performed by
us, the company has not granted any loans or advances
in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or
without specifying any terms or period of repayment
during the year.

The Company has not granted any loans, made investments
or provided guarantees and securities which attract
the provisions of section 185 and section 186 of the Act.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The Company is registered with National Housing Bank
(NHB) to carry on the business of housing finance without
accepting public deposits as such provisions of section 73
are not applicable to the company. The company has not
accepted any public deposits and amounts deemed to be
deposits as per the provisions of Companies Act and rules
made thereunder. Further the Company has not accepted
any deposits before the commencement of the Act. As such
provisions of Section 74,75 & 76 of the Act are not applicable
to the Company. No order has been passed by Company Law
Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of
India or any court or any other tribunal.

The Central Government has not specified maintenance
of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of
the companies Act, 2013 in respect of Company's services.
Accordingly, the provisions of Paragraph 3(vi) of the Order

are not applicable to the company.
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vii.  (d)

(b)

The company is generally regular in depositing the
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
income tax, employees state insurance, sales tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax, goods and services Tax, Cess and other
material statutory dues as applicable with appropriate
authorities except for few delays in respect of state
profession taxes and labour welfare fund. We further
report that there were no undisputed statutory dues
as at the last day of the financial year which were
outstanding for a period of more than six months
except as stated above.

According to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of examination of books of
account and records of the company, we report that
there are no dues in respect of provident fund, income
tax, employees state insurance, sales tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods
and services Tax, cess and other material statutory
dues which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute except as stated under:

Name Amount  Forum where
of the Nature of (Rs.In dispute is
Statute dues Crore) Pending
Income Income Tax 193 Commissioner
Tax Act, Demands of Income Tax,
1961 Appeals
Goodsand Central Goods 0.24 Appellate
Service and Service Authority
Act, 2017 Tax Demand

(Chhattisgarh)

viii. There are no transactions, which were not recorded in the

books of account but have been surrendered or disclosed

as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

ix. ()

(b)

(©

The company has not defaulted in repayment loans or
other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon
to any lender during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to
us and on the basis of examination of books of account
and other records of the company and representations
received from the management of the company, we
report that the company has not been declared to be
2 wilful defaulter by any bank, financial institution
or other lender.

According to the information and explanations given to
us and on the basis of overall examination of books of
account and other records of the company, we report
thatthetermloansavailed by the Company were applied
for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.
However, funds which were not required for immediate
utilisation were invested on a short-term basis.

Xi.

xii.

xiii.

(d)

(e)

(9}

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)
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According to the information and explanations given to
us and on the basis of overall examination of books of
account and other records of the company, funds raised
on short term basis have prima Facie not been utilised
during the year for long term purposes.

The company does not have any subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures and as such reporting on
the Paragraph 3 (ix) (e) whether the company has taken
any funds from any entity or person on account of or
to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or

joint ventures is not applicable.

The company does not have any subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures and as such reporting on
the Paragraph 3 (ix) (F) whether the company has raised
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies

is not applicable.

During the year, the Company has not raised any money
by way of initial public offer or fFurther public offer
(including debt instruments). As such, reporting under
Paragraph 3(x)(a) is not be applicable.

During the vyear, the Company has made private
placement of shares and the requirement of section 42
and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been
complied with and on the basis of overall examination
of books of account and other records of the company,
the Funds raised have been used for the purposes for
which the same were raised.

According to the information and explanations given to
us and based on our examination of books and records,
no material frauds by the company or on the company
have been noticed or reported during the year.

No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been Filed during the year in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

According to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of examination of records of the
company, there were no complaints of whistle-blower
received during the year by the Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company within the meaning of

Section 406 of the Act. As such, reporting under clause 3 (xii)

(3) to (c) is not applicable.

Based on the audit procedures performed, we report that

the transactions with the related parties are in compliance
with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and
the details as required by the applicable Indian Accounting
Standards have been disclosed in the Note No. 38 to the
Financial Statements.



XiV.

XV.

XVi.

XVil.

xviii.

XiX.

() Inouropinion,the company hasaninternal audit system

commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) The internal audit reports issued to the company
during the year have been considered by us during the

course of our audit.

Based upon the audit procedures performed by us and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we
report that the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions of the nature as described in Section 192 of the
Act. As such, reporting under clause 3 (xv) is not applicable.

(@) The Company is not required to be registered under

section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(b) Thecompany is a housing finance company and it holds
a Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve
Bank of India and has accordingly conducted housing

finance activities during the year.

() The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC)
as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve

Bank of India.

(d) According to the information and explanations given
to us and based on the representation received from
the management, we report that there is no core

investment company within the group.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the
current financial year FY 2023-2024 and during immediately
preceding financial year, FY 2022-2023.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under Paragraph
3(xviii) of the order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us
and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected
dates of realization of Ffinancial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the
Board of Directors and management and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
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XX.

XXI.

believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We however, state that this is not an assurance as
to the future viability of the company. We further state that
our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as
and when they fall due.

(8) Asdisclosed in note No. 47 to the financial statements,
the Company does not have unspent amounts which
are required to be transferred to a Fund specified in
Schedule VIl to the Companies Act within a period of six
months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance
with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135

of the said Act.

(b) The Company does not have any amount remaining
unspent under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the
Companies Act, pursuant to any ongoing project,
which is required to be transferred to special account
in compliance with the proviso to sub-section (6) of

section 135 of the said Act;

The reporting under Paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order is
applicable in respect of audit of consolidated Ffinancial
statements. As such not applicable for the reporting in
standalone financial statements.

For, G.D. Apte & Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 100 515W
UDIN: 24017532BKESDA6772

C. M. Dixit
Partner
Membership No.: 017532

Pune
Date: May 3,2024
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An neXU I"e B referred to in Paragraph 2 (F) of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of
Grihum the Housing Finance Limited (Formerly, Poonawalla Housing Finance Limited) for the year ended March 31, 2024

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies

Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

1. We have audited the internal Financial controls with
reference to financial statements of Grihum Housing Finance
Limited (Formerly, Poonawalla Housing Finance Limited) (the
Company') as of 31st March 2024 in conjunction with our
audit of the fFinancial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Responsibilities of Management for Internal Financial
Controls

2. The Company's Management is responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal Financial controls based on the
internal controls over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the Guidance Note') issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI'). These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company's
business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's
internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on
Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Act to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, issued by the ICAI. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to the financial statements
were established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

4, Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal Ffinancial

controls with reference to the financial statements and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to the financial statements included
obtaininganunderstandingof suchinternal financial controls
with reference to the financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to the financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference
to the Financial statements

6.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to
the financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls
with reference to the financial statements include those
policies and procedures that:

) pertaintothe maintenanceof recordsthat,inreasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company;

. provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and

. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.



Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls
with reference to the financial statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls with reference to the financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion orimproper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to Future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all
material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
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reference to the financial statements and such internal
financial controls with reference to the financial statements
were operating effectively as at 31st March 2024, based on
internal financial controls over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note
issued by the ICAL.

For, G.D. Apte & Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 100 515W
UDIN: 24017532BKESDA6772

C. M. Dixit
Partner
Membership No.: 017532

Pune
Date: May 3,2024
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Independent Auditor's Additional Report For the year ended 31° March 2024 pursuant to the requirements of Non-Banking Financial
Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 issued by the Reserve Bank of India

To

The Board of Directors,

Grihum Housing Finance Limited

(Formerly Poonawalla Housing Finance Limited)
602, Zero One IT Park, Survey No. 79/1,
Ghorpadi, Mundhwa Road, Pune 411036

Management's Responsibility For

This report is issued in accordance with the terms of our
engagement with Grihum Housing Finance Limited (Formerly
Poonawalla Housing Finance Limited), (the 'Company’) and
pursuant to the paragraph 70 and 71 of Non-Banking Financial
Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2021 (‘Master Directions’) issued by the Reserve
Bank of India (‘the RBI') and amended from time to time.

We have audited the accompanying Ffinancial statements
of the Company which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Cash Flow
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of material accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the
“Financial Statements") annexed thereto and have issued an
unmodified opinion on these financial statements vide our
report dated May 3,2024.

the Financial

statements

3.

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (the Act') with respect to the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS') specified under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The management of the Company is also responsible for
compliance with the applicable provisions of Reserve Bank of

India Act, 1934 (the RBI Act)), National Housing Bank Act, 1987
(‘the NHB Act), the Master Directions, and other circulars and
directions issued by the RBI thereunder and for providing all
the required information to the RBI and the National Housing
Bank (the NHB)).

Auditor’s Responsibility

5.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Master Directions, it is
our responsibility to provide reasonable assurance on the
matters specified in paragraph 70 of the Master Directions,
to the extent applicable to the Company, on the basis of our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended March 31, 2024 and from the examination of books of
accounts and other records maintained by the Company for
the year then ended.

We conducted our examination of the audited books of
accounts other records of the Company in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special
Purposes (Revised 2016) (the Guidance Note') issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the ICAI). The
Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical
requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements
of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for
Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial
Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services
Engagements issued by the ICAI.

Opinion

8.

Based on our audit of the financial statements for the year
ended March 31,2024 and examination on test check basis as
mentioned above, evidences obtained and the information
and explanations, along with the representations provided
by the management, we report that:

a. The Company is holding Certificate of Registration
(no. DOR-00155) issued by Department of Regulation,
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) dated 02 August 2021
(issued in lieu of earlier certificate dated 12 July 2017
issued by NHB) to carry on business of a housing
finance institution without accepting public deposits,
as required under Section 29A of the NHB Act,1987. The
Company meets the 'Principal Business Criteria' as laid
down under Paragraph 4.1.17 of the Master Directions.
As disclosed in Note No. 60 of the Financial Statements,
the‘percentage of total assets towards housing finance’



and'percentage of total assets towards housing finance
for individuals’ as at 31st March 2024 are 62.24% and
62.23% respectively as against the minimum regulatory
requirement of 60% and 50% respectively. As such
the conditions specified in paragraph 4.1.17 of the
Master Directions, dated February 17,2021, in respect of
Principal Business Criteria are met.

The Company as on 31st March 2024 has met the
requirements in respect of Net Owned Fund (NOF') as
prescribed under Section 29A of the National Housing
Bank Act, 1987,

The Company has complied with the provisions of
Section 29C of the NHB Act relating to 'Reserve Fund’;

The total borrowings of the Company are within
the limits prescribed under paragraph 27.2 of the
Master Directions;

The Company has complied with the prudential norms
relating to income recognition, accounting standards,
asset classification, loan to value ratio, provisioning
requirements, disclosurein balance sheet,investmentin
real estate, exposure to capital market and engagement
of brokers, and concentration of credit/investments as
specified in the Master Directions;

The capital adequacy ratio as disclosed in the half yearly
statutory returns for the period ended 30 September
2023, submitted to the NHB, as per directions issued by
the NHB has been correctly determined and such ratio
isin compliance with the prescribed minimum capital to
risk weighted asset ratio (CRAR);

The Company has furnished the half-yearly statutory
return to the NHB, as specified in the directions issued
by NHB, within the stipulated period;

The Company has neither accepted any public deposits
nor it is holding any public deposits. Accordingly,
submission of quarterly statutory returns on Statutory
Liquid Assets to the NHB in format as per in Schedule
Ill, as specified in the directions issued by NHB, is
not applicable;

Based on our review on sample basis of the intimations
to NHB in respect of opening of new branches / closure
of existing branches, the Company has complied
with the requirements of the Master Directions in
respect of new branches/offices opened and closed
during the year.
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j- During the year ended 31st March 2024, the Company
has not granted any loan against security of shares or
security of single product - gold jewellery in terms of
paragraph3.1.3and3.1.4of the Master Directions.Further,
during the year ended March 31,2024 the Company has
not granted any loan against its own shares in terms of
paragraph 18 of the Master Directions.

k. The Board of Directors of the Company has passed a
resolution by circulation dated April 5, 2023 for non-
acceptance of any public deposits for the financial year
01 April 2023 to 31 March 2024; and

I The Company has not accepted any public deposits
during the year ended 31 March 2024.

Restriction on distribution or use

9.

10.

Our work was performed solely to assist you for ensuring
compliance of the Company with the Master Directions. Our
obligations in respect of this report are entirely separate from,
and our responsibility and liability is in no way changed by any
other role we may have as statutory auditors of the Company
or otherwise. Nothing in this report, nor anything said or done
in the course of or in connection with the services that are
subject of this report, will extend any duty of care we may have
in our capacity as statutory auditors of the Company.

This report is addressed to and provided to the Board of
Directors of the Company pursuant to our obligations under
the Master Directions requiring us to submit a report on the
additional matters as stated in the aforesaid directions and
should not be used, referred to or distributed for any other
purpose or to any other party without our prior written
consent. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability
or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other
person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come without our prior consent in writing.

For, G.D. Apte & Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 100 515W
UDIN: 24017532BKESDB9281

C. M. Dixit
Partner
Membership No.: 017532

Pune
Date: May 3,2024
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(All amounts ¥ in crores unless otherwise stated)

R Note As at As at
Particulars
No. 31March 2024 31March 2023
ASSETS
Financial Assets
(i) Cashand cash equivalents 3 640.48 154.81
(i) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 4 94.93 40.38
(iii) Loans 5 7,089.43 5,438.57
(iv) Investments 6 207.71 97.35
(v) Other financial assets 7 19174 143.96
8,224.29 5,875.07
Non-financial Assets
(i) Current tax assets (net) 444 0.99
(i) Property, plant and equipment 9 2091 15.01
(iii) Intangible assets under development 10 279 1.28
(iv) Otherintangible assets n 464 3.05
(v) Right of use assets 12 56.32 48.86
(vi) Other non-financial assets 13 33.03 26.51
122.13 95.70
Total Assets 8,346.42 5,970.77
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
(i) Payables
() Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 14 0.04 -
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 14 2.59 6.26
enterprises
(1) Other payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 14 - -
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 14.99 15.02
enterprises
(i) Debt securities 15 933.77 28349
(iii) Borrowings (other than debt securities) 16 4,731.06 4,227.45
(iv) Subordinated liabilities 17 99.82 99.71
(v) Lease liabilities 12 6178 51.31
(vi) Other Financial liabilities 18 66.05 43.24
5,910.10 4,726.48
Non-financial Liabilities
(i) Provisions 19 379 261
(i) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 20 25.38 15.55
(iii) Other non-financial liabilities 21 17.27 17.55
46.44 35.71
EQUITY
(i) Equity share capital 22A 324.83 252.29
(i) Instruments entirely equity in nature 22B 162.41 -
(iii) Other equity 23 190264 956.29
2,389.88 1,208.58
Total Liabilities and Equity 8,346.42 5,970.77

Notes 1to 67 form an integral part of these financial statements

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no:100515W

C. M. Dixit
Partner
Membership No.: 017532

Place: Pune
Date: 03 May 2024

Manish Jaiswal

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Grihum Housing Finance Limited
(Formerly Poonawalla Housing Finance Limited)

Sanjeev Mehra

Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer Director

(DIN: 07859441)

Place: Pune
Date: 03 May 2024

Pankaj Rathi
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Pune
Date: 03 May 2024

(DIN: 07491208)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 03 May 2024

Vaishnavi Suratwala
Company Secretary

Place: Pune
Date: 03 May 2024



‘ Corporate Overview

Statutory Reports NEREREEIRSIEI=T ]

Statement of Profit and Loss

for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts T in crores unless otherwise stated)

particulars Note Year ended Year ended
No. 31March 2024 31March 2023
Revenue from operations
(i) Interestincome 24 93142 635.30
(i) Feesand commission income 25 24.52 20.19
(iii) Net gain on fair value changes 26 7.84 -
(iv) Net gain on de-recognition of financial instruments 27 60.50 4813
Total revenue from operations 1,024.28 703.62
Other income 28 2137 12.43
Total income 1,045.65 716.05
Expenses
(i) Finance costs 29 443,86 279.77
(ii) Netloss on fair value changes 30 1.00 0.53
(iii) Impairment on financial instruments 31 3795 36.39
(iv) Employee benefits expenses 32 259.25 168.69
(v) Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 33 19.23 8.97
(vi) Other expenses 34 10111 67.51
Total expenses 862.40 561.86
Profit before tax 183.25 154.19
Tax expense: 35
() Current tax 3319 3140
(i) Deferred tax (credit)/charge 10.02 7.63
(iii) Tax expense of earlier years 0.08 (0.06)
43.29 38.97
Profit For the year 139.96 115.22
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or (loss)
(i) Remeasurement benefits of the defined benefit plans (0.78) 0.19
(ii) Income tax relating to these items 0.19 (0.05)
(0.59) 014
Other comprehensive income (0.59) 0.14
Total comprehensive income for the year 139.37 115.36
Earnings per equity share (Face value : 10 per share) 36
Basic () 5.03 457
Diluted }) 315 277

Notes 1to 67 form an integral part of these financial statements

This is the Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no:100515W

C. M. Dixit
Partner
Membership No.: 017532

Place: Pune
Date: 03 May 2024

Manish Jaiswal

Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer

(DIN: 07859441)

Place: Pune
Date: 03 May 2024

Pankaj Rathi
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Pune
Date: 03 May 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Grihum Housing Finance Limited
(Formerly Poonawalla Housing Finance Limited)

Sanjeev Mehra
Director
(DIN: 07491208)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 03 May 2024

Vaishnavi Suratwala
Company Secretary

Place: Pune
Date: 03 May 2024
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(All amounts X in crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

A. Cash Flow from operating activities

Profit before tax 183.25 154.19
Adjustments For:
Interest Income (920.31) (634.24)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 19.23 8.97
Net loss/(gain) on Financial instruments at Fair value through profit or loss 0.83 3.32
Allowance for impairment loss 37.95 36.39
Liability no longer required written back (0.52) (0.76)
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.04 0.05
Net (gain)/ loss on derecognition of financial instruments (60.50) (48.13)
Finance cost 443.86 279.77
Interest Income on investments (11.10) (1.06)
Interest on income tax refund - (0.40)
Gain on redemption of mutual fund (7.67) (2.79)
Expense on employee stock option scheme 3.54 10.86
(311.40) (193.83)
Finance cost paid (414.64) (279.40)
Interest Income Received on loans 916.26 634.24
Operating profit before working capital changes 190.22 161.01
Changes in working capital:
(Increase) in loans (1,645.78) (1,249.92)
(Increase) in other fFinancial assets (48.78) (60.49)
(Increase)/Decrease in other non financial assets (31.86) 0.58
Decrease in held for sale assets - 1.08
(Increase)/Decrease in other bank balances (54.55) 157
(Decrease)/Increase in derivative Financial instrument - 0.24
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and other payables (4.18) 12.55
Increase/(Decrease) in other Financial liabilities 81.20 (8.25)
(Decrease) in other non fFinancial liabilities (0.28) (1.30)
Increase in provisions 118 1.00
Cash (used in) operating activities (1,512.83) (1,141.93)
Income tax paid (net of refunds) (36.72) (21.58)
Net cash (used in) operating activities (A) (1,549.55) (1,163.51)
B. Cash Flow Ffrom investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment including capital advances (12.04) (10.09)
Sale of property, plant and equipment 0.01 0.01
Purchase in intangible assets and intangible assets under development (5.60) (3.30)
Purchase of Investments measured at amortised cost (236.38) (121.30)
Sale of investments measured at amortised cost 126.46 25.00
Purchase of Investments measured at FVTPL (2,794.86) (1,289.94)
Sale of investments measured at FVTPL 2,802.53 1,292.76
Interest received on investments 10.33 1.06
Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) (109.55) (105.80)
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Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts X in crores unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31March 2024 31 March 2023
C. Cash Flow Ffrom fFinancing activities*

Proceeds from issue of equity shares including securities premium (net of issue expenses) 1,037.40 0.49
Proceeds from debt securities 900.00 -
Repayment of debt securities (280.00) (10.00)
Proceeds from borrowings other than debt securities 2,736.82 3,369.96
Repayment of borrowings other than debt securities (2,235.84) (1,949.32)
Payment of lease liability (13.61) (6.54)
Net cash generated from Financing activities (C) 2,144.77 1,404.59
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 485.67 135.28
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 154.81 19.53
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 640.48 154.81

Components of cash and cash equivalents:
Cash on hand - -

Balances and deposits with banks

In Current Accounts 23915 154.81
Fixed Deposit (with original maturity of 3 months or less) 401.33 -
640.48 154.81

* Refer note 45 for reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

All figures in brackets indicate cash outflow

The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the'Indirect Method'as set out in Ind AS 7,"Statement of Cash Flows".

This is the Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date

For G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no:100515W

Manish Jaiswal

Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer

(DIN: 07859441)

Place: Pune
Date: 03 May 2024

C. M. Dixit
Partner
Membership No.: 017532

Pankaj Rathi
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Pune
Date: 03 May 2024

Place: Pune
Date: 03 May 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Grihum Housing Finance Limited
(Formerly Poonawalla Housing Finance Limited)

Sanjeev Mehra
Director
(DIN: 07491208)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 03 May 2024

Vaishnavi Suratwala
Company Secretary

Place: Pune
Date: 03 May 2024
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(All amounts T in crores unless otherwise stated)

Note 1: Company Overview:

Grihum Housing Finance Limited (Formerly Poonawalla Housing
finance limited) ("PHF", or "the Company") was incorporated on 21
April 2004 under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956, to carry
on the business of housing finance in India. The Company was
registered as a non-deposit taking housing finance company with
the National Housing Bank ("NHB") in October 2004 vide certificate
no. DOR-00155 on 08 December 2023. The Company commenced
business operations in November 2004. The company's product
basket is mainly comprised of home loans and loans against
property. The non-convertible debentures (NCDs) of the Company
are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange. Under the scale based
regulation for the NBFCs,the Company has been classified as NBFC-
ML (Middle layer) by the RBI vide press release dated 30 September
2022.. The Company is domiciled in India and its registered office
is situated at 602, 6th floor, Zero One IT Park, Sr. No. 79/1, Ghorpadi,
Mundhwa Road, Pune - 411036

Note 2: Material accounting policies and key
accounting estimates and judgements

a) Statement of compliance and Basis of preparation

The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March
2024 have been prepared by the Company in accordance
with the recognition and measurement principle of Indian
Accounting Standards (“Ind AS") prescribed under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act"), read with relevant
rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, requirements prescribed under
the Schedule Il - Division lll of the Act, the circulars and
guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (the “RBI")
and National Housing Bank (the “NHB") from time to time to
the extent applicable. The company uses the accrual basis of
accounting except in case of significant uncertainties.

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and
Statement of changes in Equity of the Company are prepared
and presented in the format prescribed in the Division IlI
of Schedule Il of the Act applicable to NBFCs, as notified
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). The Statement
of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the
requirements of Ind AS 7.

The Company generally reports financial assets and financial
liabilities on a gross basis in the Balance Sheet. They are offset
and reported net only where it has legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and the Company intends to
either settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously as permitted by Ind AS. Similarly, the
Company offsets incomes and expenses and reports the same
on a net basis where the netting off reflects the substance of
the transaction or other events as permitted by Ind AS.

b)

<)

d)

These financial statements have been approved and
adopted by the Board of Directors in their meeting held

on 03 May 2024.

Functional and Presentation currency

These Financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees
(INR), which is the Company's functional currency. Allamounts
have been denominated in crores and rounded off to the
nearest two decimal, except when otherwise indicated.

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical
cost basis, except for the following material items:

. Financial instruments at Fair value through profit and
loss (FVTPL) that is measured at fair value

. Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability - Fair value of plan
assets less present value of defined benefit obligation

Property, Plant and Equipment
Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) is an asset held for use or
for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost includes non-refundable taxes,
duties, freight, and other incidental expenses related to
the acquisition and installation of the respective assets.
PPE is recognised when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company.
Subsequent expenditure on PPE after its purchase is
capitalised if it is probable that the future economic benefits
will Flow to the enterprise.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain/loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset
is derecognised.

Depreciation:

Depreciation on each part of an item of property, plant and
equipment is provided using the Straight-Line Method as
prescribedin Schedulell to the Act. Depreciationis calculated
on 3 pro-rata basis from the put to use date upto the end of
the useful life of the assets/ date of disposal.
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e)

The estimated useful life considered by the Company

are as under:

Item Life (in Years)
No
1 Buildings 60
2 Furniture and Fixtures 10
3 Office Equipment 510
4 Computers & Accessories 34,6
5 Leasehold Improvements 10

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

When significant parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of Property,
Plant and Equipment.

De-recognition:

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property,plantand equipmentisdetermined asthedifference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Capital work-in-progress:

PPE not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance
Sheet are disclosed as “capital work-in- progress”and carried
at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses
and attributable interest.

Intangible assets
Recognition and Measurement:

Intangible assets with Finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are capitalised and carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Cost includes non-refundable taxes, duties, freight
and other incidental expenses related to the acquisition
and installation of the respective assets. Intangible
assets are recognised when it is probable that the future
economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow

to the Company.

Expenditure on software development eligible Ffor

capitalisation are carried as intangible assets under
development where such assets are not yet ready for

their intended use.

f)

)]

h)

Amortisation:

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful
lives, not exceeding six years, on a straight-line basis,
commencing from the date the asset is available to the
Company for its use.

De-recognition:

The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecognised
on disposal or when no Future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising
from the de-recognition of an intangible asset is measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the intangible asset and is recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset
is derecognised.

Assets held for sale (Repossession)

To mitigate the credit risk on financial assets, the company
seeks to use collateral, as per the powers conferred under
the SARFAESI Act, 2002. In its normal course of business, the
Company does not physically repossess properties or other
assetsinits retail portfolio, but generally engages external or
internal agents to recover funds through auction process.Any
surplus funds over the contractual receivables are returned
to the customer/obligors. Accordingly, the properties which
are repossessed and where there is a reasonable certainty to
recover the amount in the foreseeable future, are recorded
on the balance sheet as assets held for sale at (i) Fair value
less cost to sell or (ii) loan outstanding, whichever is lower.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether
there is any indication based on internal/external factors,
that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset or the cash generating
unit is estimated. If such recoverable amount of the asset
or cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to
its recoverable amount and the reduction is treated as an
impairment loss and is recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. If, at the reporting date, there is an indication that
a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the
recoverable amount is reassessed, and the asset is reflected
at the recoverable amount. Impairment losses previously
recognised are accordingly reversed in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a
financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.



Corporate Overview

Statutory Reports NEREREEIRSIEI=T ]

summary of Material Accounting Policies and
other Explanatory INFOrmation «. . yeenessimarch 204

(All amounts T in crores unless otherwise stated)

i)

Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at Ffair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and Ffinancial liabilities (other than
financial assets and Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Transaction costs and revenues of financial assets
or financial liabilities carried at fair value through the
profit or loss account are recognised immediately in
the Statement of Profit or Loss. Trade Receivables are
measured at transaction price. Trade receivables and
debt securities issued are initially recognised when
they are originated.

Classifications:
Financial assets

On initial recognition, depending on the Company's
business model and contractual cash flow
characteristics for managing the financial assets and
its contractual cash flow characteristics, a financial

asset is classified as measured at;

. amortised cost;

. fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI); or

° fFair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to
their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing
financial assets.

Business model assessment

The business model in respect of any portfolio or
sub-portfolio is not static, and therefore, may emerge
over time. Therefore, PHFL has adopted the approach
of reviewing the business model classification
based on the frequency and value of disposal of loan
assets during the year. In this regard, there may be
requirements to re-classify the portfolio and the basis
of the same has been laid down as below:

Re-classification from FVTOCI to Amortised Cost

If there has been a considerable time period elapsed
since the past sale transaction and the management

estimates that there is very limited probability of
selling down the portfolio other than stressed portfolio
then such portfolio can be re-classified from FVTOCI to
Amortised Cost category.

Re-classification from Amortised Cost to FVTOCI

If there has been multiple sale transaction of portfolios
except as allowed under Ind AS 109 i.e. for stress case
scenarios, and the management estimates that the
Company may continue to sell down the loan assets for
the purpose of meeting other business objectives then
such part of the loan assets (if specifically identified)
shall be re-classified to FVTOCI measurements from
Amortised Cost Category.

Financial instruments at Amortised Cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost only if
both of the following conditions are met:

. It is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash Flows.

° The contractual terms of the financial asset
represent contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest.

Financial assets at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income (‘FVTOCI’)

A Financial asset is measured at FVTOCI only if both of
the following conditions are met:

. It is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
Flows and selling financial assets.

° The contractual terms of the financial asset
represent contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest.

Financial assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss
(FVTPL)

Any financial instrument, which does not meet the
criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as
FVTOC], is classified as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.
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iv)

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
or amortised cost, as appropriate.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company is recognised at the proceeds received,
net of directly attributable transaction costs."

Subsequent measurement:
Amortised cost

Amortised cost is the amount at which the financial
asset or financial liability is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus
or minus the cumulative amortisation using the EIR
method of discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR and, for
financial assets, adjusted for any loss allowance.

FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend
income, are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. The transaction costs and fees are also recorded
related to these instruments in the statement of
profit and loss.

FVTOCI

Financial assets that are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial
assets and collecting contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest, are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Fair value movements are
recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI).
Interest income measured using the EIR method
and impairment losses, if any are recognised in the
statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of Financial assets and Ffinancial
liabilities:
Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily de-recognised (i.e. removed from the
Company's balance sheet) when:

e  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired, or

° The Company has transferred its rights to receive
cash Flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (3) the
Company has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company
has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of
the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognise the transferred asset
to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement.
The Company continues to recognise the assets on
finance on books which has been securitised under
pass through arrangement and does not meet the de-
recognition criteria.

On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the carrying amount of the asset (or the
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset de-
recognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration received
(including any new asset obtained less any new liability
assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in OCl is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Securitisation and Assignment

In case of transfer of loans through securitisation and
direct assignment transactions, the transferred loans
are de-recognised and gains/losses are accounted
for, only if the Company transfers substantially
all risks and rewards specified in the underlying
assigned loan contract.

In accordance with the Ind AS 109, on de-recognition
of a financial asset under assigned transactions, the
difference between the carrying amount and the
consideration received are recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.
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Impairment of Financial Assets:

The Company recognises loss allowances for Expected
Credit Loss (ECL) on all the financial assets that are not
measured at FVTPL:

ECL are probability weighted estimate of future credit
losses based on the staging of the financial asset to
reflect its credit risk. They are measured as follows:

e  Stage 1: Financial assets that are not credit
impaired - as the present value of all cash
shortfalls that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date.

° Stage 2: Financial assets with significant
increase in credit risk but not credit impaired
- as the present value of all cash shortfalls that
result from all possible default events over the
expected life of the Financial asset.

° Stage 3: Financial assets that are credit
impaired - as the difference between the
gross carrying amount and the present value of

estimated cash Flows.

The Company's policy for determining significant
increase in credit risk is set out in Note 43(A)(F).

The Company has established a policy to perform
an assessment, at the end of each reporting period,
of whether a financial instrument's credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition, by
considering the change in the risk of default occurring
over the remaining life of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are fully provided for or written off
(either partially or in full) when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering a financial asset in its
entirety or a portion thereof.

However, financial assets that are written off could
still be subject to enforcement activities under the
company's recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice wherever appropriate. Any recoveries
made are credited to impairment loss on actual
realisation from customer.

Impairment losses and releases are accounted for and
disclosed separately from modification losses or gains
that are accounted for as an adjustment of the financial
asset's gross carrying value.

Presentation of ECL allowance for financial asset:

ECL allowance for Ffinancial asset measured at
Amortised Cost or is shown as a deduction from the

gross carrying amount of the assets

Fair value of Financial instruments

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value in
accordance with the accounting policies mentioned above.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

° In the principal market For the asset or liability, or

. In the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities For which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy that categorises into three levels,
described as follows, the inputs to valuation techniques used
to measure value. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest
priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (Level | inputs) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3 inputs).

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3:inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels
in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation at the end of
each reporting period and discloses the same.”

Revenue recognition

Interest Income:

Interest income from Financial assets (assets on finance) is
recognised on accrual basis using Effective Interest Rate
(EIR") method. EIR is applied on future principal of amortised
cost of assets on finance. Interest income on stage 3 assets is
recognised on net basis.
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The EIR is the rate that discounts the estimated Future cash
Flows through the expected life of the financial instrument to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. The interest
income is recognised on EIR method on a time proportion
basis applied on the carrying amount for financial assets
including credit impaired financial assets.

The calculation of the effective interest rate include
transaction costs and fees paid or received that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs
include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of a financial asset or financial liability.

The ‘amortised cost’ of a financial asset is the amount at

Recoveries of financial assets written off

The Company recognises income on recoveries of financial
assets written off on realisation basis.

Net gain or loss on derecognition of fFinancial instruments
under amortised cost category

Net gain or loss on derecognition of financial instruments
under amortised cost category is recognised upfront in the
statement of profit and loss, being the difference between
the carrying amount (measured at the date of recognition)
and the consideration received (including any new asset
obtained less any new liability assumed).

which the financial asset is measured on initial recognition k)  Finance cost
minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative Finance costsinclude interest expense computed by applying
amortisation using the effective interest method of any the effectiveinterest rate on respective financialinstruments
difference between that initial amount and the maturity measured at Amortised cost. Financial instruments include
amount adjusted for any expected credit loss allowance. bank term loans, non- convertible debentures, commercial
papers, subordinated debts, Interest expense on lease
The ‘gross carrying amount of a financial asset’ is the liabilities is computed by applying the notional borrowing rate
amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any and has been included under finance costs. It also includes
expected credit loss allowance. discounting charges paid for securitisation transactions
Income from direct assignment (sale) transactions represents entered under‘pass-through’arrangement.
the present value of excess interest spread receivables on ) Income Taxes

derecognised assets computed by discounting net cash
flows from such assigned pools on the date of transactions.

Overdue interest and other charges are treated to accrue on
realisation, due to uncertainty of realisation and is accounted
for accordingly.

Income from collection and support services is recognised
over time as the services are rendered as per the terms
of the contract.

Other revenue from operations:

All other items of income are accounted for on accrual basis.

Dividend is recognised when the right to receive the dividend
is established.

Net gain or loss on Fair value changes

Any differences between the fair values of financial assets
classified as fair value through the profit or loss, held by
the Company on the balance sheet date is recognised as
an unrealised gain / loss. In cases there is a net gain in the
aggregate, the same is recognised in “Net gains on fair value
changes”"under Revenue from operations and if there is a net
loss the same is disclosed under “"Expenses” in the statement
of Profit and Loss. Similarly, any realised gain or loss on
sale of financial instruments measured at FVTPL and debt
instruments measured at FVTOCI is recognised in net gain /
loss on fair value changes.

Income-tax expense comprises of current tax (i.e. amount of
tax for the period determined in accordance with the income
tax law) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax
effects of temporary differences between tax base and book
base). It is recognised in statement of profit or loss except to
the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items
recognised directly in equity orin OCI.

Current tax:

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid
in respect of taxable income for the year in accordance
with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Current tax comprises the tax
payable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable in respect of previous years. It
is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of
the tax amount expected to be paid after considering the
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes.

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities For financial reporting purposes and the amounts

used for taxation purposes.



Corporate Overview

Statutory Reports NEREREEIRSIEI=T ]

summary of Material Accounting Policies and
other Explanatory INFOrmation «. . yeenessimarch 204

(All amounts T in crores unless otherwise stated)

m)

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and based on management's judgement, are reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when
the probability of Future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected
to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or

settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as income or an
expenseinthe Statement of Profitand Loss,except whenthey
relate to items that are recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income, in which case, the current and deferred tax income/
expense are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis

Provisions and contingencies related to claims,
litigation, etc.

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the
Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation. Provisions are measured at the present
value of management's best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the
present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as finance cost. Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at
each Balance Sheet date

Contingencies related to claims, litigation, etc.

Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims,
litigation, assessment, fines, penalties, etc. are recognised

n)

o)

P)

q)

when it is probable that a liability has been incurred, and the
amount can be estimated reliably. Provisions are reviewed at
each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. If it is no longer probable that the outflow
of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the
provision is reversed.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but
not probable obligation, or a present obligation that may,
but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or
a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated
reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions,
but are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of
resources is remote.

The Company does not recognise contingent assets in the
financial statements.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in currencies other than Company’s operational
currency are recorded on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.
The foreign currency borrowing being a monetary liability
is restated to INR (being the Ffunctional currency of the
Company) at the prevailing rates of exchange at the end of
every reporting period with the corresponding exchange
gain/ loss being recognised in statement of profit or loss.
Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary
items or on reporting of monetary items at each Balance
Sheet date at the closing spot rate are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.

Goods and Services Input Tax Credit

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and
services tax/ value added taxes paid, except when the tax
incurred on a purchase of assets or availing of services is not
recoverable from the taxation authority, in such case, the tax
paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the
asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts.
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r) Employee BenefFits

i

n

Short Term Employee Benefits:

Short term employee benefits are expensed as the

related service is provided. A liability is recognised

for the amount expected to be paid if the Company

has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay

this amount as a result of past service provided by

the employee and the obligation can be estimated

reliably. This includes performance linked incentives.

Short term employee obligations are measured at

undiscounted basis.

Post-employment benefit:

a.

Defined contribution plans:

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment
benefit plan under which an entity pays Fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will
have no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further amounts.

Provident Fund:

Contributions paid / payable to the recognised
provident fund, which is a defined contribution
scheme, are expensed as the related service is
provided and recognised as personnel expenses
in statement of profit or loss.

Recognition and measurement of defined
contribution plans:

Company's Provident fund and Pension fund
contributions are paid to EPFO, no actuarial
assumptions are required to measure the
obligation or the expense and there is no
possibility of any actuarial gain or loss. Moreover,
the obligations are measured on an undiscounted
basis, except where they are not expected to be
settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service.

IF the contributions payable for services received
from employees before the reporting date
exceeds the contributions already paid, the deficit
payable is recognised as a liability after deducting
the contribution already paid. If the contribution
already paid exceeds the contribution due for
services received before the reporting date, the
excess is recognised as an asset to the extent
that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a
reduction in future payments or a cash refund”

Defined benefits plans:
Gratuity:

The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is
a defined benefit plan. The Company's net
obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit
scheme is calculated by estimating the amount
of Future benefit that employees have earned in
return for their service in the current and prior
periods; that benefit is discounted to determine
its present value, and the fair value of any plan
assets, if any, is deducted.

The present value of the obligation under such
defined benefit plan is determined based on
actuarial valuation using the Projected Accrued
Benefit Method (same as Projected Unit Credit
Method), which recognises each period of service
as giving rise to additional unit of employee
benefit entitlement and measures each unit
separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash flows. The discount
rates used for determining the present value
of the obligation under defined benefit plan,
are based on the market yields on Government
securities as at the balance sheet date. When the
calculation results in a potential asset for the
Company, the recognised asset is limited to the
present value of economic benefits available in
the form of any fFuture refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contribution to the plan.

The change in defined benefit plan liability is
split into changes arising out of service, interest
cost and re- measurements and the change
in defined benefit plan asset is split between
interest income and re- measurements. Changes
due to service cost and net interest cost/ income
is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss. Re-measurements of net defined benefit
liability/ (asset) which comprise of the below are
recognised in other comprehensive income:

° Actuarial gains and losses;

. The return on plan assets, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability / (asset).

Remeasurements of the net defined
benefit liability (Assets) recognised in other
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s)

Leases

comprehensive income are not reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent period.

Other long-term employee benefits:

Compensated absences:

The employees of the Company are entitled
to compensated absences which are both
accumulating and non-accumulating in nature.
The expected cost of accumulating compensated
absences is determined by actuarial valuation
based by using projected unit credit method
on the additional amount expected to be paid
as a result of the unused entitlement that has
accumulated at the balance sheet date The
expenses and actuarial gain / loss on account
of the above benefit plans are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss on the basis of
actuarial valuation.

Share based payment:

Equity-settled share-based payments to
employees are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date. The Ffair
value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, based
on the Company’s estimate of equity instruments
that will eventually vest, with a corresponding

increase in other equity.

In case, the company modifies the terms and
condition on which the equity instruments were
granted in a manner that is beneficial to the
employees,theincremental cost willbe recognised
over the period starting from the modification
date till the date of vesting if the modification
occurs during the vesting period. In case,
modification occurs after the vesting period, the
incremental cost will be recognised immediately.

1) The Company as a lessee

i)

Right to use assets and Lease liability:

The Company assesses whether a3 contract
contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. To assess whether a contract

conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

(i) the contract involves the use of an
identified asset

(i) the Company has substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the asset
through the period of the lease and

(iii) the Company has the right to direct the
use of the asset.

Recognition and initial measurement:

The Company determines the lease term as the
non-cancellable term of the lease, together with
any periods covered by an option to extend the
lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised,
or any periods covered by an option to terminate
the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be
exercised.At the lease commencement date, the
Company recognises a right-of-use (‘RoU") asset
and equivalent amount of lease liability. The
right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is
made up of the initial measurement of the lease
liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the
Company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle
and remove the asset at the end of the lease (if
any), and any lease payments made in advance
of the lease commencement date (net of any
incentives received).

Subsequent measurement:

The Company depreciates the right-of-use
assets on a straight-line basis from the lease
commencement date to the earlier of the end of
the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the
end of the lease term. The Company also assesses
the right-of-use asset for impairment when such
indicators exist.

At the lease commencement date, the Company
measures the lease liability at the present value
of the lease payments unpaid at that date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease if that rate is readily available or the
notional borrowing rate. Lease payments included
in the measurement of the lease liability are made
up of Fixed payments (including in substance fixed
payments). Subsequent to initial measurement,
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t)

u)

the liability will be reduced fFor payments made
and increased for interest. It is re-measured to
reflect any reassessment or modification, or
if there are changes in the in-substance fixed
payments. When the lease liability is re-measured,
the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the
right-of-use asset or is recorded in statement of
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Earnings per equity share

Basic earnings per share have been computed by dividing
net income attributable to ordinary equity holders by the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
year. Partly paid-up equity share, if any, is included as fully
paid equivalent according to the fraction paid up.

Diluted earnings per share have been computed using the
weighted average number of shares and dilutive potential
shares, except where the result would be anti-dilutive

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating
Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company. The CODM
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments of the Company. The
Company is in a single business segment (primary segment)
of providing financial services to customers in India.

Significant areas of estimation uncertainty, critical
judgements and assumptions in applying accounting
policies:

In preparing these financial statements, management has
made judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities and
assets) as on the date of the financial statements and the
reported income and expenses for the reporting period.
Management believes that the estimates used in the
preparation of the financial statements are prudent and
reasonable. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised prospectively.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty at the date of financial
statements, which may cause a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are included in the following notes:

Note 31 - Impairment of financial instruments:

This includes determining the relevant inputs into the
Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model, including incorporation
of forward-looking information and assumptions used in
estimating recoverable cash flows. Also, the management
regularly assesses the adequacy of provisions and if
required necessary additional provisions are created over
above ECL Model.

Note 39 - Determination of the Ffair value of Financial
instruments with significant unobservable inputs:

When the fair values of financial assets and Ffinancial
liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is
measured using various valuation techniques which requires
a degree of judgment. The judgments include considerations
of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.

Note 32 - Measurement of defined benefit obligations:

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the
present value of the gratuity obligation are determined
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future.

Note 20 - Recognition of deferred tax assets:

Key assumption is availability of future taxable profit against
which carry-forward tax losses can be utilised.

Note 9 - Determining useful lives of depreciable assets:

Key assumption is the estimation of the useful lives of
depreciableassets,based onthe expected utility of the assets.
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3. Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Cash on hand

Balances with banks

In current accounts 23915 154.81
In deposits with original maturity of 3 months or less 401.33 -
640.48 154.81

4. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
As at As at

Particulars

31March 2024 31 March 2023
In deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months* 94.93 40.38
94.93 40.38

*Includes cash collateral for securitisation of receivables amounting to ¥17.46 crores (FY 2022-23:% 22.93 crores) and term deposits amounting to X 76.08 crore (FY 2022-

23:%17.44 crores) under lien towards bank guarantee issued.

5. Loans
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
A At Fair Value At Fair Value
Particulars ) ¢ Through other . At Through other
Amortised ) Total | Amortised . Total
comprehensive comprehensive
Cost (AQ) || . Cost (AC)
income (FVTOCI) income (FVTOCI)
(A)
(i) Termloans
- Housing Loans’ 5,423.89 - 5,423.89 3,967.84 - 3,967.84
- Loan against properties 1,783.02 - 1,783.02 1,564.63 - 1,564.63
Total (A) -Gross 7,206.91 - 7,206.91 5,532.47 - 5,532.47
Less: Impairment loss allowance 66.31 = 66.31 59.28 - 59.28
Loans net of impairment loss allowance 7,140.60 - 7,140.60 5,473.19 - 5,473.19
Add: Unamortised loan sourcing costs 47.81 - 47.81 33.59 - 33.59
Less: Unamortised loan sourcing fees 98.98 - 98.98 68.21 - 68.21
Total (A) - Net 7,089.43 - 7,089.43 5,438.57 - 5,438.57
(8)
(i) Secured by tangible assets 7,206.91 - 7,206.91 5,532.47 - 5,532.47
(i) Covered by government guarantee - - - - - -
(iii) Unsecured - - - - - -
Total (B) - Gross 7,206.91 - 7,206.91 5,532.47 - 5,532.47
Less: Impairment loss allowance 66.31 = 66.31 59.28 - 59.28
Loans net of impairment loss allowance 7,140.60 - 7,140.60 5,473.19 - 5,473.19
Add: Unamortised loan sourcing costs 47.81 - 47.81 33.59 - 33.59
Less: Unamortised loan sourcing fees 98.98 - 98.98 68.21 - 68.21
Total (B) - Net 7,089.43 - 7,089.43 5,438.57 - 5,438.57




Grihum Housing Finance Limited Annual Report 2023-24

Ssummary of Material Accounting Policies and
other Explanatory INFOrmMation e yeseneasmarch z02

(All amounts T in crores unless otherwise stated)

5. Loans (Contd.)

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

At At Fair Value At At Fair Value

Particulars ) Through other . Through other
Amortised ) Total | Amortised . Total

comprehensive comprehensive

Cost (AC) || ., Cost (AC)
income (FVTOCI) income (FVTOCI)
(C) LoansinIndia

(i) Public Sector - - - - - -
(i) Others 7,206.91 - 7,206.91 5,532.47 - 5,532.47
Total (C) - Gross 7,206.91 - 7,206.91 5,532.47 - 5,5632.47
Less: Impairment loss allowance 66.31 - 66.31 59.28 - 59.28
Loans net of impairment loss allowance 7,140.60 - 7,140.60 5,473.19 - 5,473.19
Add: Unamortised loan sourcing costs 47.81 - 47.81 33.59 - 33.59
Less: Unamortised loan sourcing fees 98.98 = 98.98 68.21 - 68.21
Total (C) - Net 7,089.43 - 7,089.43 5,438.57 - 5,438.57

*It includes receivables amounting to ¥ 195.06 crores as at 31 March 2024 (¥132.41 crores as at 31 March 2023) towards the insurance premium funded by the Company
for the insurance cover availed by its customers.

The company has not granted any loans and advances that are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of
repayment to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties either severally or jointly with any other person.

6. Investments

X As at As at
Particulars
31March 2024 31March 2023
(i) At Fair value through profit or loss
In mutual funds - -
Add: Fair value gain/(loss) - -
(ii) At Amortised cost*
In Government Securities/ T-Bill 207.71 97.35
207.71 97.35
Out of above:
In India 207.71 97.35
Outside India = -
207.71 97.35

*The fair value of the investments including interest accrued but not due continues to be higher than the book value of the investment. Hence, the Company carries Nil
provision on investments.[refer note 39(b).2]

7. Other Financial assets

As at As at
Particulars
31March 2024 31March 2023
Measured at Amortised cost:
Receivables on assigned loans* 138.89 87.88
Security deposits 5.36 4.81
Others receivables 11.23 6.35
Measured at Fair value through profit or Loss:
Security receipt 36.85 45.29
Total 192.33 144.33
Less: Impairment loss allowance on receivable on assigned loans 0.59 0.37
191.74 143.96

*Represents present value of excess interest spread receivables on derecognised assets.



} Corporate Overview Statutory Reports NEREREEIRSIEI=T ]

summary of Material Accounting Policies and
other Explanatory INFOrmMation e yeeneasmarch z02

(All amounts T in crores unless otherwise stated)

8. Current tax asset (net)

. As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2024 31March 2023
Income tax assets (net of provision ¥ 69.95 crores)(31 March 2023: ¥ 60.44 crores) 444 0.99
4.44 0.99
9. Property, plant and equipment
i . Furniture and OFfice Leasehold
Particulars Buildings . . . Total
fixtures equipment improvements
Cost
As at 31 March 2022 0.21 0.86 8.12 0.42 9.61
Additions for the year - 3.61 6.48 - 10.09
Disposals/adjustments - 0.01 0.06 0.04 (oX]
As at 31 March 2023 0.21 4.46 14.54 0.38 19.59
Additions for the year - 21 8.02 184 1.97
Disposals/adjustments - 2.55 0.58 (1.98) 115
As at 31 March 2024 0.21 4.02 21.98 4.20 30.41
Accumulated Depreciation
As at 31 March 2022 0.03 0.24 0.77 0.22 1.26
Additions 0.01 0.74 2.58 0.06 3.39
Disposals/adjustments - 0.01 0.04 0.02 0.07
As at 31 March 2023 0.04 0.97 3.31 0.26 4.58
Additions for the year 0.01 1.02 474 0.36 6.13
Disposals/adjustments - 0.26 0.80 0.15 1.21
As at 31 March 2024 0.05 173 7.25 0.47 9.50
Net Block
As at 31 March 2023 0.17 3.49 1.23 0.12 15.01
As at 31 March 2024 0.16 2.29 14.73 3.73 20.91

The company is in the process of updating its changed name “Grihum Housing Finance Limited” on the title deed for the immovable
property. No assets were revalued during FY 2023-24 and FY 2022-23.

10. Intangible assets under development

X As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening Balance as at 1.28 -
Additions during the year 512 1.28
Deductions/Adjustments 3.61 -
As at 31 March 2024 2.79 1.28
Intangible assets under development ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2024
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars Less than More than Total
1-2 years 2-3 years
1year 3 years
i) Projectsin progress 279 = = = 279

ii) Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
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10. Intangible assets under development (Contd.)

As at 31 March 2023

Amount in CWIP For a period of

Particulars Less than More than Total
1-2 years 2-3 years
1year 3years
i) Projectsin progress 1.28 - - _ 1.28

ii) Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -

The Company closely monitors all the projects and there are no significant delays / over-runs observed during the year with respective
timelines or overall costs.

11. Other intangible assets

Particulars Computer software
Cost

As at 31 March 2022 3.20
Additions 2.02
Disposals/adjustments -
As at 31 March 2023 5.22
Additions 419
Disposals/adjustments 173
As at 31 March 2024 7.68
Accumulated amortisation

As at 31 March 2022 1.67
Amortisation for the year 0.50
Disposals/adjustments -
As at 31 March 2023 237
Amortisation for the year 2.50
Disposals/adjustments 163
As at 31 March 2024 3.04
Net Block

As at 31 March 2023 3.05
As at 31 March 2024 4.64

12. Right of use assets

Information on Lease transactions as required by Ind AS - 116 - Leases are as follows :

) As at As at
Particulars
31March 2024 31March 2023
Office Premises
(i) Movement in the carrying value of the ROU assets
Opening Balance 48.86 15.72
Depreciation charge for the Period (10.61) (5.09)
Additions during the Period 25.10 39.28
Termination (7.33) (1.05)
Adjustment 0.30 -
Closing Balance 56.32 48.86
(i) Movement in the carrying value of the Lease Liability
Opening Balance 51.31 16.99
Interest Expense 6.19 263
Lease Payments (13.61) (6.54)
Additions during the year 25.10 39.28
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12. Right of use assets (Contd.)

) As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Termination (8.19) (1.05)
Adjustment 0.98 -
Closing Balance 61.78 51.31
(iii) The Following are the amount recognised in the Profit or Loss statement
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 10.61 5.09
Interest expense on lease liabilities 6.19 2.63
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 16.80 7.72
(iv) ClassiFication of current and non current liabilities of the lease liabilities
Current liabilities 12.12 9.22
Non Current Liabilities 49,66 42.09
Total Lease liabilities 61.78 51.31
13. Other non-financial assets
. As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Prepaid expenses 20.03 10.08
Gratuity (excess of plan assets over obligation) - 124
Balances with government authorities 77 490
Balances with insurance company 5.82 9.35
Others 0.01 0.94
Total 33.03 26.51
14. Payables
X As at As at
Particulars
31March 2024 31 March 2023
Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises* 0.04 -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 2.59 6.26
Total 2.63 6.26
As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2024 31March 2023
Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, as at the year end 0.04 -
Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act, on the above amount as at - -
the year end
Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (other than section 16) - -
Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (section 16) - -
Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, for payments already made - -
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the year end to suppliers under MSMED Act = -
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the year end to suppliers under MSMED Act = -
Total 14.99 15.02
. As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Other Payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises* - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 14.99 15.02
Total 14.99 15.02
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14. Payables (Contd.)

Trade Payables ageing schedule

As at 31 March 2024

Outstanding For fFollowing periods from due
date of payment

Particulars Not Due Unbilled Total
Less than 1-2 2-3 || Morethan
1year years years 3years
(i) MSME - - 0.04 = = = 0.04
(i) Others = = 143 0.91 0.25 - 2.59

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - = = = - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - = = = - -

As at 31 March 2023
Outstanding For Following periods from due
. A date of payment
Particulars Not Due Unbilled Total
Less than 1-2 2-3  More than
1year years years 3years
(i) MSME - - - - - - -
(ii) Others - - 5.67 0.56 0.03 6.26

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - _ _ _
(iv) Disputed dues — Others - - - - - - _

*The Company has dues amounting to ¥ 0.04 Crores (31 March 2023: NIL) to micro, small and medium enterprises covered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006. The payments have been kept on hold due to delays in updation of GST credit from the respective vendor.

This information is required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, and has been
determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company and has been relied
upon by the auditors.

15. Debt securities

(Measured at amortised cost)

5 As at As at
Particulars
31March 2024 31March 2023
Debt securities in India*
Secured Redeemable non-convertible debentures [refer notes (a) & (b) below] 933.77 283.49
Total 933.77 283.49
Debt securities outside India - -
Total 933.77 283.49

*Includes interest accrued but not due
(3) Nature of security

During the Year, the Company has repaid 2700 number of debentures amounting to ¥ 270 crores as per the their respective due
dates of redemption. These debentures were secured by exclusive First charge hypothecation over the Company's book debt &
standard receivables.

Further,the Company has issued 90000 number of debentures amounting to ¥ 900 crores, out of which 10000 number of debentures
having face value of %1 lac were redeemed during the year for face value of 10,000 (Outstanding face value as on 31 March 2024 is
790,000 for the said debentures). All the debentures outstanding as on 31 March 2024 are secured under pari-passu arrangement by
way of hypothecation over loan receivables of the Company which are classified as standard. The total asset cover is one hundred
and ten percent of the outstanding amount of the said debentures.
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15. Debt securities (Contd.)

(b) Terms of repayment For Secured redeemable non-convertible debentures

As at 31 March 2024

Particulars Interest Rate | | 3-5 Years | | >5 Years | | Total
Non convertible debentures 845% - 865% 29.94 933.77
As at 31 March 2023
Particulars Interest Rate 3-5Years >5 Years Total
Non convertible debentures 8.75% - 9.00% - 28349
The Company has not defaulted/delayed in repayment of any principal and interest during the year.

16. Borrowings (other than debt securities)

(Measured at amortised cost)

As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Borrowings In India*

(Secured)

(3) Term loans from banks (refer note (3)(ii) & (b)(i) below) 4,638.27 3879.57
(b) Securitisation liability (refer note (a)(i) & (b)(ii) below) 59.76 72.88
(c) Loans repayable on demand from banks (refer note (a)(ii) & (b)(iii) below) 33.03 275.00

4,731.06 4,227.45
Borrowings outside India - -
Total 4,731.06 4,227.45

*Includes interest accrued but not due

(3) Nature of security

(i)  Securitisation liability represents amounts received in respect of securitisation transactions (net of repayments & investment
therein) as these transactions do not meet the de-recognition criteria specified under Ind AS.

(i)  As at 31 March 2024, the term loans from Banks and loans repayable on demand from banks are secured under pari-passu

arrangement by way of hypothecation over standard receivables of the Company (except For Refinance availed from National

Housing Bank which is secured by way of exclusive charge over standard receivables of the Company).

As at 31 March 2023, the term loan, cash credit facilities and working capital demand loans from banks are secured under pari-

passu arrangement by way of hypothecation over standard receivables of the Company (except for Term Loan from Bank of

Baroda and National Housing Bank which is secured by way of exclusive charge over standard receivables of the Company).

(b) Terms of repayment

(i) Schedule of repayment for term loans from banks and financial institutions

As at 31 March 2024

Particulars Interest Rate | | 3-5Years | | >5 Years | | Total
Term loan from banks Floating* 1,017.36 3,257.00
Term Loan from National Housing Bank 2.80% - 8.50% 418.51 1,381.27
Total 1,435.87 638.26 4,638.27

[0X]
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16. Borrowings (other than debt securities) (Contd.)

As at 31 March 2023

Particulars Interest Rate 0-3 Years 3-5Years >5 Years Total
Term loan from banks” Floating* 1,684.77 1,033.98 53294 3,251.69
Term Loan from National Housing Bank 2.80% - 8.05% 34335 2201 64.42 627.88
Total 2,028.12 1,254.09 597.36 3,879.57
~Includes Term loan amounting to ¥ 37.50 crore with fixed interest rate pricing
*(Linked with Repo/ T-Bill/ MCLR/ Base Rate of respective banks)
The Company has not defaulted/delayed in repayment of any principal and interest during the year

(ii) Terms and repayment of securitisation liability
As at 31 March 2024
Particulars Interest Rate | | 0-3 vears || 3-5Vears || >5 Years || Total
Securitisation liability Floating* 2148 11.03 27.25 59.76
As at 31 March 2023
Particulars Interest Rate 0-3 Years 3-5Years >5 Years Total
Securitisation liability Floating* 32.41 14.87 25.6 72.88

*(Linked with MCLR of respective banks)

(iii) The interest rates for working capital facilities during the financial year 2023-24 carried interest rates ranging from 8.15%

p.a. to 8.50% p.a. As per the prevalent practice, working capital facilities are renewed on a year to year basis and therefore, are

revolving in nature.

The interest rates for working capital facilities during the financial year 2022-23 carried interest rates ranging from 6.13% p.a.
to 8.65% p.a. As per the prevalent practice, cash credit facilities and working capital demand loans are renewed on a year to year

basis and therefore, are revolving in nature.

The quarterly stock and receivable statements submitted by the company to banks are in agreement with the books of accounts.

17. Subordinated liabilities

(Measured at amortised cost)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Subordinated Liabilities In India*

(Unsecured)(Tier Il Capital):

From banks 99.82 99.71
Total 99.82 99.71
Subordinated liabilities outside India - -
Total 99.82 99.71
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17. Subordinated liabilities (Contd.)

(i) Terms of repayment of subordinated liabilities

As at As at
Frequency Interest rate Repayment due No. of instalments payable
31 March 2024 | 31March 2023
On maturity 12.50% Mar-26 Bullet repayment 99.82 99.71
99.82 99.71
The Company has not defaulted/delayed in repayment of any principal and interest during the year
#Includes interest accrued but not due
18. Other Financial liabilities
As at As at
Particulars
31March 2024 31March 2023
Amount payable on assigned loans 26.62 24.76
Employee expenses payable 3943 18.48
66.05 43.24
19. Provisions
X As at As at
Particulars
31March 2024 31March 2023
Provision for employee benefits
- Provision for compensated absences 379 261
3.79 2.61
20. Deferred tax liabilities (net)
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Deferred tax liability arising on account of:

Statutory reserve 21.62 17.10
Fair valuation of financial assets 35.35 22.50
Depreciation and amortisation on property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets 0.65 0.78
Others (0.02) 0.46
57.60 40.84
Deferred tax asset arising on account of:
Impairment loss allowance on loan assets 16.85 15.02
Amortisation of transaction cost/income on assets on finance as per EIR model 10.98 718
Fair valuation of Financial assets 2.05 1.82
Provision for expenses 2.34 127
32.22 25.29
Total deferred tax liability (net) 25.38 15.55
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20. Deferred tax liabilities (net) (Contd.)

i)

106

Movement in deferred tax liabilities for year ended 31 March 2024:

Other
. Asat Statement of . As at
Particulars . . Comprehensive
01April 2023  Profit or Loss 31 March 2024
Income
Deferred tax liabilities fFor taxable temporary differences on:
Statutory reserve 17.10 4.52 - 21.62
Fair valuation of financial assets 22.50 12.85 - 35.35
Depreciation and amortisation on property, plant and 0.78 (0.13) - 0.65
equipment and Intangible assets
Others 0.46 (0.29) (0.19) (0.02)
Total 40.84 16.95 (0.19) 57.60
Deferred tax assets for deductible temporary differences on:
Impairment loss allowance on loan assets 15.02 1.83 - 16.85
Amortisation of transaction cost/income on assets on finance 718 3.80 - 10.98
as per EIR model
Fair valuation of Financial assets
- Cash Flow Hedge Reserve - - - -
- Security deposits 0.39 0.01 - 040
- Security receipt (measured at FVTPL) 117 0.26 - 143
- Assets held for sale 0.26 (0.04) - 0.22
Provision for expenses 1.27 1.07 - 2.34
Total 25.29 6.93 - 32.22
Deferred tax liabilities, net 15.55 10.02 (0.19) 25.38
Movement in deferred tax liabilities For year ended 31 March 2023:
Other
. Asat Statement of . As at
Particulars . . Comprehensive
01April 2022  Profit or Loss 31 March 2023
Income
Deferred tax liabilities For taxable temporary differences on:
Statutory reserve 12.38 4.72 - 17.10
Fair valuation of Financial assets 19.80 270 - 22.50
Amortisation of transaction cost/income on assets on finance - - - -
as per EIR model
Depreciation and amortisation on property, plant and 0.51 0.27 - 0.78
equipment and Intangible assets
Others 0.26 0.15 0.05 0.46
Total 32.95 7.84 0.05 40.84
Deferred tax assets For deductible temporary differences on:
Impairment loss allowance on loan assets 18.37 (3.35) - 15.02
Amortisation of transaction cost/income on assets on finance 3.82 3.36 - 718
as per EIR model
Recognition/de-recognition of income and expenses pertaining 1.03 (1.03) - -
to direct assignment transactions
Fair valuation of fFinancial assets - -
- Cash Flow Hedge Reserve 0.02 (0.02) - -
- Portfolio Valuation - - - -
- Security deposits 013 0.26 - 0.39
- Security receipt (measured at FVTPL) 0.60 0.57 - 117
- Assets held for sale - 0.26 - 0.26
Provision for expenses 0.87 0.40 - 127
Total 24.84 0.45 - 25.29
Deferred tax liabilities, net 8.1 7.39 0.05 15.55
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21. Other non-financial liabilities

A As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Advances from customers 9.51 975
Statutory dues payable 7.23 7.80
Gratuity (excess of obligation over plan assets) 0.53 -
17.27 17.55
22. Share capital
A. Equity share capital
. As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Particulars
Number | | Amount Number Amount
Authorised share capital
Equity shares of 210 each 50,00,00,000 50000  27,50,00,000 275.00
Total 50,00,00,000 500.00 27,50,00,000 275.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of 10 each 32,48,26,524 324.83 25,22,87,783 252.29
32,48,26,524 324.83 25,22,87,783 252,29
(3) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital:
. As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Particulars
Number | | Amount Number Amount
Balance at the beginning of the reporting year 25,22,87,783 252.29 25,17,94,450 25179
Equity share capital issued during the year through:
(i) Private placement cum preferential allotment 3,74,84,321 37.49 - -
(i) Rightsissue 3,39,62,286 33.96 - -
(iii) Employees Stock Option (ESOP) /Restricted Stock 10,92,134 1.09 4,93,333 0.49
option (RSOP) Scheme
Balance at the end of the reporting year 32,48,26,524 324.83 25,22,87,783 252.29

During the year 2023-24, the authorised share capital of the Company increased from ¥ 2,75,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Hundred
Seventy-Five Crore only) comprising of 27,50,00,000 (Twenty-Seven crore Fifty Lakhs only) Equity Shares of % 10/- (Rupees Ten)
each to ¥ 5,00,00,00,000/- (Rupees Five Hundred Crore only) comprising of 50,00,00,000 (Fifty Crore only) equity shares of
Z10/- (Rupees Ten only) each and ¥ 2,00,00,00,000/-(Rupees Two Hundred Crore only) comprising of 20,00,00,000 (Twenty Crore
only) preference shares of ¥ 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each pursuant to the approval of the shareholders of the Company.

Further, during the year 2023-24, the divestment of all of the 24,98,21,117 equity shares held by Poonawalla Fincorp Limited
(“PFL"), the erstwhile Holding Company of the Company and its nominees in the Company, in favour of Perseus SG Pte. Ltd,,
an entity affiliated with TPG (“Perseus”), was consummated on 26 July 2023, post receipt of approval of relevant regulatory
authorities including the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI") and fulfilment of other terms and conditions as specified in the Share
Purchase Agreement dated 14 December 2022, executed by the Company. As a result of the aforesaid divestment, the Company
ceased to be a subsidiary of PFL and Perseus holds a controlling equity stake in the Company with effect from 26 July 2023.

The Company on 7 August 2023, allotted to Perseus, 3,74,84,321 Equity Shares for a total consideration of ¥ 537.70 Crores on a
private placement cum preferential allotment basis. The equity shares issued and allotted as aforesaid rank pari passu with the
existing equity shares of the Company in all respects.

The Company on 28 March 2024, allotted 3,39,62,286 equity shares of the face value of ¥ 10/- each to the existing shareholders
of the Company in the ratio of 1:8.46 on a Rights basis for a total consideration of ¥ 500.16 Crores. The equity shares issued and
allotted as aforesaid rank pari passu with the existing equity shares of the Company in all respects.
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22. Share capital (Contd.)

During the previous year, the Company on 13 July 2022, allotted 4,93,333 equity shares of the face value of ¥ 10/- each to the

eligible employee of the Company under Restricted Stock Option Plan 2018 (RSO Plan 2018), as amended from time to time.
On 19 December 2023, the Company allotted 65,300 and 84,000 equity shares of the face value of ¥ 10/- each to the eligible
employees of the Company under Employee Stock Option Plan 2021 (ESOP Plan 2021) and Employee Stock Option Plan 2018

(ESOP Plan 2018), respectively. Further, on 3 January 2024, the Company allotted 8,93,334 and 49,500 equity shares of face value

of 210/- each to the eligible employees of the Company under RSO Plan 2018 and ESOP Plan 2021, respectively.

(b) Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10 each. Each shareholder of the Company is entitled

to one vote per share. The dividend as and when proposed by the Board of Directors will be subject to the approval of the

shareholders to be obtained in the Annual General Meeting, which shall be paid in Indian rupees. In the event of liquidation

of the Company, the equity shareholders of the Company are entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company after

discharging all liabilities and after distribution of all the preferential amounts of the Company in proportion to the number

of equity shares held by the equity shareholders. Dividend on shares is recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the

shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

(c) Shares held by Holding company and details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Particulars

Number | | Percentage Number Percentage
Equity shares of ¥10 each:
Perseus SG Pte. Ltd. 32,12,56,684 98.90% - -
Poonawalla Fincorp Ltd. - - 24,98,21,117 99.02%

(d) Shares held by the promoters in the Company

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year (31 March 2024)

. % Change during
Promoter name No. of Shares %ofF total shares

No. the year*

1 Perseus SG Pte. Ltd.# 32,12,56,684 98.90% 28.59%
Total 32,12,56,684 98.90%

#Includes 6 Shares held by nominee shareholders, the beneficial interest of which, lies with Perseus SG Pte. Ltd.

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year (31 March 2023)

% Change during

Promoter name No. of Shares %ofF total shares
No. the year*
1 Poonawalla Fincorp Ltd.# 24,98,21,117 99.02% (-)0.20%
Total 24,98,21,117 99.02%

#Includes 50 Shares held by nominee shareholders, the beneficial interest of which, lies with Poonawalla Fincorp Limited.

B. Instruments entirely equity in nature

. . . As at 31 March 2024
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Share Capital ('CCPS’)

As at 31 March 2023

Number | | Amount Number Amount
Authorised share capital
Compulsorily convertible preference shares of 710 each 20,00,00,000 200.00 - -
Total 20,00,00,000 200.00 - -
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Compulsorily convertible preference shares of ¥10 each 16,24,13,259 162.41 - -
16,24,13,259 162.41 - -
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22. Share capital (Contd.)

(3) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital:

. As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Particulars
Number | | Amount Number Amount
Balance at the beginning of the reporting year = = - -
Issued during the year
Compulsorily convertible preference shares (Bonus issue) 16,24,13,259 162.41 - -
Balance at the end of the reporting year 16,24,13,259 162.41 - -

During the year 2023-24, the authorised share capital of the Company increased from % 2,75,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Hundred
Seventy-Five Crore only) comprising of 27,50,00,000 (Twenty-Seven crore Fifty Lakhs only) Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- (Rupees Ten)
each to ¥5,00,00,00,000/- (Rupees Five Hundred Crore only) comprising of 50,00,00,000 (Fifty Crore only) equity shares of 310/-
(Rupees Ten only) each and % 2,00,00,00,000/-(Rupees Two Hundred Crore only) comprising of 20,00,00,000 (Twenty Crore only)
preference shares of ¥10/- (Rupees Ten only) each pursuant to the approval of the shareholders of the Company.

On 28 March 2024, the Company allotted 16,24,13,259 fully paid-up 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS')
of %10 each, as bonus shares in the ratio of 1:2 to the existing equity shareholders of the Company.

(b) Terms and rights attached to CCPS

The Company has one class of CCPS having a par value of 310 each.Each CCPS shall be a non-cumulative compulsorily convertible
preference share. Each CCPS shall, at all times, rank pari-passu in all respects and without any preference or priority among
themselves. Each CCPS shall carry a preferential right vis-a-vis the equity shares of the Company with respect to payment
of dividend and repayment of capital, subject to the articles of association of the Company. Each CCPS shall be entitled to a
preferential dividend on a non-cumulative basis at the rate of 0.001% per annum from the Company in accordance with the
applicable laws. Subject to compliance with applicable laws, each CCPS shall, at the option of the holder of the CCPS, stand
converted into equity shares in the ratio of 1:1 upon the earlier of: (i) 10 (ten) days from the receipt of notice from the holder
of CCPS requesting for conversion of the CCPS into equity shares; (ii) 1 (one) day prior to the expiry of 5 (five) years from the
date of allotment of the CCPS; and (iii) immediately prior to the consummation of an initial public offering of the shares of the
Company. CCPS will not carry any voting rights except in case of any resolution placed before the Company (a) which directly
affects the rights attached to such CCPS; (b) for winding up of the Company; (c) for the repayment or reduction of Company's
equity or preference share capital; or as otherwise provided in the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable law. CCPS shall
also be subject to other terms and conditions as approved by the shareholders of the Company vide the special resolution
passed on 22 March 2024.

(c) Shares held by Holding company and details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

. As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Particulars
Number | | Percentage Number Percentage
Compulsorily convertible preference shares of ¥ 10 each:
Perseus SG Pte. Ltd. 16,06,28,339 98.90% - -
(d) Shares held by the promoters in the Company
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year (31 March 2024)
% Change during
Promoter name No. of Shares %oF total shares
No. the year*
1 Perseus SG Pte. Ltd. 16,06,28,339 98.90% 100.00%
Total 16,06,28,339 98.90%
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22. Share capital (Contd.)

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year (31 March 2023)

% Change during
Promoter name No. of Shares %ofF total shares
the year*

NIL

* % change during the year are computed with respect to the number at the beginning of the year or if issued during the year for the first time then with
respect to the date of issue.

23. Other equity
. As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2024 31March 2023
(i) Retained earnings
Balance as at the beginning of the year 344.59 252.42
Profit For the year 139.96 115.22
484.55 367.64
Less: Appropriations
Transfer to statutory reserve in terms of Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 9.95 4.27
Transfer to Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account 18.04 18.77
for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
Total appropriations 27.99 23.05
Balance as at the end of the year (i) 456.56 344,59
(ii) Statutory reserves
Balance as at the beginning of the year
(3) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 28.68 24.41
(b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account 68.45 4968
for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
Addition / appropriation / withdrawal during the year
Add:
(8) Amount transferred u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 9.95 4.27
(b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account 18.04 18.77
for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
Less:
(38) Amount appropriated from the Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 = -
(b) Amount withdrawn from the Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, - -
1961 taken into account which has been taken into account for the purpose of
provision u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
Balance as at the end of the year
(3) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 38.63 28.68
(b) Amount of Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii)of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account 86.49 68.45
for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
Balance as at the end of the year (ii) 125.12 9713
(iii) Securities premium
Balance as at the beginning of the year 501.72 500.91
Add: Received during the year through
Private placement cum preferential allotment 498.66 -
Rights issue 466.20 -
Transfer from Share option reserve account 3.86 0.81
Proceeds from share issued under ESOP and RSOP schemes 0.99 -
Less: Utilised fFor Compulsorily convertible preference shares (Bonus issue) (162.41) -
Balance as at the end of the year (iii) 1,309.02 501.72
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23. Other equity (Contd.)

) As at As at
Particulars
31March 2024 31March 2023

(iv) Share options outstanding account

Balance as at the beginning of the year 13.06 3.01

Add: Additions during the year (net of reversal) 3.54 10.86

Less: Transferred to Share Premium account (3.86) (0.81)

Balance as at the end of the year (iv) 12.74 13.06
(v) Other comprehensive income

Balance as at the beginning of the year (0.21) (0.38)

Add: Additions during the year (0.59) 0.7

Less: Utilised during the year - -

Balance as at the end of the year (v) (0.80) (0.21)
Total [(i)+(ii)+(iii)+(iv)+(v)] 1,902.64 956.29
(3) Retained earnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfer to general reserves, statutory reserve,
dividends and other distributions made to the shareholders.

(b) Statutoryreserves
Statutory reserve represents the Reserve Fund created under section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act,1987. Under section 29C,
the Company is required to transfer a sum not less than twenty percent of its net profit for the financial year to the statutory reserve.
The statutory reserve can be utilised for the purposes as may be specified by the National Housing Bank from time to time.
(c) Securities premium
Securities premium represents premium received on issue of shares. This amount can be utilised in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 2013.
(d) Share options outstanding account
The Company instituted the Grihum Housing Finance Limited - Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP 2018) in 2018, and Grihum Housing
- Restricted Stock Option Plan 2018 (RSO 2018) in 2018 as amended and Grihum Employee Stock Option Plan 2021 (ESOP 2021) in 2021,
which were approved by the Board of Directors and shareholders of the Company. The reserve is used to recognise the fair value of
the options issued to the employees of the Company under the Plan.
Refer Note 42 for further details on employee stock options.
(e) Other comprehensive income
During FY 2023-24 and FY 2022-23, the Company has recognised remeasurement benefits of the defined benefit plans as per
actuarial valuation.
24.Interest income
Year ended 31 March 2024 Year ended 31 March 2023
On financial On financial On financial On financial
Particulars assets measured assets assets measured assets
. Total Rk Total
at fair value measured at at fair value measured at
through OCI || Amortised Cost through OCI Amortised Cost
Interest on loans = 871.20 871.20 - 617.84 617.84
Interest income from investments = 1110 1110 - 1.06 1.06
Interest on deposits with banks - 48.80 48.80 - 16.20 16.20
Other interest Income - 0.32 0.32 - 0.20 0.20
- 931.42 931.42 - 635.30 635.30
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25. Fees and commission income

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars

31March 2024 31March 2023
Collection and support services 179 167
Foreclosure charges 261 6.56
Login fees 12.64 1014
Others 748 1.82
24.52 20.19

26. Net gain on fair value changes
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

31March 2024

31 March 2023

(A) Net gain on financial instruments at Fair value through profit or loss

On trading portfolio:

Realised gain on investment at FVTPL 767 -
Unrealised gain/(loss) on investment at FVTPL - -
(8) Others
Investment in mutual funds - -
Unrealised gain on security receipts - -
Provision reversal Asset held for sale 017 -
7.84 -
27. Net gain on de-recognition of financial instruments
i Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31 March 2024 31March 2023
Gain from de-recognition on account of direct assignment transactions 66.00 42.71
Gain from de-recognition on account of financial assets - 6.53
(Net of reversal of provision of ¥ NIL)(31 March 2023:% 25.85 Crores)
Loss on sale of non performing assets (5.50) (117)
(Net of reversal of provision of ¥ 8.76 crores)(31 March 2023 :31.38 Crores)
60.50 48.13
28. Other income
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Liabilities no longer required written back 0.52 0.76
Income from other services 20.37 11.21
Gain from sale of repossessed assets* - 0.05
Interest on Income Tax Refund = 0.40
Miscellaneous income 0.48 0.01
21.37 12.43

*The gain from sale of repossessed assets represents recoveries against overdue loans written off by the company. Any excess recovery is accounted for as a financial

liability and refunded to the borrower.
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29. Finance cost (on Financials liabilities measured at Amortised Cost)

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest on debt securities 67.03 25.36
Interest on borrowings (other than debt securities) 348.08 23557
Interest on subordinated liabilities 12.64 12.61
Other borrowing costs 9.92 3.60
Interest on lease liability 6.19 263
443.86 279.77

30. Net loss on Fair value changes
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

(A) Net loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

On trading portfolio:

Realised gain on investment at FVTPL = (2.79)
(8) Others
Unrealised loss on security receipts 1.00 2.29
Provision on Asset held for sale - 1.03
Total 1.00 0.53
31. Impairment on financial instruments
Year ended 31 March 2024 Year ended 31 March 2023
On financial On Financial On financial On financial
Particulars assets measured assets assets measured assets
Total Total
at fair value measured at at Fair value measured at
through OCI || Amortised Cost through OClI Amortised Cost
Impairment on loans - 16.01 16.01 - 13.88 13.88
Bad debts written-off - 2194 21.94 - 22.51 22.51
(net of recoveries)*
- 37.95 37.95 - 36.39 36.39

*During the year bad debts recovery for ¥18.45 Crores on financial assets measured at amortised cost has been netted off with bad debts written off. (31st March 2023:

bad debts recovery for ¥ 7.63 Crores on financial assets measured at amortised cost has been netted off with bad debts written off)

Note : Also refer Note 48

32. Employee benefits expenses

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31March 2024 31March 2023
Salaries 236.55 143.45
Contribution to provident and other funds 1.31 8.58
Share based payments to employees 3.54 10.86
Staff welfare expense 7.85 5.80
259.25 168.69
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32. Employee benefits expenses (Contd.)

(a)

(b)

14

Defined contribution plans:

Eligible employees of the Company receive benefits under the Provident Fund which is a defined contribution plan wherein both
the employee and the Company make monthly contributions equal to a specific percentage of covered employees' salary. These
contributions are made to the Fund administered and managed by the Government of India and the Company has no Further
obligation beyond making its contribution. The Company's monthly contributions are charged to Statement of profit and loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Defined benefFits plans:

Gratuity (Funded)

Gratuity is a post employment benefit and is a defined benefit plan. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act,
1972.The liability recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the Balance Sheet
date, less the fair value of plan assets (if any), together with adjustment for unrecognised actuarial gains or losses and past service
cost.Independent actuaries calculate the defined benefit obligation annually using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gains/
losses are credited/ charged to the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income in the year in which such gains or losses arise.

The following table summarises the components of defined benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss/Other
Comprehensive Income ('OCI') and the funded status and amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet for the respective plans:

(i) Changein present value of the defined benefit obligation:

. As at As at
Particulars
31March 2024 31March 2023
Present value of the obligations at the beginning of the year 3.81 341
Current service cost 1.09 1.08
Interest cost 0.26 0.23
Actuarial loss arising from financials assumptions 0.03 (0.08)
Actuarial (gain) from demographic assumptions - (0.26)
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from experience adjustments 0.64 0.15
Benefits paid (0.62) (0.72)
Present value of the obligations at the end of the year 5.21 3.81
(ii) Changein Fair value of plan assets:
. As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2024 31March 2023
Plan assets at the beginning of the year 5.05 434
Expected return on plan assets 0.37 0.30
Actual company contributions - 113
Benefits paid (0.62) (0.72)
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Plan Assets (0.12) -
Plan assets at the end of the year 4.68 5.05
(iii) Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets
. As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2024 31March 2023
Present value obligation as at the end of the year 5.21 3.81
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 4.68 5.05
Net (asset) recognised in balance sheet 0.53 (1.24)
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32. Employee benefits expenses (Contd.)

(iv) Components of net cost charged to the Statement of profit and loss

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

Employee benefits expense:

Service cost 1.09 1.08
Interest costs 0.26 0.23
Interest income (0.37) (0.30)
Net impact on profit before tax 0.98 1.01
(v) Components Remeasurement losses in other comprehensive income
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31March 2024 31March 2023
Actuarial loss arising from assumption changes 0.03 (0.34)
Actuarial loss arising from experience adjustments 0.64 0.15
Return on plan assets (greater)/(less) than discount rate 0.12 -
Remeasurement (gains)/losses in other comprehensive income 0.79 (0.19)

(vi) The Company's gratuity scheme for permanent employees is administered through a trust with the Life Insurance Corporation
of India. The funding requirements are based on the gratuity funds actuarial measurement framework set out in the funding
policies of the plan. The funding is based on a separate actuarial valuation for Funding purpose for which assumptions are same

as set out below. Employees do not contribute to the plan.

(vii) Assumptions used

With the objective of presenting plan assets and obligations of the defined benefit plans at their fair value at Balance Sheet

date, assumptions used under Ind AS 19 are set by reference to market conditions at the valuation date.

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars

31March 2024 31March 2023

Discount rate (per annum) 717% 7.30%

Salary escalation rate (per annum) 5.00% 5.00%

Expected average remaining working lives of employees (years) 479 477

Mortality

"IALM(2012-14)
ultimate table"

"IALM(2012-14)
ultimate table"

(viii) Sensitivity analysis

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31March 2024 31March 2023
DBO with discount rate +0.25pt 5.14 3.77
DBO with discount rate -0.25pt 5.27 3.86
DBO with +0.5% salary escalation 5.35 3.92
DBO with -0.5% salary escalation 5.06 371
DBO with +2% withdrawal rate 5.19 3.80
DBO with -2% withdrawal rate 5.22 3.82
DBO with +1% mortality rate 5.20 3.81
DBO with -1% mortality rate 5.20 3.81

15
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32. Employee benefits expenses (Contd.)

(c)

116

Methods and assumptions used in preparing sensitivity analysis and their limitations:

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation
as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be
correlated. Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has
been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in
calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the Balance Sheet.

(ix) Maturity analysis of the benefit payments:

A As at As at
Particulars

31March 2024 31March 2023

Year1 0.67 0.49

2to 5years 293 214

6 to 10 years 2.30 179

More than 10 years 130 0.92

Aforesaid defined benefit plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks:
Investment risk

For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be the fair value
of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This
can result in wide Fluctuations in the net liability or the Funded status if there are significant changes in the discount rate during the
inter-valuation period.

Market Risk (Interest Rate)

Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. The discount rate
reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits &
vice versa. This assumption depends on the yields on the corporate/government bonds and hence the valuation of liability is exposed
to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date.

Longevity Risk

The impact of longevity risk will depend on whether the benefits are paid before retirement age or after. Typically for the benefits
paid on or before the retirement age, the longevity risk is not very material.

Actuarial Risk

Salary Increase Assumption : Actual Salary increase that are higher than the assumed salary escalation, will result in increase to the

Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

Attrition/withdrawal Assumption: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rates, the benefits will be paid
earlier than expected. Similarly if the actual withdrawal rates are lower than assumed, the benefits will be paid later than expected.
The impact of this will depend on the demography of the company and the financials assumptions.

Regulatory Risk

Any Changes to the current Regulations by the Government, will increase (in most cases) or Decrease the obligation which is not
anticipated. Sometimes, the increase is many fold which will impact the financials quite significantly.
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33. Depreciation, amortisation and impairment

. Year ended Year ended

Particulars
31 March 2024 31March 2023
Depreciation on property plant and equipment 6.11 3.38
Depreciation on Right of use asset 10.61 5.09
Amortisation of Intangible assets 2.51 0.50
19.23 8.97

34. Other expenses

. Year ended Year ended

Particulars
31March 2024 31March 2023
Rent, taxes and energy costs 3.58 an
Information technology expenses 36.69 12.76
Repairs and maintenance expenses - Others 113 0.64
Communication costs 3.25 3.24
Printing and stationery 333 2.09
Advertisement and publicity 719 402
Directors fees, allowances and expenses 0.60 0.77
Auditor's fees and expenses* 0.50 0.42
Legal Expenses 413 2.24
Professional fees 17.50 17.27
Travelling and conveyance 12.50 10.01
Corporate social responsibility expenditure (refer note 47) 1.68 0.85
Outsourcing expense 0.31 291
Office maintenance 244 1.02
Record retention charges 2.80 274
Insurance expenses 013 0.15
Business promotion expenses 2.52 -
Miscellaneous expenses 0.83 2.27
1011 67.51

*Payment to auditors

Year ended Year ended

Particulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Statutory Audit fees 0.23 0.20
Limited review 0.09 0.08
Other Services 0.17 0.14
Reimbursement of expenses 0.01 -
0.50 0.42

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo

During FY 2023-24, the Company did not have any foreign exchange earnings in terms of actual inflow and the foreign exchange outgo in

terms of actual outflow amounted to ¥1.14 Crore (During FY 2022-23, the Company did not have any foreign exchange earnings in terms of

actual inflow and the foreign exchange outgo in terms of actual outflow amounted to 30.07 Crore).
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35. Tax expenses

(3) Income tax recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31March 2024 31 March 2023
Current tax 3319 3140
Deferred tax 10.02 763
Tax expenses of earlier years 0.08 (0.06)
43.29 38.97
(b) Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income:
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31March 2024 31 March 2023
Tax impact on remeasurement of defined benefit plans 0.19 (0.05)
0.19 (0.05)
(c) Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit for the year:
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31 March 2024 31March 2023
Profit before tax 183.25 154.19
Enacted tax rates (%) 2517% 2517%
Income tax expense calculated at corporate tax rate 46.05 38.81
Tax expenses allowable/(disallowable) under IT act (2.82) 0.22
Impact of tax relating to earlier years 0.06 (0.06)
Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss 43.29 38.97
36. Earnings per equity share (EPS)
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Net profit attributable to equity shareholders 139.96 115.22
Nominal value of equity share (%) 10 10
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic earning per share 27,84,62,563 25,21,48,568
Add : Diluting effect of potential equity shares issued as employee stock options 16,57,35,527 16,44,29,282
Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted earning per share 44,4198,090 41,65,77,850
Earnings per share
- Basic earnings per share (%) 5.03 4.57
315 277

- Diluted earnings per share (3)*

*The EPS for all the prior periods presented have been restated to this effect as required by "Ind AS 33: Earnings Per Share".

37.Segment reporting

The Company is primarily engaged in mortgage-based finance and as such no separate information is required to be furnished in terms

of Ind AS 108 "Operating segments" specified under section 133 of the Act. Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with

the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating

resources and assessing performance of the operating segments of the Company. The Company is in a single business segment of

providing financial services to customers in India. The entire revenues are billable within India and there is only one geographical segment.
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38. Related party disclosures

Information on related party transactions as required by "Ind AS - 24 - Related Party Disclosures" are as follows :

(A) List of related parties with whom transactions have been entered

(i) Parties where control exists

Name of the related party

Nature of Relationship

Country of % of holdingason| % of holding as on

incorporation 31 Mar 2024 31 Mar 2023
(3) Perseus SG PTE Ltd. Holding Company (w.e.f.26.07.2023)  Singapore 98.90% -
(b) Rising Sun Holdings Ultimate Holding Company India - -
Pvt. Ltd. (Up to 25.07.2023)
(c) Poonawalla Fincorp Holding Company (Up to 25.07.2023) India - 99.02%
Ltd.!

(ii) Subsidiary of holding company to which Company is also a subsidiary

Poonawalla Finance Private Ltd.

(iii) Entities Under Common Control

Magma HDI General Insurance Company Ltd.?

TPG Asia VIIl Management LLC

TPG Asia Advisory Services, LLC

(Up to 25.07.2023)

(Up to 25.07.2023)
(w.e.f.26.07.2023)

(w.ef. 26.07.2023)

(iv) Director & Key management personnel

Name of the related party

Nature of Relationship

Puneet Bhatia

Non-Executive Director (w.e.f 08.09.2023)

Sanjeev Mehra

Non-Executive Director (w.e.f 08.09.2023)

Prem Manjooran

Independent Director (w.e.f 08.09.2023)

Nitin Gupta

Independent Director (w.e.f 08.09.2023)

Richa Arora

Independent Director (w.e.f 13.03.2024)

Manish Jaiswal

Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

Pankaj Mahesh Kumar Rathi

Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f 01.07.2021)

Vaishnavi Bhupendra Suratwala

Company Secretary (w.e.f 20.05.2023)

Adar Poonawalla

Chairman & Non-Executive Director (up to 26.07.2023)

Bhama Krishnamurthy

Non Executive Independent Director (up to 08.09.2023)

Prabhakar Ramchandra Dalal

Non Executive Independent Director (up to 08.09.2023)

Amar Deshpande

Non Executive Director (up to 26.07.2023)

Priti Saraogi

Company Secretary (up to 05.04.2023)

(B) Transactions with related parties

Name of the party

Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31March 2024

Nature of transactions

(i) Holding Company

Perseus SG PTE Ltd! Equity share Capital 7144 -
Share Premium 966.42 -
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares 160.63 -

Capital (Bonus Issue)

Poonawalla Fincorp Ltd.

Common cost allocation (expense) - 5.47

Purchase of Fixed Assets 0.08 -

Inter Corporate Loan Taken 300 -

Inter Corporate Loan Refunded 300 -

Interest paid on Inter Corporate Loan Taken 4.80

Direct Assignment Servicing Fees received 0.04 0.21
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Name of the party

Nature of transactions

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

(ii) Entities Under Common Control

Magma HDI General Insurance Advance recoverable - 8.78
Company Ltd.?
Premium adjusted against advance given 0.08 15.32
Insurance Premium advances for Medical Policies 0.25 -
Advance Insurance premium paid 0.04 0.88
(Including Mediclaim)
Premium for Employees Mediclaim - 269
TPG Asia Advisory Services, LLC Advisory Services 0.76 -
(iii) Directors & Key Managerial
Personnel
Manish Jaiswal >* Directors'remuneration 4.25 4.05
Equity Share Capital 0.89 0.49
Issuance of Compulsorily Convertible Preference 168 -
Shares Capital (Bonus Issue)
Pankaj Rathi * Salary 219 1.52
Priti Saraogi Salary (Net of Recovery) 0.01 0.27
Vaishnavi Bhupendra Suratwala*  Salary 0.24 -
Prem Manjooran Sitting Fees 0.09 -
Richa Arora Sitting Fees 0.01 -
Adar Poonawalla Sitting Fees 0.01 0.01
Amar Deshpande Sitting Fees 0.14 0.25
Bhama Krishnamurthy Sitting Fees 0.18 0.23
Prabhakar Ramchandra Dalal Sitting Fees 0.16 0.22
Balances with related parties
As at As at

Name of the party

Nature of balance

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

(i) Holding Company

Poonawalla Fincorp Ltd.1 Collection fees receivable - 0.01
(ii) Entities Under Common Control
Magma HDI General Insurance Loans and advances given = 0.08
Company Ltd.?
Premium for Employees Mediclaim = 269
Insurance Premium for policies underwritten = 0.06
Compensation of key Managerial Personnel
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31 March 2024 31March 2023
Short-term employee benefits (including remuneration) 6.59 5.76
Post-employment benefits * 0.10 0.09

"The Equity Shares held by Poonawalla Fincorp Ltd. were transferred to Perseus SG Pte. Ltd. on 26.07.2023 and consequently, the Company became a subsidiary of
Perseus SG Pte. Ltd, Poonawalla Fincorp Ltd. ceased to be holding Company, Further subsequent to such share transfer Rising Sun Holdings Pvt. Ltd. ceased to be
ultimate holding company and Poonawalla Finance Private Ltd. ceased to be fellow subsidiary w.e.f. 26.07.2023

2 MHDI ceased to be a Joint Venture of Poonawalla Fincorp Ltd. with effect from 09.06.2022, however MHDI continued to be related party of the Company as per
IND AS. Subsequent to share transfer between Poonawalla Fincorp Ltd. and Perseus SG Pte. Ltd. MHDI ceases to be related party w.e.f, 26.07.2023.

3 The remuneration excludes perquisites value of ¥ 12.10 crores (FY 2022-23 - ¥ 3.05 crores) on account of 8,93,334 (FY 2022-23 - 4,93,333 number) number of
Restricted Stock Options exercised during the year.

4 As provisions for gratuity and leave benefits are made for the company as a whole, the amount pertaining to key management personnel is not specifically

identified and hence are not included above. All KMP remuneration have been reported basis benefits paid during the year ended.
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39. Fair value measurements

a Financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments by category as follows:

As at As at
Particulars Note
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(i) Financial assets measured at amortised cost
- Cashand cash equivalents 3 640.48 154.81
- Other bank balances 4 94.93 40.38
- Loans 5 7,089.43 5,438.57
- Investments 6 207.71 97.35
- Other financial assets 7 154.89 98.67
(ii) Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss
- Other financial assets (Security receipts) 7 36.85 45.29
Total 8,224.29 5,875.07
(i) Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
- Trade payables 14 263 6.26
- Other payables 14 14.99 15.02
- Debtsecurities 15 933.77 28349
- Borrowings (other than debt securities) 16 4,731.06 4,227.45
- Subordinated liabilities 17 99.82 99.71
- Lease liabilities 12 61.78 51.31
- Other financial liabilities 18 66.05 43.24
Total 5,910.10 4,726.48

b  Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the Statement of Profit and Loss and other comprehensive income

are grouped into three levels of a fair value hierarchy. These three levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs

to the measurement, as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical instruments in an active market;

Level 2: Directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) observable market inputs, other than Level 1inputs; and

Level 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

b1 Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements

The following table shows the levels within the hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a

recurring basis:

As at 31 March 2024 Level1|| Level 2 || Level 3 || Total
Assets

Financial assets at Fair value through profit and loss

Other financial assets - Security receipts - 36.85 - 36.85
As at 31 March 2023 Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

Other Financial assets - Security receipts - 45.29 - 45.29
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39. Fair value measurements (Contd.)

122

b.2 Fair value of financial instruments measured at amortised cost

Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost For which Fair value is disclosed is as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2024

Year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars . - — n
Carrying value | | Fair value Carrying value Fair value
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 640.48 64048 154.81 154.81
Other bank balances 94.93 90.62 40.38 39.20
Loans 7,089.43 7144.02 5,438.57 5,473.39
Investments 207.71 207.77 97.35 97.38
Other financial assets 154.89 154.89 98.67 98.67
Total 8,187.44 8,237.78 5,829.78 5,863.45
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 263 263 6.26 6.26
Other payables 14.99 14.99 15.02 15.02
Debt securities 933.77 957.46 283.49 282.81
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 4,731.06 4,722.84 4,227.45 4,227.45
Subordinated liabilities 99.82 99.82 99.71 99.71
Lease liabilities 61.78 61.78 51.31 51.31
Other financial liabilities 66.05 66.05 4324 43.24
Total 5,910.10 5,925.57 4,726.48 4,725.80

The management assessed that fair values of cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets, trade payables, other payables,

borrowings (other than debt securities), subordinated liabilities and other Financial liabilities approximate their respective
carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. Lease liabilities are recognised as per Ind-AS
116. The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
acurrent transaction between willing parties, other thanin a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions

were used to estimate the fair values:

Financial instruments measured at Fair value and Fair value of financial instruments carried at amortised cost

Type Valuation technique

Significant
unobservable
input

Inter-relationship between
significant unobservable inputs
and fair value and sensitivity

Financial assets and Discounted cash flows : The valuation model

liabilities measured at  considers the present value of expected

amortised cost receipt/payment discounted using appropriate
discounting rate

Not applicable

Not applicable

For Investments Net Asset Value based method
has been considered after adjusting interest
accrued if any

Financial assets Net Asset Value based method
measured at FVTPL

Not applicable

Not applicable
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40. Financial risk management

The Company assumes credit risk, operational risk, market risk, compliance risk and reputational risk in the normal course of it business.
This exposes the Company to a substantial level of inherent financial risk.

Risk management framework

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management
framework. The board of directors have established the risk management committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring
the Company's risk management policies.

Efficient and timely management of risks involved in the Company's activities is critical for the financial soundness and profitability
of the Company. Risk management involves the identifying, measuring, monitoring, managing and reporting of risks on a regular basis.
The objective of risk management is to increase shareholders' value and achieve a return on equity that is commensurate with the risks
assumed. To achieve this objective, the Company employs leading risk management practices and recruits skilled and experienced people.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk
limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures,
aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

A) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations and arises principally from the Company's asset on finance.

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

a) Credit risk management

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However,
management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk
associated with the industry. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Credit impaired asset and significant increase in credit risk
is assessed by the following observable data:

e abreach of contract such as a default or past due event;
e when a borrower becomes 90 days past due in its contractual payments;

The risk management committee has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for
credit worthiness before the Company's standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Company's
review includes external ratings, if they are available, background verification, financial statements, income tax returns, credit
agency information, industry information, etc.

b) Probability of default (PD)

Days past due (DPD)analysisis the primary inputinto the determination of the term structure of PD for exposures. The Company
collects performance and default information about its credit risk exposures analysed by jurisdictions or region and type of
product or borrower as well as by DPD. The Company employs statistical models to analyse the data collected and generate
estimates of the PD of exposures and how these are expected to change as a result of passage of time.

c) Definition of default and cure
The Company considers a financial instrument defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for Expected Credit Loss(ECL)

calculations in all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on its contractual payments.

The Company considers probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been any significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase
in credit risk the Company compares the risk of default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default
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40. Financial risk management (Contd.)

as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and supportive forward-looking information. Following
indicators are incorporated:

- DPD analysis as on each reporting date
- significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of same borrower

- significant changes in value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of third party guarantees or
credit enhancements.

An asset migrates down the ECL Stage based on the change in the risk of a default occurring since initial recognition. If in
a subsequent period, credit quality improves and reverses any previously assessed significant increase in credit risk since
origination, then the loan loss provision stage reverses to 12-months ECL from lifetime ECL.

d) Exposure at default (EAD)

The exposure at default (EAD) represents the gross carrying amount of the Ffinancial instruments subject to the
impairment calculation;

To calculate the ECL for a Stage 1 loan, the Company assesses the possible default events within 12 months for the calculation
of the 12 month ECL. For Stage 2 and Stage 3 financial assets, the exposure at default is considered for events over the lifetime
of the instruments.

e) Loss given default (LGD)

Loss given default (LGD) represents estimated financial loss the Company is likely to suffer in respect of default account and it
is used to calculate provision requirement on EAD along with PD. The Company uses collection details on previously defaulted
cases for calculating LGD including estimated direct cost of collection from default cases. Appropriate discounting rates are
applied to calculate present value of future estimated collection net of direct collection cost. LGD thus calculated is used for all
Stages, i.e. Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3.

F)  Significant increase in credit risk

The Company continuously monitors all assets subject to ECLs. In order to determine whether an instrument or a portfolio of
instruments is subject to 12 months ECL or life time ECL, the Company assesses whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition; if contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, the credit risk is deemed to have
increased significantly since initial recognition.

The Company has applied a three-Stage approach to measure expected credit losses (ECL) on loans and other credit exposures
accounted for at amortised cost and FVOCI. Loss rates are calculated using a ‘roll rate’ method based on the probability of a
receivable progressing through successive Stages of delinquency to write-off. Assets migrate through following three Stages
based on the changes in credit quality since initial recognition:

(3) Stage 1:12- months ECL: For exposures where there is no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and
that are not credit-impaired upon origination, the portion of the lifetime ECL associated with the probability of default
events occurring within the next 12- months is recognised.

(b) Stage 2: Lifetime ECL, not credit-impaired: For credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition but are not credit-impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised.

(c) Stage 3: Lifetime ECL, credit-impaired: Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired upon occurrence of one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash Flows of that asset. For Financial assets that have
become credit-impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest revenue is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost
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40. Financial risk management (Contd.)

a)

Expected credit loss on Loans

The Company assesses whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly on collective basis. For the
purpose of collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics,
taking into account instrument type, product type, collateral type, and other relevant factors.

The Company considers defaulted assets as those which are contractually past due 90 days, other than those assets where
there is empirical evidence to the contrary. Financial assets which are contractually past due 30 days are classified under Stage
2 - life time ECL, not credit impaired, barring those where there is empirical evidence to the contrary. An asset migrates down
the ECL stage based on the change in the risk of a default occurring since initial recognition. If in 3 subsequent period, credit
quality improves and reverses any previously assessed significant increase in credit risk since origination, then the loan loss
provision stage reverses to 12-months ECL from lifetime ECL.

The Company measures the amount of ECL on a financialinstrumentin a way that reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount. The Company considers its historical loss experience and adjusts the same for current observable data. The key inputs
into the measurement of ECL are the probability of default, loss given default and exposure at default. These parameters are
derived from the Company’s internally developed statistical models and other historical data. In addition, the Company uses
reasonable and supportable information on future economic conditions including macroeconomic Factors. Since incorporating
these forward looking information increases the judgment as to how the changes in these macroeconomic factor will affect
ECL, the methodology and assumptions are reviewed regularly.

Forward looking information

In its ECL models, the Company relies on a broad range of forward looking information such as macro economic inputs. As
required by Ind AS 109, Macro Economic (ME) overlays are required to be factored in ECL Model. Overtime, new ME variable may
emerge to have a better correlation and may replace ME being used now.

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and expected credit loss for loans :

Loans measured at amortised cost*

Gross Weighted L Whether

0ss
Particulars carrying average credit -

allowance . .
amount loss rate impaired
As at 31 March 2024

Current (not past due)(Stage 1) 6,809.89 0.23% 15.68 No
1-30 days past due(Stage 1) 136.55 219% 2.99 No
31-60 days past due(Stage 2) 109.08 12.17% 13.28 No
61-90 days past due(Stage 2) 32.20 19.75% 6.36 No
More than 90 days past due(Stage 3) 68.02 4116% 28.00 Yes

7,155.74 0.93% 66.31
Gross Weighted Whether

. . Loss i
Particulars carrying average credit -
allowance . .
amount loss rate impaired
As at 31 March 2023

Current (not past due)(Stage 1) 5150.47 0.31% 15.90 No
1-30 days past due(Stage 1) 168.20 3.22% 541 No
31-60 days past due(Stage 2) 113.60 10.55% 11.99 No
61-90 days past due(Stage 2) 28.50 18.39% 5.24 No
More than 90 days past due(Stage 3) 37.08 55.93% 2074 Yes

5,497.85 1.08% 59.28
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40. Financial risk management (Contd.)

Expected credit loss on other Financial assets

Other financial assets primarily includes excess interest spread receivable and security receipts. Credit risk on excess interest
spread receivable is low as it primarily Falls in Stage 1. Security receipts are measured at FVTPL and hence the credit risk is
already factored in the fair value.

Cash and cash equivalents and other Bank Balance

The Company has cash and cash equivalents and bank balance of ¥ 735.41 crores (3195.19 crores at 31 March 2023). These are held
with bank and financial institution counterparties with acceptable credit ratings to reduce the credit risk.

An analysis of changes in gross carrying amount and corresponding ECL allowances is as follows :

(h) Movements in the gross carrying amount in respect of loans and other financial assets

(i) Loans measured at amortised cost*

. N Gross Loss Whether
Reconciliation of gross carrying amount 3 . .
carrying amount allowance credit - impaired
Gross carrying amount on 31 March 2022 3,859.56 349.26 40.84
Transfer to Stage 1 159.14 (156.76) (2.38)
Transfer to Stage 2 (63.67) 64.87 (1.20)
Transfer to Stage 3 (19.50) (11.38) 30.88
Loans assets originated or purchased 2,313.96 5.83 135
Net Financial assets that have been derecognised/ (920.35) (97.82) (32.27)
repaid(excluding write offs)
Write offs (net of recoveries) (10.47) (11.90) (0.14)
Gross carrying amount on 31 March 2023 5,318.67 142.10 37.08
Transfer to Stage 1 68.69 (65.61) (3.08)
Transfer to Stage 2 (101.07) 101.99 (0.92)
Transfer to Stage 3 (43.29) (11.61) 54.90
Loans assets originated or purchased 2,842.97 81N 2.85
Net Financial assets that have been derecognised/ (1,132.96) (25.81) (15.33)
repaid(excluding write offs)
Write offs (net of recoveries) (6.57) (7.89) (7.48)
Gross carrying amount on 31 March 2024 6,946.44 141.28 68.02

(i) Movements in the allowance for impairment in respect of loans and other Financial assets

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of asset on finance is as follows:

Loans measured at amortised cost*

Loss allowance measured at life-time
expected losses
Loss allowance Financial assets Financial assets

A measured at 12 for which credit for which credit
Reconciliation of loss allowance A . A .

month expected risk has increased risk has increased

losses(Stage 1) significantly significantly

and not credit- and credit-

impaired(Stage 2) impaired(Stage 3)

Loss allowance on 31 March 2022 12.45 45.05 15.29
Transfer to Stage 1 13.79 (13.67) (0.12)
Transfer to Stage 2 (8.09) 8.23 (0.14)
Transfer to Stage 3 (7.30) (10.26) 17.56
Loans assets originated or purchased 2.24 0.71 0.48
Loans assets that have been derecognised/ 18.68 (0.93) (12.19)

repaid(excluding write offs)
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Loss allowance measured at life-time

expected losses

Reconciliation of loss allowance

Loss allowance
measured at 12
month expected

Financial assets
For which credit
risk has increased

Financial assets
for which credit
risk has increased

losses(Stage 1) significantly significantly

and not credit- and credit-

impaired(Stage 2) impaired(Stage 3)

Write offs (net of recoveries) (10.46) (11.90) (0.14)

Loss allowance on 31 March 2023 21.31 17.23 20.74

Transfer to Stage 1 9.19 (7.52) (1.68)

Transfer to Stage 2 (1.88) 240 (0.51)

Transfer to Stage 3 (0.42) (1.43) 1.85

Loans assets originated or purchased 295 1.28 110

Loans assets that have been derecognised/ (11.73) 10.57 19.76
repaid(excluding write offs)

Write offs (net of recoveries) (0.75) (2.89) (13.26)

Loss allowance on 31 March 2024 18.67 19.64 28.00

(i) Concentration risk

Pursuant to the guidelines of the National Housing Bank, credit exposure of banks to an individual borrower must not exceed
15% of owned fund and 25% of owned fund of the Company to any single group of borrower. The Company is in compliance with
these guidelines.

In addition, the Company views the concentration of risk on the basis of below product type category:

As at As at

Loans
31March 2024 31 March 2023
Housing Loans 5,385.45 3,941.18
Loan against property 1,770.29 1,556.67

Assets obtained by taking possession of collateral

Details of financial and non-financial assets obtained by the Company during the year by taking possession of collateral held as
security against loans held at the year end, are shown below:

Particulars

For the year ended
31March 2024

For the year ended
31March 2023

Property 129 23
Principal outstanding and installment overdue* 11.01 219
*The above amount includes principal and other dues (after factoring retention ratio).
B) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities

that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as

possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the

Company's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash fFlows. The Company takes into account the

liquidity of the market in which the entity operates.
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40. Financial risk management (Contd.)

Maturities of Financial liabilities

The tables below analyse the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash Flows :

Less than 1-3|| Morethan
31 March 2024 Total
1year year 3years
Non-derivatives
Debt Securities 566.40 426.30 32.23 1,024.93
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 1,247.92 2,117.50 2,453.84 5,819.26
Subordinated liabilities 12.53 112.50 = 125.03
Payables 17.62 - - 17.62
Other Financial liabilities 66.05 - - 66.05
Lease liabilities 1212 19.57 30.09 6178
Total 1,922.64 2,675.87 2,516.16 7,114.67
Less than 1-3  More than
31March 2023 Total
1year year 3years
Non-derivatives
Debt Securities 288.14 - - 288.14
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 916.00 1,793.18 2,217.04 4,926.22
Subordinated liabilities 12.53 124.97 - 137.50
Payables 21.28 - - 21.28
Other financial liabilities 43.24 - - 43.24
Lease liabilities 9.23 17.09 24.99 51.31
Total 1,290.42 1,935.24 2,242.03 5,467.69

C) Market risk

D)

128

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of Financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters,
while optimising the return. All such transactions are carried out within the guidelines set by the Risk Management Committee.
Generally, borrowings are denominated in currencies that match the cash flows generated by the underlying operations of the
Company - primarily INR. In addition, interest on borrowings is denominated in the currency of the borrowing.

Interest rate risk

Exposure to interest rate risk:

The interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows:

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets 2,222.79 996.20 996.20
Financial liabilities 1,726.02 928.21

Variable rate instruments

Financial assets 6,001.50 6,001.50 4,878.87 4,878.87
Financial liabilities 4,184.08 3,798.27

Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest rates. Any movement in the reference
rates could have an impact on the Company'’s cash flows as well as costs.

The Company is subject to variable interest rates on some of its interest bearing liabilities. The Company's interest rate exposure
is mainly related to debt obligations. The Company also uses a mix of interest rate sensitive financial instruments to manage the
liquidity and Fund requirements for its day to day operations like short-term loans.
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40. Financial risk management (Contd.)

E)

Cash Flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rate at the reporting date would have increased or decreased equity and
profit or loss by the amounts shown below :

Profit or loss
100 bp increase 100 bp decrease

Particulars

31 March 2024

Variable rate instruments 1817 (18.17)
Cash Flow sensitivity (net) 18.17 (18.17)
31 March 2023

Variable rate instruments 10.81 (10.81)
Cash Flow sensitivity (net) 10.81 (10.81)

The model assumes that interest rate changes are instantaneous parallel shifts in the yield curve. Although some assets and liabilities
may have similar maturities or periods to re-pricing, these may not react correspondingly to changes in market interest rates. Also,
the interest rates on some types of assets and liabilities may fluctuate with changes in market interest rates, while interest rates on
other types of assets may change with a lag.

The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 100 basis points interest rate across all yield curves. This calculation also
assumes that the change occurs at the balance sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that
date. The period end balances are not necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding during the period. This analysis
assumes that all other variables remain constant.

Legal and operational risk
Legal risk

Legal risk is the risk relating to losses due to legal or regulatory action that invalidates or otherwise precludes performance by the
end user or its counterparty under the terms of the contract or related netting agreements.

The Company has developed preventive controls and formalised procedures to identify legal risks so that potential losses arising
from non-adherence to laws and regulations, negative publicity, etc. are significantly reduced. The Company also has well established
legal procedures to scrutinise product offerings and manage risks arising out of its transactions.

As at 31 March 2024, there were legal cases pending against the Company aggregating ¥ 0.87 Crores (31 March 2023: 3 0.04 crores).
Based on the opinion of the Company's legal advisors, the management believes that no liability is likely to arise from these cases.

Operational risk

Operationalrisk frameworkis designedto coverall Functionsandverticalstowardsidentifyingthe keyrisksintheunderlying processes.
The framework, at its core, has the following elements

1. Documented Operational Risk Management Policy

2. Well defined Governance Structure

3. Use of Identification & Monitoring tools such as Loss Data Capture, Risk and Control Self Assessment, Key Risk Indicators

4.  Standardised reporting templates, reporting structure and frequency

5.  Regular workshops and training for enhancing awareness and risk culture

The Company has adopted the internationally accepted 3-lines of defense approach to operational risk management.
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40. Financial risk management (Contd.)

First line - Each Function/vertical undergoes transaction testing to evaluate internal compliance and thereby lay down processes for
further improvement. Thus, the approach is “bottom-up’, ensuring acceptance of findings and faster adoption of corrective actions,
if any, to ensure mitigation of perceived risks.

Second line - Independent risk management vertical supports the Ffirst line in developing risk mitigation strategies and provides
oversight through regular monitoring. All key risks are presented to the Risk Management Committee on a quarterly basis.

Third line - Internal Audit conducts periodic risk-based audits of all functions and process to provide an independent assurance to
the Audit Committee.

F)  Foreign Currency Risk

The Company's activities expose it to the financial risks of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company uses derivative contracts
to hedge its exposure to movements in foreign exchange.

The Company uses hedging instruments that are governed by the policies of the Company which is approved by board of directors
which provide written principles on the use of such financial derivatives consistent with the risk management strategy of the
Company. The Board constituted Risk Management Committee (RMC) of the company manages risk on the company's derivative
portfolio. All derivative transactions that are entered into by the company are reported to the board, and the mark-to-market on its
portfolio is monitored regularly by the senior management.

To hedge its risks on the principal and/ or interest amount for foreign currency borrowings on its balance sheet, the company has
currently used foreign exchange forward contracts. The use of these derivative contracts reduce the risk or cost to the Company and
the Company does not use those for trading or speculation purposes.

41. Capital management

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business and meets the Capital Adequacy Requirements
(CRAR) requirement of the National Housing Bank (NHB) of India. The adequacy of the Company's capital is monitored using, among other measures,
the regulations issued by NHB. The Company has complied in full with all its externally imposed capital requirements over the reported period.
The primary objectives of the Company's capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed capital
requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise shareholder value.
The funding requirements are met through equity, non-convertible debentures and other long-term/ short-term borrowings. The Company's
policy is aimed at appropriate combination of short-term and long term borrowings. The Company manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. No changes have been made to the
objectives, policies and processes from the previous years. However, they are under constant review by the Board.

i Regulatory capital

The Company's regulatory capital consists of the sum of the following elements:

Tier 1 capital, which includes ordinary share capital, retained earnings and reserves and deduction for intangible assets and other
regulatory adjustments relating to items that are not included in equity but are treated differently for capital adequacy purposes.

Tier 2 capital, which includes qualifying subordinated liabilities and impairment provision in respect of standard assets.

) As at As at
Particulars

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

CRAR (%) 47.31 34.83

CRAR -Tier | Capital (%) 46.68 32.60

CRAR -Tier Il Capital (%) 0.63 2.23

Note: () In pursuant to RBI circular dated RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated 13 March 2020, CRAR
have been calculated with securitisation transaction being treated as zero risk weighted assets.

(i) Restructured loans related to resolution framework for COVID-19-related Stress dated 06 August 2020 has been assigned
normal weights considering it as regulatory dispensation given by RBI.
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41. Capital management (Contd.)

o
[18

Capital allocation

Management uses regulatory capital ratios to monitor its capital base. There is no allocation of capital required as Company is
operating primarily in a single segment i.e. financing. The Company's policies in respect of capital management and allocation are
reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of total equity and debt on periodic basis. Equity comprises of all component of equity
including the fair value impact. Debt includes long term loan and short term loan.

The Company is regular in payment of its debt service obligation and the company has not received any communication from its
lenders For non compliance of any debt covenant.

42, Employee Stock Option Plan / Scheme (ESOP/ RSO)

A

Description of share-based payment arrangements

The Company instituted the Grihum Housing Finance Limited - Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP 2018) in 2018, Grihum Housing
- Restricted Stock Option Plan 2018 (RSO 2018) in 2018 and Grihum Employee Stock Option Plan 2021 (ESOP 2021) in 2021, which
were approved by the Board of Directors and Shareholders of the Company. Implementation of ESOP 2018 and RSO 2018 is through
Trust route with a view to efficiently manage the Stock Option Plans. The Company had set up the Grihum Housing Finance
ESOP Trust (Formerly Poonawalla Housing Finance ESOP Trust) on 31 March 2018. The ESOP Trust is managed by Independent
Professionals as Trustees.

Pursuant to the resolutions passed by the Shareholders of the Company at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting (EGM) held on 31
March 2018 and 24 October, 2018, the Company had approved the ESOP 2018 and RSO 2018, respectively. Further, pursuant to the
resolution passed by the Shareholders of the Company at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 18 August 2021, the Company
had approved the ESOP 2021. Also, pursuant to the resolution passed by the Shareholders of the Company at the EGM held on 25
January, 2022, the Company had amended the RSO 2018. The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 11 May 2022 has approved the
cancellation of 1,40,000 ungranted Options under the RSO 2018 based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC). All the 33,60,000 Options granted under RSO 2018 to eligible employee remained operational with all its existing
terms and conditions (as amended from time to time) and all the options have been exercised by the option holder and upon such
exercise, the Company has allotted in aggregate 33,60,000 equity shares to the eligible employee in the following manner - 19,73,333
equity shares on 29 November 2021, 4,93,333 equity shares on 13 July 2022 and 8,93,334 equity shares on 03 January 2024.

During the year, the Company allotted 84,000 equity shares to the eligible employees under ESOP 2018 on 19 December 2023. The
Company also allotted under ESOP 2021, 65,300 and 49,500 equity shares to the eligible employees under ESOP 2021 0n 19 December
2023 and 3 January 2024, respectively.

Pursuant to the resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company at the EGM held on 22 March 2024, the Company had amended
the definition of the term “Shares” appearing under ESOP 2021 to include the convertible securities.

On 28 March 2024, the Company allotted 16,24,13,259,0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of 10 each, as bonus
shares in the ratio of 1:2, i.e.1 (one) CCPS for every 2 (two) Equity Shares held by the existing equity shareholders in the Company. On
account of the same, the Company granted additional options aggregating to 25,54,975 to the existing option holders holding vested
and unvested options under the ESOP 2018 and ESOP 2021 in the ratio of 1:2 (CCPS Options) and the same is in line with the ESOP
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42. Employee Stock Option Plan / Scheme (ESOP/ RSO) (Contd.)
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Plan 2018 and ESOP Plan 2021. Upon exercise of each equity Option, the Option Holders shall be entitled to receive 1 (One) CCPS on
bonus issue basis.

Particulars ESOP 2018 RSO 2018 ESOP 2021
Vesting Equity Options:The actual The vesting conditions are Equity Options:The actual vesting of options
conditions vesting of options will depend on linked to profitability. will depend on continuation to hold the

continuation to hold the services
being provided to the Company at
the time of exercise of options and
such other conditions as mentioned
in the ESOP Plan.

CCPS Options:The actual vesting

of CCPS Options will depend on
continuation to hold the services
being provided to the Company at the
time of exercise of options and such
other conditions as mentioned in the
ESOP Plan or the resolution passed by
the NRC for grant of CCPS Options.

services being provided to the Company at
the time of exercise of options and such other
conditions as mentioned in the ESOP Plan.

CCPS Options:The actual vesting of CCPS
Options will depend on continuation to hold
the services being provided to the Company
at the time of exercise of options and such
other conditions as mentioned in the ESOP
Plan or the resolution passed by the NRC for
grant of CCPS Options.

Vesting period

Equity Options:The vesting period

for Tranche 4 to 6 is as follows:

(@) 30% of the options shall vest on
the expiry of one year from the
date of the Grant.

(b) 30% of the options shall vest
on the expiry of two years from
the date of the Grant.

(c) 40% of the options shall vest on
the expiry of three years from
the date of the Grant. CCPS
Options:The CCPS Options shall
vest in the same proportion and
the vesting schedule shall be the
same as applicable to the original
options granted to the option
holders, subject to exercise of
the respective Equity Options so
vested from time to time.

Revised vesting criteria of RSO  Equity Options:The vesting period for all

a) 14,80,000 to be deemed

vested effective FY
22 upon execution of
necessary documents
and resetting the AUM
and RoE targets for
FY'20 vesting.

b) Balance14,80,000in

three tranches annually

by FY'23 subject to

performance conditions

on AUM and ROE.

c) Enable catchup of

unvested componentin

FY'23 if average actual
ROE exceeds average
target RoE by 1%

three tranchesi.e. Tranche 1to 3 is as follows:

(3) 33% of the options shall vest on the expiry
of one year from the date of the Grant.

(b) 33% of the options shall vest on the expiry
of two years from the date of the Grant.

(c) 34% of the options shall vest on
the expiry of three years from the
date of the Grant.CCPS Options:The
CCPS Options shall vestin the same
proportion and the vesting schedule
shall be the same as applicable to the
original options granted to the option
holders, subject to exercise of the
respective Equity Options so vested
from time to time.

Reconciliation of outstanding share options

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options under the share option plans were as follows:

ESOP, 2018

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

No. of options No. of options

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 3,90,000 6,30,000
Granted during the year - _
Exercised during the year 84,000 -
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42. Employee Stock Option Plan / Scheme (ESOP/ RSO) (Contd.)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

No. of options

No. of options

Lapsed during the year 20,000 2,40,000
Outstanding options at the end of the year 2,86,000 3,90,000
Exercisable at the end of the year 2,86,000 2,92,000

The options outstanding at 31 March 2024 have exercise price of ¥ 36.66 (Tranche 4 and 5),% 58.39 (Tranche 6) and weighted average

remaining contractual life of unvested options is NIL (31 March 2023: 0.83 years).

RSO 2018

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

No. of options

No. of options

Outstanding options at the beginning of the year 8,93,334 13,86,667
Granted during the year - -
Forfeited during the year - -
Exercised during the year 8,93,334 4,93,333
Expired/ lapsed during the year - -
Outstanding options at the end of the year - 8,93,334
Exercisable at the end of the year - 4,00,000

The options outstanding at 31 March 2024 have an exercise price of ¥ 10 (31 March 2023: ¥ 10) and a weighted average remaining

contractual life NIL (31 March 2023: 0.24 years).

ESOP 2021

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

No. of options

No. of options

Outstanding options at the beginning of the year 58,15,000 -
Granted during the year - 72,70,000
Exercised during the year 114,800 -
Expired/ lapsed during the year 8,06,250 14,55,000
Outstanding options at the end of the year 48,93,950 58,15,000
Exercisable at the end of the year 15,74,100 -

(i) The options outstanding at 31 March 2024 have an exercise price of 3 71.88 (31 March 2023:% 71.88 ) and a weighted average

remaining contractual life of 0.64 years (31 March 2023:1.14 years).

(i) There are noidentified employees who were granted ESOP, during any one year, equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued capital

(excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the Company at the time of grant.

C The fair value of the options granted is determined on the date of the grant using the “Black-Scholes model”and the inputs used in

the measurement of the fair value as on grant date as follows:

. As at As at
Particulars

31March 2024 31 March 2023

Fair market value of option as on the date of grant 20.89 - 31.76 20.89 - 31.76

Exercise price 10.00 - 71.88 10.00 - 71.88

Expected volatility (%) of share price

41.76% - 47.65%

41.76% - 47.65%
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42. Employee Stock Option Plan / Scheme (ESOP/ RSO) (Contd.)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31March 2023

Expected option life (weighted average)

up to 1years

up to 1years

Risk free interest rate (p.a)

4.70% to 6.98%

4.70% to 6.98%

The stock based compensation expenses determined using fair value method and charged to statement of profit and loss account is

3 3.54 crores (March 31,2023:310.86 crores).

D Reconciliation of outstanding CCPS share options

ESOP 2018

Particulars

As at
31March 2024

As at
31March 2023

No. of options

No. of options

Outstanding at the beginning of the year

Granted during the year 1,43,000 -
Exercised during the year = -
Lapsed during the year = -
Outstanding options at the end of the year 1,43,000 -
Exercisable at the end of the year 1,43,000 -
ESOP 2021

As at As at
Particulars 31March 2024 31March 2023

No. of options

No. of options

Outstanding options at the beginning of the year

Granted during the year 2411975 -
Exercised during the year = -
Expired/ lapsed during the year - -
Outstanding options at the end of the year 24,11,975 -
Exercisable at the end of the year 7,75,500 -

43. Thetable below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled. Derivatives
have been classified to mature and/or be repaid within 12 months, regardless of the actual contractual maturities of the products. With
regard to loans and advances to customers, the Company uses the same basis of expected repayment behaviour as used for estimating the
effective interest rate.

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Particulars Within More than Within More than
12 months 12 months 12 months 12 months
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 640.48 = 154.81 -
Other bank balances 18.45 76.48 2814 12.24
Loans 810.71 6,278.72 905.56 4,533.01
Investments 145.82 61.89 97.35 -
Other financial assets 71.02 120.72 46.96 97.00
Total Financial assets 1,686.48 6,537.81 1,232.82 4,642.25
Non-Financial assets
Current tax assets (net) - 444 - 0.99
Property, plant and equipment - 20.91 - 15.01
Intangible assets under development = 279 - 1.28
Other intangible assets - 464 - 3.05
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43. (Contd.)

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Particulars Within More than Within More than
12 months 12 months 12 months 12 months
Right of use assets 10.93 45.39 8.64 40.22
Other non-financial assets 5.83 27.20 10.29 16.22
Total non financial assets 16.76 105.37 18.93 76.77
TOTAL 1,703.24 6,643.18 1,251.75 4,719.02
Financial Liabilities
Payables
Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 0.04 -
enterprises
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 2.59 - 6.26 -
enterprises and small enterprises
Other payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small = =
enterprises
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 14.99 = 15.02 -
enterprises and small enterprises
Debt securities 514.26 419.51 28349 -
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 94416 3,786.90 917.69 3,309.76
Subordinated liabilities 0.03 99.79 0.03 99.69
Lease liability 1212 49.66 9.23 42,08
Other Financial liabilities 66.05 = 43.24 -
Total Financial liabilities 1,554.24 4,355.86 1,274.96 3,451.53
Non-Financial Liabilities
Provisions 0.94 2.85 0.65 1.96
Deferred tax liabilities (net) - 25.38 - 15.55
Other non-financial liabilities 7.23 10.04 17.55 -
Total non Financial liabilities 8.17 38.27 18.20 17.51
Total 1,562.41 4,394.13 1,293.16 3,469.04
Shareholders fund - 2,389.88 - 1,208.58

44. Transfer of financial assets

A  TransfFerred fFinancial assets that are not de-recognised in their entirety

The following tables provide a summary of financial assets that have been transferred in such a way that part or all of the transferred

financial assets do not qualify for derecognition, together with the associated liabilities:

Securitisation transactions:

. As at As at
Particulars

31 March 2024 31March 2023
Carrying amount of transferred assets measured 66.89 81.06
Carrying amount of associated liabilities 59.76 72.88
Fair value of assets 68.50 75.91
Fair value of associated liabilities 64.34 75.37
Net position at fair value 416 0.54

Loans and advances to customers are sold by the Company to a Special Purpose Entity (“SPE") which in turn issues PTCs to investors
collateralised by the purchased assets. In these securitisation transactions entered, the Company transfers loans and advances to an
unconsolidated SPE but, it, however, it retains some credit risk (principally through credit enhancements provided by it).

Since substantially all the risks and rewards of the loans transferred has been retained by the Company, it does not derecognise the

loans transferred in its entirety and recognise an associated liability for the consideration received.
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45, Change in liabilities arising From Financing activities

. As at ) Non As at
Particulars . Loan Taken Loan Paid
1April 2023 Cash Changes* | 31 March 2024
Debt securities 283.49 900.00 (280.00) 30.28 933.77
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 4,227.45 2,733.50 (2,235.85) 5.96 4,731.06
Subordinated liabilities 99.71 - - omn 99.82
Total Liabilities From Financing activities 4,610.65 3,633.50 (2,515.85) 36.35 5,764.65
As at Non As at
Particulars i Loan Taken Loan Paid
1April 2022 Cash Changes* 31March 2023
Debt securities 293.20 - (10.00) 0.29 283.49
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 2,804.79 3,369.96 (1,949.32) 2.02 4,227.45
Subordinated liabilities 99.61 - - 0.10 99.71
Total Liabilities From Financing activities 3,197.60 3,369.96 (1,959.32) 2.4 4,610.65
*Represents adjustments on account of effective interest rate and interest accrued but not due
46. Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)
(3) Contingent liabilities
As at As at

Particulars

31March 2024

31March 2023

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt

(i) Income tax matters under dispute 193 1.93

(i) GST matters under dispute 0.24 -

(iii) Legal cases against the company 0.87 0.04

. As at As at
Particulars

31March 2024 31 March 2023

Guarantees 70.00 15.00

During the year the Company has issued % 55.00 crore bank guarantee(During FY 2022-23, the Company has not issued any

bank guarantee).

(b) Commitments

X As at As at
Particulars
31March 2024 31 March 2023
(i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and 4.35 35.60
not provided for
(i) Undisbursed housing / other loans 865.30 268.05

(c) TheCompanyhasaprocesswhereby periodically all long-term contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the year end,

the Company has reviewed and ensured that adequate provision required under Ind AS/ RBI Regulations/ any statutory requirements

for material foreseeable losses on such long term contracts has been made in the books of account.

The Company has certain litigations pending with income tax authorities, service tax authorities and other litigations which have

arisen in the ordinary course of business. The Company has reviewed all such pending litigations having an impact on the financial

position, and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed the contingent liabilities where applicable, in

its Financial statements.
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47 Details of Corporate Social Responsibility ('CSR') expenditure

A CSR committee has been formed by the Company as prescribed under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. CSR expenses have been
incurred through out the year on the activities as specified in Schedule VIl of the Act.

. As at As at

Particulars
31March 2024 31March 2023
Excess amount spent in previous year* 0.02 0.06
Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 1.67 0.89
Amount spent during the year
- Construction/ acquisition of any assets - -
- Purposes other than above 1.68 0.85
Excess/(ShortFall) 0.03 0.02
*brought forward CSR obligation of FY 2022-233 0.02 crores
Disclosure for Section 135- CSR
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2024

31March 2023

The amount of shortfall at the end of the year out of the amount

Total of Previous years shortfall amount

Reasons for above shortfalls by way of note N.A. N.A.
Nature of CSR activities undertaken by Company Girl Child Education  Support
Program, Skill towards women

development
program for
unemployed youths,
disabled individuals,
and making safe
drinking water
available for
communities
across India

entrepreneurship,
girl child education,
health checkup
camps and safe
drinking water
distribution

Details of related party transactions

Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual

obligation

48. Disclosures relating to Fraud

During the year ended 31 March 2024, 9 fraud cases involving 9 loan accounts were reported (March 2023: 6 fraud cases involving 6 loan
accounts). The amount involved being ¥ 1.39 crores (March 2023:%1.10 crores) has been Fully provided For / written-off.

49. Thedisclosure required vide notification dated 24th March 2021in respect of relation with struck off Companies, the Company operates
primarily in the business of lending for housing to individuals and there were no such transactions which are required to be reported.

50. All charge Filings with respect to creation, modification and satisfaction of charges for the borrowings have been done within the
stipulated time period.

51. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed Funds or share premium or any other sources or other
kind of funds) to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries
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52. The Company has not received any funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) from any person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

53. The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the Financial year.

54. No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

55. The Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

56. There are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

57. Ratios:
Sr. ) ) ) Reason For Variance
Ratio Numerator Denominator FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 % Variance )

No (if above 25%)
1 CRAR 2,237.28 4,729 4731% 34.83% 12.48% Not applicable
2 Tier | CRAR 2,207.38 4,72911 46.68% 32.60% 14.08% Not applicable
3 Tier Il CRAR 29.90 4,72911 0.63% 2.23% -1.60% Not applicable
4 Liquidity Coverage Ratio Refer Note no.64

58. (1) Other disclosures as required by paragraph 16 of the NBFC - HFC Directions

(a) Capital
As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(i) CRAR (%) 47.31 34.83
(i) CRAR -Tier | Capital (%) 46.68 32.60
(iii) CRAR -Tier Il Capital (%) 0.63 2.23

(iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier- Il Capital* - -
(v) Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments - -

Note: Restructured loans related to the resolution framework for COVID-19-related Stress dated 06 August 2020 have been assigned
normal weights considering it as regulatory dispensation given by RBI.

*The outstanding amount of Sub debt as on 31 March 2024 is ¥ 99.82 crores (31 March 2023 :% 99.71 crores).However, during the FY 2023-24 and FY 2022-23, the
Company had not raised any Subordinated Debt.

(b) Reserve Fund u/s 29C of NHB Act, 1987

. As at As at

Particulars
31 March 2024 31March 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year
a) Statutory reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act 1987 28.68 2441
b) Amount of Special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into 68.45 4968

account for the purposes of Statutory reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
c) Total 9713 74.09
Additions/Appropriations/Withdrawals during the year
Add:
a) Amount transferred u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 9.95 4.27
b) Amount of Special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into 18.04 18.77

account for the purposes of Statutory reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
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58. (1) Other disclosures as required by paragraph 16 of the NBFC - HFC Directions (Contd.)

(c)

(d)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Less:

a) Amount appropriated from the Statutory reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

b) Amount withdrawn from the Special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) Income Tax Act, 1961
which has been taken into account for the purpose of provision u/s 29C of the
NHB Act, 1987

Balance at the end of the year

a) Statutory reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 38.63 28.68
b) Amount of Special reserve u/s 36(1)(vii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account 86.49 68.45
fFor the purposes of Statutory reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
c) Total 125.12 97.13
Investments
) As at As at
Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

1 Value of Investments

(i) Gross Value of Investments

(3 InIndia*

207.71

97.35

(b) Outside India

(i) Provisions for Depreciation

(d) InIndia

(b) Outside India

(iii) Net Value of Investments

(@) InIndia*

207.71

97.35

(b) wOutside India

*Investment consists investment made by the company in treasury bill and G-sec .Investment in Security Receipts amounting to ¥ 36.85 crores (31 March 2023 ¥

45.29 crores) is classified as "Other Financial Assets"and hence not included above.

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

2 Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments

(i) Opening balance

(i) Add:Provisions made during the year

(iii) Less: Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year

(iv) Closing balance

Derivatives

The company does not have any exposure in derivative transactions in FY 2023 -24 and FY 2022-23
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58. (1) Other disclosures as required by paragraph 16 of the NBFC - HFC Directions (Contd.)

(F) (i) Exposure to real estate sector*

Category

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

a) Direct Exposure

(i) Residential Mortgages-

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or 6,735.28 5,071.30
will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented. Exposure would also
include non-fund based (NFB) limits.
(ii) Commercial Real Estate-
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estate (office 0.51 0.25
buildings, retail space, multipurpose commercial premises, multifamily
residential buildings, multi tenanted commercial premises, industrial or
warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction,
etc). Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB) limits.
(iii) Investments in Mortgage-Backed Securities (MBS) and other
securitised exposures**
a. Residential - _
b. Commercial Real Estate 36.85 45.29
b) Indirect Exposure
3) Fund Based - NHB and HFC - -
b) Non-Fund Based - NHB and HFC = -
Total Exposure to Real Estate sector 6,772.64 5,116.84

*In addition to the exposure to Real Estate Sector disclosed above, the company also had loan exposure amounting to X 419.94 crores as on 31st March 2024

and 426.30 crores as on 31st March 2023 where security is in form of non-residential property.

**Includes security receipts, classified under "Other Financial Assets".

(ii) Exposure to Capital Market

The Company does not have any exposure to capital market as at the financial year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

(iii) Sectoral Exposure

Year ended 31 March 2024 Year ended 31 March 2023
Total Total
Exposure Percentage Exposure Percentage
(includes on of Gross (includes on of Gross
Sectors balance sheet Gross NPAs NPAs to total | balancesheet Gross NPAs  NPAs to total
and off- exposure in and off- exposure in
balance sheet that sector | balance sheet that sector
exposure) exposure)
1) Agriculture and Allied = = = - - -
Activities
2) Industry = = = - - -
3) Services* 0.51 - - 0.25 - -
4) Personal Loans 7155.23 68.02 0.95% 5,497.60 4455 0.81%
5) Others* 935.30 - - 283.05 - -

*Includes Commercial Real Estate Loans.

**Includes sanction under disbursemnt and bank guarantee.

(iv) Details of Financing of parent company products

The Company has not financed any products of parent company in the financial year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.
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58. (1) Other disclosures as required by paragraph 16 of the NBFC - HFC Directions (Contd.)

142

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

ix)

Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the HFC

The Company has not exceeded the prudential exposure limits during the financial year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

Unsecured advances

The Company has not given any advances against intangible securities such as charge over the rights, licenses, authorisation,
etc. in the financial year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

Exposure to group companies engaged in real estate business

The Company does not have any exposure to group companies engaged in real estate business as at the financial year ended

31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

Intra-group exposures*

As at As at

Particulars
31 March 2024 31March 2023

i) Total Amount of intra-group exposures - -
ii) Total Amount of Top 20 intra-group exposures = -
iii) Percentage of intra-group exposures to total exposure of the Company on = -

borrowers/customers

*The transactions made by the Company with the other group Companies were not in the nature of financial exposures.

Unhedged Foreign currency exposures

The Company did not have any exposure to unhedged foreign currency as at the financial year ended 31 March 2024
and 31 March 2023.
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58. (1) Miscellaneous

(a)

(b)

(c)

Registration obtained From other Financial sector regulators

The Company has obtained registration from Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India to act as a Corporate Agent

(composite) with effect from 01 January 2024

Group structure

Diagrammatic representation of group structure is given below:

Perseus SG Pte. Ltd. (an entity incorporated under the laws of Singapore)

(Parent Company)

Grihum Housing Finance Limited (Formerly Poonawalla Housing Finance Limited)

(Parent Company holds 98.90% of the total paid-up capital)

Details of ratings assigned by Credit Rating Agencies and migration of ratings during the year

Name of rating

As at

As at

Facilities Note Amount Amount
agency 31March 2024 31 March 2023
(i) Longterm bank facilities CRISIL Ratings Refer Note-1 AA-(Stable) 6500 AA+ (RWN) 1500
Limited
CARE Ratings Refer Note -2 AA-(Stable) 6200 AAA (RWN) 5200
Limited
(ii) Securednon-convertible CRISIL Ratings Refer Note-1 AA- (Stable) 1000 AA+ (RWN) 1500
debentures Limited
CARE Ratings Refer Note-2 AA- (Stable) 1420 AAA (RWN) 1500
Limited
(iii) PTC (on account ICRA Limited Refer Note-5 AA(SO) 62 AA (SO) 76
of securitisation
transaction)
(iv) Short Term Debt CRISIL Ratings Refer Note-3 Al+ 500 A1+ (RWD) 500
(Commercial debt) Limited
CARE Ratings Refer Note-4 Al+ 600 Al+ 600
Limited
ICRA Limited Refer Note-6 Al+ 100 - -
India Ratingsand Refer Note-7 Al+ 200 - -

Research Pvt Ltd

Note:

1 CRISIL Ratings withdrew long-term ratings on bank facilities and secured NCDs of ‘CRISIL AA+(RWN)'vide rating letters dated 15
July 2023 at the request of the Company. Subsequently, CRISIL Ratings assigned fresh long-term ratings for bank Facilities and
secured NCDs as‘CRISIL AA- (Stable) vide rating letters dated 27 December 2023.

2. CARE Rating revised long-term ratings on bank facilities and secured NCDs to ‘CARE AA- (Stable)' vide rating letters dated

18 August 2023.

3. CRISIL Ratings reaffirmed short term ratings to‘CRISIL A1+'and removed 'Rating Watch with Developing Implications'vide rating
letter dated 01 August 2023

4, CARE Ratings reaffirmed short term ratings to ‘CARE Al+'vide rating letter dated 18 August 2023.

5. ICRA Ratings re-affirmed their ratings as AA (SO) for the PTC instruments issued by MHFL Securitisation Trust |, MHFL
Securitisation Trust Il, MHFL Securitisation Trust Ill and MHFL Securitisation Trust | vide letters dated 27 June 2023, 30 January

2024,24 November 2023 and 24 November 2023 respectively.
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58. (1) Miscellaneous (Contd.)

(d)

(e)

(F)

(9)

(h)

(a)

6.  ICRA Ratings assigned fresh short-term ratings of lCRA A1+'vide rating letter dated 16 October 2023.

7. India Ratings assigned fresh short-term ratings of ‘Ind A1+ vide rating letter dated 07 November 2023.

Disclosure of Penalties imposed by NHB/RBI and other regulators

During FY 23-24 and FY 22-23, there were no penalties imposed by NHB or any other regulators on the company.

Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting policies

There are no prior period items that have impact on the current year's profit or loss

Revenue Recognition

There have been no instances in which revenue recognition has been postponed pending the resolution of significant uncertainties

Percentage of outstanding loans against collateral of gold jewellery to their outstanding total assets

The Company did not have any outstanding loans against collateral of gold jewellery as on 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

Remuneration of Directors*

. N Nature of Year ended Year ended

Name of the non-executive directors )
transaction 31March 2024 31March 2023
(i) Adar Poonawalla (up to 26.07.2023) Director sitting fee 0.01 0.01
(i) Amar Deshpande (up to 26.07.2023) Director sitting fee 0.14 0.25
(iii) Bhama Krishnamurthy (up to 08.09.2023) Director sitting fee 0.18 0.23
(iv) Prabhakar Ramchandra Dalal (up to 08.09.2023) Director sitting fee 0.16 0.22
(v) Richa Arora (w.e.f 13.03.2024) Director sitting fee 0.01 -
(vi) Prem Manjooran (w.e.f 08.09.2023) Director sitting fee 0.09 -
(vii) Puneet Bhatia Non-Executive Director (w.e.f 08.09.2023) Director sitting fee - -
(viii)Sanjeev Mehra Non-Executive Director (w.e.f 08.09.2023) Director sitting fee - -
* Refer to the note 38 for further details in this regard
58. (111) Additional Disclosures

Provisions and Contingencies
Break up of ‘Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the head Year ended Year ended

146

Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account

31March 2024

31 March 2023

Provision for depreciation on investment

Under "Employee Benefit Expenses"

(i) Provision for compensated absences 2.32 0.21
(i) Provision for gratuity 0.98 1.01
Under "Impairment for Loss Allowances"

(i) Provision towards non-performing assets (NPAs) 16.00 28.50
(ii) Provision for standard assets* 0.01 (14.62)
Under "Tax expenses"

(i) Provision made towards Income tax (includes deferred tax) 43.29 38.97

*Includes Provision in respect of Commercial Real Estate loans of amounting to ¥ 0.01 Crores ( FY 2022-23:3 0.01 Crores)

Break up of Loans, Advances and Provisions thereon

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Housing* || Non Housing Housing* Non Housing
Standard Assets
(i) Total outstanding amount 5142.37 1945.34 3,781.99 167133
(i) Provision made 2573 12.58 14.77
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58. (111) Additional Disclosures (Contd.)

(b)

(c)

(d)

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Break up of Loans, Advances and Provisions thereon

Housing* || Non Housing Housing* Non Housing
Sub-Standard Assets
(i) Total outstanding amount 45.08 16.36 24.53 1517
(ii) Provision made 18.26 492 1n.71 8.01
DoubtFul Assets-Category-I
(i) Total outstanding amount 1.59 2.29 216 179
(i) Provision made 0.98 1.09 110 0.96
DoubtFul Assets-Category-II
(i) Total outstanding amount 1.35 1.03 0.10 0.76
(ii) Provision made 1.39 1.03 on 0.75
Doubtful Assets-Category-Ill
(i) Total outstanding amount = 0.33 - 0.02
(i) Provision made - 0.33 - 0.03
Total
(i) Total outstanding amount 5,190.39 1,965.35 3,808.78 1,689.07
(ii) Provision made 46.36 19.95 34.76 24.52

*Iltincludes receivables amounting to ¥195.06 crores as on 31 March 2024 (3132.41 crores as 31 March 2023) towards the insurance premium funded by the Company

for the insurance cover availed by its customers.

Note:

In compliance with INDAS requirements, provisions are computed on Exposure at Default (EAD) and outstanding amount calculated
after considering all applicable INDAS adjustments.

Divergence in Asset Classification and Provisioning

For FY 2023-24 and FY 2022-23, no divergence in asset classification and additional provisioning requirements were advised by the
National Housing Bank (NHB) to the Company.Accordingly, any additional disclosures in this regard are not applicable on the Company.
Draw down from Reserves

During the FY 2023-24 and 2022-23, the Company has not drawn any amount from Special Reserves maintained u/s 29C of
the NHB Act, 1987.

Concentration of Public Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs.

(i) Concentration of Public Deposits (For Public Deposit taking/holding HFCs)

The Company has not taken any public deposits during the financial years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 respectively.

(ii) Concentration of Loans and Advances

. As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2024 31March 2023
Total Loans and Advances to twenty largest borrowers 18.10 19.03
Percentage of Loans and Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total 0.25% 0.35%
Advances of the HFC
(iii) Concentration of all Exposures (including off-balance sheet exposure)
. Asat As at
Particulars
31 March 2024 31March 2023
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers 18.38 19.15
Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to total 0.23% 0.30%

Exposure of the HFC on borrowers / customers
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58. (111) Additional Disclosures (Contd.)

(iv) Concentration of NPAs

. As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2024 31March 2023
Total Exposure to top ten NPA accounts 4.76 5.06
(v) Sector-wise NPAs
Percentage of NPAs
to Total Advances in that sector
Sector
As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

(A) Housing Loan

1 Individuals 0.93% 0.70%
2 Builders/Project Loans - -
3 Corporates - -
4 Others (specify) - -
(B) Non-Housing Loan
1 Individuals 1.02% 1.05%
2 Builders/Project Loans - -
3 Corporates 0.94% 119%
4 Others (specify) - -
(e) Movement of NPAs
As at As at
Particulars
31March 2024 31 March 2023
i) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 0.56% 0.40%
i)  Movement of NPAs (Gross)
a) Opening balance 4455 7017
b) Additions during the year 58.70 38.34
c) Reductions during the year (35.24) (63.96)
d) Closing balance 68.02 44.55
iii) Movement of Net NPAs
a) Opening balance 21.88 50.90
b) Additions during the year 35.60 19.06
c) Reductions during the year (17.46) (48.08)
d) Closing balance 40.02 21.88
iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)*
a) Opening balance 22.67 19.27
b) Provisions made during the year 231 20.88
c) Write-off / (write-back) of excess provisions (17.78) (17.48)
d) Closing balance 28.00 22,67

*The provisions referred here is loss allowances for Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
The overall Gross NPAs to Gross advances for FY 2023-24 is 0.95% (FY 2022-23 is 0.81%)

(F) Overseas Assets

The Company does not have any overseas assets as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

(g) OFF- Balance sheet SPVs sponsored (which are required to be consolidated as per accounting norms)

The Company does not have any exposure to off balance sheet SPVs sponsored as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

(h) Loans to directors, senior officers and relatives of directors

The Company has not provided any Loan to its directors, senior officers and relatives of directors in FY 2023-24 and FY

2022-23 respectively
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58.(IV) Disclosure of complaints as required by Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing
Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021

1) Summary information on complaints received by the HFCs from customers and from the Offices of Ombudsman

Particulars

As at
31March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Complaints received by the HFC from its customers

1)

Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year

2) Number of complaints received during the year 267 239
3) Number of complaints disposed during the year 266 239
3.1) of 3, which complaints rejected by HFC = -
4) Number of complaints pending at the end of the year* 2 1
Maintainable complaints received by the HFC from OFffice of Ombudsman - -
5) Number of maintainable complaints received by the HFC from Office of Ombudsman Not applicable Not applicable
5.1) of 5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the HFC by OFffice of Not applicable Not applicable
Ombudsman
5.2) of 5, number of complaints resolved through conciliation/mediation/ Not applicable Not applicable
advisories issued by Office of Ombudsman
5.3) of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by Office of Not applicable Not applicable
Ombudsman against the HFC
6) Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time Not applicable Not applicable

(other than those appealed)

The disclosures above Sl. No. 5 and 6 are not applicable to the Company since the Company, being a Housing Finance Company, is not
included under the Reserve Bank- Integrated Ombudsman Scheme, 2021.

2) Top Five grounds of complaints received by the HFCs from customers

% increase/

Number of . OF S,
. Number of decreasein Number of
complaints . . number of
. complaints the number complaints .
A ) . . pending B A . complaints
Grounds of complaints, (i.e. complaints relating to) tth received of complaints pending at di
at the endin
L. duringthe received over the end of P 9
beginning . beyond 30
year the previous the year
of the year days
year
As at 31 March 2024
Relating to Statements/ Documents provided by - 113 109.26% 1 -
the Company
Relating to Collection of Dues of the Company - 37 -513% - -
Relating to Refund = 1 -56.00% = =
Relating to Particulars of the Loan like Rate of - 17 -10.53% - -
Interest, Tenor, Dues etc.
Relating to PMAY Subsidy - 25 19.05% = =
Others 1 64 -20.99% 1 -
Total 1 267 2 -
As at 31 March 2023
Relating to Statements/ Documents provided by - 54 100.00% - -
the Company
Relating to Collection of Dues of the Company - 39 85.71% - -
Relating to Refund 1 25 -41.86% - -
Relating to Particulars of the Loan like Rate of - 19 5.56% - -
Interest, Tenor, Dues etc.
Relating to PMAY Subsidy - 21 5.00% - -
Others - 81 -19.80% 1 -
Total 1 239 1 -

*all complaints pending as on 31st March 2024 has been closed on 11 April 2024
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58.(IV) Disclosure of complaints as required by Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing
Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 (Contd.)

Section I

A) Disclosure of modified opinion, if any express by Auditors, its impact on various Financial items and views of management
on audit qualifications:

The statutory auditors have issued unmodified opinion for FY 2023-24 and FY 2022-23. Hence not applicable.

B) Items of income and expenditure of exceptional nature:

There is no such itemin FY 2023-24 and FY 2022-23

C) Breach of covenant

There are no breaches of any of the covenants in respect of debt securities issued by the company during FY 2023-
24 and FY 2022-23

59. Principal Business Criteria

X As at As at
Particulars

31March 2024 31 March 2023

a) Individual Housing Loan to Total Tangible Assets 62.23% 63.82%

b) Total Housing Loan to Total Tangible assets 62.24% 63.84%

60. Disclosures pursuant to RBI Circular no. DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated 13.03.2020

As at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

Loss . Differences
Asset Gross Provisions
. i Allowances Net A between Ind AS
e Classification carrying . . required as .
Asset Classifications as per RBI Norms (Provisions) as Carrying 109 provisions
as perind AS || amount as ) per IRACP
required under Amount and IRACP
109 per ind AS norms
Ind AS 109 norms
1 2 3 4 5=3-4 6 7=4-6
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 6,949.49 18.23 6,931.26 30.76 (12.53)
Stage 2 138.23 19.37 118.86 3.05 16.32
Subtotal 7,087.72 37.60 7,050.12 33.81 3.79
Non Performing Assets (NPA) - -
Substandard*® Stage 1 = = = = =
Stage 2 = = = = =
Stage 3 6144 2319 38.25 13.64 9.55
Doubtful- up to 1year* Stage 1 - - - - -
Stage 2 = = = = =
Stage 3 3.88 2.07 1.81 1.59 0.48
1to 3 years Stage 3 237 2.4 (0.04) 2.00 0.41
More than 3 years Stage 3 0.33 0.33 - 0.69 (0.36)
Subtotal For doubtful 6.58 4.81 177 4.28 0.53
Loss Stage 3 = = = = =
Subtotal For NPA 68.02 28.00 40.02 17.92 10.08
Other items such as guarantees, loan Stage1 861.86 043 86143 - 043
commitments, etc., which are in the scope Stage 2 344 0.28 316 - 0.28
of Ind AS 109 but not covered under current 865.30 0.7 864.59 - 0.71
income recognition, Asset Classification and
Provisioning(IRACP) norms™*
Subtotal 8,021.04 66.31 7,954.73 51.73 14.58
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60. Disclosures pursuant to RBI Circular no. DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated 13.03.2020 (Contd.)

Loss - Differences
Asset Gross Provisions
Allowances Net between Ind AS
. Classification carrying . . required as L.
Asset Classifications as per RBI Norms (Provisions) as Carrying 109 provisions
asperind AS || amount as ) per IRACP
required under Amount and IRACP
109 per Ind AS norms
Ind AS 109 norms
Total Stage 7,811.35 18.66 7,792.69 30.76 (12.10)
Stage 2 141.67 19.65 122.02 3.05 16.60
Stage 3 68.02 28.00 40.02 17.92 10.08
Total 8,021.04 66.31 7,954.73 51.73 14.58
As at and For the year ended 31 March 2023
Loss Differences
Asset Gross  Allowances N Provisions between
. Classification carrying (Provisions) . et required as Ind AS 109
Asset Classifications as per RBI Norms . Carrying -
asperind AS amountas as required Amount per IRACP provisions
109 perlind AS under Ind norms and IRACP
AS 109 norms
1 2 3 4 5=3-4 6 7=4-6
Performing Assets
Standard Stage1 5,317.64 21.01 5,296.63 28.42 (7.41)
Stage 2 135.67 15.43 120.24 481 10.62
Subtotal 5,453.31 36.44 5,416.87 33.23 3.21
Non Performing Assets (NPA) - -
Substandard* Stage 0.79 0.16 0.63 0.12 0.04
Stage 2 6.26 168 458 112 0.56
Stage 3 32.67 17.88 14.79 710 10.78
Doubtful- up to 1year* Stage 0.25 0.05 0.20 0.06 (0.01)
Stage 2 017 0.04 013 0.05 (0.01)
Stage 3 3.53 1.97 1.56 1.87 0.10
T1to 3 years Stage 3 0.86 0.86 - 0.84 0.02
More than 3 years Stage 3 0.02 0.03 (0.01) 0.06 (0.03)
Subtotal For doubtful 4.83 2.95 1.88 2.88 0.07
Loss Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal For NPA 44.55 22.67 21.88 1.22 1.45
Other items such as guarantees, loan Stage 1 266.06 0.09 265.97 - 0.09
commitments, etc, which are in the scope Stage 2 199 0.08 191 - 0.08
of Ind AS 109 but not covered under current 268.05 0.7 267.88 - 0.7
income recognition, Asset Classification and
Provisioning(IRACP) norms™**
Subtotal 5,765.91 59.28 5,706.63 44.45 14.83
Total Stage 5,584.74 21.31 5,563.43 28.60 (7.29)
Stage 2 144.09 17.23 126.86 5.98 11.25
Stage 3 37.08 20.74 16.34 9.87 10.87
Total 5,765.91 59.28 5,706.63 44.45 14.83

*In accordance with the RBI circular dated November 12, 2021, on “Prudential Norms on Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning (IRACP) pertaining
to Advances- Clarifications” and further clarifications provided by the RBI vide its circular dated February 15, 2022, the Company has implemented the requirements
prescribed with respect to‘Upgradation of accounts classified as NPAs!

Note : In compliance with INDAS requirements, provisions are computed on Exposure at Default (EAD).

** Represents loan cases sanctioned but not disbursed
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61. Disclosures under Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Securitisation of Standard Assets) Directions,
2021 dated September 24, 2021

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Securitisation’

(i) oOutstanding amount of Securitised assets as per books
of the SPVs?
1 No of SPEs holding assets for securitisation transactions 4 4

originated by the originator®
2 Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the

62.04 75.68

SPVs sponsored

3 Total amount of the exposures retained by the HFC to
comply with MRR as on the date of balance sheet

a) Off-balance sheet exposures

First loss - -

Others - -

b) On-balance sheet exposures

First loss 8.87 11.65

Others 2.37 290

4 Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions
other than MRR

3) Off-balance sheet exposures

(i) Exposure to own securitisation

First loss = -

Others 8.43 1.07

(i) Exposure to third party securitisations

First loss - -

Others - -

b) On-balance sheet exposures

(i) Exposure to own securitisation

First loss

Others 37.99 52.92

(i) Exposure to third party securitisations

First loss - -

Others - -

Sale consideration received for the securitised NIL
assets and gain/loss on sale on account of
securitisation

Form and quantum (outstanding value) of services
provided by way of, liquidity support, post-
securitisation asset servicing etc.

- Cash collateral in the form FD
(First Loss):

¥ 8.87 crores (Lien marked)

- Liquidity support in form of Cash
Collateral as FD (Second Loss) :

¥ 8.43 crores (Lien marked)*

- Post Securitisation assets
servicing fee charged on monthly
basis @ 0.10% on the outstanding
amount.®

- Cash collateral in the form FD
(First Loss) :311.65 crores (Lien
marked)

- Liquidity supportin form of
Cash Collateral as FD (Second
Loss):

T11.07 crores (Lien marked)*

- Post Securitisation assets
servicing fee charged on
monthly basis @ 0.10% on the
outstanding amount.®
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61. Disclosures under Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Securitisation of Standard Assets) Directions,
2021 dated September 24, 2021 (Contd.)

. As at As at
Securitisation’
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
7 Performance of facility provided: A) Details of the FD placed for (A) Details of the FD placed for
(3) Amount paid this purpose as under:* this purpose as under:*
(b) Repayment received (i) Against First Loss: (i) Against First Loss:
(c) Outstanding amount (8) Amount of FD Placed: (@) Amount of FD Placed:
312.94 crores 312.94 crores
(b) Lien Marked amount: (b) Lien Marked amount:
¥ 8.87 crores (69% of 11.65 crores (90% of
original FD value) original FD value)
(ii) Against Second Loss: (ii) Against Second Loss:
(3) Amount of FD Placed: (3) Amount of FD Placed:
T12.36Crores 312.36 Crores
(b) Lien Marked amount: (b) Lien Marked amount:
3 8.43 Crores (68% of 311.07 Crores (90% of
original FD value) original FD value)
(B) Other Credit Enhancement:® (B) Other Credit Enhancement:®
Further the Company has Further the Company has
provided credit enhancement provided credit enhancement
through investment in through investment in
subordinated tranches of PTC subordinated tranches of
as mentioned below : PTC as mentioned below :
(3) Amo unt paid: (3) Amount paid:
¥ 8.09 Crores ¥8.09 Crores
(b) Repayment received: (b) Repayment received:
3 5.72 Crores ¥5.20 Crores
(c) Outstanding amount :3 2.37 (c) Outstanding amount:
Crores (29% of original 3 2.90 Crores (36% of
investment) original investment)
8 Average default rate of portfolios observed in the past  6.69% 6.49%
(Home Loan):
9 Amount and number of additional/top up loan givenon - -
same underlying asset (Home Loan):
10 Investor complaints:
(a) Directly/Indirectly received NIL NIL
(b) Complaints outstanding NIL NIL

' Securitisation(PTC) transaction do not meet the de-recognition criteria under Ind AS and accordingly are recognised on books. Accordingly income and discounting
charges are included in revenue from operations and finance cost respectively. Amounts stated above are for the limited purpose of disclosure.

2Theabove figures are being reported based on certificate issued by the auditors of the SPV, as required by revised guidelines on transfer of assets through securitisation.
3 Only the SPVs relating to outstanding securitisation transactions are reported here.
4 Amount is reduced on account of dropped out in the underlying asset amount.

SCompany has entered into Collection & Servicing agreement with the trust for post securitisation asset servicing. The Company has not provided any liquidity comfort
or credit enhancement for collection & servicing arrangement.

¢ Repayment mentioned denotes repayment of the dues towards the subordinated PTCs in which the Company has invested.
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61. Disclosures under Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Securitisation of Standard Assets) Directions,

2021 dated September 24, 2021 (Contd.)

(F)

154

Disclosures pursuant to RBI

NotiFication -

September 2021

@i

(ii)

(iii)

(iii)

Details of transfer through assignment in respect of loans not in default :

RBI/DOR/2021-22/86 DOR.STR.REC.51/21.04.048/2021-22 dated 24

. As at As at
Particulars
31March 2024 31March 2023
Entity/Assignee Bank Bank
Count of Loan accounts Assigned 5586 Loans 3438 Loans
Amount of Loan accounts Assigned 524.09 Crores 324.02 Crores
Retention of beneficial economic interest (MRR)* 10% 10%
Weighted Average Maturity (Residual Maturity)* 146 Months 136 Months
Weighted Average Holding Period 15 Months 17 Months
Coverage of tangible security coverage 100% 100%
Rating wise distribution of rated loans Unrated Unrated
Details of acquired through assignment in respect of loans not in default:
. As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Entity/Assignor - HFC/NBFC
Count of Loan accounts Assigned = 3059 Loans
Amount of Loan accounts Assigned - 27295 Crores
Retention of beneficial economic interest (MRR)* - 10%
Weighted Average Maturity (Residual Maturity)** - 156 Months
Weighted Average Holding Period = 14 Months
Coverage of tangible security coverage = 100%
Rating wise distribution of rated loans - Unrated
* Retained by the originator
** At the time of acquisition
Details of stressed loans transferred during the year ended 31 March 2024
A To permitted To other
Particulars To ARCs
transferees transferees
Number of accounts 409 - -
Aggregate principal outstanding of loans transferred* 24.52 Crore - -
Weighted average residual tenor of the loans transferred 218 Months = =
Net book value of loans transferred (at the time of transfer)* 15.76 Crore - -
Aggregate consideration 22.32 Crores - -
Additional consideration realised in respect of accounts - - -
transferred in earlier years
Details of stressed loans transferred during the year ended 31 March 2023
A To permitted To other
Particulars To ARCs
transferees transferees
Number of accounts 745 - -
Aggregate principal outstanding of loans transferred* 87.1 Crores - -
Weighted average residual tenor of the loans transferred 140 Months - -
Net book value of loans transferred (at the time of transfer)* 65.64 Crores - -

Aggregate consideration 72.92 Crores

Additional consideration realised in respect of accounts -
transferred in earlier years

* The above figures includes sale of portfolio which have been written off in the past period. Hence, the net book value of such portfolio is Nil as on

date of transfer.
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62. Public disclosure on Liquidity Risk as at 31 March 2024

(i) Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both Deposits and Liabilities)

Number of Significant

Financial Year . Amount % of total deposits % of total Liabilities
Counterparties

2023-24 18 5367.94 NA 90.12%

2022-23 15 4550.21 NA 95.55%

Note: A'Significant Counterparty'is a single counterparty or group of connected or affiliated counterparties accounting in aggregate
for more than 1% of the Company’s total liabilities.

(ii) Top 20 large deposits (amount < in crores and % of total deposits)

The Company is a non-deposit taking housing finance company and does not accept any deposits from the public.

(iii) Top 10 borrowings (amount < in crores and % of total borrowings)

. . N . % oF total
Financial Year Sanctioned Outstanding .

Borrowings

2023-24 6,469.30 4,366.98 76.31%

2022-23 5,224.30 4115.53 89.35%

(iv) Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product
FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
Name of the Instrument % of total % of total
Amount e, Amount e

Liabilities Liabilities

Term Loan Facilities 4,641.29 77.91% 3,885.15 81.58%

Cash Credit Facilities 890.00 14.94% 275.00 577%

Non - Convertible Debentures 29.70 0.50% 270.00 5.67%

Subordinate Debt Instruments 100.00 1.68% 100.00 2.10%

Loan from PTC Investors 62.04 1.04% 75.68 1.59%

A single instrument/product shall be deemed as ‘significant instrument/ product’ if single instrument/ product or group of similar
instruments/ products in aggregate amount to more than 1% of the Company total liabilities.
(v) Stock Ratios:

(3) Commercial papers as a % of total public Funds, total liabilities and total assets
The Company has not raised any funds through issuance of Commercial Papers (CPs) and hence this disclosure is
not applicable.

(b) Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and
total assets
The Company does not have any Non-convertible debentures with original maturity of less than one year and hence this

disclosure is not applicable

(c) Other short-term liabilities, if any as a % of total public Funds, total liabilities and total assets

Financial Year Short term liabilities % of Total Liabilities % of Total Assets % of Public Funds
2023-24 29.70 0.50% 0.36% 0.52%
2022-23 275.00 6.00% 4.61% 597%

The above stated'Other short-term liabilities'includes working capital facilities.
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62.

(vi)

63.

Public disclosure on Liquidity Risk as at 31 March 2024 (Contd.)

Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management

The Company has an Asset Liability Committee (ALCO), constituted by the Board, which periodically reviews asset liability position of
the Company. It also ensures that there are no excessive concentration on either assets or liability side of the balance sheet.

ALM is monitored as a regular process and necessary steps are taken wherever required. Company also maintains sufficient liquidity
buffer through credit lines and other means to meet its liability when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions in a
timely manner. Maturity profile of financial assets and financial liabilities is assessed along with borrowings and business and as a
part of review of liquidity position.

The Company has obtained fund based working capital lines and Term Loans from various banks and financial institutions. Further,
the Company has access to funds from debt markets through non-convertible debentures and other debt instruments. Cash Credit /
WCDL limits are renewed on annual basis and are therefore revolving in nature.

The Company has an Asset Liability Management Policy (ALM Policy). Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with ALM Policy. Same is
reviewed periodically to incorporate regulatory changes, economic scenario and business requirements.

Disclosures in respect of Guidelines on Maintenance of Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) as referred in para 3.1.2

of the Master Direction-Non-Banking Financial Company -Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions
2021and Annex |l referred in para 15A of the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financials Company - Systematically
Important Non- Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company ( Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

Appendix 1
As on 31 March 24 As on 31 March 23
) Total . Total .
Particulars . Total weighted . Total weighted
unweighted unweighted
value ( Average)# value ( Average)#
value (Average)* value (Average)*

High Quality Liquid Assets

1. Total High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA) 204.63 204.63 396.18 396.18
Cash Outflows
2. Deposits ( for deposit taking companies) - - - -
3. Unsecured wholesale funding - - - -
4. Secured wholesale funding 68.91 79.25 208.16 23938
5. Additional requirements, of which
(i) OutFlows related to derivative exposures and - - - -
other collateral requirements
(i) Outflows related to loss of funding on debt products - - - -
(iii) Credit and liquidity Facilities - - - -
6. Other contractual funding obligations 57.03 65.58 5511 63.38
7. Other contingent funding obligations 28843 331.69 89.55 102.98
8. TOTAL CASH OUTFLOWS 414.37 476.52 352.81 405.74
Cash Inflows
9. Secured lending® - - 440.00 330.00
10. Inflows from Fully performing exposures 94.15 70.61 61.54 46.15
1. Other cash inflows 736.95 552.71 3.37 2.53
12. TOTAL CASH INFLOWS 831.10 623.32 504.91 378.68
Total Total
Particulars ) )
Adjusted Value Adjusted Value
13. TOTAL HQLA 204.63 396.18
14. TOTAL NET CASH OUTFLOWS 11913 10143
15. LIQUIDITY COVERAGE RATIO (%) 171.77% 390.58%
16. NHB Requirement w.e.f. 1st Dec 23 (%) 60.00% 50.00%
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63. Disclosures in respect of Guidelines on Maintenance of Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) as referred in para 3.1.2
of the Master Direction-Non-Banking Financial Company -Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions
2021and Annex Il referred in para 15A of the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financials Company - Systematically
Important Non- Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company ( Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016. (Contd.)

. Total Total
Particulars . .
Adjusted Value Adjusted Value
Components of HQLA
1. Assets to be included as HQLA without any haircut 204.63 396.18

2. Assets to beincluded for HQLA with a minimum haircut of 15% - -
3. Assets to beincluded for HQLA with a minimum haircut of 50% - -
4. Approved securities held as per the provisions of section 45 IB of RBI Act - -
TOTAL HQLA 204.63 396.18

*Unweighted values calculated as outstanding balances maturing or callable within 30 days (for inflows and outflows).

# Weighted values calculated after the application of respective stress factors on inflow and outflow.

**Includes unutilised bank lines.
HQLA includes Balances with Banks in current accounts, Cash on Hand and Investments in Treasury bills and Government securities.

64. Annexure as required in terms of Master Direction — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2021, RBI/2020-21/73 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.N0.120/03.10.136/2020-21, updated as on 28 December 2021

Schedule to the Balance Sheet

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
o Amount Amount Amount Amount
Liabilities side i i
outstanding overdue outstanding overdue
1) Loans and advances availed by the HFC inclusive of interest
accrued thereon but not paid*
(3) Debentures:Secured 933.77 - 283.49 -
:Unsecured - - - -
(b) Deferred Credits - - - -
(c) Term Loans 4,638.27 = 3,879.57 -
(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing - - - -
() Commercial Paper - - - -
(F) Public Deposits - - - -
(g) Other Loans: - - - -
Loans repayable on demand 33.03 = 275.00 -
Subordinated liabilities 99.82 = 99.71 -

2) Break-up of (1)(F) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive
of interest accrued thereon but not paid):
(3) Inthe form of Unsecured debentures - - - -
(b) Inthe form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures - - - -

where there is a shortfall in the value of security
(c) Other public deposits - = - -

* Does not include loan from PTC investors amounting to ¥ 59.76 crores which forms part of securitised liability classified as borrowings in the Financials Statement as
the same does not meet the derecognition criteria as per provision of Ind AS.

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 | As at 31 March 2023
A Amount Amount

Assets side ) i
outstanding outstanding

3) Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables [other than those
included in (4) below]:
(a) Secured 7155.74 5,497.85
(b) Unsecured - -
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64. Annexure as required in terms of Master Direction — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2021, RBI/2020-21/73 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.N0.120/03.10.136/2020-21, updated as on 28 December 2021 (Contd.)

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 | As at 31 March 2023
. Amount Amount

Assets side i i
outstanding outstanding

4) Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards
asset Financing activities
(i) Lease assetsincluding lease rentals under sundry debtors
(3) Financial Lease = -
(b) Operating Lease = -
(ii) Stock on hireincluding hire charges under
(a) Assetson Hire - -
(b) Repossessed Assets - -
(iii) Other Loans counting towards asset financing activities
(3) Loans where assets have been repossessed = -
(b) Loans other than (a) above = -
5) Breakup of Investments
Current Investments

1 Quoted
(i) Shares
(3) Equity - -

(b) Preference - -
(ii) Debentures and Bonds - -
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds - -
(iv) Government securities 207.71 97.35
(v) Others - -
2 Unquoted
(i) Shares
(3) Equity - -
(b) Preference - -
(i) Debentures and Bonds - -
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds - -
(iv) Government securities - -

(v) Others _ -
Long Term Investments
1 Quoted
(i) Shares
(3) Equity - -

(b) Preference - -
(i) Debentures and Bonds = -
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds - -
(iv) Government securities - -
(v) Others - -
2 Unquoted
(i) Shares
() Equity - -
(b) Preference - -
(ii) Debentures and Bonds - -
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds = -
(iv) Government securities = -
(v) Others - -
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64. Annexure as required in terms of Master Direction — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2021, RBI/2020-21/73 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.N0.120/03.10.136/2020-21, updated as on 28 December 2021 (Contd.)

. As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Particulars — —
Amount net of provisions Amount net of provisions
Category Secured | | Unsecured | | Total Secured Unsecured Total
6) Borrower group-wise classification of assets
financed as in (3) and (4) above:
1 Related Parties
(3) Subsidiaries - - - - - -
(b) Companies in the same group - - - - - -
(c) Other Related parties = = = - - -
2 Other than related parties 7,089.43 - 7,089.43 5,438.57 - 5,438.57
Total 7,089.43 - 7,089.43 5,438.57 - 5,438.57
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Market Value / Book Value Market Value / Book Value
Category . .
Break up or fair (Net of | Break up or Fair (Net of
value or NAV Provisions) value or NAV Provisions)
7) Investor group-wise classification of all investments
(current and long term) in shares and securities (both
quoted and unquoted):
1 Related Parties
(3) Subsidiaries - - - -
(b) Companiesin the same group = = - -
(c) Other Related parties = = - -
2 Otherthan related parties 207.77 207.71 97.38 97.35
Total 207.77 207.71 97.38 97.35
As at As at
Particulars
31March 2024 31 March 2023

8) Other Information
(i) Gross Non Performing Assets
(3) Related Parties - -
(b) Other than Related parties 68.02 44.55
(ii) Net Non Performing Assets
(3) Related Parties - -
(b) Other than Related parties 40.02 21.88
(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt* 10.45 21

*The above amount includes principal, other dues and Ind AS adjustments (after factoring retention ratio). The amount towards ‘Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt’
forms part of the loan assets disclosed by the Company and the same has also been classified as NPAs.
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65. During the year, to relieve COVID-19 pandemic related stress, the Company has invoked resolution plans for
eligible borrowers based on the parameters laid down in accordance with the one time restructuring policy
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and in accordance with the guidelines issued by the RBI on
6 August 2020

Disclosure pursuant to RBI/2020-21/16 DOR.No.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21 dated August 6, 2020 for the year ended

31 March 2024

(A) (B) (9] (D) (€E)
Exposure to accounts OF (A), OF (A) amount Exposure to accounts
. OF (A) amount A .
classified as Standard aggregate debt it ¢ paid by the classified as Standard
written ol

consequent to that slipped . . borrowers consequent to

Type of borrower A . A B during six . ) . .
implementation of into NPA during . during six implementation of

. . month period . i
resolution plan - six month month period resolution plan -
. . ended 31st Mar .

Position as at the end period ended 2024 * ended 31st Mar Position as at the end
of 30th Sep 2023 (A) 31st Mar 2024 2024 #* of 31st Mar 2024
Personal Loans 146.86 5.38 - 10.94 130.54
Corporate persons* - - - - -
OFf which, MSMEs - - - - -
Others - - - - -
Total 146.86 5.38 - 10.94 130.54

* As defined in Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
# represents amount slipped into NPA and subsequently written off during the half year ended 13 March 2024.

## Amount paid by the borrower during the half year is net off additions in the borrower account & adjustments for realisation made through sale of stress assets.

66. The Board of Directors of Poonawalla Fincorp Limited, the erstwhile Holding Company at its meeting held on 14 December 2022
had accorded its consent for the sale of controlling stake (‘Proposed Transaction") in Poonawalla Housing Finance Limited (“Company"”)
to Perseus SG Pte. Ltd,, an entity affiliated with TPG (“Perseus”). In view of the same, the Board of the Company at its meeting held on 14
December 2022 has taken note of the proposed transaction and executed a Share Purchase Agreement (“SPA") amongst PFL, Perseus
and the Company on 14 December 2022, for the proposed sale of controlling stake i.e. 99.02% by PFL, subject to regulatory approvals and
satisfaction of other customary conditions. Subsequently, the Company had filed an application with Reserve Bank of India (RBI) seeking
prior requisite approval for the transfer of shareholding of the Company, together with the acquisition of control of the Company and
change of management (i.e, non-executive non-independent directors) pursuant to Chapter VIIl -Acquisition/Transfer of Control of RBIHFC
Master Directions as amended from time to time. The RBI has granted its approval for change in shareholding vide its letter dated 30 May
2023 and change in management vide its letter dated 31 August 2023. Consequently, the divestment of equity shares held by Poonawalla
Fincorp Limited and its nominees in fFavour of Perseus and it's nominees, has been consummated on 26 July 2023, and the management of
the Company was changed on 8 September 2023. Post successful consummation of the stake sale transaction, the Company has changed
its name to "Grihum Housing Finance Limited" w.e.f. 177 November 2023.

67. Figures for the previous year. have been regrouped and / or reclassified whenever considered necessary.

For G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no:100515W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Grihum Housing Finance Limited
(Formerly Poonawalla Housing Finance Limited)
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Date: 03 May 2024
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C. M. Dixit Vaishnavi Suratwala
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Pankaj Rathi
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Place: Pune
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Date: 03 May 2024
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